FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

Exercise Coach USA, LLC

An Illinois limited liability company

531 Telser Rd-

., Lake Zurich, Illinois 60084

Phone: (855) 202-6224

E-MailEmail: franchise@exercisecoach.com
Website: www.exercisecoach.com

Exercise Coach USA, LLC offers franchises for the operation of a business that provides a comprehensive
system of personal training to optimize longevity and health span using: (a) proprietary and technologically-
advanced eqmpment— (b) ewdence based strenqth erX|b|I|tv stabllltv balance and braln trammq Drotocols and

methods—W -_and (c)

metabolic health and nutrition programs

The total investment necessary to begin operation of a THE EXERCISE COACH® franchise—ranges—from
$161,682studio is $259,840 to $382,986--389,970. This includes $68,927162,145 to $151,716216,190 that must
be paid to us-and-ouraffiliates:the franchisor or affiliate.

The total investment necessary to begin operatlon of 2103 THE EXERCISE COACH® #&nehlsestudlos under
an Area Development Agreement is $ b g

ﬁ%st—tr&nehlse)—plu&ardewlepmem—fe&eqem299 840 to theiu#dﬁeeamed—mmauranehﬂeﬂfeey%kmusppay—fe#
E‘qd 3 -, .

fer—eaeh—addrmgnal—franekuse—that—yea—eemmn—te—de\felep}$454 970 This includes $684921202 145 to
$151.7146281,190 that must be paid to

be-paid-to-us—the franchisor or affiliate.

This Disclosure Document summarizes certain provisions of your franchise agreement, area development
agreement and other information in plain English. Read this Disclosure Document and all accompanying
agreements carefully. You must receive this Disclosure Document at least 14 calendar days before you sign a
binding agreement with, or make any payment to, the franchisor or an affiliate in connection with the proposed
franchise sale. Note, however, that no government agency has verified the information contained in this
document.

You may wish to receive your Disclosure Document in another format that is more convenient for you. To
discuss the availability of disclosures in different formats, contact the franchisor at 531 Telser Rd., Lake Zurich,
Illinois 60084 or by phone at (855) 202-6224.

The terms of your contract will govern your franchise relationship. Don’t rely on the Disclosure Document
alone to understand your contract. Read all of your contract carefully. Show your contract and this Disclosure
Document to an advisor, like a lawyer or accountant.

Buying a franchise is a complex investment. The information in this Disclosure Document can help you make
up your mind. More information on franchising, such as “A Consumer’s Guide to Buying a Franchise,” which
can help you understand how to use this Disclosure Document, is available from the Federal Trade Commission
(the “ETC™). You can contact the FTC at 1-877-FTC-HELP or by writing to the FTC at 600 Pennsylvania
Avenue, NW, Washington, DC 20580. You can also visit the FTC’s home page at www.ftc.gov for additional
information. Call your state agency or visit your public library for other sources of information on franchising.
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There may also be laws on franchising in your state. Ask your state agencies about them.

Issuance Date: April 19202421, 2025
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How to Use this Franchise Disclosure Document

Here are some questions you may be asking about buying a franchise and tips on how to find more
information:

QUESTION

WHERE TO FIND INFORMATION

How much can | earn?

Item 19 may give you information about outlet sales,
costs, profits or losses. You should also try to obtain
this information from others, like current and former
franchisees. You can find their names and contact
information in Item 20 or EXHIBIT “F* _EXHIBIT
"G".

How much will I need to invest?

Items 5 and 6 list fees you will be paying to the
franchisor or at the franchisor’s direction. Item 7 lists
the initial investment to open. Item 8 describes the
suppliers you must use.

Does the franchisor have the financial
ability to provide support to my
business?

Item 21 or EXHIBIFGEXHIBIT "H" includes
financial statements. Review these statements
carefully.

Is the franchise system stable, growing,
or shrinking?

Item 20 summarizes the recent history of the number
of company-owned and franchised outlets.

Will my business be the only THE
EXERCISE COACH-business® studio
In my area?

Item 12 and the “territory” provisions in the franchise
agreement describe whether the franchisor and other
franchisees can compete with you.

Does the franchisor have a troubled
legal history?

Items 3 and 4 tell you whether the franchisor or its
management have been involved in material litigation
or bankruptcy proceedings.

What’s it like to be anra THE
EXERCISE COACH?® franchisee?

Item 20 or EXHIBITFFEXHIBIT "G" lists current
and former franchisees. You can contact them to ask
about their experiences.

What else should I know?

These questions are only a few things you should
look for. Review all 23 Items and all Exhibits in this
disclosure document to better understand this
franchise opportunity. See the table of contents.
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What You Need To Know About Franchising Generally

Continuing responsibility to pay fees. You may have to pay royalties and other fees even if
you are losing money.

Business model can change. The franchise agreement may allow the franchisor to change its
manuals and business model without your consent. These changes may require you to make
additional investments in your franchise business or may harm your franchise business.

Supplier_restrictions. You may have to buy or lease items from the franchisor or a limited
group of suppliers the franchisor designates. These items may be more expensive than similar
items you could buy on your own.

Operating restrictions. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from operating a similar
business during the term of the franchise. There are usually other restrictions. Some examples
may include controlling your location, your access to customers, what you sell, how you
market, and your hours of operation.

Competition_from franchisor. Even if the franchise agreement grants you a territory, the
franchisor may have the right to compete with you in your territory.

Renewal. Your franchise agreement may not permit you to renew. Even if it does, you may
have to sign a new agreement with different terms and conditions in order to continue to
operate your franchise business.

When_vyour_franchise ends. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from operating a
similar business after your franchise ends even if you still have obligations to your landlord or
other creditors.

Some States Require Registration

—Your state may have a franchise law, or other law, that requires franchisors to register
before offering or selling franchises in the state. Registration does not mean that the state
recommends the franchise or has verified the information in this document. To find out if your
state has a registration requirement, or to contact your state, use the agency information in
EXHIBHAEXHIBIT "A".

—Your state also may have laws that require special disclosures or amendments be made to

your franchise agreement. If so, you should check the State Specific Addenda. See the Table of
Contents for the location of the State Specific Addenda.
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Special Risks to Consider About This Franchise

Certain states require that the following risk(s) be highlighted:

1.

Out-of-State Dispute Resolution. The franchise agreement and area development
agreement require you to resolve disputes with the franchisor by mediation and/or litigation
only in Texas. Out-of-state mediation or litigation may force you to accept a less favorable
settlement for disputes. It may also cost more to mediate or litigate with the franchisor in
Texas than in your own state.

Spousal Liability. Your spouse must sign a document that makes your spouse liable for all
financial obligations under the franchise agreement even though your spouse has no
ownership interest in the franchise.

Minimum Payments. You must make minimum royalty, advertising, and other payments,
regardless of your sales levels. Your inability to make the payments may result in
termination of your franchise and loss of your investment.

Unopened Franchises. The franchisor has signed a significant number of franchise
agreements with franchisees who have not yet opened their outlets. If other franchisees are
experiencing delays in opening their outlets, you also may experience delays in opening
your own outlet.

—Certain states may require other risks to be highlighted. Check the “State Specific
Addenda” (if any) to see whether your state requires other risks to be highlighted.
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THE STATE OF MICHIGAN PROHIBITS CERTAIN UNFAIR PROVISIONS THAT ARE
SOMETIMES IN FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS. IF ANY OF THE FOLLOWING PROVISIONS ARE
IN THESE FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS, THE PROVISIONS ARE VOID AND CANNOT BE
ENFORCED AGAINST YOU.

Each of the following provisions is void and unenforceable if contained in any document relating to a franchise:
(a) A prohibition on the right of a franchisee to join an association of franchisees.

(b) A requirement that a franchisee assent to a release, assignment, novation, waiver, or estoppel which deprives
a franchisee of rights and protections provided in this act. This shall not preclude a franchisee, after entering
into a franchise agreement, from settling any and all claims.

(c) A provision that permits a franchisor to terminate a franchise prior to the expiration of its term except for
good cause. Good cause shall include the failure of the franchisee to comply with any lawful provision of
the franchise agreement and to cure such failure after being given written notice thereof and a reasonable
opportunity, which in no event need be more than 30 days, to cure such failure.

(d) A provision that permits a franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise without fairly compensating the
franchisee by repurchase or other means for the fair market value at the time of expiration of the
franchisee’s inventory, supplies, equipment, fixtures, and furnishings. Personalized materials which have no
value to the franchisor and inventory, supplies, equipment, fixtures, and furnishings not reasonably required
in the conduct of the franchise business are not subject to compensation. This subsection applies only if: (i)
The term of the franchise is less than 5 years and (ii) the franchisee is prohibited by the franchise or other
agreement from continuing to conduct substantially the same business under another trademark, service
mark, trade name, logotype, advertising, or other commercial symbol in the same area subsequent to the
expiration of the franchise or the franchisee does not receive at least 6 months advance notice of
franchisor'’s intent not to renew the franchise.

(e) A provision that permits the franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise on terms generally available to other
franchisees of the same class or type under similar circumstances. This section does not require a renewal
provision.

(f) A provision requiring that arbitration or litigation be conducted outside this state. This shall not preclude the
franchisee from entering into an agreement, at the time of arbitration, to conduct arbitration at a location
outside this state.

(9) A provision which permits a franchisor to refuse to permit a transfer of ownership of a franchise, except for
good cause. This subdivision does not prevent a franchisor from exercising a right of first refusal to
purchase the franchise. Good cause shall include, but is not limited to:

(i) The failure of the proposed transferee to meet the franchisor’s then current reasonable qualifications or
standards.

(if) The fact that the proposed transferee is a competitor of the franchisor or subfranchisor.
(iii) The unwillingness of the proposed transferee to agree in writing to comply with all lawful obligations.

(iv) The failure of the franchisee or proposed transferee to pay any sums owing to the franchisor or to cure
any default in the franchise agreement existing at the time of the proposed transfer.

(h) A provision that requires the franchisee to resell to the franchisor items that are not uniquely identified with
the franchisor. This subdivision does not prohibit a provision that grants to a franchisor a right of first
refusal to purchase the assets of a franchise on the same terms and conditions as a bona fide third party
willing and able to purchase those assets, nor does this subdivision prohibit a provision that grants the
franchisor the right to acquire the assets of a franchise for the market or appraised value of such assets if the
franchisee has breached the lawful provisions of the franchise agreement and has failed to cure the breach in
the manner provided in subdivision (c).



(i) A provision which permits the franchisor to directly or indirectly convey, assign, or otherwise transfer its
obligations to fulfill contractual obligations to the franchisee unless provision has been made for providing
the required contractual services.

If the franchisor’s most recent financial statements are unaudited and show a net worth of less than $100,000.00,
the franchisee may request the franchisor to arrange for the escrow of initial investment and other funds paid by
the franchisee until the obligations, if any, of the franchisor to provide real estate, improvements, equipment,
inventory, training or other items included in the franchise offering are fulfilled. At the option of the franchisor,
a surety bond may be provided in place of escrow.

THE FACT THAT THERE IS A NOTICE OF THIS OFFERING ON FILE WITH THE ATTORNEY
GENERAL DOES NOT CONSTITUTE APPROVAL, RECOMMENDATION, OR ENDORSEMENT
BY THE ATTORNEY GENERAL.

Any questions regarding this notice should be directed to:

State of Michigan
Department of Attorney General
CONSUMER PROTECTION DIVISION
Attention: Franchise Section
G. Mennen Williams Building, 1* Floor
525 West Ottawa Street
Lansing, Michigan 48913
Telephone Number: (517) 373-7117
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ITEM1 FRANCHISOR AND ANY PARENTS, PREDECESSORS AND AFFILIATES

The franchised business offered under this Disclosure Document is for a business that provides a comprehensive
system of personal training to optimize longevity and health span under the name THE EXERCISE COACH® (a
“Studio™). To simplify the language in this Disclosure Document, “we; >~

Coach-USALLCthe franchiser—"Youyou” means the person who buys an-Exercise-Coach®—franchise—a
franchised Studio — the franchisee, and includes your partners if you are a partnership, your shareholders if you
are a corporation, and your members if you are a limited liability company. “We,” “us” and “the Company”
mean Exercise Coach USA, LLC — the franchisor.

Corporate Information

Exercise Coach USA, LLC is an lllinois limited liability company that was organized on November 2, 2009.
Our principal business address is located-at-531 Telser Rd., Lake Zurich, Illinois 60084-and-. \We also maintain a
place of business in Texas for our regional headquarters (although it is not our principal place of business). Our
telephone number is (855) 202-6224. Our agents for service of process isare disclosed in EXHIBIT "A" (for
franchise registration states) and EXHIBIT "B" to-this-Disclosure-Document.(for other states). We do not do
business under any names other than “our legal name, Exercise Coach USA, LLCZ, and our trade name-*, The
Exercise Coach®2",

Business History

We began offering franchises for Studios in July of 2011. We engage in no business activities other than
offering Studio franchises and administering the franchise system. We have never conducted-business—in—-any
other-line-of business-other-than-the-offering-of Exercise-Coach® franchises—\We-do-net-offeroffered franchises
in any other line of business. We have net-never directly owned and operated a business-simitarto-the-Exercise

Coach®-business-being-offered-under-thisfranchise—Studio.
Predecessors, Parents: and Affiliates-and-Predecessers

We do not have any predecessors or parent companies-orpredecessers—\We-de-not-have-any-. None of our affiliates that
offer, or ever offered, franchises in this or any other line of business.

Our-affiliate;We have no affiliates that provide products or services to franchisees other than: (a) Gymbot, LLC
(“Gymbot”), supphiesfranchisees-with-certain-which shares our principal business address; and (b) Synaptifit,
LLC d/b/a FranBoost (“FranBoost”), which has a principal business address of 333 3" Ave. North, Ste. 411, St.
Petersburg, Florida 33701. Neither Gymbot nor FranBoost have ever operated a Studio.

Gymbot owns specialized and proprietary exercise equipment—Gymbeot-alse-owns—and-lticenses-to-franchisees
eertain and the associated software and technology that-must-be-utilized-with-the specialized-exercise-equipment:
Gymbet—ha&never—eperate&an—t%xerers&@o&eh —busrness—@ymbet—hasmmr—eenduete@buanesw&ny—ether

aused to operate the
equmment (“EXERBOTICS® Equmment”) vabot seIIs EXERBOTICS® Equmment to_franchisees, and
licenses the associated software and technolocrv pursuant to the Franchlsee Part|C|pat|on and Software Llcense
Agreement wA & &

Agreement—rs—attached to thls Dlsclosure Document as EXH%mK—We-de—net—ha#e-any—emer—amnates—that
provide—any-goods—er-services—to—our—EXHIBIT "E"-3 (the “Participation Agreement”). You must sign the

Participation Agreement at the same time you sign the Franchise Agreement. Gymbot also sells EXERBOTICS®
Equipment (and licenses the associated software and technoloagy) to unaffiliated third parties, but only to the
extent permitted by the Participation Agreement. Gymbot also sells certain non-proprietary exercise equipment
to franchisees.

FranBoost is a digital marketing services provider that offers marketing campaign management, lead generation
optimization and analytics services to franchisees using proprietary technology platforms, advertising strategies
and reporting tools. FranBoost is a required supplier for digital marketing services.
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Description of Franchised Business

UnderyourExercise CoachTHE EXERCISE COACH® franchise {referred-to-in-offered under this Disclosure
Document as-yrour—Business™)you-withestablish-and-eperate-is for a business that provides a comprehensive

system of personal training usingto optimize longevity and health span. Studios provide these services utilizing a
system that includes: (a) proprietary and technologically-advanced equipment;—; (b) evidence-based strength,
flexibility, stability, balance and brain training protocols and methods—Fhe-Exercise-Coach®—studios; and (c)
metabolic health and nutrition programs. Studios offer clients a unique, personalized, and guided exereise
process—to-members-that-isexperience designed to maximize their results. Oursystem-ineludes-the-use—of-our
affitates Studios utilize Gymbot’s proprietary technology that-makes-it-possible-teand other technology to: (a)
perform a meaningful field evaluation of an individual’s current body composition, mobility and strength levels;
and preseribe(b) determine appropriate exercises to match theirthe individual’s unique muscular make-up.
TFhreugh-eurGymbot’s customizable strength—-testing and training technology—we-have—created allows us to
design protocols that are safe and effective for the 50+ population and well-suited for working-with-adults of all
fitness levels and backgrounds.

FheExercise-Coach® franchised-business-Clients may choose between one-on-one and small-group personal
strength_training, one-on-one Coach-Assisted Stretching, or Strength Plus plans that include a variety of
modalities such as strength, stretching, stability, balance and brain training. Strength Plus plans can be
purchased on a semi-annual and annual basis, while all other services can be purchased on a month-to-month
basis or as session packs. From time to time, we may also establish strategic business relationships with vendors,
insurance companies, third-party payers and others at discounted rates in order to enhance the franchise system
or expand our client base (“Strategic Relationships™). For example, we negotiated Strategic Relationships that
allow Studios to accept clients for personal training under programs such as RenewActive® by
UnitedHealthcare®, OnePass, Silver&Fit® and Active&Fit®. These programs, and Strategic Relationships, may
change from time to time.

THE EXERCISE COACH® business model is suitable for both retail and non-retail (office, professional,
mdustrral flex) Iocatrons—and—has—a— Studros tvprcallv range in size rang+ng—from 800 to 2 000 square feet qihe

We-will-grantlf we award you a franchise, you must sign the form of franchise agreement attached to this Disclosure
Document as EXHIBIT "C" (the “Franchise Agreement”). We refer to the franchised business you purchase as your
“Business” or your “Studio”. The Franchise Agreement grants you a license to use certain teges.—service marks-and,
trademarks, trade names and logos, including the service mark “THE EXERCISE COACH®2" (collectively, the

“Marks%—rn—the—eperatren—ef—yeur—Busmess#he#”) The Marks also mclude our drstrnctrve trade dress used to
|dent|fyan—|éeererse—Geaeh® i : ure—You-must-sign-a—fra

Agreement—'liheefermp#a Studro or the oroducts or services |t seIIs The Franchrse Agreement rsattaehed Iso grants

you a license to this-Disclosure-Decumentas- EXHIBIT C™.

We—haveuse our svstem that was developed a—umque—system—for the operatron of a Studro (the “System 1)—fer—the

Geaeh@iranehtseareeenmned—wrthmeur— ). Ou confldentral Busrness@peratrens@urdeandBrand Standards
Manual (the “Manual*).") describes the operational aspects of a Studio. You will operate your Exereise-Coach®
franchiseStudio as an independent business using the Marks, the System, the Exercise-Coach®-name—as-well

asrnformatron in the Manual and the support gurdance- and other methods and materrals prevrded—eeeleveteped
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Area Development Rights

If you satisfy al-ef-our criteria for multi-unit developers, we may (but need not) offer you the right to enter-into
an-sign the form of Area Development Agreement {an-attached to this Disclosure Document as EXHIBIT "D"
(the “ADA”). The ADA grants you the right and obligation to establishdevelop, open and operate multiple
Exercise—Coach®franchisesStudios within a defined “development territory” according to a predetermined
“development schedule—A-eepy”. You must develop, open and operate all Studios listed in the development
schedule. We only grant area development rights to franchrsees who commit to develop, open and operate a
minimum of e &
Studios. You must sign a separate franchlse agreement for each %eererse—@oaeh®—ﬁranehrse—that8tud|o you
establish—under—the—ABA-develop. Each franchise agreement will be our then-current form of franchise
agreement, which may differ—frombe different than the ewrrentform of Franchise Agreement included
wrthattached to this Drsclosure Document-{exeept. However, the royalty fee-and brand and-system-development

fund fee imposed under each Franchise Agreement will be no higher
than the royalty and brand fund fee imposed under the 1% Franchise Agreement you sign under the ADA.

Market and Competition

The general market for personal training studios is highly-developed and very competitive. The target market for THE
EXERCISE COACH® eustemerscllents mcludes adult men and women of aII fltness levels, wrth a focus on adults 50
years of age and oIder

TheExercise-CoachTHE EXERCISE COACH® differentiates itself by providing evidence-based protocols and
technology-enabled equipment (a “digital-physical ecosystem”) that hasve been proven safe and effective for the
underserved and fast-growing 50+ aged market of the fitness industry.

3 3 : videsThere are many
natronal redronal and Iocal busrnesses offerlnd oersonal tramrnd programs from frtness studros Some are
independently-owned and operated. Others consist of regional or national chains. Some of our competitors
operate under a franchise model. Due to the unique nature of the technology utilized and target demographic
served by THE EXERCISE COACH® Studios, we do not consider other personal training studios to be direct
competitors. Our indirect competitors include national brands such as Orange Theory-Fitaess,”, CrossFit” and
Club Pilates;”, all of which: (ia) cater primarily to younger and middle-aged adults-prirariby—(i; (b) are limited
to group fitness models; and (iic) use standard, commercially available fitness equipment. Other indirect
competitors to our newer Coach-Assisted Stretch services include Stretch Zone® and Stretch Lab®, although
neither of these competitors offer strength, stability, balance, brain or metabolic health and nutrition coaching
services.

Laws and Requlations

You must comply with all local, state and federal and-state-laws and—regulations—that apply to businesses
generally, including the-laws governing discrimination and sexual harassment in the work place, minimum
wage, smoking in public areas, unsolicited marketing, and EEOC/OSHA standards. The Americans with
Disabilities Act,—wage—and—-heourtaws— requires readily accessible accommodations for disabled people and
business-licensing-may affect your building construction, site design, entrance ramps, doors, seating, bathrooms,
drinking facilities, etc. Building codes and requirements—-certain-states—health-clubs™ are-subject-to-special
faws-and-regulations vary in different jurisdictions and seme-of-these-taws-may-apply-to-your Business—-Among
other-things,—these-laws-it is important for you and regulations—mayHnpoeseregquirements—relating-to-the-your

architect to be aware of and comply with all local laws.

Your Studio may be subject to federal, state and local laws regulating the health and fitness industry, including:

o health clubs laws regulating the content and form of consumer contracts that-yeursigned by members

witl-sign—Theselaws-may-alsorequire-that-yyou-obtainand requiring posting of a bond—Fhe—federal
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te—the—extent—tha{—ye&mﬁer—imanemgéeme—sta{es—peq&we and/or escrowing of membersth fees

collected prior to opening

e laws requiring that fitness facilities have: (a) a staff persen-avatable-during-al-heurs-ef-eperation

thatmember onsite who is certified in basic cardiopulmonary resuscitation or other specialized medical

training—Seme—state—orlocal laws—may—also—require—thatfithess—facHities—have; and/or (b) an
automated external defibrillator (AED) and/or other first aid equipment eronsite

e laws requiring that fitness facilities post certain information regarding steroids and other drug use
o laws regulating the premises—types of supplements that may be sold
e laws requlating the offer and sale of memberships or prepaid services packages

e laws requiring prescribed disclosures of information in consumer contracts that offer financing (including
the federal Truth In Lending Act)

The Payment Card Industry Data Security Standard (“PCI”) requires that all companies that process, store, or
transmit credit or debit card information maintain a secure environment. PCI applies to all organizations or
merchants, regardless of size or number of transactions, that accept, transmit or store any cardholder data.

There may be other local, state and/or federal laws or regulations pertainingthat apply to your Business-with
whichyou-must-eomplyStudio. We strongly suggest that you investigate these laws before buying this franchise.

ITEM 2 BUSINESS EXPERIENCE

Chief Executive Officer/Manager: Brian R. Cygan

Brian R. Cygan has served as our co-founder, Chief Executive Officer and Manager since our—formation—in
November 2009. He has also served as: ()-the-CEO-a) a Co-Managing Partner of FranBoost since January 2024;
(b) Chief Executive Officer and managing—membera Managing Member of Gymbot since it-was—formed—in
September 2014; and (i#)-thec) founder and Chief Executive Officer of Innovative Fitness Equipment, Inc. since
twasformed—in January 2010. Brian-previoushyoperatedThe-Exercise-Coach-studios—fromFrom November
2000 through December 2022, Brian owned and operated Studios through an affilateaffiliated entity, Strength
for Life, LLC. All positions have been held in or near Lake Zurich, Illinois.

Chief Operating Officer: Brad Bundy

Brad Bundy has served as our Chief Operating Officer since April 2015. Brad-has—also—operated-Exercise
Coach®studios-since-October2013He has also served as: (a) a Co-Managing Partner of FranBoost since January

2024: and (b) a Managing Member of Gymbot since December 2019. From October 2013 to present, Brad has
also owned and operated Studios through his affiliated entity, Tri-County Fitness, LLC. All positions have been
in Houston, Texas.

Wellness Director: Gerianne M. Cygan

Gerianne M. Cygan has served as our co-founder and Wellness Director since eurformation-in-November 20009.
She has also served as the-co-founder of Innovative Fitness Equipment, Inc. since i—was—fermed—in-January

2010. Gerianne—previously—operated—The—Exercise—Coach—studios—fromFrom November 2000 tethrough
December 2022, Gerianne owned and operated Studios through an affiliateaffiliated entity, Strength Ffor Life,

LLC. All positions have been held in or near Lake Zurich, Illinois.
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ITEM3 LITIGATION

No litigation is required to be disclosed in this Item.

ITEM 4 BANKRUPTCY
No bankruptcy infermation-is required to be disclosed in this Item.
ITEM5 INITIAL FEES

Initial Franchise Fee

You wit-pay aus a nonrefundable $49,500 initial franchise fee foryourfranchise—The-entire-initial-franchise-fee
is-payable-infull-at-the-timewhen you sign the Franchise Agreement. The initial franchlse fee is used for initial

sales, development and pre-opening/opening support
circumstances.. Qualified veterans receive a 10% discount on the initial franchise fee (the initial franchise fee is
reduced to $44,550). “Qualified veteran” means an honorably discharged United States veteran with a DD Form
214. The initial franchise fee is uniferm-{uniformly |mnosed except as discussed above for qualified veterans
and below for area developers)-a . ,

Initial Training Fee

You-will-At the time you sign the Franchise Agreement, you pay us a $2,500-nonrefundable $5,000 initial
training fee in-exehange-for theour pre-opening initial training program that we-wiH-conduct-for-up-te-3-people-
Fhe-includes: (a) franchise management training for up to 4 people (“Management Training”); and (b) General
Strength and Conditioning certification training (“GSC Certification Training™) and Coach-Assisted Stretching,
Balance and Brain certification training (“SBB Certification Training™) for your initial coaches.

If you send more than 4 trainees to Management Training, we may charge an additional $625 initial training fee
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is—due—at-the—thme-you-sigh-theFranchise-Agreement-and—is—for each trainee in excess of 4. \We have not
refundable-under-imposed this training fee in the past but reserve the right to do so.

If you sign an ADA we may, at our option, waive Management Training (and the associated $5,000 initial
training fee) for a given Studio if your Managing Owner, and all of the Studio’s initial managers, successfully
completed Management Training on a prior occasion. If this occurs: (a) your existing coaches must provide
GSC Certification Training and SBB Certification Training (utilizing the online tools and resources available
through our Learning Management System) to any eiretmstanees—new coaches you hire for the Studio; and (b)
you must pay us a certification training fee of $250 for each person who registers for GSC Certification Training
and $550 for each person who registers for SBB Certification Training.

The $5,000 initial training fee is uniformly imposed—, subject to our right to waive the training fee for area
developers under the circumstances described above.

Fitness-Multi-Unit Operator Training Program Fee

If vou sign an ADA, you pay us a nonrefundable $2.500 training fee for our Multi-Unit Operator Training
Program (“MUO Training™) at the time you sign each Franchise Agreement under the ADA (excluding the 1%
Franchise Agreement). MUO Training is described in more detail in Item 11. The $2,500 training fee covers
MUOQ Training for up to 3 people. For the sake of clarity, you must pay us both sets of training fees when you
sign_each Franchise Agreement (excluding the 1% Franchise Agreement), including the: (a) $5,000 initial
training fee for Management Training (unless waived by us under the circumstances described above); and (b)
$2,500 training fee for MUQO Training (unless waived by us under the circumstances described below).

If your Managing Owner and other management personnel have successfully completed MUQO Training on a
prior occasion, then we may, at our option, waive MUQ Training (and the associated $2,500 training fee) for the
3" Franchise Agreement (and/or subseguent Franchise Agreements) that you sign under the ADA.

The $2,500 MUO Training fee is uniformly imposed, subject to our right to waive the training fee under the
circumstances described above.

Equipment Package

Prior to opening, you must purchase eertain-our designated equipment package that includes all EXERBOTICS®

Equipment and all non-proprietary—technoelogy-enabled—fithess—equipment,—knewn—as—Exerbetics™— exercise and

health-related equipment that will be used at your Studio (the “Equipment Package™). You purchase the Equipment

Package from our affiliate, Gymbot—inr-addition-to-several-mainstreampieees. Gymbot arranges for the: (a) shipment

and installation of fitnessthe equipment from-third-party-venders{the“at your Studio; and (b) configuration and setup

of your EXERBOTICS® Equipment-Package?)-

. Our current Eqmpment Package mcludes feup@—l%ee#beﬂes—pmpneﬁ%y—eemp&ﬁenzed—maemnes—&he
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Unitl TEMS PURCHASED laitial-Franehise ESTIMATED CosTFetal
FeeQUANTITY Development-Fee
EXERBOTICS® Leg Press Machine 1 $16,000
EXERBOTICS® Combination Chest/Row Machine 1 $14,495
EXERBOTICS® Combination Shoulder Press/Pull-Down Machine 1 $14,495
EXERBOTICS® Nucleus Core/Back Extension Machine 1 $14,495
EXERBOTICS® 360 Trainer 1 $3,495
EXERBOTICS® Balance Tracker 1 $1,600*
EXERBOTICS® Cross Fire (optional) Oorl $0 to $14,495
EXERBOTICS® Squat/Deadlift Machine (optional) Oorl $0 to $17,500
EXERBOTICS® Leg Extension/Leg Curl Machine (optional) OQorl $0 to $14,000
Nautilus (or equivalent) Abduction/Adduction Machine 1 $4,495
Tuff Stuff (or equivalent) Multi-Trainer Machine 1 $4,295
InBody 270 Body Composition Scale 1 $5,995
SciFit Pro 2 Recumbent Bikes w/ Arm Ergometry (or equivalent) 2 11,980
EarthL ite Professional Hi-lo Stretch Tables 2 $3,200
Stretch Area Accessories** various 3,350
Estimated Shipping, Installation and Setup Costs $9,750 to $11,800
Total Cost $107,645 to $155,690

*  You will lease, rather than purchase, the Balance and Brain Technology Equipment for a $799 monthly fee
(rounded to $800). The monthly fee includes the equipment, associated software licenses and warranty work.
Prior to opening, you pay the first and last monthly fee (totaling $1,598 — rounded to $1,600). The next
monthly payment is due the 2" month after the equipment is delivered to your Studio.

** Includes ProFlex, Cameras, Tripod, Bolsters, Table Covers, Foam Rollers, Rolling Stools, Wall Rack, Shoe
Rack with Bench, Horizontal Clip Boards and Room Dividers.

The purchase price, together with estimated shipping, installation and setup costs, is due in full at the time the
order is placed. Shipping, installation and setup costs vary depending on the distance between your Studio and
(a) our headqguarters and (b) the location from which the equipment is shipped. If the actual installation and
setup costs exceed the estimated amount, you will be invoiced for the difference. If the actual installation and
setup costs are less than the estimated amount, we may, at our option, choose between: (a) refunding the
difference to you; or (b) issuing you a credit against royalty fees or other amounts you owe us. Equipment costs
vary depending on whether you choose to purchase any of the optional equipment. The purchase price is
nonrefundable and uniformly imposed, except as otherwise noted above. We and Gymbot reserve the right to
change the items included in the Equipment Package, and the associated pricing, at any time. We also reserve
the right to require you to purchase some (or all) equipment included in the Equipment Package directly from
third-party suppliers, in which case you do not pay Gymbot for that equipment.
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Reimbursement of L egal Fees for | ease-Related Services

If you lease the premises for your Studio, you must hire a real estate attorney to review and negotiate the terms
of your lease and ensure the landlord signs our required form of Lease Addendum. We may waive this
obligation if you are a licensed real estate attorney or broker. If you do not hire an attorney to review and help
negotiate your lease and we do not waive the requirement for you to do so, then: (a) our real estate attorney must
review the lease (to ensure the terms are consistent with our brand standards) and negotiate our required Lease
Addendum (if the landlord does not agree to sign our standard form); and (b) you must reimburse us for the
legal fees imposed by our attorney to provide these services. We estimate the legal fees would range from
$1,000 to $3,500. The reimbursed legal fees would be nonrefundable. We have not required reimbursement of
legal fees in the past, but reserve the right to do so in the future.

Development Fee (ADA)

If you sign an ADA, you pay a $49,500 initial franchise fee for your first Studio and a discounted initial
franchise fee for each additional Studio you commit to develop under the ADA. The amount of the initial
franchise fee for a Studio, and the total development fee, varies according to the following table:

1 $49,500 -
2 $40,000 $40,000
3 $25,000 $65,000
4 $25,000 $90,000
5 $20;000 $110,000
omom | S 0
(and beyendany additional Studios) (per Studio) -~ AapA

At the time you sign the ADA, you pay us: (a) the full $49,500 initial franchise fee for your 1* Studio; and (b)

the entire development fee. Most area developers purchase the right to develop between 2 and 3 Studios, which
results in development fees ranging from $40,000 to $65,000. The development fee includes, and is deemed to
satisfy, the initial franchise fee for each Studio you develop pursuant to the ADA (excluding the 1% Studio).
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However, you must still satisfy our minimum financial and performance criteria at the time you sign each

Franchise Agreement. If you fail to do so, you may not sign additional Franchise Agreements or open additional

Studios. The development fee is nonrefundable (even if we terminate the ADA) in consideration of the lost

opportunities we forfeit by granting you protected territorial rights to the development territory under the ADA.

Qualified veterans receive a 10% discount on the initial franchise fee for the 1% Studio developed under the

ADA (the initial franchise fee is reduced to $44,550). In 2024, we collected Development Fees ranging from

$49,000 to $114,500. Development fees are uniformly imposed except as otherwise described above.

ITEM 6 OTHER FEES
TYPE OF FEE* AMOUNTAMOUNT 23 DuE DATE REMARKS
Greater of (ia) 6% of Seat 3
ronthbhAdusted Gross ' ) )
Revenue-2Sales or o Our current reporting period runs from the 1*
(iib) $1,000 per month /" day afterendof \through the last day of each month. We may
Rovalty Fee ! covalty fee waived for | TORR-fOF prioFmonth’s change the reporting period (e.g. to a weekly
yalty (F'J/?tfﬁor vartial operations period) and royalty fee due date upon 30 days’
calendar-month of each reporting period prior_notice. You must send us Gross Sales
onerationafter Studio’s reports _unless we elect to automatically
opening date) generate these reports from your POS system.
Seeblated
Brand and-System ) You must contribute this amount to the Brand
Development Fund 1% of Adjusted-Gross Same as royalty fee-gie | Fund we administer. You have no voting rights
Fee * Revenue-*Sales date pertaining to the administration of the Brand
Fund, the creation or placement of advertising,
or the amount of the brand fund fee.
You pay this fee to our affiliate FranBoost for
digital marketing services. The digital market
. ) Up to $1,000 . : -
Digital Marketing HWTW% Same as royalty fee fee is credited towards your _required
Fee n:g:t?]n Y per Y expenditures for Local Marketing. We may

change the digital marketing fee upon 30 days’
notice.

Local Marketing
(during post-
opening Grand
Opening Period)

$15,000 during the 90-day

post-opening phase of
your Grand Opening

Period

As incurred during 90-

During the 90-day post-opening phase of your
Grand Opening Period, you must spend at least

day period after your

$15,000 on approved advertising and

Studio’s opening date

marketing in your local market to promote
your Studio.

Local Marketing
Fee

(after Grand
Opening Period)

Ranges-from $4,000 to
$6,000-per month

(pro-rated 1% month based

AsMonthly, as incurred

on the date your Grand
Opening Period expires)

SeeNote5:This is the minimum amount you
must spend to advertise your Studio in your
local market after your Grand Opening Period
expires (the “Local Marketing Commitment™).
Brand fund fees, and advertising expenditures
you incur during the Grand Opening Period,
are not credited towards your Local Marketing
Commitment.

Cooperative
Advertising Fee *

Up to $2,000 per month

Same as royalty fee-due
dale

See—Nete—6:Company-owned outlets have the
same voting power as franchised outlets in a
cooperative. If a majority of outlets are
company-owned, we will not increase the fee

without the majority vote of franchised outlets
in favor of the fee increase. Cooperative

advertising fees are credited against your Local
Marketing Commitment.

See-Note+#-
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TYPE OF FEE!

AMOUNFAMOUNT 2-3

DUE DATE

REMARKS

Ongeing-Training /
Assistance-Fee *

Up to $500 per person per
day
(plus relmbursement-of

expensesTravel Expenses
for onsite training-

10 days after invoice

See—Neote—8—Imposed for each person who
attends (a) initial training after you open (new
Managing Owner _or_manager), (b) repeat
training after failing prior attempt, (c) remedial
training, (d) refresher or supplemental trainin
or_(e) training you request. You must also

Certification Fees

ossisinper) reimburse our Travel Expenses for onsite
training at your Studio.
[GSC Certification] Imposed for each coach who registers for GSC

Up to $250 per person per
certification

[SBB Certification]

Up to $550 per person per
certification

10 days after invoice

(General Strength & Conditioning)

Certification Training or SBB (Coach-Assisted

Stretch) Certification Training. We may
require periodic recertification training, which
would require payment of an additional
certification fee.

Conference
Registration Fee *

Up to $500 per person per
day

10 days after invoice

See—Nete—9—We may hold conferences to
discuss matters  affecting franchisees.
Attendance is mandatory unless (a) we
designate attendance as optional or (b) we
waive your obligation to attend based on
showing of good cause. If you fail to attend a
required conference without a waiver, you
must pay the conference registration fee
despite your non-attendance (we will send you
a copy of any written materials distributed at
the conference).

Technology Fee *

(proprietary
technology)

Maries-Up to $1,000 per

month

(currently $518 per
month} - see Note 1)

10 days after invoice

commeneingor as we

otherwise specify

(begins 1%t full calendar

month after installation
¢ fhiliates”

proprietany-exercise
eguipmentEXERBOTIC
S® Equipment is
installed)

See-Nete-10:Includes amounts you pay us and
Gymbot for Technology Systems, including (a)

amounts paid for proprietary items and (b) an
administrative fee for managing the technology
platform and negotiating/managing
relationships with third-party licensors.

Technology Fee

Up to $750 per month

(third-party
technology)

(currently $596 per month

- see Note 5)

10 days after invoice or

Includes amounts we collect from you and
remit to unaffiliated licensors of

as we otherwise specify

software/technology. Does not include fees

you pay to third parties.

EXERBOTICS®
Balance Tracker

$799 per month

10 days after invoice or

You pay Gymbot a $799 monthly fee for this
equipment and associated the licenses. The

as we otherwise specify

first and last months’ payment are included in

the purchase price for the Startup Package.
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TYPE OF FEE! AMOUNFAMOUNT %3 DUE DATE REMARKS
| T i@ I o
have-understated-any-ameunt-that-yeu-owe-us
| : e |
Up to $500 per e e
occyrrgnceAgtual—eespef to-us-in-a-timely-manner—\We may impose this
Awuditlegal Support |audit-including-travel-and S fee if we incur additional legal fees due to your
1 ; .+ |10 days after invoice : .
Fee- lodging-expenses-for-audit actions or reguests, such as amending or
oo changing contracts to accommodate your

(not currently imposed)

requests, making changes to your territory that
you request, or causing our lawyer to send
legal notices if you stop communicating with
us.

Fees-tmposed-by
N - s
System Program
Fees

I . i
j Up

to $100 per month

(not currently charged)

ined i
and-approved-by-us
days after invoice or as
we otherwise specify

SEFvEiR—an advisory capacity.—Fhe advisory
eeu|_|e_|l would—have—the ||g|t_te suggest
e;dehns. a foes —that weuldl be. |||pes!ed g||
must—pay—H—You must participate in_client
loyalty, gift card and membership programs we
establish and pay required fees and program
contributions to us or a third-party to
administer the program.

Product Purchases

Varies by item purchased

10 days after invoice

We and our affiliates may serve as System
suppliers for goods or services you purchase.
We will provide you with a price list upon

request.

New Product or

e CEODoon
neident$50 per hour for

time spent
reviewing/testing

Supplier Testing

proposed supplier or

Fines*

product/service plus
reimbursement of any
Travel Expenses and other
costs we incur

10 days after
invoiceYpen-demand

Imposed if you request approval of an alternate
product, service or supplier proposed by you.
You must pay the hourly fee for time we incur
evaluating your request and reimburse our out-
of-pocket expenses to test the product (e.g.,
cost to buy samples or pay for third-party
testing) or evaluate the supplier (e.g., Travel
Expenses to visit the supplier’s facility).

Relocation Fee

$2,500

At time we approve
request to relocate

Imposed if we approve your request to relocate
your Studio to cover the support we provide.

Renewal Fee *

20% of then-currentnon-
discounted initial
franchise fee

(Franchise Agreement)

impose at time you renew

At time you sign
Repewal
Agreementrenewal
agreement

Nene-Imposed if you renew your franchise
rights by signing a renewal Franchise

Agreement.
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TYPE OF FEE! AMOUNFAMOUNT %3 DUE DATE REMARKS
Reimbursement of all We offer an optional service to help

Franchise Resale
Commission
Reimbursement

commissions and other

compensation we must
pay our employees or

third-parties relating to the
sale

At time of franchise sale

franchisees sell their business. To use this
service, you must sign a Franchise Resale
Agreement (attached as EXHIBIT "E"-4) and
reimburse commissions we pay to employees
or third parties for the sale.

Payable —when—you—transfer—or—sell—your
frane Hse Vo-charge-if-franchise-transferred .tg
an—entity—that—you cof H g.l or—for—certal
t'a.' s_lels of emlels HP II |te|esﬁts betlwee_ i
a—change—ofcontrol—Fortransfers—between
existing-Exercise-Coach®-franchisees—a-single
$7,500fee—is—charged—for—any—number—of
{[Franchise Agreement}] simultaneous—transfers——Any—consultant—or
$15,000 (redueed-toor brelo—noe—holbnretastned e tho oo oas
Transfer Fee * $7,500 if the buyer isan | Before tTransfer your-business-must-be-paid-by you.Under-no
existing Exercise-Coach® circumstances—shall--theTransfer Fee(s) go
franchisee in our system) teward-consultant-or-brokerfees—You pay the
transfer fee for all Transfers other than
Permitted Transfers. The $7,500 fee covers all
Transfers if you Transfer multiple Studios to
an existing franchisee. If our broker finds the
buyer, you must also reimburse us for all
commissions we pay the broker. If you sign a
Franchise Resale Agreement, you pay us both
a transfer fee and a franchise resale service fee.
{ADA)] Payable when you transfer or sell-your
$25,000 inchides franchise-No-charge-if franchise-transferred
FransferFee* % Before transfer to-an-entity 3t you-coi trol-or-forcertai
trapsters-a-ewnership-interests-between
Late-Feet locationsfee under the | 10-days-afierinveice existing-owners-unless-such-transfer results in
ABAJall Franchise a-change of controk
Agreements transferred to N

buyer)

Reimbursement of

Quality Assurance
Program Costs

Actual cost paid to
company we hire

10 days after invoice

If we hire a person or company to inspect your

Studio, you must reimburse us for all amounts
we pay them for the inspection.

Reimbursement of
Reinspection Costs

All Travel Expenses and
other costs we incur to

10 days after invoice

Imposed _if we inspect your Studio to
determine _if you cured a (a) health or safety
issue identified by a government agency or (b)

inspect your Studio

breach of system standards we brought to your
attention.

Actual cost of audit

Imposed if an audit (a) is necessary because
you fail to send us required information or

Audit Fee (including Travel 10 days after invoice . g

_ Expenses for audit team reports in a timely manner or (b) reveals you
Expenses for audit team) understated Gross Sales by 3% or more.
Lesser$100 plus default
interest at lesser of (a) If our debit of your account is rejected or your
18% of-amountpast check is returned for insufficient funds, we

Late Fee dueper annum (prorated |10 days after invoice may charge (in addition to the late fee) an NSF

on daily basis) or (b)
highest rate allowed by

applicable law

fee of $50 per incident. Default interest is
limited to 10% per annum in California.
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TYPE OF FEE!

AMOUNFAMOUNT %3

DUE DATE

REMARKS

Noncompliance fee

Up to $500 per incident

Upon demand

Imposed if you breach a mandatory standard or
operating procedure (including submission of
required reports) and fail to cure within the
time period we require. We may impose an
additional $500 fee every 48 hours the breach
remains uncured after we impose the initial
fee. We will deposit these fees into the Brand
Fund if we administer a Brand Fund at that
time.

Default
Reimbursements

All costs we incur to cure
your default

10 days after invoice

If you fail to cure a breach of the Franchise
Agreement or our brand standards in the time
period we require, we may take steps to cure
on your behalf and you must reimburse us for
our costs (examples include failure to pay
suppliers, maintain insurance or meet quality

standards).

Management Fee *

$6,000-$8,000-per
monthUp to $275 per day

during time we manage
Studio

10 days after invoice

If you defautunderthefail to cure a Franchise
Agreement default or—the Managing Owner

dies, we can designate a temperary
managerperson to manage your

BusinessStudio until yeu—eure-the default is

cured or find-a—+eplacement-Managing Owner;
as-applicable- replaced.

Indemnification-*

cireumstancesAmount of
our damages, losses or
eXpenses

10 days after invoice

You must indemnify and-relmburse-us for any
damages—losses erand expenses we incur as-a
result—ofthe—due to your operation of yeur
Businessthe Studio or yewr—breach of the
Franchise Agreement.—Our—indemnification
| n th ol f . |

dl o 'GE.B'.G"'de ' HEH&I.' e "I'ea“e.' oF-any

Attorneys’ Fees and

Amount of attorneys’ fees

Upon demand

You must reimburse us for all attorneys’ fees
and costs we incur relating to your breach of

Costs and costs we incur the Franchise Agreement or any related
agreement.
$50-per-hour$50,000 if
more than 5 years left . .
Liguidated under the term; otherwise Fhis COVerS t_ne costs-of-testing new products
D:Lpamaes Supoli ﬁ]\éﬁ%z (I(;;tnuunrggfie?;n if 1030 days after invoice |prepese-Imposed if we terminate due to your
Testinat less than 2 vears) of default or you terminate in_any manner not

royalty & brand fund fees
— see note 6

permitted by the Franchise Agreement.
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TYPE OF FEE! AMOUNTFAMOUNT 23 DUE DATE REMARKS
: el to.obiai | raintai -
we—reguire—and—we—electto—do—so—an—yeur

nsurance-*Prepaid
Liabilities

Actual-cost-of premiums;
plus-our-costs-and
expensesAmount of your

At time of Transfer,
expiration or termination
of Franchise

Studio’s total outstanding

Agreementd0-days-after

behalf—you—mustreimburse—us:Under current

olicy you may sell a package of sessions (a
“Package™) and retain all proceeds from these
sales (including Prepaid Liabilities for
unredeemed sessions). We may require you to
pay the total amount of your Prepaid Liabilities

to us (upon termination or expiration of the
Franchise Agreement) or to the purchaser of
your Studio (as a condition to Transfer). We
may also require you to purchase a surety bond
to satisfy Prepaid Liabilities if the Studio
closes.

Prepaid Liabilities inveiece

otes:

1. Nature and Manner of Payment: All fees are imposed by and are-payable to us except-that: (a) you pay the

cooperative advertising fee directly to the cooperative (we may instead require that-yeu-pay-the-you to pay
this fee to us, in which case we remit the fee to the cooperative on your behalf); (b) you spend the Local
Marketing Commitment directly with third-party suppliers (other than the digital marketing fee); (c) you pay
certain certain technology fee—directhyto-one—or-moere—fees and the monthly fee for the EXERBOTICS®
Balance Tracker to Gymbot; and (d) you pay digital marketing fees to FranBoost. We reserve the right to
collect and pass through fees on behalf of our affiliates:, suppliers and Strategic Relationship Partners (all
such fees are currently disclosed in Item 5 or Item 6, as applicable). All fees are nen-
refundablenonrefundable and uniformly imposed-en-franchisees.. You will-bereguired-tomust sign an ACH
Authorization Form (attached to the Franchise Agreement as AFFACHMENT “F}LATTACHMENT "E")
permitting us to electronically debit your designated bank account for payment-of all fees payableto-us
{otherthan-the-initial-franchise fee) as-welasany-all amounts that-yeu-eweowed to us erand our affiliates
forthe purchaseof goods—or-services-(other than fees due less than 15 days after signing the Franchise

Agreement). You must deposit all Adjusted-Gross RevenueSales into the bank account and ensure that-there
aﬂ,Lsufflment funds are avallable for W|thdrawal before each due date. ¥ou-mustpay-us-alltaxesthat are

Definitions: As used in this Disclosure Document, the following capitalized terms have the meanings given

to them below:

“Brand Fund” means the brand and system development fund we currently administer to promote public
recognition of our brand and improve our System.

“Grand Opening Period” means the period of time beginning 30 to 90 days before your Studio’s projected
opening date and ending 90 days after your Studio’s opening date.

“Gross Sales” means all gross sums collected or invoiced from goods and services sold by reasen-ofthe
fnishing—et—products—intangible—preperty  (including trademarks)—er—services—to—yor-
memberships) or that otherwise relate to your Studio (e.g., advertising revenue, sponsorship fees or business
interruption insurance proceeds). Gross Sales excludes: (a) sales or use taxes; (b) revenue from the sale of
furniture, fixtures and equipment in the ordinary course; and (c) client refunds. Gross Sales also excludes
the retail value of: (a) comped sessions provided to Owners and Studio employees (no monthly cap); and (b)
up to 10 comped sessions per month (the “Monthly Allowance™) provided to friends or family of Owners or
Studio employees. Gross Sales includes the full retail value of any free or discounted goods or services
provided to friends or family of Owners or Studio employees in excess of the Monthly Allowance, unless
the same pricing is available to the general public as part of an approved promotional program in effect at
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the time. The Manual may include policies governing the calculation of Gross Sales relating to: (a) proceeds
from the sale of gift cards, memberships or Packages (or other Prepaid Liabilities); (b) qualifying purchases
and redemptions by members under a loyalty or membership program.
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“Managing Owner” means the owner you appoint and we approve with
primary responsibility for the overall management and operation of your Studio.

“Permitted Transfer” means a Transfer: (a) between existing owners; (b) by the owners to a new business

entity that is 100% owned and controlled by the transferring owners; or (c) of less than 20% of the
ownership interests in the franchised business. It does not include a Transfer described in (a), (b) or (c) that
results in the Managing Owner owning less than 20% of the franchised business.

‘Prepaid Liabilities” means the total amount of outstanding prepaid liabilities carried by your Studio as a
liability for unredeemed gift cards, Packages or other prepaid items purchased by clients from your Studio

(provided that we allow you to retain all proceeds from these sales).

“TEC Apps” means Gymbot’s proprietary THE EXERCISE COACH Health Platform™, which provides a
real-time data stream of strength and other measures from EXERBOTICS® and other tech-enabled
Equipment to Studio clients via web-based and/or mobile applications (currently web-based only).

“Technology Systems” means the TEC App, the software and technology associated with EXERBOTICS®
Equipment, any all other information and communication technology systems that we specify-from-time-to

; : = designate, including
computer systems, point-of-sale systems, online scheduling systems, data management systems, webcam
systems, telecommunications systems, security systems, music systems; and similar systems—togetherwith
he—associs ardware—softw including—cloud-based—software} and related equipment, software
applications, mobile apps and third-party services relating to the establishment, use, maintenance,

“Transfer” means a transfer or assignment of: (a) the Franchise Agreement or ADA (or an interest in either

such agreement); (b) the Studio’s assets (other than the sale of furniture, fixtures or equipment in the
ordinary course); (c) an ownership interest in the entity that is the “franchisee” or “area developer”; or (d)
the franchised business you conduct under the Franchise Agreement or ADA.

“Travel Expenses” means all travel, meals, lodging, local transportation and other living expenses incurred:
(a) by us and our trainers, field support personnel, auditors or other representatives to visit your Studio; or

(b) by you or your personnel to attend training programs or conferences.

CPI Adjustments: All fees (and minimum fees) expressed as a fixed dollar amount are subject to adjustment

based on changes to the Consumer Price Index in the United States (CPI). We may periodically review and
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increase these fees based on changes to CPI, but only if the increase to CPI is more than 5% higher than the
corresponding CPI in effect on: (a) the effective date of the Franchise Agreement (for the initial fee
adjustment); or (b) the date we implemented the last fee adjustment (for subsequent fee adjustments). We
will notify you of any CPI adjustment at least 60 days before it goes into effect. We may implement no more
than 1 fee adjustment during any 5-year period.

9—Technoloqv Fee ( Droprletary Wtechnology%&%mmwmmm

14.): As of the issuance date of this Disclosure Document, we-ehargeGymbot charges a technology fee of $518
per month. If you live in a state that charges sales tax for technology or software fees, you must also pay
sales tax on this amount. Currently, this fee is paid to eur—affiliateGymbot for certain technical services
associated with—the—proprietary —equipment. (a) EXERBOTICS® Equipment, including database
management data backup serwces asset management and equipment malntenance—anel—'Fhe%eeFelseLGeaeh

5. Technology Fee (third-party technology): As of the issuance date of this Disclosure Document: (a) Gymbot
collects (and remits to the associated licensor) a technology fee of $299 per month for our designated
mobility software; and (b) we collect (and remit to the associated licensors) the following technology fees:

e $29 per month for our designated business intelligence platform, FlexBl

e $5 per month per employee license for the business productivity software (2 to 4 licenses required)

e $248 per month for our designated customer relationship management (CRM) with phone/SMS system

6. Liguidated Damages: You must pay us liquidated damages if: (a) we terminate the Franchise Agreement due
to your default; or (b) you terminate the Franchise Agreement prior to its expiration date (except in
accordance with the provisions governing your right to terminate following our uncured breach). If the
termination occurs with more than 5 vears left under the term of the Franchise Agreement, the amount of
liquidated damages is $50,000. If the termination occurs with less than 5 years left under the term, then
liquidated damages are calculated as the sum of average monthly royalty fees and brand fund fees imposed
during the 12-month period preceding termination (or your entire period of operation if less than 12 months)
multiplied by the lesser of: (a) 24; or (b) the total number of months remaining under the term. If you pay us
liquidated damages in a timely manner, we will not pursue a claim against you for lost profits. However,
payment of liguidated damages does not prevent us from seeking other damages we incur due to your
breach, unless we and you agree otherwise in a signed settlement agreement.

Page 17 Franchise Disclosure Document (2025)



ITEM7 ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT
YOUR ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT
To WHowm
TYPE OF 1 AMOUNT-* METHOD OF WHEN DUE | PAYMENT Is
EXPENDITURE. PAYMENT
To BE MADE
Lump sum .
.. . At time you
::r:;'al Franchise $49,500 Y€ E.r’. sign Franchise [Us
cheek Agreement
Initial Training Lump sum At time you
Fee or Mult Akt $2,5005,000 Pyeas .f’.E I sign Franchise |Us
Fe 22 Agreement
MUO Training Fee .
3 At time you
) $0 to $2,500 Lump sum |sign Franchise | Us
@M Agreement
developers)
Focdodoian 2
Hotels
{uptod $1,5000 to $710,000 As incurred During restaurants and
people)Initial training airlines
Training Expenses
4
Legal Fee
i 5
Re|mbur5fement $0 to $3,500 As incurred Befo_re Us
(lease review opening
services)
Monthly
Lease Deposit & 3 (with security
Months™Rent ¢ $8,000 to $1824,000 Lump sum  |deposit paid |Landlord
(3 Months) before
opening)
Utilities D it . iliti
ilities Deposits $100 to $1,000 As incurred Befo_re Ut|||t|es_
opening companies
Build Out & Before Architects,
Imprevements $0 to $65,000 As incurred openin contractors; &
4Construction ’ pening suppliers
Signage-®Interior Before
& Exterior $2,300 to $8,000 Lump sum : Suppliers
Signage 8 opening
Decorating,
Cleaning Station, Before
Furniture, $4,200 to $6,315 As incurred - Suppliers
DecorationsFans & opening
Furnishings
e S
SEquipment $1,250107,645 to $3,500155,690 Lumpsum | Before Lg mbl ot
Package ° opening
Technology
(3-menths)
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YOUR ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT

TYPE OF METHOD OF VOl
SR TR AMOUNT* . WHEN DUE | PAYMENT Is
- To BE MADE
Third-Party
Operating
Seftware $1.586 As-incurred | Morthly Suppliers
(3-menths)
Fooshencnad .
after-opening | companies
Fitness-Eguipment Lump sum
Package . - oras Before SuppliersAffik
*Technology $ 280109 6,850 financed-by |opening ates
Systems 1° 3" party
i i L
S 'pp“' 9
i .-gw
Setu_p 6F Fitness Before At aesond
Eguipment $6,5771,350 to $14,3772,100 Lump sum opening Suppliers
Equipment-®First
Aid Equipment 1
Hic Py Before .
efOpening $2,550 to $4,250 Lump sum . Suppliers
Inventory %2 opening
AED—aHd—FI’FSt‘ ‘Befe‘Fe -
Aid-Kit ’ 7 opening Suooilos
. Before .
Uniforms $600 to $1,000 Lump sum opening Suppliers
Pre-Grand 306.90-d
Opening before-Grand
Marketing and Opening
Advertising-Plus | $1429,195 to $20,77543,275 Lumpsum |54 Suppliers
Print Collateral
Material (pre- & post-
¥Commitment 2 opening)
Hecbooonas
Advertising $15,000-t0-$22,500 As-incurred ¢ ; Suppliers
(3-menths)
As
Business Licenses |$250 to $750 incurredlu Befo_re Government
um opening agencies
irofessmnal Fees $2.6204.000 to $5,240 Lump sum Befo.re Lawyers &
opening accountants
Insurance Before Insurance
(3-months® 1'5 $800 to $1,500 Lump sum apening companies
Startup-Payrel-(3- Before
months)-**Pre- $10,000 to $20,000 As incurred |openingAs Employees
opening Payroll 6 fmenmed
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YOUR ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT

EXPENDITURE !

To WHoM
AMOUNT-* BIETSIOD OF WHEN DUE | PAYMENT IS

FESTUIET To BE MADE

TYPE OF

Additional Funds
1417

(3-month-period  |$2530,000 to $4645,000 As incurred | As incurred
after-opening)-(3
months) and Gymbot

Suppliers
and
employees

18

Total Estimated % -
iti $161,682259,840 to $382,986389,970 additional-franchised-outlets-that-you

Initial Investment

NOTES:

The table below estimates the initial investment to purchase area development rights for 2 to 3 Studios.

YOURESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT

1 METHOD OF 10 WHOM PAYMENT
TYPE OF EXPENDITURE AMOUNT R WHEN DUE Is To BE MADE
Development Fee 1° $40,000 to $65,000 |Lump sum |At time you sign ADA |Us

Initial Investment to Open 1% Studio  {$259,840 to $389,970 (from Table above)

| Estim Initial Investment 8 {$299,840 to $454,970

Notes:

1.

H!\>

Financing and Refunds: We do not offer direct or indirect financing-fer-any-of these-items—None-of-the fees
payable. No amounts paid to us are refundable. We are unawarenot aware of any fees-payableamounts paid
to third--party suppliers that are refundable, although seme-landlerds-your landlord may refund your security
deposits at the end of the lease if you do not damage the terant-dees-ret-property or default.

__See-Hem-5-foradditionalinformation-abeut-the-Initial Training Fee-and-Multi-unit-Operator: The initial
training fee covers Management Training Pregram-Fee—You-wit-pay-the-tnitialfor up to 4 people as well as

GSC Certification training and SBB Certification training for your initial coaches.

2:3.MUO Training Fee-f-: If you sign an ADA, you pay us a separate $2,500 training fee for MUO Training

when you sign each Franchise Agreement under the ADA (excluding the 1% Franchise Agreement). The low
estimate assumes that either: (a) you do not sign an ADA; or (b) you are signing ayour 1° Franchise

Agreement foryour-first-locationand-you-witl-payunder the Multi-unit-Operator-Training-Program-Fee-if

ADA. The high estimate assumes you sign an ADA and you are signing ayour 2" (or a subsequent)

Franchise Agreement foryour-second-location-under anthe ADA.
4. Fhese-figurespresume-that-you-wil-be-leasing-Initial Training Expenses: This estimates your expenses to

send up to 4 people to one of our designated training centers (located in Smithville, Tennessee and Lake
Zurich, Illinois) for initial training. Your actual training expenses may vary depending on: (a) the number of
people you send to training; (b) the distance they must travel; and (c) the level and quality of
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accommodations, travel and dining selected. MUO Training is conducted remotely so you do not incur any
additional Travel Expenses.

Legal Fee Reimbursement: You are required to hire a real estate attorney to help review and negotiate your

3-6.

lease. If you fail to do so, our attorney will review the lease and negotiate the Lease Addendum and you
must reimburse us for all legal fees we pay our attorney to provide these services.

Lease Deposit & Rent: This estimate assumes you lease your premises-foryour-personal-training-studio—Fhe

expensaoﬂeasmgwrlh;arydapendmgupon Rent varies deoendlnd on factors such as the size and location

of the premises -and local

market conditions. We antrerpate—that xgec most personal—tran%ng—studrosStudlos will range in size from

800 to 2, 000 square feet—W&estncrratﬂlqcL W|th rent w#l—range anglng from $12, 000 to $6 000 per month-

Jfoeal—market—eendmons— Landlords typlcally reqmre secunty deposns equal to 1 or 2—-months rent and
may, in addition, require payment in advance of the first and/or last (or more) month’s rent. The tetal
estimated—initial-investment-shownestimate in the ehartabeovetable includes 1 months’s security plus 3
month’s’ rent. Some franchisees may prefer—to—own—their—facility—TFhe—costs—of purchasing—a—fackhity
varychoose to purchase the real estate. The cost to purchase real estate varies so widely that we cannot
reasonably estimate the cost.

Construction: The cost of construction and leasehold improvements and-build-eut-varyvaries widely based

wpon a number of factors; including-:

o the size and condition of the premisesleased space

o whether er-netthere-are-any-the premises is first or second generation retail space

o the extent and nature of eX|st|ng Ieasehold |mprovements—market—eend+uens—eest—ot—kaber—matenats

. if any, towards leasehold improvement costs (a

~ “T1 Allowance”)

e demolition and construction costs and prevailing wage rates in the local market

Some landlords provide a Tl Allowance but increase monthly rent to recapture the Tl Allowance and
amortize it over the lease term (or part of the sighage—you—actualylease term). A significant factor in
determining whether a landlord will provide a Tl Allowance, and if so, the amount, is whether the building
is first-generation or second-generation space. In some cases, no construction is required. The low estimate
assumes the landlord provides a Tl Allowance covering all construction costs. The high estimate assumes
you do not receive any TI Allowance.

Signage: You must purchase and install will-be-based-upon-thethe signage we specify. However, you may

need to modify our standard signage to conform to Iocal zonlng Iaws property use requrrement&and—any
fandlord-impesed-restrictions: and/or

lease terms. In some instances, exterior signage may be orohlblted due to_applicable zoning or use
restrictions. Fhe-This estimate includes the cost of interior and exterior signage.

Equipment Package: The items included in the Equipment Package are listed in Item 5. The estimate

10.

includes the cost of the equipment and estimated shipping, installation and setup costs. The estimate in the
table assumes you choose to purchase the Equipment Package directly from Gymbot. Some franchisees
finance the purchase or lease the equipment through an unaffiliated lender or leasing company. If you
choose to finance or lease the equipment, your initial investment may be lower.

Technology Systems: This estimates your cost to purchase and set up your Technology Systems, including:

e computer and point-of-sale system ($1,900 to $3,850)
e audio-visual (AV) system, including 1 to 2 HD TVs and music system ($700 to $1,500)
e music system, including 1 to 2 wireless speakers ($100 to $600)

e security system, including 2 to 5 cameras ($100 to $500)
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e telephone system, including 1 to 2 telephones ($50 to $400)

It does not include costs for the Technology Systems associated with your EXERBOTICS® Equipment,
which are separately stated in the table above.

4.11.  First Aid Equipment: This includes the estimated cost in-thetable—aboveincludesboth—interior—and

exterier-signage-to purchase your AED Machine and First Aid Kit.

5:12.  Opening Inventory: This estimates your costs to purchase yeurnitialan opening inventory of office
supplies, cleaning supplies, safety supplies and nutritional bars and supplements.

6:13.  ¥YouGrand Opening Marketing Commitment: During the pre-opening phase of your Grand Opening

Period, you must spend meney-to-market-an amount on local advertising and advertise-yourBusiness-prior

to—epemng—marketlna that equals or exceeds the mlnlmum expenditure amount I|sted in the table below The

more—'liheestrmatemlmmum exoendlture amount (WhICh mcludes yeut—tmtt&l—buaness—@entﬂy—an%S,OO
f or prlnt coIIateraI materlal—($3—900)—and—) varlesvaneus—advettmng—eests—meluduﬁ—mmal—advemsmgt

that—tsrdetemned based on the number of quallfled households in your terrltoryﬂas—set—forth—m—the—table
below:. A “qualified household” is any household with annual household income of at least $120,000.

Number of Qualified Households in Territory W%W liture Am P"%Lg Inln
9,000 or fewer $14,470195 to $17,000
9,001 to 12,000 $15,800 to $19,250
12,001 to 15,000 $16,400 to $20,000
15,001 or more $17,000 to $20,7750

Fhe-high-estimate-During the 90-day post-opening phase of your Grand Opening Period, you must spend an

additional $15,000 on local advertising and marketing. The “Grand Opening Marketing Commitment” refers
to the combined minimum required expenditure for both the pre-opening and post-opening phase of your
Grand Opening Period. Any marketing management or administrative fees you incur are not credited
towards your Grand Opening Marketing Commitment. You may choose to spend more than the minimum
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required amount. The low estimate assumes: (a) your territory has 9,000 or fewer gualified households; and
(b) you choose to spend only the minimum required amount. The high estimate assumes: (a) your territory
has 15,001 or more qualified households; and (b) you choose to spend $7,500 more than the minimum
required amount.

14. Professional Fees: This includes the eestestimated fees for professionals you may choose to hire to:

e help you review this Disclosure Document and negotiate your Franchise Agreement

e advise you regarding local laws and regulations applicable to your Studio

e form a business entity

e set up vour books, records and accounts

e develop a business plan and budget for the development and operation of your Studio
These services are optional but highly recommended.

#15. Insurance: This estimate includes 3 months of insurance premium. Item 8 includes a description of the
insurance policies you must purchase and maintain. The high estimate assumes you choose to purchase
pandemic insurance, which we-reecemmendis recommended but de-not required.

8:16.  Prierto-Pre-opening—you-will-need-te Payroll: You must have at least three—fully3 certified coaches
avaHable—on staff before you may open. You may appoint 1 or more of your owners (or the spouse of an
owner) to serve as a certified coach. This ean-includeyyourself-estimate includes payroll costs (including

wages and yourspeuse-or-business-partrer{if-apphicable)—payroll taxes) for 3 certified coaches during the 3-
month period preceding your opening date. The lower estimate assumes-the-wages—forene: (a) you hire 1

full-time eguivalent(FFE:—employee (35-40 hours per week) coach-for-three-months-plus-associated-payrol

taxesas a certified coach; and fees—(b) your other 2 certified coaches are owners (or spouses of owners) who

are not on payroll. The high estimate assumes the-wages—forthree FTE—coachesforthree-menths—plus

associated-payrel-taxes-and-fees:all 3 certified coaches are full-time employees.

=

expense&ever—eash—ﬂow-‘ﬂaeJtableabeveAddltlonal Funds ThIS estlmates your Weﬂqngﬁsapttal— xgense

during the first 3 months of operation, including payroll costs (excluding anry-wagewages or salary paid to
yeu)owners), technology fees and monthly payments for EXERBOTICS® Balance Tracker paid to Gymbot,
software and technology fees paid to third parties, inventory replenishment costs, telephone service fees,

utilities and other miscellaneous expenses and required working capital. Yeu-must-have-sufficientpersonal
Feseutees—te—ee%r—yew;hwng—e*penses—daﬂng—tms—pened—Your |n|t|aI 3 months of rent, nrternetand

local advertising
exnendltures and msurance nremlum are separately stated in the table above These figures are estimates
based on: (a) the—past experience of our affitiates—and—franchisees—in—establishingmanagement team in
developing, opening and operating 9eeretsa€eaeh®qoepsenal—trammg—studte&comoanv owned Studios; and
(b) the experience of our franchisees in developing, opening and operating franchised Studios.

Fesearees—te—epetate—the—busmess—wtheut—a—teanvou hire an accountant busmess adwsor or other

professional to assist you in developing a budget for the construction, opening and operation of your Studio.
Within 60 days after your opening date, you must send us a report, in the form we designate, listing the
expenses you incur to develop and open your Studio. We may use this data to update the initial investment
estimate in future versions of our Franchise Disclosure Document.

9.19. Development Fee: Item 5 discusses how the development fee is calculated. This initial investment
estimate assumes you commit to develop either 2 Studios (low estimate) or 3 Studios (high estimate). If you
purchase the right to develop more than 3 Studios, your development fee will increase. This estimate does
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not include your costs to develop any Studio other than the 1% Studio you develop under the ADA.

ITEM8 RESTRICTIONS ON SOURCES OF PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

Source--Restricted Purchases and Leases - Generally

We—reguire—that—yeu—You must purchase or lease certain “source—-restricted” goods and services for the
development and engeing-operation of your Business—By—seuree-Studio. “Source-restricted,—we-mean-that”
means the good or service must meet our specifications andfor must be purchased from an approved or
designated supplier (in some cases, an exclusive designated suppller whrch may be us or an affrlrate) QurThe
Manual includes our specifications and supplier list

ManuaL: We WHl—notlfy you Wrthmée—days—et—anyof changes to our speC|f|cat|ons er—hst—of—approved—er

and suoollers bv emarl updates to the Manual-

Ieu#etrns or other means of communlcatlon ¥euarestneﬂy—preh+btted4remestabhs¥mgany—strateg+&busmess

Supplier Criteria

Our criteria for evaluating a-supphersuppliers include standards for: (a) quality, delvery—performance, design,
appearance and price of the product or service-as-weH-as-the; and (b) dependability, production capabilities,

reputation and financial wiabiitystrength of the supplier. Upon—yeur request, we will provide you with any
objective specifications pertaining to our evaluation of a supplier_or product, although certain important
subjective criteria (e.g., product appearance, design, functionality, etc.) are important to our evaluation but
cannot be described in writing.

If you wantwish to purchase or lease a source--restricted item from a non-approved supplier; you must send us:
(a) a written request for approval; (b) product samples for testing purposes; and submit-any(c) all additional

information that-we request. \We-may—require-that-yyou-send-us-samplesfrom-the-The supplier fortesting—\We
may-alsorequire-that-we-be-allewedmust agree to comply with our minimum insurance, indemnification and
confidentiality requirements for system suppliers and allow us to periodically inspect the—supplier’s
facHhties-their facility. We will notify you of our appreval-er—disapprovaldecision within 30 days after we
receive yourrequestfor-approvalplus-all additionalrequired information and product samples-that-we-reguire:

We-may,—at-eur-option,—re-inspeet-thefacHities-and-products—ef-any. \We may periodically reinspect approved
suppherproducts and suppliers and revoke our approval if thea product or supplier fails to meet amy-efour then-

current criteria. You must reimburse us—fer—all costs that-we incur—n—reviewing—a—propesed—supplier, and
testingpay our hourly fee ($50 per hour) for the time we spend, evaluating products- and suppliers you propose.

Current Source--Restricted Hems

We estimate that-nearly 50% of the total purchases and leases that-will-berequired-to establish yourBusinessa
Studio and 20% of yeur-ongoing operating expenses will-consist of source—-restricted goods or services, as

further described below.

Lease

If you will-lease the premises for your Business,—you-Studio, we must approve your lease before you sign it. You must
use yeupbest efforts to ensure your Iandlord S|gns the Lease Addendum thaHsattached to the Franchlse Agreement as
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You-arerequiredto-ATTACHMENT "C". We require that you hire a real estate attorney to review and negotiate

the terms of your lease—\We-recommend-that (we may waive this obligation if you use-are a licensed real estate
attorney or broker). You may hire our recommended real estate attorney{s} who wil-provide-this-servicehas

experience negotiating leases and Lease Addenda for a—flatfee—of $3,000(per—lease—agreement)}—and—are

experienced-with-Exercise-Coach®-specificlease-negotiations—Alternativelyyou-may-hire-Studios. You may
instead hire a real estate attorney of your own choosing-{in-which-case-we-. If you do not hire an attorney (and

we do not waive the requirement for you to do so) then: (a) our real estate attorney must review and-approve-the
final-terms-of-the lease)— (to ensure the terms are consistent with our brand standards) and negotiate the Lease
Addendum (if the landlord does not agree to sign our standard form); and (b) you must reimburse us for the
legal fees imposed by our attorney to provide these services.

Design and Construction Services

You must hire an architect to prepare initial design plans and detailed construction plans for your Studio. We
must approve all plans before construction begins. Once approved, you must construct and equip your Studio
according to the approved plans and the specifications in the Manual. Your architect and general contractor must
be appropriately licensed and bonded if by applicable law.

Fixtures, Furnishings and Décor

All-efyeur fixtures, furnishings and décor must meet our standards and specifications. Some of these items must
be purchased from approved—or-designated-suppliers while—etherswe designate or approve. Others may be

purchased from supphersany supplier of your choosing.
Signhage

All—ef—yeur exterior signage must meet our standards and specifications and must—be purchased from a

designated-suppliers we designate or approved-suppherapprove.
ComputerTechnology Systems

Your Technology Systems (including hardware, software, equipment, software applications, web apps and POS-System

¥ew—eemputer—system—anel—P@S—system similar |temsz must meet our standards and specifications. Y-eu-may
rg—Certain Technology System components
must be Durchased from approved or desmnated suopllers Other components may be purchased from any
supplier of your choosing. We may require you to purchase certain services relating to the establishment, use,
maintenance, monitoring, security or improvement of Technology Systems from approved or designated
suppliers. Your computer and POS system must meet our standards and specifications. You must purchase your
POS system and license eur-assectatedthe required business management and scheduling system software from
a—designated—third—party—suppliers we designate. You must also license certain proprietary software and
technology exclusively from Gymbot.

FitnessExercise Equipment

You—must—All exercise and fitness-related equipment must meet our standards and specifications and be
Durchased onlv from suppllers we desmnate or approve We currentlv require you to purchase the—preprietary
3 ates:all exercise and fitness-
related equmment excluswelv from vabot mcluqu oroorletarv EXERBOTICS® Equipment and non-
proprietary equipment. You must license the proprietary software used to operate the EXERBOTICS®
Equipment exclusively from Gymbot. The exercise-equipment-that-wereguireEXERBOTICS® Equipment is not
operational without the proprietary software-ewned-and-licensed-by-our-affiliateand-the-software, which may
not be transferred without the-censent-of-our-affiliate.Gymbot’s approval. Therefore, if your franchise terminates
or expires, you may not be able to use yeur—mness—eqeﬂemem-the EXERBOTICS® Equipment or sell it to thlrd
parties.
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1Feq‘—usc-:uYou must also Iroense TEC ADDS excluswelv from vabot (but at no addrtlonal charqe bevond the

technology fee).

Inventory

All-ef-your inventory must meet our standards and specifications. WeYou may reguire-that-yyou-only offer-the
inventorysell retail items that-we designate, such as approved nutrition supplements. Yeou—must—purchase
eertairSome inventory items enly—from-—approved-or—desighated-supphiers—(such as bars and powder) while

ethermust be purchased from suppliers we designate or approve. Other inventory items (such as cleaning

supplies) may be purchased from any supplier of your choosing—{such-as—cleaning—supplies).. You may not

utilize or sell any inventory items that we have not approved.

Uniforms

Your employees must wear the uniforms that-we specifiyrequire. You must purchase these uniforms from a

designated-or-approved-supplier— we designate or approve.
Marketing Materials-and Services-Social Media

AHofAll marketing materials must comDIv with our brand standards and other requirements. WWe must approve your
marketing materials m ,
materials-before-you-prior to use—them You must purchase aH—branded marketmg materlals only from us or other
suppliers that-we designate or approve. Yeu-rust-use\\Ve may require that you contract with and utilize a company we
designate to: (a) develop and/or implement your grand opening marketing eempanies-that-we-desighate-or-approve-to
conduct-marketing-and-advertising-activities-encampaign; (b) manage your behalf-

Social i .
Yeou-must-exclusively-use-our-desighated-supphier—for-social media; and/or (c) provide other advertising and

marketing materials or services. We currently require you to contract with FranBoost for digital marketing

services. You must strictly comply with our social media policy-which-we-may-change-from-time-to-time.

Insurance Policies

You must obtain the minimum insurance coverage that-we require from-time-te-time-(whether in the Franchise

Agreement or in the Manuathe—requ#ed—ewerage—eu#ently—meludeS—au—nslereperty) from Iroense

mmmumfollowmg:

Policy Type Minimum Coverage
“All risk” Property Insurance Replacement Value
Comprehensive General Liability Insurance $2,000,000 per occurrence and $4,000,000 in the aggregate*
Professional Liability Insurance Same minimum coverage as general liability insurance
Automobile Liability Insurance $1,000,000 per occurrence
Business Interruption Insurance At least 12 months’ coverage
Employer’s Liability Insurance As required by law
Worker’s Compensation Insurance As required by law
Landlord-Required Insurance As required by lease (may require higher coverage than the above)
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Policy Type Minimum Coverage

Commercial Umbrella Insurance (Optional) No required minimum

Pandemic Insurance (Optional) No required minimum

* _The minimum required coverage limits—for-general-tiabitity—insurance-wit-beis reduced to $1,000,000 per

occurrence and $2,000, 000 in the aggregate)—autememm—habdny—msuranee—m—me—mmrmum—ameunt—ef

The required coverage and policies are subject to change. Currently~we\We also recommend, but do not require,

that you purehaseal#ef—theebeveobtarn Drrvacv and cvber Irabrlrtv |nsuranceJeel+eres—(ether—than4feur—werker—s
teies. Each policy must be
endorsed to (+a) name us (and our memleersowners offrcers— and drrectors—and—empleyees) as additional
insureds; (H)-contain-a-wakverby-the-insurance—carrier-ofb) waive all subrogation rights against us; and (Hic)
provide that-we-receiveus with 30 days’ prior written notice of the termination, expiration, cancellation or
modification of the policy. All eeveragepolices must be occurrence-based and primary/non-contributory-ane
must-be—en—an—eceurrence—basis—. We currently require you to purchase all policies (other than worker’s
compensation insurance) from a supplier we designate.

Purchase Agreements

We wittnyteperiodically negotiate relationshipspurchase agreements with supplrers—te—enalele—eur—amhates—and
including favorable pricing terms, for the benefit of franchlseesiée If we succeed you may purchase eert&wrtemsth
goods or services at the discounted prices—H-w ;
prices-that we negotiate {less any rebates or other consrderatron pard to us)—At— As of the date of thrs trmeDrscIosure
Document, we have negotiated purchase agreements (including pricing terms) with suppliers {including-price-terms)
for the following eategories—ef—goods and services: filtration lease; exercise equipment;; uniforms;; marketing
supplies;; digital marketing services;; public relations services;; business management and operating software,—mebile;
health technology;; and safety and sanitation equipment/supplies.

We havealso negotiated an-arrangementagreements with: (a) a real estate attorney to review-and-negotiateleases
for-our—franchiseesfor—aflat fee—of $3,000(perlease)-provide lease review and negotiation services for a

discounted flat fee of $3,500 (per lease); and (b) a corporate attorney to prepare and negotiate Asset Purchase
Agreements for franchisees buying or selling existing Studios for a discounted flat fee of $5,500 (the corporate
attorney also offers a more limited scope of services for flat fees starting at $1,500 if representing the seller or
$2,000 if representing the buyer).

We-reserve-theright-to\We and our affiliates may also purchase the-rtems in bulk and reseII them to you at eur
cost plus a reasonable markup .

Currentl;g there are no purchasmg cooperatlves—a#heugh but we reserve—the—nght—te ay establrsh one-or-more
purchasing-cooperativesthem in the future. You do not receive any material benefits for using designated or

approved suppliers other than having access to any discounted pricing that-we negotiate.

Franchisor Revenues from Source--Restricted Purchases

Although-we\We are net-currently an-approvedthe exclusive supplier for any-sourcerestricted-items—we-reserve

therightthe mobility and movement analysis software, CRM and phone/SMS system, and the employee business
productivity platform (email accounts and Microsoft Suite). Our affiliate Gymbot currently serves as the
exclusive designated supplier of all exercise equipment (including our proprietary EXERBOTICS® Equipment
and non-proprietary equipment) as well as the proprietary software and technology used to desigrateoperate, or
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used in conjunction with, the EXERBOTICS® Equipment. Our affiliate FranBoost currently serves as a
designated supplier for digital marketing services. No other person affiliated with us is currently an approved (or
the only approved) supplier. We may appoint ourselves or our affiliate as an approved or designated supplier for

other qoods and serwces in the future Oa#aﬁnﬁte—Gymbet—l&ebwently—th&exelusH&deagﬂated—aﬁpheﬁet

. We and our afflllates

may generate a profit from these purchases.

Our officers, Brian Cygan and Brad Bundy, each own an interest in Gymbot: and FranBoost. There are no other
approved or designated suppliers in which any of our officers owns an interest. Ne-other-persons-affiiated-with
B S R e L O LS S S R S e

We may receive rebates, payments or other material benefits from suppliers based on franehiseeyour purchases
and weleases. \We have no obligation to pass them-enthese amounts through to eurfranechiseesyou or use them
in any particular manner—Hewever,-our-current-intentionis, but we intend to use these-fundsfor-general-support
of-ourfranchise-system—tnthem to benefit the System. We expect most eases;—we-would-anticipate-therebate
terebates will range from 2% to 15% of the cost of the item purchased. We—eurrenthy-As of the date of this
Disclosure Document, we receive the following rebatespayments from suppliers:

vendorSupplier Nature of PaymentRebate Amountosss e

Exercise & Leisure Commission m%oo per TUff Stuff Multi:
$1,616 per SciFit Pro 2 Recumbent Bike:

SciFit Commission W”’.. I hi
?l\?j’lt?i:iso;:trl gjzglhements) Rebate 15% of purehasespurchase price
MicroShield Rebate $50/ per unit
Zogics (cleaning wipes) Rebate $2% of purchases-madepurchase price
ADP Franchises & Affiliations Referral fee 5% revenue share for 5 years of invoices
InBody Rebate 8% of pre-shipment price of InBody units
NutriDyn (nutritional product) Rebate 10% of purchase price

Our total revenue duringfor the fiscal year ended December 31, 20224 was $6,319,6737,603,198. During the
fiscalthat year-ended-December-31,-2023, we received-a-total-of $130,528generated $143,569 in revenue frem-as

a result of franchisee purchases andor leases from-designated-or-approved-supphiersof goods and services, which

represents 2:041.89% of our total revenues.revenue for that year.

During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022—our—affiiate2024, Gymbot received—a—total—of
$3,676,5630¢enerated $2,420,387 in revenue fromas a result of franchisee purchases andor leases of goods and
services. The source of this information is QuickBooks Online.

During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024, FranBoost generated $456,784 in revenue as a result of
franchisee purchases or leases of goods and services. The source of this information is QuickBooks Online
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ITEM9 FRANCHISEE’S OBLIGATIONS

This table lists your principal obligations under the Franchise Agreement (FA), Area Development

Agreement (ADA)—Participation-Agreement{(PA) and other agreements. It will help you find more

detailed information about your obligations in these agreements and other items in this Disclosure
Document.

OBLIGATION SECTIONS IN AGREEMENT DI1SCLOSURE DOCUMENT ITEM

. . . FASection+1-&73FA: 0 &0
. oD
a. Site selection and acquisition/lease ADA- 4.3 Item 7 & Item 11

FA: Section 7.4 125 & 161FA" 6.2,
Ve 5ttem 7 tem 8-& Hem 11
73.11.7 & 15.1 ltem

b. Pre-opening purchases/leases
5, Item 7, Item 8 & Item 11
ADA: Not Applicable

c. Site development and other pre-opening | FA-Section74-&F5FA. 73 & 7.4 |ltem6ltem 7 & Mtem-1Litem 6, ltem
requirements ADA: 4.3 7&Item 11

d. Initial and ongoing training : Hem-6-&Hem-1iltem 6 & Item 11

e. Opening £R- - Htem22item 11

2128 24FA:4.2,55,5.7,6.2,6.9,

7.5.85 10,11.7,11.9, 11.11, 11.16,
f. Fees 13,15.1, 16, 19.2 & 21.3 Hem-5-&Hem-6liem 5 & Item 6

ADA:45,5&7.2
See also 88 of Franchise Resale
Agreement

g. Compliance with standards and FA:Section 65774113 12-&
policies/Brand-StandardsOperating 181FA:6.1,0,7.3,103,11 & 17.1  |Hemddiltem 11
Manual ADA: 4.3

. . . |FASeetion18FA: 17
h. Trademarks and proprietary information ADA: 2 Hem-13-&Hem-t4ltem 13 & Item 14
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OBLIGATION

SECTIONS IN AGREEMENT

DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT ITEM

I 7 K:] v tiele II7 SEEEig' 111 v EiEIe I v
EAwticleV/

i. Restrictions on products/services
offered

FA:113&114

ADA: Not ApplicableFA:=Section
12.3

Hem-16ltem 16

Lfptiele B

j. Warranty and client service
requirements

FA:Section12.12FA: 114 & 11.14
ADA: Not Applicable

Not Applicable

k. Territorial development and sales quotas

FA: Not Applicable
ADA: 4.1

I. Ongoing product/service purchases

FA:11.7

ADA: Not ApplicableFA:Section
125

m. Maintenance, appearance and
remodeling requirements

FA:Section12.6-&12.8FA: 11.8 &
11.10

ADA: Not Applicable

Hem-2ditem 11

FA:-Sectiont62 151

Hem 6-&Hem7-& ltem 6, Item 7 &

A .
. Insurance ADA: Not Applicable Item Bktern-8
FA: 10
. Advertisi . Item 6, Item 7 & Item 11
0. ALVErsing ADA: Not Applicable e o, em /& Tl
L FA:Seetion19FA: 18
p. Indemnification Hem-6ltem 6

ADA: Not Applicable

g. Owner’s participation/-management/ FA:8
. . . Hem11-& Hem-15ltem 11 & ltem 15
staffing ADA: Not ApplicableFA:=Seetion-8 e e
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OBLIGATION

SECTIONS IN AGREEMENT

DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT ITEM

r. Records/reports

FA:152 & 15.3

ADA: Not ApplicableFA:=Seetion
16.2 & 16.3

Hem-6ltem 6

s._ Inspections/audits

FA:Seetion17EA: 16
ADA: Not Applicable

Hem-6-&Hem-1lltem 6 & Item 11

t. Transfer

FA:Section21FA: 19
ADA:7

u. Renewal

EA-Section4 4
ADA: 4.6

v. Post termination obligations

FA:21
ADA: Not ApplicableEA:Section23

w. Non-competition covenants

FA:Section15FA: 14
ADA: Not Applicable

Mem-L7Item 17

x. Dispute resolution

Mem-L7Item 17

y. Franchise Owner Agreement (brand
protection covenants, transfer
restrictions and financial assurance for
owners and spouses)

FA-ATTFACHMENTE“FA1 9 &
ATTACHMENT "D"

ADA: 6

Item 15

ITEM 10 FINANCING

We do not offer direct or indirect financing. We do not guarantee any of your notes, leases or obligations.

Page 31

Franchise Disclosure Document (2025)




ITEM11 FRANCHISOR’S ASSISTANCE, ADVERTISING, COMPUTER SYSTEMS AND
TRAINING

Except as listed below, we are not required to provide you with any assistance.

Before you open your BusinessStudio, we will:

1. Provide yeu-with-access to our Manual—which-will to help you establishdevelop and operate your Business:

See-Section-below—entitled—Studio. The Manual>fer—additional-information—(Section6-1 includes 456
pages. The Table of Contents is attached as EXHIBIT "F". (86.1 & 11.2)

exereiseueqaiqemem—WewiLaiseJerewdeyeumevaluate srtes you propose for your Studio as discussed

below under “Site Selection”. (§0)

3. Provide our written specifications for the—goods and services you must purchase to estaieiiehdevelog equip

24, Cause Gymbot to sell, deliver, install and set up (or arrange for a third party to install and set up) all exercise
equipment included in the Equipment Package. Neither we nor our affiliate deliver or install any ef-theother

|tems that you am—mqmmd%—purchase%themhaﬂm;gmg%he%prmand*mumenpeﬁhe
2-&12.2. (86.2)

5. Provide access to approved advertising and marketing materials, as discussed below under “Advertising and

Marketing”. (810.2)

6. Evaluate your Studio’s design and buildout, as discussed below under “Site Development”. (§7.3 & 7.4)

3-7.Provide an initial training program—See-Section, as discussed below entitledunder “Training Program~for
additional-information—(Section5  5.1)

4.8.Provide MUO Training when you withdevelop your ewnlecal-webpagefor-yourBusiness—See-Seetion

 below-entitled-“Computer-System™for2" Studio (and possibly additional infermation—(Section-6.55tudios)
under an ADA, if applicable. (ADA §4.5)

During the operation of your BusiressStudio, we will:

1. Giveyed-engeing-Cause Gymbot to license you the proprietary software and technology associated with the
EXERBOTICS® Equipment in accordance with the Participation Agreement you and Gymbot must sign.

(56.3)

4.2.Provide our guidance and recommendations en—ways—to improve the marketing—and—operation of your
Business—{Section-Studio. (§86.4)

2.3.Provide periodic training and certification programs—See—Seetien, as discussed below entitledunder
“Training Program”for-additional-information—{Section5". (85.3)

(Seeuen—Maintain a coroorate Websrte to Dromote our brand and a Iocal weboaqe to promote your Studio as

discussed below under “Advertising and Marketing”. (86.6-&113(e}}

4. &103)
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5. Refer prospective clients who contact us to your Studio (if your Studio is the most conveniently located

Studio). (86.7)

6. FEvaluate and either approve or disapprove the annual growth plan and marketing budget you prepare and
submit for our approval, as further discussed below under “Advertising and Marketing”. (§10.3(a))

During the operation of your BusinessStudio, we may, but need not:

1. Continue-to—administerAdminister the

~ “Brand andéystem—DexMepmenLFundifepaddmenaLH#eFmanen—(seenen—H—l as dlscussed below under
“Advertising and Marketing”. (810.1)

1.2. Conduct periodic field visits to provide onsite consultation, assistance and guidance pertaining to the
management and operation of the Studio. (§6.5)

2.3.Develop new good—and—services—for—sale—by—Exercise—Coach®—franchisees—(Section-6-7Strategic

Relationships, as discussed below under “Strategic Relationships”. (§6.8)

4. Provide you with our suggested retail pricing. You may deviate from our suggested retail pricing at your
discretion. However, you must obtain our approval of any deviation more than 5% higher or lower than our
suggested pricing, unless the pricing is part of a temporary advertising campaign we approved. We may set
maximum or minimum prices on the goods and services you sell if permitted by applicable law. (§11.5)

5. Develop new: (a) retail products, merchandise, or other goods or services that your Studio may offer and
sell; or (b) exercise equipment for use at your Studio. (§6.10)

6. Cause our affiliate, FranBoost, to provide digital marketing services. (§10.3(d))

3-7.Negotiate purchase agreements with suppliers to aHew—yeu—to—purchase—certain—goods—or—services—at
discounted—prices-obtain favorable pricing. We may also purchase items in bulk at-discounted—prices-and
resell them to you at our cost plus shipping and a reasonable markup. {Section-6:6(86.9)

8. HeldProvide additional training or assistance you request, as discussed below under “Training Program”.

(85.3)

4.9. Host periodic national-orregional-conferences to discuss relevant business and operational issues affecting

Exereise-Coach®-franchiseesineludingsuch as industry changes; or new services-andf, products, technology
or merchandise;-marketing strategies-and-the-like—(Section-5. (85.7)

5:10.  Create a franchise advisory council—See-Seetion, as discussed below entitledunder “Advisory Council”
femdémenah;#e;mauen-@eenen—lsggla

11. As an optional service, assist you with the offer and sale of your Studio under the terms described in the
Franchise Resale Agreement attached to this Disclosure Document as EXHIBIT "E"-4.

We do not provide area developers with any support under their ADA; other than the Multi-unit-Operater-MUO
Training program listed above.

Training Program deseribed-below:(85) (also §4.5 of ADA if applicable)
Initial Training Program-(Seetion-5-&22-2(1))
— Overview

We wHJ—prowde ar-Management Tralnlnq for your initial #mmng—preg;am—fepth&manaqer(s) and Managmg
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¥eu—may—¥ou may send other owners and—empleyeesrto |n|t|al tralnlng but it is not requwed—'Fhe—mMal—trammg
program-—). As part of initial training, we also provide GSC Certification Training and SBB Certification

Training for all your initial coaches. All trainees must successfully complete training to our satisfaction at least 1
week before your Studio opens.

Management Training includes approximately 5 days of training at our corporate training-center{which-is-alse
our-headquarters)-teecated and training facility in Lake Zurich, Illinois {or our training facility in Smithville,

Tennessee. We may change our designated training location at any time.

GSC Certification Training and SBB Certification Training are required for all owners and other locationwe
designate)—Currenthy—we-intendindividuals who will serve as coaches at your Studio. Certification training
includes access to efferthel MS, evaluating written tests and reviewing practical exams for compliance with our
methods. We provide GSC Certification Training and SBB Certification Training for your initial coaches as part
of our pre-opening initial training program-atteast. After your Studio opens, your existing coaches provide GSC
Certification Training and SBB_ Certification Training to new coaches you hire using our online tools and
resources available through our online L earning Management System (LMS).

The format for training may include lectures, interactive role playing, equipment demonstrations, conference
calls and/or webinars. We reserve the right to conduct all (or any portion) of the training program remotely via
webinar, conference call or similar means. The training materials consist of the Manual, exercise equipment and
LMS. We do not charge additional fees for training materials. We can modify the training program at our
discretion based on our subjective assessment of the skills, abilities and prior experience of your Managing
Owner, manager(s) and coaches.

We intend to offer Management Training on a monthly basis, assuming sufficient demand.

—Our current Management Training-Fopies

Fhe-nitial-training-program consists of the following topics:
TRAINING PROGRAM

SURTEET HOURS OF CLASSROOM | HOURS ON THE JOB Leei o
TRAINING TRAINING
Overview—Exercise-Coach-THE Lake Zurich,-H—andl|linois or
EXERCISE COACH® Personal 1 0 Tennessee & Remote
Ftraining Studios -

- kake-Zurich-H=-andlllinois or
Leadership 1--3 0 Tennessee & Remote
Anatomy/Physiology/Biomechanics 4 0 Tennessee & Remote

. Lake-ZurichH=—andlllinois or
Exercise Theory 4 0 Tennessee & Remote
. LakeZuriehH=andlllinois or
Sales/Marketing 8 0 Tennessee & Remote
Exercise Application and Equipment 8 0 LakeZurich,-H=andlllinois or
Operation Tennessee & Remote
. . LakeZurichH=—andlllinois or
Customer Experience/Service 4 0 Tennessee & Remote
Daily Operations-General Business 6 0 LakeZurichH=—andlllinois or
Practices Tennessee & Remote
. . Lake-ZurichH=—andlllinois or
) B
Exereise CoachGSC Certification 2 0 Tennessee & Remote
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HOURS OF CLASSROOM | HOURS ON THE JOB

SuEsEeT TRAINING TRAINING L EigATIan]
SBB Certification 10 10 Illinois or Tennessee & Remote
. Lake-Zurich-H—andlllinois or
In Store Training 16 - 40 0 Tennessee & Remote
Total 54-8064 - 90 010

——We reserve the right to modify our training and certification programs at any time at our discretion.

Post-Opening Training MaterialsPrograms
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—Multi-unit We may offer periodic refresher or supplemental training courses for your Managing Owner and

managers. We may designate each course as mandatory or optional. Any new Managing Owner or manager you
appoint or hire must successfully complete Management Training before managing your Studio. If we inspect
your Studio and determine you are not operating in compliance with the Franchise Agreement and the Manual,
we may require that your Managing Owner, manager(s) and other staff we designate attend remedial training
relevant to the operational deficiencies we observed. All new coaches you hire must complete GSC Certification
Training and SBB Certification Training. You may also request additional training, which we may (but need
not) provide.

Multi-Unit Operator Training Program

Under-the-ADA;—eurMulti-unit-OperatorIf you sign an ADA, we provide remotely-conducted MUO Training
Program—begins—sherthyover a 6-month period after the—sighing—ef—your—second—franchise—agreement—and

continues—for—thefirstsix—months—after—openingyou sign each pewJlocation—Thefocus—of thistraining
pregramFranchlse Aqreement under the ADA (excluqu the 1% Franchlse Agreement). MUO Training is

designed to : witl-prepare themyou for multi-unit
operations. Ihe—eeutse—plaees—an—empha&s—enWe orowde you W|th various tools and guidance to help you
successfully manage multiple Studios. MUO Training emphasizes team member development, including
behavioral analysis where key employees will participate in both an assessment and team debrief. Fhe
pregramMUO Training also covers ewhturetopics such as building; a strong and healthy team culture, developing
healthy business habits; and maximizing economies—Fhis-tratring-pregram of scale. MUQO Training is delivered
remotely by our Director of Multi-unit Development and includes a minimum of 5 hours of classroom training
via Zoom and 20 hours of on--the--job training.

Instructors

Our current instructors include Brian Cygan, Gerianne M. —Ongeing-TFraining

wnerCygan, TJ Lux, Kevin McKee, John Suazo, Bill
Sharkev Brad Bundv Matt Essex and manageps—attend—system-\mee—m#esher—er—Dr James Fisher. We may
utilize substitute or additional instructors from time to time, but all instructors will have at least 1 year of
experience in the relevant field.

Brian Cygan is our co-founder and Chief Executive Officer. He has been involved with THE EXERCISE
COACH?® since its inception in 2000. He and Gerianne Cygan operated a company-owned Studio in Illinois for
22 years (November 2000 to December 2022) through an affiliate, Strength for Life, LLC. Brian is the creator of
all training systems, protocols and office procedures used in the System. He is certified as a Personal Trainer by
the American College of Sports Medicine. He has 23 years of experience in the personal training industry.

Gerianne Cygan is our co-founder and Wellness Director. She has been involved with THE EXERCISE
COACH?® since its inception in 2000. She and Brian Cygan operated a company-owned Studio in Illinois for 22
years (November 2000 to December 2022) through an affiliate, Strength for Life, LLC. She has been
instrumental in developing procedures for operating and managing the internal processes for a Studio. She has
23 years of experience in the personal training industry.

TJ Lux first became involved with THE EXERCISE COACH® in 2007 when he acquired franchise rights to
own and operate a Studio. Since 2007, he has owned and operated several Studios. TJ was appointed as our
Director of High Performance Coaching in 2014. His responsibilities include: (a) assisting with the development
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of exercise protocols; (b) conducting research for scientific support of THE EXERCISE COACH® trainin
hilosophy; and (c) assisting with ongoing training for franchise owners and coaches. He has 18 years of

experience in the personal training industry.

Kevin McKee first became involved with THE EXERCISE COACH® in 2003 when he acquired franchise rights
to own and operate a Studio. He was appointed as one of our Franchise Support Managers in 2016. Kevin holds
a Bachelor’s of Science in Human Biology and a Master’s of Science in Exercise Science. He is an ACSM
Certified Exercise Physiologist and a Certified Health Coach. He has 26 years of experience in the personal
training industry.

John Suazo first became involved with THE EXERCISE COACH®in 2015 when he acquired franchise rights to
own and operate a Studio. He was appointed as one of our Franchise Support Managers in 2019. He is an
advanced-trained and certified exercise coach. He has 11 years of experience in the personal training industry.

Bill Sharkey joined THE EXERCISE COACH® in 2019 when he became one of our area developers. He has
owned and operated a Studio since 2019. He was appointed as our Director of Multi-Unit Development and
Franchise Support Manager in 2021. He has 7 years of experience in the personal training industry.

Brad Bundy joined THE EXERCISE COACH®in 2013 when he acquired franchised rights to own and operate a
Studio. He has served as our Chief Operating Officer since 2015. Since 2014, he has trained franchisees in
operational processes such as client management, marketing, staffing matters and ongoing studio operations. He
has 12 years of experience in the personal training industry.

Matt Essex joined THE EXERCISE COACH® in 2019 as Chief of Staff. Matt has held C-level positions in health-
focused franchise companies, has taught health sciences, business, and leadership at several prominent colleges and
universities, and is a research scientist in the realm of strength and aging. Matt holds a Master of Science degree in
Exercise Science with a specialization in muscle physiology and aging, and has 27 years of experience in the
personal training industry.

James Fisher PhD joined THE EXERCISE COACH® in 2024 as Chief Science Officer. Prior to this role James
worked in academia as a Principal Lecturer delivering Exercise Science based courses._at undergraduate,
postgraduate, and doctoral level. James was also a Senior Researcher and in accordance with his expertise has
served on advisory boards to the likes of the Chief Medical Officer (UK), as well as applied positions delivering
Strength and Conditioning to Olympic and Paralympic athletes, English Premier League Soccer teams, the Lawn
Tennis Association and other notable organizations. He has 25 years of experience in the personal training
industry.

Training Fees and Costs

We provide our pre-opening Management Training program for up to 4 people in exchange for the $5,000 initial
training fee. You must pay us an additional initial training fee of $625 for each person you send to Management

Training in excess of 4. If you appeint-a-are signing your 2™ or subsequent Franchise Agreement under an ADA,
you must also pay us a $2,500 training fee for MUO Training. We may also charge you a training fee of up to

500 per person per day for each person who attends: (a) Management Trainin after ou o en i.e. new
Managrng Owner or manager : 2

b retrarnrn after fa|I|n a rior

Training. We may also charge the same or lesser fees for periodic recertification training. You are responsible
for all wages and Travel Expenses you and your trainees incur for training. You must also reimburse our Travel
Expenses for onsite training or assistance at your Studio.
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A Exercise Coach® personal training studio typicallySite Selection (80)

A typical Studio ranges in size from 800 to 2,000 square feet. Our—personaltraining-studiesStudios may be
located in: (a) commercial retail space, such as a shopping center or mixed use development, anchored by large

grocery stores-o+; or (b) non-retail space, such as a professional office building or development. Regareless;the
location-should-Studios must be easily accessible to the public.

and then-lease it to the
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s obtaln our approval of yeur—sm,LmJtherequ%d—perred

You-must-obtain-ourapproval-of your-site-no-laterthan-120the site for your Studio within 90 days after signing
the Franchise Agreement. Otherwise-we\\Ve may terminate your Franchise Agreement if you fail to meet this

deadllne or |f we cannot agree on a site. However #—yeu—have+nede—dru+gemﬂ9ced—geed—faﬁh—eﬁerts—te—ﬁed—an

yeer—eentrel—therkwe may, in our reasonable drscretlon grant you 4:one or more 30 -day extensron perlods in
which-to-find-an—approved-site—if you demonstrate to our satisfaction that: (a) you used diligent, good faith
efforts to find an approved site throughout the 120-day site selection period; and (b) you were unable to secure
our approval of your site in a timely manner due to reasons outside your control.

Your Studio must be located within the Site Selection Area identified in Part C of ATTACHMENT "A" to the
Franchise Agreement and conform to our minimum site selection criteria. Your Site Selection Area is defined to
exclude the geographic area within any territory assigned to another Studio that: (a) is open and operating, under
construction, or for which a site has been approved, in each case as of the effective date of the Franchise
Agreement; and (b) is located (or will be located) in the Site Selection Area.

You must send us a complete site report that includes all information we require about each site you propose.
We try to approve or disapprove sites within 30 days after receiving the site report. Our failure to approve a site
within the 30-day period constitutes our disapproval. We consider the following factors when reviewing
proposed sites:

e visibility, size, condition and characteristics of the building

e traffic counts

e accessibility and availability of parking

e general location and character of neighborhood

e existence and location of competitive businesses

e tenant mix in the building or shopping center

e various economic indicatorsH—yeur—site—has—been—approved—prior—to—signing—the—Franchise
Seseoponent Laoe
We list the address of your approved site wit-be-listedeither: (a) in Part €D of AFFACHMENT "B"ATTACHMENT
"A" to the Franchise Agreement—H-your— (if we approve the site has-net-been—-appreved-priortebefore signing the

Franchise Agreement—then) or ( b) in a Site Anproval Notice we send you wrthm 30 busmess days after yeu—sulemrt—te
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Hyou-sign-an-ADA—we-must-we approve the location-of-each-franchise-to-be-developed-under-site (if we

approve the site after signing the Franchise Agreement). If you sign an ADA, we must approve the site for each
Studio you develop applying our then-current site selection criteria.

ﬂat—sereen%levmen—éWe must anorove your lease (if aonllcable) before you sign |t You must use best efforts to
cause your landlord to sign the Lease Addendum attached to the Franchise Agreement as ATTACHMENT "C".
The | ease Addendum is designed to protect our interests. If your landlord refuses to sign our prescribed form of
Lease Addendum we may either (a) waive the Lease Addendum requirement (or the provisions disapproved by
the landlord) or (b) require you to find a new site for your Studio.

Site Development (§7.3 & 11.10)

The Manual includes generic prototype plans and our standards and specifications for the design, layout,
equipping and trade dress for a Studio. You must hire a licensed and bonded architect to prepare initial design
plans for the construction of your Studio and leasehold improvements. We must approve the initial design plans
to ensure they are consistent with our system standards. Once approved, your architect must prepare detailed
construction plans that: (a) are consistent with the approved design plans; (b) satisfy all required standards and
specifications in the Manual; and (c) comply with all federal, state and local ordinances, building codes, permits
and lease requirements and restrictions applicable to the premises. You must submit the final construction plans
to us for approval. Once approved, you must construct and equip your Studio according to the approved
construction plans and the requirements of the Manual. You must purchase (or lease) and install the Technology
Systems, equipment, fixtures, signs and other items we require.

We may require that you periodically remodel and renovate your Studio to conform to our then-current
standards and specifications. There is no limitation on the cost or frequency of these obligations. You may not
remodel or renovate your Studio without our prior approval.

Opening Requirements (§7.4)

We expect most franchisees will open within 300 days after signing the Franchise Agreement. Factors that may
affect this time include:

e the amount of time needed to find an approved site

e protracted lease negotiations with the landlord

e the amount of time needed to secure financing, insurance, licenses and permits

e the condition of the building and extent of required upgrades, remodeling and renovations

e construction delays due to labor or materials shortages, inclement weather or other reasons

e delayed delivery or installation of equipment and fixtures

e the amount of time needed to comply with zoning requirements and other laws and requlations

e the amount of time needed to complete training

e the amount of time needed to hire and train staff

Advertising and Marketing (§10)

Our Advertising Obligations

+—\We have no obligation to conduct advertising for the franchise system. However, we may periodically create
advertising and marketing materials for your use. We may: (a) use the Brand FundEstimated-Cost-$700-to
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theJerand—andﬁLstemeevelepmen{—femd to pay for the creatlon and dlstrlbutlon of these materlals in WhICh case
there will be no additional charge-—We-may-make; (b) provide online access to these materials-avaHable-ever-the

Internet—, in which case you must arrange—fer—printingprint the materials and—paying—allprinting—costs):
Alternatively—we-may-enterinto—relationshipsat your expense; or (c) contract with third--party suppliers whe
wih :o reate the—advertlsmg or marketmg materials fer—yeu#that you may purchase —We—mlrl—ppewde—Feaseneble

Yeou-will-alse-have-an-eppertunity  Grand Opening Advertising

You must prepare and obtain our approval of a grand opening marketing plan to ereate-promote the opening of
your Studio during your Grand Opening Period, which begins 30 to 90 days prior to, and ends 90 days after,
your Studio’s opening date. These marketing activities may include digital marketing, public relations,
distributing mailers to high income households, radio commercials and other advertising for-activities described
in_the Manual or otherwise approved by us. We may require you to hold an open house for business and
community leaders. We may require that you contract with a marketing company we designate to design and
implement a customized grand opening marketing plan.

The total amount of grand opening advertising and marketing expenditures you incur during the Grand Opening
Period must equal or exceed your Grand Opening Marketing Commitment, as set forth in the table below:

RAND OPENING MARKETIN MMITMENT

[Number of Qualified Households] [Minimum Expenditure]
9,000 or fewer $14,195 to $17,000
Pre-Opening Phase* 9,001 to 12,000 $15,800 to $19,250
12,001 to 15,000 $16,400 to $20,000
15,001 or more $17,000 to $20,775
Post-Opening Phase* $15,000

* The Grand Opening Marketing Commitment applicable during the pre-opening phase of your Grand Opening
Period varies based on the number of qualified households in your territory.

** Any expenditures you incur during the pre-opening phase that exceed the minimum required amount will be
credited towards the $15,000 you must spend during the 90-day post-opening phase.
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Post-Grand Opening Advertising

You must participate at your own use—provided—we—expense in all advertising, promotional and marketing
programs we require. At least 30 days prior to each anniversary of your Studio’s opening date, you must prepare
a growth plan and marketing budget for the ensuing 12-month period. We must approve it-in-advance.each
growth plan and marketing budget.

After your Grand Opening Period expires, you must spend at least $4,000 per month on approved local
advertising and marketing (pro-rated the 1% month if your Grand Opening Period expires on a day other than the
last day of the month). The minimum amount you must spend on local marketing and advertising after your
Grand Opening Period expires is referred to as your | ocal Marketing Commitment. None of the following fees
or expenditures are credited towards your Local Marketing Commitment: (a) brand fund fees; (b) marketing
management or administrative fees; or (c) advertising or marketing expenditures you incur during the Grand
Opening Period, including any expenditures in excess of your Grand Opening Marketing Commitment.

You may develop your own advertising and marketing materials and programs but we must approve them prior
to use. We must also approve the media you intend to use. You may not use any advertising materials, programs

or media that we have not been-approved-by-us—Yeu-must-submit.

Websites, Social Media and Digital Advertising

We currently maintain a corporate website to us-any-advertising—matertalspromote our brand. If a prospective
client contacts us through our website (or calls our corporate headquarters) we will use reasonable efforts to
refer the prospective client to the most conveniently-located Studio in accordance with our then-current policies.

We will also create and host a local webpage (i.e., local landing page) to promote your Studio, which will be
linked to our corporate website. Your webpage will list certain information about your Studio that you-prepare
or-we designate, such as address, hours of operation and contact information. We can modify and-we-witk-have

J%—dﬂ-)‘S%—FGWGW—&Hd—GHhGF&BBFGVG—GFFGj@GF@hHH&%&H&LSOf dlscontmue our Web5|te and/or your Studlo S

anemetlme ExceDt for the webloaqe we Drowde you may not (a) develoo host or otherW|se mamtam a
website (or other digital presence) bearing our Marks: (b) utilize the Internet to conduct digital or online
advertising; or (c) engage in ecommerce.

Under current policy-that-we-establish-from-time-to-time:

We-will, we exclusively own all social media accounts and-associated with Studios and we exclusively control

all social media posts-relating-to-Exercise-Coach®-businesses—You-may-propese-contentfor-posting-which-must

be-approved-. We may establish, own and administer one or more social media accounts that promote your
Studio _either by wsitself or in the—same—manrer—asconjunction with other advertising—that—yvou—propese:
¥euStudios. If we do so, the following rules apply:

o we will be-granted-retain all ownership rights to the account(s)

we may (but need not) grant you limited access rights-te-the-secial-media—accountspertaining-to-your
Bwness—but—weu but we WI|| retam admmlstrator rlghts te—au—sueh—aeeeums—at—au—nmes—At—au—tmes—yeu

Page 44 Franchise Disclosure Document (2025)



Page 45 Franchise Disclosure Document (2025)



Page 46 Franchise Disclosure Document (2025)



Page 47 Franchise Disclosure Document (2025)



Page 48 Franchise Disclosure Document (2025)



Page 49 Franchise Disclosure Document (2025)



e you must obtain our approval of any content you wish for us to post

e you must immediately remove any content we disapprove, or we may unliterally remove it

Gift Card and Loyalty Programs

We may require that you participate in a gift card or other customer loyalty program {including-utilization-of-a
“membership”—medeh-in accordance with our policies and procedures. In order to participate, you may be
required to purchase additional equipment, software and/or Apps and pay fees relating to the use of that
equipment, software and/or Apps. H-we—establish-a—gift—card—orloyaltyprogram,—we\We have the right to
determine how the-proceeds from the-sale-of gift-cards-or-membership-fees-wit-beqift card sales are divided or

otherwise accounted for—whetherredeemed-or and we may retain proceeds from unredeemed;-behaeen-Exercise
Coach-Businesses: gift cards. You must follow all ef-eurpolicies regarding-amywe establish for gift card and/or

loyalty pregram-that-we-establishprograms.
Advertising Cooperatives

We may, but need not, establish regional advertising cooperatives for purposes of pooling advertising funds to
be used in discrete regions. We determine the boundaries of the cooperative. In most instances, the boundaries
will coincide with zip codes, designated marketing areas or municipal boundaries. We will specify the manner in
which the cooperative is organized and governed. We may choose between: (a) administering the cooperative
ourselves; or (b) establishing an advertising council, comprised by the cooperative’s members, to administer the
cooperative. We may require that the cooperative be administered in accordance with written bylaws,
organizational documents or other governing documents that we approve.

If your Studio is located within a region subject to an advertising cooperative you must: (a) participate in the
cooperative according to its rules and procedures and abide by its decisions; and (b) pay a cooperative
advertising fee. We may set the minimum cooperative advertising fee or we may allow the cooperative to set the
fee based on majority vote of its members. In either case, the cooperative advertising fee will not exceed $2,000
per month. All cooperative advertising fees you pay are credited against your Local Marketing Commitment.
Any company-owned Studio located in the cooperative will contribute on the same basis as franchisees.

Advertising cooperatives are not required to prepare annual or periodic financial statements. Any financial

statements that are prepared will be made available to you upon reguest. We reserve the right to form, change,

merge or terminate advertising cooperatives at any time. There were no advertising cooperatives in effect as of
December 31, 2024.

Brand and System Development Fund

We currently administer the Brand Fund to promote public awareness of our brand and improve our System. We
may use the Brand Fund to pay for any of the following:

e developing, administering or directing advertising and marketing materials, promotions and programs

e conducting and administering promotions, contests or giveaways

e expanding public awareness of the Marks

e public and consumer relations and publicity
e brand development

e sponsorships
e charitable and nonprofit donations and events
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o research and development of technology, products and services

e website development and search engine optimization

o development, maintenance and promotion of an ecommerce platform

e development and implementation of quality control programs

e _conducting market research

e reimbursing us for costs we incur to host franchisee conferences

e changes and improvements to the System

o fees and expenses charged by advertising agencies we engage to provide marketing services
o collecting and accounting for contributions to the Brand Fund

e preparing and distributing financial accountings of the Brand Fund

e _any other programs or activities we deem appropriate to promote or improve the System

o direct and indirect labor, administrative, overhead and other expenses incurred by us and/or our affiliates
in relation to any of these activities (including salary, benefits and other compensation of any of our, and
any of our affiliate’s, officers, directors, employees or independent contractors based upon time spent
working on any Brand Fund matters described above)

We direct and have complete control and discretion over all advertising programs paid for by the Brand Fund,
including the creative concepts, content, materials, endorsements, frequency, placement and media used.
Advertising may be local, regional or national in coverage and utilize any media we deem appropriate, including
digital, print, television, radio or billboard. The Brand Fund will not be used to pay for advertisements
principally directed at selling additional franchises, although consumer advertising may include notations such
as “franchises available” and one or more pages on our website may promote the franchise opportunity.

You must pay the brand fund fee we specify from time to time (not to exceed 1% of Gross Sales). Company-
owned Studios are not required to contribute to the Brand Fund. All monies deposited into the Brand Fund that
are not used in the fiscal year in which they accrue will be utilized in the following fiscal year. Any surplus of
monies may be invested and we may lend money if there is a deficit. An unaudited financial accounting of
Brand Fund contributions and expenditures will be prepared annually and made available to you upon request.
During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 we spent the marketing funds in the following manner:

* _“Other” includes key note speakers at annual conference, FAC expenses, market research, professional fees,
software, website development and maintenance, innovation research and development (R&D).

The Brand Fund is not a trust. We have no fiduciary obligations or liability to you with respect to our
administration of the Brand Fund. Once established, we may discontinue the Brand Fund on 30 days’ notice.

Advisory Council (§12)

We may, but need not, create a franchise advisory council to provide us with suggestions to improve the System,
including matters such as marketing, operations or new products or services. We would consider suggestions in
good faith, but would not be bound by them. The council would be established and operated according to rules
and regulations we periodically approve, including procedures governing the selection of council representatives
to communicate with us on matters raised by the council. You would have the right to be a member of the
council as long as you comply with your Franchise Agreement and do not act in a disruptive or abusive or
counter-productive manner, as determined by us in our discretion. As a member, you would be entitled to all
voting rights and privileges granted to other council members. Any company-owned Studio would also be a
member of the council. Each member would be granted 1 vote on all matters on which members are authorized
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to vote. We would have the power to form, change or dissolve the advisory council in our discretion.
Strateqic Relationships (86.8)

From time to time, we may establish Strategic Relationships with vendors, insurance companies, third-party
payers and others in order to enhance the System or expand our client base. For example, we negotiated
relationships that currently allow Studios to accept clients for personal training under programs such as
RenewActive® by UnitedHealthcare®, OnePass, Silver&Fit® and Active&Fit®. You must participate in all
Strategic Relationships in accordance with the terms and conditions we negotiate with the Strategic Relationship
partner. These programs and Strategic Relationships may change from time to time. We have no obligation to
maintain Strategic Relationships or develop new ones. We make no representation that you can rely on these
programs or the subsidies associated with them as an indefinite benefit to your Business.

We have the exclusive right to establish Strategic Relationships and enter into agreements with Strategic
Relationship partners. You are prohibited from doing so. You must refer all potential Strategic Relationship
opportunities to us.

Computer System (§6.3,11.7, 11.8, 11.9, 15.3 & 16.1)
You must purchase and use all Technology Systems we designate. We may change the required Technology
Systems from time to time. We currently require a computer and POS system that consist of the following:

o 2 desktop or laptop computers (with Microsoft Office & reasonably current Windows operating system)

o 1 all-in-one printer/scanner/copier/fax machine

e 1 iPad Pro tablet (6" generation or higher)

e 1 CRM system with phone and SMS integration (Hubspot & JustCall)

e 1 business intelligence platform subscription (FlexBl)

e 1 POS system (includes computer, credit card reader & business management and scheduling software)

o \Web-based accounting subscription (QuickBooks Online)

How Computer and POS System Are Used

You will use your computer and POS system to operate the business and perform various functions including:
processing payment transactions; managing client leads and relationships; enrolling clients; booking clients;
scheduling sessions; recording client information; preparing operational and financial reports; accounting and
bookkeeping; text messaging; email communications; and accessing our proprietary software associated with
EXERBOTICS® Equipment.

Your clients will use our proprietary TEC Apps to access a real-time data stream of strength measures from
EXERBOTICS® Equipment. For clarity, the TEC Apps do not facilitate or perform any type of virtual, online or

on-demand exercise training or instruction delivered live through a web-based video service such as Zoom or
FaceTime.

You will use FlexBI as your business intelligence platform and dashboard. It will help you analyze and track
key performance indicators (KPIs) on your Business in real time to identify trends and actionable insights

understand performance and more more informed strategic decisions.
You will use our designated CRM system, HubSpot, as your sales, marketing and lead management platform.

We provide you with one or more email addresses for use with your Studio. You must exclusively use the email
address(es) we provide for all communications with us, clients, suppliers and other persons relating to your

Studio. You may not use them for any purpose unrelated to your Studio. We own the email addresses and
accounts but allow you to use them during the term of your Franchise Agreement.

Fees and Costs
We estimate the initial cost of your computer and POS system (including any upfront license fees, setup fees,
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software training fees, data migration fees, etc.) will range from $1,900 to $3,850.

As further detailed in Item 6, you must pay technology fees for certain software, technology and related services
that we or our affiliate provide (including fees we and Gymbot collect on behalf of, and remit to, third-part
licensors). The table below identifies the ongoing fees and costs you must pay for required software, technology,
Apps, subscriptions and related services (including the software, technology and related services covered by the
technology fee). These fees are subject to change from time to time.

Technology Fee (proprietary tech
(technology-related services for TEC 518 6,216 Gymbot
Apps & EXERBOTICS® Equipment)
Technology Fee (3"-party tech) , $
(mobility software) $299 $3,508 Gymhot
Technology Fee (3"-party tech)
(CRM and Phone System) $248 $2.976 Us
Technology Fee (3"-party tech)

29 $348 U
(FlexBl) $29 2290 =
Technology Fee (3-party tech) $5* 60*
(business productivity software) er employee er employee -
POS System $196 $2,352 Third-party Licensor
QuickBooks Online $35 $420 Third-party Licensor

* _Most franchisees require 2 to 4 employee licenses.
Maintenance, Support, Updates and Upgrades

In _exchange for monthly technology fee disclosed in the table above, Gymbot (or a third-party engaged b
Gymbot) provides all required support, repairs and updates for the software and technology associated with
EXERBOTICS® Equipment and TEC Apps. These services are covered under the Participation Agreement that
you and Gymbot must sign.

The licensor of the POS system and associated software provides all required support and updates in exchange
for the monthly fee disclosed in the table above.

The licensors of our CRM and phone/SMS system, FlexBl and the mobility software provide all required
support and updates in exchange for the monthly fees disclosed in the table above.

Except as otherwise disclosed above: (a) neither we nor any other party has any obligation to provide ongoing
maintenance, repairs, upgrades or updates to your computer system; and (b) we are not aware of any optional or
required maintenance, updating, upgrading or support contracts relating to your computer system.

Collection and Sharing of Data

Your computer and POS system will collect and store various types of data including: client contact
information; payment and credit card information; information on potential clients (i.e., leads); client attendance

records; and sales data. We will have independent unlimited access to the data collected on your computer and
POS system and there are no contractual limits imposed on our access. We will not disclose any data pertaining
to a client that is specifically attributable or identifiable to that client, but we may disclose client data in
summary, statistical or other formats that prevent the data from being identifiable to a particular client.

Maintenance and Changes

You must maintain the computer system in good condition at your cost. We may require that you upgrade,
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update or otherwise change your computer system and other Technology Systems to conform to our then-current
specifications. There is no contractual limitation on the frequency or cost of these updates, upgrades or changes.

ITEM 12  TERRITORY

L ocation of Studio

The Franchise Agreement grants you the right to operate a single Studio from a site we approve. You must
identify a site for your Studio within the Site Selection Area described in your Franchise Agreement.

You may relocate your Studio with our prior written approval, which we will not unreasonably withhold. If we
allow you to relocate you must: (a) obtain our approval of the new site for your Studio within the Site Selection

Area (but outside any territory assigned to another Studio); (b) comply with our then-current site selection and
development requirements; (c) remove trade dress and alter the premises of the closed (i.e., former) Studio to
eliminate any resemblance to a THE EXERCISE COACH® studio; (d) pay us a $2,500 relocation fee at the time
we approve your request to relocate; and (e) open your Studio at the new site and resume operations within 30
days* after closing your Studio at the former site. We may also require you to conduct another grand opening
marketing campaign to promote the opening of your Studio at the new site.

* _If your Studio is destroyed, condemned or otherwise rendered unusable due to the physical condition of the
remises, you have: (a) 120 days after the closure to obtain our approval of the new site; and (b) 120 days

after we approve the new site to develop and reopen the Studio at the new site (subject to any extensions we

grant in our reasonable discretion).

Designation of Territory (Franchise Agreement

We will grant you a territory that includes at least 5,000 qualified households as of the date we designate your
territory. A “qualified household” refers to any household with annual household income of at least $120,000.
We may designate the boundaries of your territory in any manner we deem appropriate, provided that your
territory includes at least 5,000 qualified households at the time we designate the territory. We may use data
from any source we deem appropriate to determine the number of gualified households within an area.

We will describe your territory either in: (a) Part E of ATTACHMENT "A" to the Franchise Agreement (if we
approve the site for your Studio before signing the Franchise Agreement); or (b) the Site Approval Notice we
send after approving your site (if we approve the site after signing the Franchise Agreement).

We have no obligation to modify your territory during the term of the Franchise Agreement based on changes to

the number of gqualified households. Upon renewal, we reserve the right to modify the boundaries of your
territory in accordance with our then-current territory guidelines and criteria.

Your Development Territory (ADA

If you acquire area development rights, we will grant you a development territory that will be described in Part
D of ATTACHMENT "A" to your ADA. Your development territory is defined to exclude the geographic area
within any territory assigned to another Studio that: (a) is open and operating, under construction, or for which a
site has been approved, in each case as of the effective date of the ADA; and (b) is located (or will be located) in
the geographic area described in Part D of ATTACHMENT "A" to your ADA. A development territory
typically consists of a geographic area that coincides with the boundaries of a municipality, such as a city,
county or state. There is no minimum or maximum size for a development territory. In determining the size of
your development territory, we primarily consider the number of Studios you commit to develop.

You must sign a separate Franchise Agreement for each Studio you develop. Each Studio must be located in the
development territory. We must approve the site for each Studio under our then-current site selection criteria.
We send you a complete execution copy of the ADA that includes your development territory, development fee
and development schedule at least 7 days before you sign it.

Page 54 Franchise Disclosure Document (2025)



Exclusive Territorial Rights
Territory

Your territory will be exclusive. During the term of your Franchise Agreement, we will not develop or operate,
or license a third party to develop or operate, another Studio that uses our Marks and is located in your territory.

Development Territory

Your development territory, if applicable, will also be exclusive. During the term of the ADA, we will not
develop or operate, or license a third party to develop or operate, another Studio that uses our Marks and is
located in your development territory.

Site Selection Area

If we do not approve the site for your Studio before you sign the Franchise Agreement, then your Site Selection
Area will be exclusive during the period of time that begins when you sign the Franchise Agreement and ends
upon the earlier to occur of: (a) the date we approve your site: or (b) the end of the 120" day after the Effective
Date of the Franchise Agreement.

Altern hannels of Distribution

We reserve the right to sell, and license others to sell, competitive or identical goods and services (either under
the Marks or different trademarks) through Alternative Channels of Distribution, including within your territory

and development territory, if applicable. An “Alternative Channel of Distribution” means any channel of
distribution other than: (a) retail sales made to clients while present at a Studio; or (b) offering fitness or

exercise programs or conducting personal training from any location outside a Studio. Examples of Alternative
Channels of Distribution include:

o sales through direct marketing, such as over the Internet or through catalogs or telemarketing

e sales through retail stores that do not operate under the Marks, such as sporting goods, exercise or
department stores

e sales made at wholesale

e _provision of services through an App or mobile device
You are not entitled to any compensation for sales that take place through Alternative Channels of Distribution.

Restrictions on Sales and Marketing Activities

You can market and advertise outside your territory and development territory, if applicable, as long as you: (a
obtain our prior approval; (b) comply with all policies and procedures in the Manual governing extra-territorial
marketing; and (c¢) do not engage in targeted marketing directed into a territory assigned to another Studio

(unless the marketing is conducted as part of an advertising cooperative that includes the affected territorx)
Marketing that is dlstrlbuted! circulated or received both Wlthln your terntorg and another Studio’s terntorg

areas in your territory; and (b) most recipients of the advertising are located in your territory and there is onl

incidental circulation or distribution in another Studio’s territory. The meaning of “targeted marketing” that is
“directed into a territory” may be further defined in the Manual. Examples include direct mail sent to addresses
in_a given territory, digital advertising sent to devices with IP addresses registered in a given territory and
conducting promotional events in a given territory.

You must comply with any minimum advertised pricing policy that we establish from time to time.
You may not market or sell using Alternative Channels of Distribution (such as the Internet, catalog sales,

telemarketing or other direct marketing) either inside or outside your territory or development territory, if

applicable. Your marketing activities are also subject to the additional restrictions described in Item 11 under the
Section entitled “Websites, Social Media and Digital Advertising”.

There are no other restrictions on your right to solicit clients, whether from inside or outside your territory or
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development territory, if applicable.
Minimum Performance Requirements

Your territorial exclusivity under the Franchise Agreement does not depend on achieving a certain sales volume,
market penetration or other contingency.

If you sign an ADA and breach the development schedule by failing to open and operate the prescribed number
of Studios within the required periods of time, we may terminate your ADA and you will lose the territorial
protections associated with your development territory.

Additional Franchises and Territories

We do not grant options, rights of first refusal or similar rights to acquire additional territories or franchises,
other than your right and obligation to develop the prescribed number of Studios within your development
territory if you sign an ADA.

Competing Businesses Under Different Marks

Currently, neither we nor any affiliate of ours intends to operate or franchise another business under a different
trademark that sells products or services similar to the products or services offered by a Studio. However, we
reserve the right to do so in the future.

Although we and and our affiliates do not operate or franchise a competitive business under different
trademarks, we and our affiliates do reserve the right, except to the extent prohibited by the Participation
Agreement, to sell EXERBOTICS® Equipment (and any other exercise, fitness or other equipment developed in
the future) and license proprietary software and technology to third parties anywhere within your Site Selection
Area, territory and, if applicable, development territory. The Participation Agreement prohibits Gymbot from
selling certain EXERBOTICS® Equipment (including Leg Press, Leg Curl, CrossFire Hamstring Curl, Nucleus
Core/Back Extension, and Shoulder Press/Pull-Down machines) to Commercial Fitness Retailers* located in
your territory or development territory during the term of your Franchise Agreement or ADA, respectively.

* _“Commercial Fitness Retailer” means a fitness facility that generates at least 50% of its annual gross revenue
from: (a) offering use of the facility and its exercise equipment to the general public; and/or (b) offerin

ersonal exercise tralnln serV|ces in one-on-one, small roup or large grou formats The definition

centers; research institutions; and other similar types of establishments; and (b) any business meeting the
criteria of a Commercial Fitness Retailer if the services offered at the facility must in any manner be
delivered, supervised or overseen by a credentialed healthcare professional specializing in the prevention,
diagnosis or treatment of diseases, injuries or other disorders.

ITEM 13 TRADEMARKS

The following Marks are registered on the Principal Register of the United States Patent and Trademark Office
(USPTOQ):

REGISTERED MARKS

Mark Registration Number (Renewal Date)

August 12, 2008
THE EXERCISE COACH 3,484,221 Sentember 30, 2017
STRENGTH CHANGES EVERYTHING 6,205,846 December 20, 2019

We also applied to register the following Mark on the Principal Register of the USPTO:
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UNREGISTERED MARKS

ENJOY STRENGTH M. . August 22, 2022
Intent to Use Application

We do not have a federal registration for the Mark in the table immediately above. Therefore, this Mark does not
have many legal benefits and rights as a federally registered trademark. If our right to use this Mark is
challenged, you may have to change to an alternative trademark, which may increase your expenses.

All required affidavits and renewals have been filed.

We may change the trademarks you may use from time to time, including by discontinuing use of the Marks
listed in Item 13. If we require you to discontinue use of our primary Mark (i.e., THE EXERCISE COACH®),
we will reimburse you for out-of-pocket expenses you reasonably incur to change your primary signage. We
have no other liability to you for changing the Marks.

You must notify us immediately if you discover an infringing use (or challenge to your use) of the Marks. We

will take the action we deem appropriate. We are not required to take any action if we do not feel it is warranted.
You may not control any proceeding or litigation involving our Marks.

he Franchlse A reement does not re uire that we: (a) rotect your right to use the Marks b rotect ou

your defense or indemnify you for expenses or damages you incur if you are a party to an administrative or
judicial proceeding involving our Marks or if the proceeding is resolved in a manner unfavorable to you.

There are currently no: (a) effective material determinations of the Patent and Trademark Office, the Trademark
Trial and Appeal Board the trademark admlnlstrator of this state or any court; (b) pendin |nfr|h ements

uses we are aware of that could materially affect your use of the Marks: or (e) agreements that limit our right to
use or sublicense use of the Marks.

ITEM 14 PATENTS, COPYRIGHTS, AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION

Patents

Gymbot filed an application for and obtained a provisional patent on Strength Index, which is a proprietary
strength scoring methodology that allows for the normalization of isokinetic strength training performance and
prescription, as delivered through EXERBOTICS® Equipment. Details are summarized below:

Title Normalized Isokinetic Strength Training Performance and Prescription
Patent Type Utility

Filing Date September 18, 2023

Application No. | 18/369,808

Inventor Brian Cygan, Brad Bundy, Kurt Pinnow

Owner/Assignee | Gymbot LLC

Status Provisional

No other patents or pending patent applications are material to the franchise.
Copyrights

Although we have not filed an application for copyright registration for our Manual, website or marketing
materials, we do claim a copyright to these items.

Page 57 Franchise Disclosure Document (2025)



Proprietary Information

During the term of the Franchise Agreement, we allow you to use certain confidential and proprietary
information (some of which constitute “trade secrets”) relating to the development, marketing and operation of a
Studio. Examples include:

o architectural plans, drawings and specifications for a prototype Studio
e site selection criteria

e _methods, techniques, policies, procedures, protocols, standards and specifications
e _supplier lists and information

o _marketing and merchandising strategies

o information comprising the System

We will own all ideas, improvements, inventions, marketing materials and other concepts you develop relating
to a Studio. We will also own all operational and client data pertaining to your Studio. You must treat this data
as confidential and proprietary. We license you the right to use this data to operate your Studio. You must
comply with all applicable data protection laws and our data processing and data privacy policies in the Manual.

We provide access to our confidential information through the Manual, training programs and other periodic
support and guidance. You may use this information solely for purposes of developing, marketing and operating
your Studio in compliance with the Franchise Agreement and Manual. We consider all information in the
Manual to be confidential. You may not disclose our confidential information to anyone other than your
employees, on a need-to-know basis, without our prior permission. All of your employees and representatives
(including all Studio managers and coaches) must sign the Confidentiality Agreement attached to the Franchise
Agreement as ATTACHMENT "F" before you give them access to our confidential information.

Infringements

You must promptly notify us if you discover an unauthorized use of our proprietary information or copyrighted

materials. We will respond as we deem appropriate, but we need not act. You may not control any litigation or
proceeding involving allegations of unauthorized use of our proprietary information or copyrighted materials.
We have no obligation to indemni ou for any expenses or damages you incur as a result of any such

proceeding or litigation. There are no infringements known to us at this time.

ITEM 15 OBLIGATION TO PARTICIPATE IN THE ACTUAL OPERATION OF THE
ERANCHISE BUSINESS

Owner Participation
You must designate an owner with overall responsibility for the management and operation of your Studio (the

“Managing Owner”). The Managing Owner must: (a) be approved by us; (b) have binding decision-makin

authority on matters involving the Studio; (c) successfully complete all training programs we require; (d

provide consistent and reasonable levels of oversight and supervision over all Studio managers and coaches to
ensure the Studio is operated in accordance with the Franchise Agreement and the Manual; and (e) at all times
hold at least a 20% ownership interest in the franchised business unless we waive this requirement. The
Managing Owner is not required to provide onsite management of your Studio as long as a trained manager is
onsite. Any new Managing Owner you appoint must successfully complete Management Training prior to
managing your Studio.

Except for the requirements imposed on the Managing Owner, we do not require that your owners personally
participate in the management or operation of your Business. If you are an entity, each owner (i.e., each person
holding a direct or indirect ownership interest in the entity) and the spouse of each owner must sign the
Franchise Owner Agreement attached to the Franchise Agreement as ATTACHMENT "D". By signing the
Franchise Owner Agreement, the owner (or spouse of the owner) agrees to: (a) comply with all brand protection
covenants (subject to state law), covenants that protect our intellectual property and transfer restrictions set forth

in the Franchise Agreement; and (b) guarantee the franchisee’s financial obligations.
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Managers

You may hire Studio managers to assist the Managing Owner with (or assume responsibility for) onsite
management of the Studio. Any person vou hire as a manager must: (a) successfully complete all training
programs we require; and (b) sign a Confidentiality Agreement. At all times during normal business hours,
either the Managing Owner or a trained manager must be present at the Studio to provide onsite management
and supervision. The Managing Owner remains responsible for the manager’s work and must retain a leadership
role. We do not require that your managers own any equity interest in the franchise.

Coaches

You may not allow any person to provide personal training or other services to clients at your Studio other than
a coach who has successfully completed GSC Certification Training and SBB Certification Training. Each
coach you hire must sign a Confidentiality Agreement and satisfy all criteria we establish for coaches.

ITEM 16 RESTRICTIONS ON WHAT THE FRANCHISEE MAY SELL

We must approve all goods and services you sell. You must offer all goods and services we require. You may
not sell any goods or services we have disapproved. At any time, we may change the goods and services you sell
and you must comply with the change. Your Studio may not include any equipment we have not approved. We
may require you to participate in a gift card or customer loyalty program (including utilization of a
“membership” model) in accordance with our policies and procedures.

ITEM 17 RENEWAL, TERMINATION, TRANSFER, AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION

This table lists certain important provisions of the franchise-agreementEranchise Agreement (FA), Area
Development Agreement (ADA) and related agreements. You should read these provisions in the
agreements attached to this Disclosure Document.

THE FRANCHISE RELATIONSHIP
PROVISION SECTIONS IN AGREEMENT SUMMARY
a1 EAlE Term is equal to 10 years.
a.- Length of the [— - - -
franchise term - Term expires on the opening %MW\W@
ADA:Seetion2ADA: 1 |listed in the development schedule for the last Studio you are required to
develop.
If you meet eurall renewal conditions-ferrerewal, you can enter into an
FASeetion4-1-&42FA: |unlimited number of eenseeutive-successor franchise agreements—fer-as
b. - Renewal or 41842 ona—as we continue_to—operate_our_franchisa sy 2 2
::extensmn of the franchises.. Each renewal term will-beis 5 years.
erm
46 ADA No renewal rights.
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THE FRANCHISE RELATIONSHIP

PROVISION

SECTIONS IN AGREEMENT

SUMMARY

c. - Requirements
for you to renew
or extend

You must: not be in default; ret-have-made2-er-more-latepaymentsin
any-3-yearperiodi—give us timely notice; sign edrthen-current form of
franchise agreement—end—related—deemqqen%s—(eg—l;ranehlse—ewner

-, sign a—general release
(subject to state law); pay the-renewal fee; remodel erStudio and upgrade

your-factity-to-comply-with-eur-then-furniture, fixtures and equipment to

FEh-Sestiopd o422
41849 current standards—and-specifications; and maintain—possession—of-your
- facilityunder—yourextend lease- for duration of renewal term. We may

prohibit renewal if (a) you fail to pay amounts owed when due on 2 or
more _occasions in any 1-year period or (b) we discontinue the offer and
sale of franchises in your market (subject to state law). If you renew, you
may be required to sign a contract with materially different terms and
conditions than the original contract.

ABASeetor44-

46 You may not renew or extend the term of the ADA.

d.- Termination by
you

FA:Section22.1FA: 20.1

You can terminate enhyif we default and fail to timely cure-a-material
ot dhe s nosod

ABA:Section-8ADA: Not
Applicable

You can terminate under any grounds permitted by law.

e.- Termination by
us without cause

FA: Section22.4FA: 20.3

We can terminate without cause if you and—we—mutually—agree—to
temna%e—'Fheute#mnaHenef—an—ADA—dueeteQrowd yourdefault—u&net

geed—stan@ngvvntten consent

ADA: Noet-Apphicable-8.2

Not applicable

f.- Termination by
us with cause

223FA: 20.2

We can termlnate |f you default Ihe%e#mmaﬂenef—an—ADﬁrduHe—yew

ABA:Seetion8ADA: 8.1

g.- “Cause”
defined - curable
defaults

223FA: 20.2

You have the following cure periods: (a) 24 hours for health or safety

hazards; (b) 10 days to-eure-any-menetary-defaut—You-havefor financial
defaults; (c) 20 days for loss of a required license or permit; and (d) 30
days te—eurefor any other default (other than defaultsa default described
below under “non curable defaults”) %He#mma&erw#awADAdWe

ABA:Seetion8ADA: 8.1

You have 30 days to cure any default; other than defaultsa default
descrlbed below under “non-curable defaultsl—Any—temeanen—ef—a
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THE FRANCHISE RELATIONSHIP

PROVISION

SECTIONS IN AGREEMENT

SUMMARY

h. “Cause” defined
- non-curable
defaults

FA-Section22.2 = 20.2

The following defaults cannot be cured: insolvency, bankruptcy or
seizure of assets; failure to successfully complete training; failure to find
approved site, secure lease or open in timely manner; inselveney;

bankruptey—or—seizure—of-assets—abandonment—effranchisefatureto
matntain—reguired—license—or—permit—rfature—to—allew—inspeetion:

conviction—of; certain types—oferimes—or—subject—of—certain—criminal
convictions or administrative enforcement actions; faiture-to-comphywith

violation of material law; commission-of-actrefusal to allow inspection;
acts that may adversely affect reputation of System or Marks; health-or
safety-hazards2™ underreporting of Gross Sales by 3% or more; material
misrepresentations; 2*-underreporting-of-any-amount-due-by-at-least-3%;
unauthorized tTransfers; unauthorized use of our intellectual property;
vielatienbreach of brand protection covenant;—breach—of—, legal
compliance representation or Franchise Owner Agreement-by-ewner—or
spouse;; failure to timely notify us of a matter described in 8§15.6;
termination of yeur—lease due to your default; 3 breaches—inor more
default notices in a 12-month period; or termination of any other
agreement between you and—us—(or anyour affiliate) and us (or our
affiliate) due to your default. However-the-terminationTermination of an
ADA due-to-yourdefaultfor breach of the development schedule is not
grounds for termination of any Franchise Agreement that-is-otherwise in
good standing.

ABA:Seetion8ADA: 8.1

Yeu-cannoteureany-defavltrelating-te-the-terminatieno-
a franchise agreement based-endue to your default—Any-termination-of-a
franchise—agreement—is—a—default—under, we may terminate the ADA
allewing-us-to-terminate-without opportunity to cure-peried.

i. -Your obligations
on termination/
non-renewal

FA:Section23-1FA: 21.1

Obligations-include—complete—de-identification;You must: cease use of

intellectual property; remove trade dress and alter premises to eliminate
resemblance to a Studio; return efManualsManual and aH-branded
materials; assignment—ofupon our request, sell EXERBOTICS®
Equipment to Gymbot, us or our designee; assign telephone numbers,
listings and domain names; assignment-efassign client information and
accounts; eanecelation-ofcancel fictitious names; and-payment-ofcomply
with data retention policies; and pay amounts due, including an amount
equal to your Studio’s total outstanding and unredeemed Prepaid

Liabilities (also see “r=” below).

ADA: Not Applicable

The ADA does not impose any speeifiepost-term obligations on you-after

. . FA:Seetion21-1FA: 19.1 |No restriction on our right to assign.
j.—Assignment of -
contract by us ADA: No-restriction-on-ourright-to-assign-
7.1
FA: Section 212 & Includes ownership change or transfer of contract or assets-erewnership
Attachment-Al (definition | 2 g '
k.- “Transfer” by of “TranSfer—)) & 19.2 '
you — definition | ADA: Section11

(definition of “Transfer?))
& 7:27.2
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THE FRANCHISE RELATIONSHIP

PROVISION

SECTIONS IN AGREEMENT

SUMMARY

I. -Our approval of
transfer by you

FA: Scstep2l o o0 2 o
Attachment-Al (definition
of “Permitted Transfer?)),
19.2 &19.3

Leeorbapcondiionsarcmel—mon Mmay bonsertoancwdetormed
entity-owned-by-you-or  in certaininstances, to-an-existing-owner,
Permitted Transfer (defined in Note 2 in Item 6) without eur-approval.
We have-the—right-tomust approve al—other tTransfers but will not

ADA: Seetion11
(definition of “Permitted
Transfer?,), #-27.2 &
7373

unreasonably withhold approval.

m.- Conditions for
our approval of
transfer

FA: Section21.2FA: 19.2

Transferee must: meet our qualifications; successfully complete training
(or eommitarrange to do so); obtain al-required licenses and permits;
agree—in—writing—to—assume al—of—your obligations under any
agreementscontracts relating to the Business; and-sign a-hew-then-current
form of franchise agreement for the-remainder of the-term {or, at our
option, take-assignmentassume your Franchise Agreement; and remodel
Studio and upgrade furniture, fixtures and equipment to current standards

within 1 vear of existing—franchise-agreement)—Transfer or such shorter

period of time we specify.

You must: be in-eompliancecompliant with Franchise Agreement; have

opened the Studio; assign yeur-lease- (if applicable;remodel-thefacility

to-current-standards-{er-get-a-commitmentfrom); pay transfer fee (subject
to state law); pay transferee an amount equal to de-se}—pay-your Studio’s

total outstanding and unredeemed Prepaid Liabilities; subordinate
transferee’s payments owed to you (if any) to transferee’s payments owed
to us-the-transfer-fee; and sign a-general release (subject to state law).

We must notify you that we dowill not intend-te-exercise our right of first
refusal.-You-may-not-transferyourfranchise-rights-prior-to-opening-

7.2

Transferee must: meet our qualifications;; successfully complete training
(or eommitarrange to do so)); and sign a-new-then-current form of area
development agreement for the-remainder of the-term {or, at our option,
take-assignment-ofexistingassume your ADA)--.

You must: be in-eomphancecompliant with al-Franchise Agreements and
ADA;; assign all Franchise Agreements to same purchaser unless we
agree to contraetry (or at—our—eption,—purchaser—must—we instruct
transferee to sign ewr—then—current form of franchise agreement););
comply with transfer provisions unaderin Franchise Agreements;; pay s
the-transfer fee (subject to state law); and sign a-general release (subject
to state law).

We must notify you that we dowill not intend-te-exercise our right of first
refusal.

n.- Our right of
first refusal to
acquire your
business

FA:Section21-5-FA: 19.5

We have-theright-tecan match any benafidearms-length-offer for your

business.

75

We have-theright-tecan match any bena-fide—arms-length-offer for your

area development rights.

0. - Our option to
purchase your
business

FA:-Section23.2 195

We have-the-eptiontemay purchase your Business-at-the-expirationStudio
when your franchise terminates or termination—of—the—Franchise

ADA: Not Applicable

Ag%eementexpl res.

yeu—a%tempt—te—transfewem—nghts%—a—tkwd—pa%p%ehasepThe ADA

does not include a purchase option.
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THE FRANCHISE RELATIONSHIP

PROVISION

SECTIONS IN AGREEMENT

SUMMARY

p. - Your death or

FA:-Section2L.4 194

Within 180 days, franchiseinterest must be assigned by estate to an
assignee in compliance with conditions for other tTransfers. We may
designate manager to operate the BusinessStudio prior to tTransfer.

disabilit
y ADASectionZ4ADA: |Within 180 days, franchiseinterest must be assigned by estate to an
7.4 assignee in compliance with conditions for other {Transfers.
g.- Non- FA-Section15:2-&-15.3 |No involvement in a competing business:—cemphy—with-nen-disclosure
competition FA:14.3 covenants.

covenants during
the term of the

ADA: Not Applicable

The ADA does not impose any noncompetitiveon covenants.

franchise
No involvement for 2 years in a competing business conducted from your
r.-_Non- Studio or anywhere within a 10-mites-of your Business-facitity(including
competition FA-Section-15-2-15.4-& ili

covenants after
the franchise is
terminated or
expires

231FA 143 &21.1

at—mile radius from: (a) your

e o soms et pondios oo
covenants;—cease—use—of—inteHectualpropertyStudio; or (b) any other

Studio that is open or under development at the time your franchise
terminates or expires.

ADA: Not Applicable

The ADA does not impose any noncompetitiveon covenants.

s. - Modification of
the agreement

26.8FA: 24.3 & 24.8

Requires writing signed by both parties (except for—unilateral-changes
towe may unilaterally change Manual or unilateralreduction—ofreduce

scope of restrictive covenants-by—us). Other modifications primarihy—to

ADASection11.6ADA:
12.7

comply with various-statesstate laws.

t—Integration/
merger clause

FA:Section26-8FA: 24.8

Only the terms of the Franchise Agreement and i#sADA (if applicable)
and their attachments are binding (subject to state law). Any
representations or promises made outside the Disclosure Document-ané,
Franchise Agreement and ADA may not be enforceable. Nothing in the
Franchise Agreement, ADA or any related agreements is intended to
disclaim any of the representations we made in this Disclosure
Document. No statement, questionnaire; or acknowledgment signed or
agreed to by a franchisee in connection with the commencement of the
franchise relationship shall have the effect of (ia) waiving any claims
under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the
inducement; or (ih) disclaiming reliance on any statement made by any
franchisor, franchise seller; or other person acting on our behalf-ef-the
franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document
executed in connection with the franchise.

ABASection11t6
12.7
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THE FRANCHISE RELATIONSHIP

SUMMARY
PROVISION SECTIONS IN AGREEMENT

Subject to state law, all disputes must be mediated before litigation,

u.-_ Dispute FA:-Section24FA: 22 except for certain disputes involving our intellectual property or
resc_)lutl_on by compliance with restrictive covenants: or post-term obligations.
arbitration or . - -
mediation ADA: SectionQADA: 10 |SHPICET oSt SHSPHESHUStHe-e atee—ane—n

- berarelteation
EA: Section 24-FA: 22 Subject to applicable-state law, all-mediation and litigation must take
v.— Choice of ' ' place in Montgomery County, Texas.
forum . uhiget to annlicahla ctata low all ma
ADA:Seetion-9ADA: 10 lace in M '
) . _ Subject to applicable—state law, Texas law governs—the—Franchise
FA:Section-26-1FA: 24.1
. o Agreement.
w.— Choice of law -
ABDA-Section11-1 . .
12.1 Subject-to-applicable state-law, Texaslaw governs-the ABA:

ITEM 18 PUBLIC FIGURES
We do not use any public figures to promote our franchise.
ITEM 19 FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REPRESENTATIONS

The FTC’s Franchise Rule permits a franchisor to disclose information about the actual or potential financial
performance of its franchised and/or franchisor-owned outlets, and/or affiliate-owned outlets, if there is a
reasonable basis for the information, and if the information is included in the Franchise Disclosure Document.-
Financial performance information that differs from that included in Item 19 may be given only if- (1) a
franchisor provides the actual records of an existing outlet you are considering buying; or (2) a franchisor
supplements the information provided in this Item 19, for example, by providing information about performance
at a particular location or under particular circumstances.

As-of December-31.-Defined Terms

For purposes of this FPR, the following terms have the meanings given to them below.

“Company-Owned Studio” means any Studio that is owned by: (a) us; (b) any affiliate of ours; or (c) any
person listed in Item 2 of this Disclosure Document if that person, or any other person listed in Item 2 of
this Disclosure Document, is involved with managing the Studio.

“Excluded Expenses” means all expenses that are 2023,—we—had—195—franchised—Exercise—Coach—Businesses
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- : - :
Selected-Expenses- 2023 2023
Monthly-Rent
Low $1,500- $1.350-
Average- §22ED €200
(#-and-Y%-Attaining) 24-0f 42(57%) 20-0f 35(57%)
(#-and-Y%-Attaining) 21 of 42(50%) 18 0f 35(51%)
. .
Low- $342 $300-
(#and-Y6-Attaining)- 23 6f 42(55%)- 20-0f 35-(57%)-
: - . ! $21989
{#and-Y%-Attaining)- 210f42(50%)- 18-6f 35-(51%)-
\y Utities. |
Low- $239 $30-
High- $860- $800-
Average- $486- $321
(rand-06-Altaining)- 22 6f 42(529%6) 22 6f 35(63%)-
Median- - $476 $300
(#-and-%-Attaining)- 21 of 42(50%)- 19 of 35(54%)-
Menthly-Payrol-

Low $1475- $3-000-
Average- $9-614 $9-882
(#-and-%-Attaining)- 23 0f 42(55%) 16-0f 35(46%)
(#-and-%-Attaining)- 21 of 42(50%)- 18-0f 35(51%)

Notesto-Table 2:-
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e salary, draw or other compensation for the owner of each studio;—

e meals and expenses incurred by the owner relating while promoting the studio—
e automobile/vehicle expenses;—

e certain taxes, including state-specific payroll and property taxes;—

o fees that might be charged by a third-party provider for payroll processing:—

e bank service fees;—

o fees for your water filtration lease, which we estimate to be $720 per year based on the national rate
we negotiated with our required vendor;—

e general supplies, such as cleaning supplies and office consumables;—
o professional fees—

e costs for repairs and maintenance;—

e phone expenses

o miscellaneous costs such as travel expenses and/or uniform expenses;—
e royalty and credit card fees, both of which are based on gross revenue;-

e insurance premiums, which are estimated to be approximately $3,800 per year if you purchase only
our minimum required insurance policies;-e+

o software and technology fees (including those paid to us or Gymbot and those paid to third parties)

“FPR” means the financial performance representation set forth in Item 19 of this Disclosure Document.

“Franchised Studio” means any Studio that is owned by a franchisee.

“Gross Sales” means all gross sums collected or invoiced from goods and services sold by the Studio
(including memberships) or that otherwise relate to the Studio (e.g., advertising revenue, sponsorship fees
or business interruption insurance proceeds). Gross Sales excludes: (a) sales or use taxes; (b) revenue from
the sale of furniture, fixtures and equipment in the ordinary course; and (c) client refunds. Gross Sales also
excludes the retail value of: (a) comped sessions provided to Studio owners and employees (no_monthly
cap); and (b) up to 10 comped sessions per month (the “Monthly Allowance™) provided to friends or family
of Studio owners or employees. Gross Sales includes the full retail value of any free or discounted goods or
services provided to friends or family of Studio owners or employees in excess of the Monthly Allowance,
unless the same pricing is available to the general public as part of an approved promotional program in
effect at the time.

“Marketing” includes expenses for: social media and digital marketing; magazines, periodicals and TV
advertisements; direct mail; networking events; and miscellaneous promotion.
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“Measuring Year” means the period of time beginning January 1, 2024 and ending December 31, 2024.

“Non-Retail Studio” means a Reporting Studio located in a commercial property used for purposes other
than selling goods or services directly to consumers (e.q., professional buildings, offices, industrial space).

‘Payroll” includes employee payroll and payroll taxes and processing fees, but excludes owner’s wages.
“Qualifying Studio” means any Franchised Studio that was open and operating the entire Measuring Year.
«—“Rent” includes base rent plus any associated property taxes, property insurance premiums and

el $6- 344

“Reporting Studio” means any Qualifying Studio that also responded to our annual expense survey from
which we obtained the expense data used to prepare the Select Operating Expenses FPR in Table 2 below.

‘Retail Studio” means any Reporting Studio located in a commercial property designed and used for retail
businesses, where goods and services are sold directly to the public (e.g., shopping centers, malls, mixed-

use buildings with one or more large anchor tenants that draw consumer foot traffic).

“Select Operating Expenses” means and includes Marketing, Payroll, Rent and Utilities, but does not
include any Excluded Expenses.

‘Utilities” includes expenses for electricity, water, gas and internet service.
System Statistics

For purposes of this FPR, each Studio may be referred to as an “outlet.” As of December 31, 2024 (the last day
of the Measuring Year) there were: (a) 211 Franchised Studios in operation, 182 of which are Qualifying

Studios; and (b) 4 Company-Owned Studios in operation, none of which are Qualifying Studios. This FPR onl
includes data from Franchised Studios. The table below summarizes the outlet statistics and the number of

Qualifying Studios:

Eranchised 191 28 8 211 182 105
Company-Owned 4 0 0 4 0 0
Total 195 28 8 215 182 105

We have excluded all 4 Company-Owned Studios from this FPR. We have excluded the following Franchised
Studios from this FPR:

o 28 Franchised Studios that opened after January 1, 2024
e 8 Franchised Studios that permanently closed during the Measuring Year
e 1 Franchised Studio that temporarily closed during the Measuring Year

Historically, THE EXERCISE COACH® core service offering focused on strength and conditioning. Our

company-owned Studios introduced stretching, balance and brain services in 2024 as part of a successful pilot
rogram. Beqginning in 2025, all Studios are required to offer these new services (in addition to strength and

conditioning). None of the Qualifying Studios offered stretching, balance or brain services in 2024. There are no
other material differences between the operations of the Qualifying Studios and the franchised business offered
under this Disclosure Document.
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Subsets

This Gross Sales FPR in Table 1 presents Gross Sales data for all 182 Qualifying Studios. We have separatel

broken down the data by Quartiles based on performance. The table below lists these subsets:

Quartile 1 - top 25%
Quartile 2 - mid-top 25%
Quartile 3 - mid-bottom 25%
Quartile 4 - bottom 25%

This Select Operating Expenses FPR in Table 2 presents Select Operating Expenses for all 105 Reporting

Studios. We have separately broken down this data between Retail Studios and Non-Retail Studios, since the
location of the Studio may impact the Selection Operating Expenses associated with the Studio (the location of

the Studio does not materially impact Gross Sales). The table below lists these subsets:

Retail Studios
Non-Retail Studios

o1 o |l o
& 115 |I& [[&

© |l
(==

r les FPR — Table 1

The following FPR presents historical Gross Sales data achieved by the 182 Qualifying Studios. The data is
broken down into subsets. The data in each subset includes the highest, lowest, median and average Gross Sales
figures as well as the number and percentage of Studios in the subset that attained or surpassed the stated
average Gross Sales figure.

(182 ?leios) $559,986 $68,998 $279,023 $291,424 83 of 182 (46%)
(Z(%idl?o; $559,986 $354,436 $418,950 $430,479 22 of 45 (49%)
(ﬁﬁ%} $349.954 $281,196 $313,688 $313,567 23 of 46 (50%)
(z(%:?o; $276.852 $219,256 $236,176 $244,350 21 of 46 (46%)
(f%m) $216.295 $68.998 $183,966 $176,066 25 of 45 (56%)

| rating Expenses FPR - Table 2

The following FPR presents historical Select Operating Expenses achieved by the 105 Reporting Studios. The
data is broken down into subsets. The data in each subset includes the highest, lowest, median and average
Select Operating Expenses as well as the number and percentage of Studios in the subset that attained or
surpassed the stated average expense figure.
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2024 Financial Performance Representation — Select Operating Expenses

R % i Expense Metric Highest Lowest Median Average l\'lAtJmEGX!&VPeX\:/er;taue
Marketing $17,875 $0 $3,098 $3,234 46 of 105 (44%)
All Payroll $23,000 $0 $9,725 $9,990 57 of 105 (54%)
(105 Studios) Rent $7.158 $1,350 $2,952 $3,153 44 of 105 (42%)
Utilities $3,071 $0 $389 $427 41 of 105 (39%)
Marketing $17,875 $0 $3,000 $3,013 32 of 66 (48%)
Retail Payroll $22,000 1,160 $10,090 10426 31 of 66 (47%)
(66 Studios) Rent $7,158 $1,411 $3,171 $3,311 30 of 66 (45%)
Utilities $973 $120 $400 $443 28 of 66 (42%)
Marketing 8,298 $0 3,097 3,420 17 of 39 (44%)
Non-Retail Payroll $23,000 $0 $10,300 $10,746 17 of 39 (44%)
(39 Studios) Rent $5,520 1,448 $2,790 $2,998 16 of 39 (41%)
Utilities 2,300 $0 $320 $395 14 of 39 (36%)

Notes to All Tables:

1. The-financialperformance—representations—deSource of Data: We obtained Gross Sales data from our

business intelligence software that integrates directly with our required POS system. We obtained Select
Operating Expenses Sales data from our annual expense survey that was completed by the Reporting
Studios and submitted to us.

4.2. Certain Expenses Excluded: This FPR does not reflect all the costs or expenses that must be deducted from
the gross revenue or gross sales figures to obtain your net income or profit. —You should conduct an
independent investigation of the costs and expenses you will incur in operating your franchised business.
Franchisees or former franchisees, listed in the Disclosure Document, may be one source of this
information.

2:3. Historical Data: The expense—information-disclosed—in-this-FPR is—based-enreflects the historical results
fromachieved by the Exercise-Coach®personaktraining-studiosQualifying Studios described above.—

* % *

Some Exercise-Coach-BusinessesStudios have earned this amount.- Your individual results may differ.-
There is no assurance you will earn as much.

Written substantiation for the financial performance representation will be made available to the prospective
franchisee upon reasonable request.—

Other than the preceding financial performance representation, we do not make any financial performance
representations. We also do not authorize our employees or representatives to make any such representations
either orally or in writing. If you are purchasing an existing outlet, however, we may provide you with the actual
records of that outlet. If you receive any other financial performance information or projections of your future
income, you should report it to the franchisor’s management by contacting Mr. Brian Cygan, President/CEO,
Exercise Coach USA, LLC, 531 Telser Rd., Lake Zurich, H=lllinois 60084, phone: (847) 847-7563, the Federal
Trade Commission, and the appropriate state regulatory agencies.—
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ITEM 20 OUTLETS AND FRANCHISEE INFORMATION

TABLE 1 - SYSTEM-WIDE OUTLET SUMMARY FOR YEARS 20212 TO 2023/

Outlet Type Year OUt:;t iﬁet ?eeaftart Out;itfhzt\t(ingnd Net Change
20212 95128 132166 +3738
Franchised 20223 132166 1791 +3925
20234 1791 195211 +2420
20212 26 24 0-2
Company-Owned 20223 24 04 -20
20234 04 04 0
20212 97134 134170 +3736
Total Outlets 20223 134170 174195 +3725
20234 174195 2195 +2420

TABLE 2 - TRANSFERS OF OUTLETS FROM FRANCHISEES TO NEW OWNERS (OTHER THAN THE FRANCHISOR)
FOR YEARS 2021 1020232022 10 2024

State Year Number of Transfers

Arizona 2021 3

Arkansas 2022 0

2023

O
—

Adleaneas 20214

California 2022

2023

2024

20212

2022

Florida 2023

2024

20212

2022

Georgia 2023

2024

20212

2022

Ilinois 2023

2024

20212

2022

Maine 2023

2024

20212

2022

Massachusetts 2023

o|lr|lojlo|o|r oo |nv|lo|lolo| v olo|iv|k k| Rlw|Blo|o|

2024
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TABLE 2 - TRANSFERS OF OUTLETS FROM FRANCHISEES TO NEW OWNERS (OTHER THAN THE FRANCHISOR)

FOR YEARS 2021 TO 202372022 10 2024

State

Year

Number of Transfers

Michigan

20212

2022

2023

2024

Missouri

20212

2022

2023

2024

New Jersey

20212

2023

2024

North Carolina

2022

2023

2024

Ohio

2022

2023

2024

South Carolina

20212

2022

2023

2024

Tennessee

20212

2022

2023

2024

Texas

20212

2022

2023

:

20234

_|
o
=+
=5

2022

w| B olo|B ook v|Nv|olov|o ok |Blolo|-|olo|s|olo|k-|o |k

2023

[N
a1

2024

[
w

TABLE 3 - STATUS OF FRANCHISED OUTLETS FOR YEARS 2021 TO 20234

State

Year

Outlets at
Start of
Year

Outlets
Opened

..
asTermin-
ations

Non-
Renewals

Reacquired

by
Franchisor

Ceased
Operations
- Other
Reasons

Outlets at
End of
Year

Alabama

20212

1

0

1

20223

01

0
0

0

12

20234

12

01

0

2
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TABLE 3 - STATUS OF FRANCHISED OUTLETS FOR YEARS 2021 TO 20234

L . Ceased
State Year Ostgl?ttso?t 8;;:?:; nsTgrmin- Re,:llg\?vgls React?; I red 0?%‘ ?;Lorns Oéggtg fat
Year ations Franchisor Reasons Year
20242 5 02 0 0 0 0 57
Arizona 20223 57 21 0 0 0 0 8
20234 8 10 0 0 0 0 8
Arkansas 20212 01 1 0 0 0 0 12
2022 1 | 1 | 0 90 0 | 90 | 2
2023 2 0 0 0 0 0 2
2024 2 0 0 0 0 0 2
California 20242 o7 6 0 0 0 0 13
2022 7 | 6 | 0 90 0 | 90 | 13
2023 13 67 1 0 0 0 1819
2024 19 4 1 0 0 0 22
Colorado 20242 34 1 0 0 0 0 45
2022 4 | 1 | 0 90 90 | 90 | 5
2023 5 2 0 0 0 0 7
2024 7 1 0 0 0 0 8
20212 2 0 0 0 0 0 2
Connecticut 20223 2 0 0 0 0 0 2
2024 2 0 1 0 0 0 1
2022 0 0 0 0] 0 0] 0
Delaware 2023 20 0 0 0 0 0 20
2024 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
[élc;sltlzlrﬁtb ?; 20247 0 01 0 0 0 0 ol
2022 9 | 1 | 0 9 0 | 9 | 1
2023 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
2024 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
Florida 20242 1013 3 61 0 0 0 1315
2022 13 | 3 | 1 0 0 | 0 | 15
2023 15 4 0 0 0 0 19
2024 19 3 0 0 0 0 22
Georgia 20212 34 2 10 0 0 0 46
2022 4 | 2 | 0 0 0 | 0 | 6
2023 6 1 0 0 0 0 7
2024 1 0 0 0 0 0 7
Idaho 20212 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
2022 1 | 0 | 0 0 0 | 0 | 1
2023 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
2024 1 1 1 0 0 0 1
20212 810 24 0 0 0 0 1014
llinois 20223 1014 40 0 0 0 0 14
20234 14 0 0 0 0 0 14
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TABLE 3 - STATUS OF FRANCHISED OUTLETS FOR YEARS 2021 TO 20234

. . Ceased
State Year Ostgl?ttso?t (())sglr?et; nsTe_rmin- Rel;llg\?vgls React?; I red 0?%‘ ?r::aorns Oéggtz fat
Year ations Franchisor Reasons Year

Indiana 20212 45 10 0 0 0 0 5
2022 5 | 9 | 0 90 0 | 90 | 5 |

2023 5 0 0 0 0 0 5

lowa 20214 15 01 0 0 0 0 16

lowa 2022 1 1 0 0 0 0 2

2023 2 0 0 0 0 0 2

Kansas 20214 2 0 0 0 0 0 2

Kansas 2022 2 1 0 0 0 0 3

2023 3 0 0 0 0 0 3

2024 3 0 0 0 0 0 3

Kentucky 20212 01 10 0 0 0 0 1
2022 1 | 9 | 0 90 0 | 90 | 1 |

2023 1 0 0 0 0 0 1

2024 1 1 0 0 0 0 2

Louisiana 20212 0 01 0 0 0 0 0l
2022 9 | 1 | 0 90 0 | 90 | 1 |

2023 1 0 0 0 0 0 1

2024 1 0 0 0 0 0 1

Maine 20242 0 01 0 0 0 0 01
2022 9 | 1 | 0 90 0 | 90 | 1 |

2023 1 0 0 0 0 0 1

2024 1 0 0 0 0 0 1

Massachusetts 20242 34 1 0 0 0 0 45
2022 4 | 1 | 0 0 0 | 90 | 5 |

2023 0 1 0 0 0 4

2024 4 0 1 0 0 0 3

Michigan 20212 46 20 0 0 0 0 6
2022 6 | 9 | 0 9 0 | 9 | 6 |

2023 6 0 0 0 0 0 6

2024 6 1 0 0 0 0 7

Minnesota 202412 23 1 0 0 0 0 34
2022 3 | 1 | 0 9 0 | 9 | 4 |

2023 1 0 0 0 0 5

2024 5 1 0 0 0 0 6

Missouri 202412 56 12 0 0 0 0 68
2022 6 | 2 | 0 9 0 | 9 | 8 |

2023 0 0 0 0 0 8

2024 8 1 1 0 0 0 8

Nebraska 20242 12 1 0 0 0 0 23
2022 2 1 E] 0 B! 0 HEEE
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TABLE 3 - STATUS OF FRANCHISED OUTLETS FOR YEARS 2021 TO 20234

L . Ceased
State Year OSLg?ttso?t 8;;:?:; nsTgrmin- Re,:llg\?vgls React?; fred 0?%’ ?;Lorns Oéggtzfat
Year ations Franchisor Reasons Year
2023 0 0 0 0 0
2024 0 0 0 0 0
Nevada 20212 0 0 0 0 0 0
2022 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2023 0 2 0 0 0 0 2
2024 2 0 0 0 0 0 2
New Jersey 20212 56 1 0 0 0 0 67
2022 6 I 0 0 0 | 0 7
2023 7 0 0 0 0 0 7
2024 0 0] 0 0]
New Mexico 20212 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2022 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2023 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
2024 1 1 0 0 0 0 2
Cl;lrc())rltit;]a 20242 46 21 0 0 0 0 67
2022 6 | 1 | 0 9 0 | 9 7
2023 7 1 0 0 0 0 8
Ohio 20214 58 30 0 0 0 0 8
Ohio 2022 8 1 0 0 0 0 9
2023 9 0 0 0 0 0 9
2024 9 2 1 0 0 0 10
Oklahoma 20242 2 0 0 0 0 0 2
2022 2 | 0 | 0 0 0 | 0 2
2023 2 0 0 0 0 0 2
2024 2 0 0 0 0 0 2
Oregon 20212 21 0 10 0 0 0 1
2022 1 | 0 | 0 0 0 | 0 1
2023 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
2024 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
Pennsylvania 20212 35 21 0 0 0 0 56
2022 5 | 1 | 0 0 0 | 0 6
2023 0 0 0 0 8
2024 8 0 0 0 0 0 8
20212 14 30 0 0 0 0 4
o 20223 0 0 0 0 4
20234 0 0 0 0 4
Tennessee 20242 34 12 0 0 0 0 46
2022 4 | 2 | 0 0 0 | 0 6
2023 6 1 0 0 0 0 7
2024 1 1 0 0 0 0 8
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TABLE 3 - STATUS OF FRANCHISED OUTLETS FOR YEARS 2021 TO 20234

R . Ceased
State Year Ostgl?ttso?t 8;;:?:3 nsTe_rmin- Rel;llg\?v-als React?; I red 0?%‘ ?;Lorns Oéggtz fat
Year ations Franchisor Reasons Year
Texas 20212 1110 34 0 0 0 0 14
2022 | 14 | 5 | 0 | 90 0 | 90 | 19
2023 1914 2 1 0 0 0 2015
Yiah 20214 115 62 61 0 0 0 116
Utah 2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
2023 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
2024 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
Virginia 20212 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Lo 0 0 0 0 6 0 6
2023 0 0 0 0 2
2024 2 0 0 0 7
Wisconsin 20242 3 0 0 0 0 0 3
2022 | 3 | 9 | 0 | 0 0 | 0 | 3
2023 3 0 0 0 0 0 3
2024 3 0 0 0 0 0 3
Totals 20242 95128 39 21 0 0 0 132166
2022 | 132 | 40 ] 1 | 0 0 | 0 | 11
2023 171166 2428 3 0 0 0 1951
2024 191 28 8 0 0 0 211

TABLE 4 - STATUS OF COMPANY-OWNED OUTLETS FOR YEARS 2022 1O 2024

State Year Outlets at Outlets Reg(lzjcgllfitrsed Outlets Outlets Sgld Outlets at
Start of Year Opened From Closed to Franchisee | End of Year
Franchisee
20212 2% 0 0 0 82 2%0
llinois 20223 20 0 0 0 2*%0 0
20234 0 0 0 0 0 0
20212 24 0 0 0 0 24
Tetexals 2023 4 0 0 0 0 4
2024 4 0 0 0 0 4
Totals 2022 26 0 0 0 2% 64
2023 04 0 0 0 0 04
2024 4 0 0 0 0 4
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TABLE 5 - PROJECTED OPENINGS AS OF DECEMBER 31, 20234

Franchise Agreements Projected New Franchised ;
State Signed But gutlet Not Ou!clets in the Next Fiscal PS?SZEC:”N&V: (N:gzi?:a:ggalo\x r;ed
Opened Year
Lloborma 1 1 0
Arizona 0 2 0
California 52 123 0
Ceeonde 1 5 8
Florida 43 60 0
Georgia 01 10 0
ldahe 1 1 0
Indiana 1 1 0
Kansas 1 10 0
optegles 1 1 8
AOSShERIECS 1 2 8
Miehiean 1 1 8
Minnesota 10 21 0
Missouri 1 10 0
Nevada 0 21 0
New JerseyMexico 10 41 0
North Carolina 01 10 0
Ohie 1 3 0
Pennsylvania 0 31 0
South Dakota 1 0 0
Tennessee 10 31 0
Texas 13 40 0
Virginia 41 42 0
FOFALSTotals 2414 6110 0
Notes:

1. Table 4: The company-owned Studios listed in Texas are owned by our COO, Brad Bundy.

en “_A list of all current Exercise-Coach®franchisees is attached to this
Dlsclosure Document as JE—)éI=IJrI'a’»FI'J|1EXHIBIT "G" (Part A), including their names and the addresses and
telephone numbers of their outlets as of December 31, 20234. In addition, EXHEHBIFFEXHIBIT "G" (Part B)
lists the name, city and state, and the current business telephone number (or, if unknown, the last known home
telephone number) of every franchisee who had an outlet terminated, canceled, not renewed, or otherwise
voluntarily or involuntarily ceased to do business under the franchise agreement during our most recently
completed fiscal year or who has not communicated with us within 10 weeks of the issuance date of this
Disclosure Document. If you buy this franchise, your contact information may be disclosed to other buyers
when you leave the franchise system.

In the last 3 fiscal years, some franchisees have signed confidentiality agreements with us. In some instances,
current and former franchisees sign provisions restricting their ability to speak openly about their experience
with us. You may wish to speak with current and former franchisees, but be aware that not all such franchisees
will be able to communicate with you.

thapwe%aveemated—sp%seredrepeﬁdepseere#éH)We have endorsed the followmg franchlsee assouatlon
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The Exercise Coach Collaboration Committee
Contact: Ryan Hahn
Email: Ryan.Hahn@exercisecoach-usa.com

There are no independent franchisee organizations that have asked to be included in this Disclosure Document.
ITEM 21 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our fiscal year ends on December 31°'. Audited financial statements of Exercise Coach USA, LLC for the fiscal
years ended December 31, 202&4 December 31 20223 and December 31, 20232 are attached to thrs Drsclosure
Document as £ -
preﬁt—and—less—statement—frem—.laneary—EXHlBlT "H" 1—2@%4—threugh—Mareh%1—2@%4—are—attaehed—te—thrs
Disclosure-Documentas EXHIBIT "G -Ourfiscal-yearendis-December-31st.

ITEM 22 CONTRACTS

Attached to this Disclosure Document (or the Franchise Agreement attached to this Disclosure Document) are
copies of the following franchise and other contracts or agreements proposed for use or in use in this state:

Exhibits to Disclosure Document

EXHIBHC“EXHIBIT "C"___ Franchise Agreement
EXHIBIT "D" Area Development Agreement

E)QHJrBH'—I—EXHIBIT "E" State Addenda
EXHIBIT "E"-2  General Release
E)QHJrB»I—'I'—K—EXHIBIT "E" 3 Partrcrpatlon Agreement

EXHIBIT "E"-4 Franchrse Resale Aqreement

Attachments to Franchise Agreement

ATTFACHMENT"C"ATTACHMENT "B" Form of Site Approval Notice

AFFACHMENT"B"ATTACHMENT "C" Lease Addendum

ATFACHMENT"E“ATTACHMENT "D" Franchise Owner Agreement

AFFACHMENT"FATTACHMENT "E" ACH Authorization Form
ATTACHMENT "G Multi-S Addend

Attachments to-ADA

: . ltig dend
ATTACHMENT "F"__ Confidentiality Agreement

ITEM 23 RECEIPT

EXHIBIF"N“EXHIBIT "J" to this Disclosure Document are detachable receipts. You are to sign both, keep one
copy and return the other copy to us.
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EXHIBIT "A"
10O DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
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CALIFORNIA

Commissioner of Financial Protection

& Innovation

Department of Financial Protection &
Innovation

320 West 4" Street, #750

Los Angeles, CA 90013

(213) 576-7500
1-866-275-2677

HAWAII

Commissioner of Securities of the
State of Hawalii

335 Merchant Street, Room 203
Honolulu, Hawaii 96813

(808) 586-2722

Agents for Service of Process:
Commissioner of Securities of the

State of Hawaii

Department of Commerce and
Consumer Affairs

Business Registration Division
335 Merchant Street, Room 203
Honolulu, Hawaii 96813

(808) 586-2722

ILLINOIS

[llinois Attorney General

Chief, Franchise Division
500 South Second Street

Springfield, IL 62706
(217) 782-4465

INDIANA

Secretary of State

Securities Division

Room E-018

302 West Washington Street
Indianapolis, IN 46204
(317) 232-6681

MARYLAND

Office of the Attorney General
Securities Division

200 St. Paul Place

Baltimore, Maryland 21202
(410) 576-6360

Agent for Service of Process:
Maryland Securities Commissioner
200 St. Paul Place

Baltimore, Maryland 21202-2020

MICHIGAN

Franchise Section

Consumer Protection Division
525 W. Ottawa Street, G. Mennen

Williams Building, 1% Floor
Lansing, MI 48913
(517) 335-7567

MINNESOTA

Commissioner of Commerce
Director of Registration

85 Seventh Place East, #280

St. Paul, Minnesota 55101-3165

(651) 539-1500

NEW YORK

NYS Department of Law
Investor Protection Bureau

28 Liberty Street, 21% Floor
New York, NY 10005

Phone: (212) 416-8222

Agents for Service of Process:
Secretary of State

99 Washington Avenue
Albany, NY 12231

NORTH DAKOTA

North Dakota Securities Department

State Capitol, 5" Floor, Dept 414 600
East Boulevard Avenue

Bismarck, North Dakota 58505
(701) 328-4712

RHODE ISLAND

Department of Franchise Regulation
1511 Pontiac Avenue, John O. Pastore

Complex, Bldg 69-1
Cranston, Rhode Island 02920

(401) 462-9527
SOUTH DAKOTA

Department of Labor and Regulation
Division of Insurance Securities

Regulation
124 S Euclid, 2" Floor
Pierre, South Dakota 57501

(605) 773-3563

VIRGINIA

State Corporation Commission
Division of Securities and Retail

Franchising

1300 East Main Street, 9" Floor
Richmond, Virginia 23219
(804) 371-9051

Agents for Service of Process:

Clerk of the State Corporation
Commission

1300 East Main Street, 1% Floor
Richmond, Virginia 23219

WASHINGTON

Department of Financial Institutions
Securities Division

150 Israel Road SW

Tumwater, WA 98501

(360) 902-8760

Mailing Address:

Department of Financial Institutions
Securities Division

PO BOX 41200
Olympia, WA 98504-1200

Wi NSIN

Department of Financial Institutions
Division of Securities

201 W Washington Avenue, Suite
500, Madison, WI 53703
(608) 261-9555
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EXHIBIT "B"
TO DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

FRANCHISOR’S AGENT FOR SERVICE OF PROCESS

GLENN A. BROWNE
300 Saunders Road, Suite 100
Riverwoods, Illinois 60015

In states listed in EXHIBIAEXHIBIT "A", the additional agent
_for Service of Process is listed in EXHIBIH—AEXHIBIT "A".
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EXHIBIT "C"
TO DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

[See Attached]
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FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

FRANCHISEE:
DATE:
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ATFACHMENT"B"ATTACHMENT "A" Deal Terms

ATTFACHMENT"C"ATTACHMENT "B" Form of Site Approval Notice

ATTACHMENT"D"ATTACHMENT "C" Lease Addendum

AFFACHMENTE"ATTACHMENT "D" Franchise Owner Agreement
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ATTACHMENT "F" Confidentiality Agreement




THE EXERCISE COACH® FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

This The Exercise Coach® Franchise Agreement (this “Agreement”) is entered into as of ,202__

(the “Effective Date”) between Exercise Coach USA, LLC, an Illinois limited liability company (“we” or “us”)
and ,a(n) (“you™).
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Capitalized terms not defined above have the meanings given to them below:

“Account” means the checking account you designate from which we deduct fees and other amounts owed
to us and our affiliates in accordance with §13.5.

“ACH Agreement” means the ACH Authorization Agreement attached as ATTACHMENT "E", which
authorizes us to electronically debit your Account for amounts owed to us and our affiliates.

“Acquired Assets” means any assets associated with your Studio that we elect to purchase upon termination
or expiration of this Agreement, as further described in §21.2(a).
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“Alternative Channels of Distribution” means any channel of distribution other than: (a) retail sales made to
eustomersclients while present at an-Exercise-Coach®a Studio; or (b) offering fitness or exercise programs
or_conducting personal training studie,—ineludingfrom any location outside a Studio. Examples of
Alternative Channels of Distribution include, but are not limited to: (ia) sales through direct marketing,
such as over the Internet or through catalogs or telemarketing; (ib) sales through retail stores that do not
operate under the Marks, such as sporting goods, exercise steres-or department stores; (iic) sales made at
wholesale; and (iv)-thed) provision of services through an App or ether-mobile device.

“CompetitiveBusiness“Anti-Terrorism Law” means Executive Order 13224 issued by the President of the

United States of America (or any successor Order), the Uniting and Strengthening America by Providing
Appropriate Tools Required to Intercept and Obstruct Terrorism Act (USA PATRIOT Act) of 2001 (or any
successor legislation) and all other present and future federal, state and local Laws, ordinances, regulations,
policies, lists, orders and any other requirements of any Governmental Authority addressing or in any way
relating to terrorist acts and acts of war.

“Appraised Value” means ary-the fair market value of the Acquired Assets as determined by independent
appraisers in accordance with §21.2(b).

“Business” means the franchised business competitive-with-us-{you operate pursuant to this Agreement.
“Business Data” means, collectively or competitiveindividually, Client Data and Operational Data.

“Certification Training” refers to any or all of the following: (a) GSC Certification Training; (b) SBB
Certification Training; or (c) any other certification training program we implement for Coaches.

“Claim” means any action, allegation, assessment, claim, demand, litigation, proceeding or regulatory
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procedure, investigation or inquiry.

“Client Data” means and includes all data and information pertaining to a client including name, address,
contact information, date of birth, purchase history and any other information collected in connection with

any-of ouraffiliates-orourfranchisees):a loyalty or membership program or for any other purpose.

“Coach” means any Person who provides personal training services to clients at your Studio.

“Competing Business” means a business meeting any of the following criteria:

(@) _any business that: (i) that-specializes in efferingthe offer and sale of personal fitness training services
that wusesintegrate the use of technology to enhance client results; and (ii) for—which—the
majeritygenerates, or is reasonably likely to generate, at least 50% of the-eustemersits total revenue

from sales made to clients who are 50 years of age or older-;

(b) any business that solicits, offers or sells franchises or licenses for a business that meets the criteria in
clause (a) of this definition; and/or

(c) any business that services, trains, supports, consults with, advises or otherwise assists any Person with
respect to the development, management and/or operation of a business that meets the criteria in
clause (a) of this definition.

A Competing Business does not include any THE EXERCISE COACH® studio operated pursuant to a
valid franchise agreement or license agreement with us or our affiliate.

“Confidential Information” means and includes: (a) Know-How:; (b) Business Data; (c) information in the
Manual or comprising the System; (d) terms of Definitive Agreements and any amendments thereto; and
(e) all other concepts, ideas, trade secrets, financial information, marketing strategies, expansion strategies,
studies, supplier information, client information, franchisee information, investor information, flow charts,
inventions, mask works, improvements, discoveries, standards, specifications, formulae, recipes, designs,
sketches, drawings, policies, processes, procedures, methodologies and techniques, together with analyses,
compilations, studies or other documents that are: (i) designated as confidential; (ii) known by you to be
considered confidential by us; and/or (iii) reasonably to be considered confidential due to their nature.
Confidential Information does not include information that: (a) is now, or subsequently becomes, generally
available to the public (except as a result of a breach of confidentiality obligations by you or your Owners,
employees or other constituents); (b) you can demonstrate was rightfully possessed by you or an Owner,
without obligation of nondisclosure, before we disclosed the information to you or the Owner; (c) is
independently developed by you or an Owner without any use of, or reference to, any Confidential
Information; or (d) is rightfully obtained from a third party who has the right to transfer or disclose the
information to you or an Owner without breaching a confidentiality covenant imposed on such third party.

“Confidentiality Agreement” means the Confidentiality Agreement that must be signed by certain of your
employees pursuant to §14.5, the current form of which is attached as ATTACHMENT "F".

“Copyrighted Materials” means all copyrightable materials for which we or our affiliate secure common
law or registered copyright protection and that we allow franchisees to use, sell or display in connection
with the marketing and/or operation of a Studio.

“Definitive Agreements” means, collectively: (a) this Agreement; (b) the Area Development Agreement
pursuant to which this Agreement is executed (if applicable); (c) any other Franchise Agreement between
you (or your affiliate) and us (or our affiliate) for a Studio or any other franchised concept; and (d) all
ancillary agreements executed in connection with the foregoing, including Franchise Owner Agreements.

“Dispute” means any Claim, dispute or disagreement between the parties, including any matter pertaining
to: (a) the interpretation or enforcement of this Agreement; (b) the offer or sale of the franchise; or (c) the
relationship between the parties.
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“Entity” means a corporation, partnership, limited liability company or other form of association.

“Equipment Package” means the initial set of EXERBOTICS® Equipment and non-proprietary exercise and
health-related equipment that you must purchase from Gymbot prior to the Opening Date, as further
described in §6.2.

“Equity Interest” means a direct or indirect ownership or beneficial interest in the capital stock of,

partnership or membership interest in, or other equity, ownership or beneficial interest in a business or
Entity (including voting rights).

“Excluded Claim” means any Claim that, according to 8§22, is not subject to mandatory mediation.

“EXERBOTICS® Equipment” means the proprietary exercise equipment you purchase from Gymbot that is
currently branded under the name EXERBOTICS®. As used in this Agreement, EXERBOTICS®
Equipment also refers to any new or substitute exercise, health or fitness-related equipment that: (a) is
proprietary to us, Gymbot or any other affiliate of ours; (b) is branded under any trademark, service mark
or logo that we designate, which may be EXERBOTICS® or a different trademark, service mark or logo;
and (c) we require (or permit) Studios to use as an approved component of our System.

“Force Majeure” means acts or circumstances that are beyond a party’s control, including fire, storm,

flood, earthquake, explosion or accident, acts of war or terrorism, rebellion, insurrection, sabotage,
epidemic, failures or delays of transportation and strikes, provided that: (a) the non-performing part

romptly notifies the other party of the Force Majeure event; (b) the non-performing party is without fault

and the delay or failure could not have been prevented by reasonable precautions by the non-performing
party; (c) nothing herein shall excuse or permit any delay or failure to pay fees or other amounts owed on

the applicable due date; (d) insolvency, lack of required funds or financing, currency fluctuations, currenc
devaluations, foreign exchange controls or inflation shall never be deemed Force Majeure; and (e) an

epidemic or pandemic of a contagious illness or disease, or economic or financial changes caused by an
epidemic or pandemic of a contagious illness or disease, shall never be deemed Force Majeure except to the
extent a Governmental Authority mandates closure (or prevents the opening) of the Studio as a result of

such epidemic or pandemic.

“Franchise Owner Agreement” means the Franchise Owner Agreement that must be signed by the Owners
and their spouses pursuant to 89, the current form of which is attached as ATTACHMENT "D".

“Franchisee Entity” means an Entity that: (a) signs this Agreement as the franchisee (if this Agreement is
signed by an Entity); or (b) assumes this Agreement subsequent to its execution by the original Owners.
“General Release” means our eurrentform-of-then-current form of Waiver and Release of Claims you and

your Owners must sign pursuant to 84.2_in connection with a franchise renewal or §19.2 in connection with
a Transfer.

“Government Official” means any: (a) officer or employee of a Governmental Authority; (b) commercial or

similar entity owned or controlled by a Governmental Authority, including state-owned and state-operated
companies or enterprises; (¢) public international organization (e.g., United Nations, World Bank); (d

political party or official thereof; or (e) candidate for political office.

‘Governmental Authority” means any national, provincial, state, county, local, municipal or other
government, or any ministry, department, agency or subdivision thereof, whether administrative or
regulatory, or any other body that exercises similar functions, including a court or taxing authority.

“Grand Opening Marketing Commitment” means the minimum amount of money you must spend during
your Grand Opening Period to promote the opening of your Studio, as further described in §10.3(b).

“Grand Opening Period” means the period of time that: (a) begins not less than 30 days nor more than 90

days prior to your Studio’s projected Opening Date; and (b) ends 90 days after your Studio’s Opening Date.

“Gross Sales” means the total gross sums generated from all goods and services sold from or in connection
with your Studio together with all other revenue derived in connection with your Studio, including

advertising revenue, sponsorship fees and business interruption insurance proceeds. Gross Sales excludes:
a) sales or use taxes you pay to a Governmental Authority; (b) revenue you collect and later refund to a

client in a bona fide refund transaction; and (c) revenue derived from the sale of furniture, fixtures or
equipment in the ordinary course. Gross Sales also excludes the retail value of: (a) comped sessions
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provided to Owners and Studio employees (no monthly cap); and (b) up to 10 comped sessions per month
(the “Monthly Allowance™) provided to friends or family of Owners or Studio employees. In calculating
Gross Sales, you must include the full retail value of any free or discounted goods or services provided to
friends or family of Owners or Studio employees in excess of the Monthly Allowance, unless the same
pricing is available to the general release-of al-claims-against-us-and-ouraffiliates-and-subsidiariesand-our
and-thelr—respeetivepublic as part of an approved promotional program in effect at the time. The Manual
may include policies governing the calculation of Gross Sales relating to: (a) proceeds from the sale of gift
cards, memberships and/or Packages (including treatment of Prepaid Liabilities); and/or (b) gqualifying

purchases and redemptions by members;-efficers—directors—agents-and-employees—in-both-their-corperate
and—uﬂmdaal—eapaemes— under a loyalty or membership program.

“Indemnitied—Party”—or—“GSC Certification Training” means the general strength and conditioning
certification training program we developed in order to educate and train Coaches how to provide general
strength and conditioning personal training services to clients using our proprietary equipment, protocols
and methods.

“Gymbot” means our affiliate, Gymbot, LLC, or any affiliate of ours that is a successor to Gymbot, LLC.

“Improvement” means any idea, addition, modification or improvement to the (a) goods or services offered
or sold at a Studio, (b) method of operation of a Studio, (c) processes, systems, protocols or procedures
utilized by a Studio, (d) marketing, advertising or promotional materials, programs or strategies utilized by
a Studio or (e) trademarks, service marks, logos or other intellectual property utilized by a Studio, whether
developed by you, an Owner, an employee or any other Person.

“Indemnified Parties” means and includes us and each of our past, present and future owners, members,
officers, directors, employees and agents, as well as our parent—companiesparents, subsidiaries and
affiliates, and each of their past, present and future owners, members, officers, directors, employees and
agents.

“Intellectual Property” means, collectively or individually, eur—Marks—Cepyrightsthe Business Data,
Copyrighted Materials, Improvements, Know-how, Marks and System-and-tmprovements—.

“Interim Manager” means a Person we designate to temporarily manage your Studio under the
circumstances described in §8.5.

“Interim Term” is-defiredmeans a month-to-month Term extension under the circumstances described in
Section4-384.3.

“IP Dispute” means any: (a) actual or suspected infringement of the Intellectual Property; (b) challenge to
your use of the Intellectual Property; or (c) claim by any Person, other than us or our affiliate, of any rights
in or to the Intellectual Property.

“Know-how” means at—ef-ourand includes our (and our affiliates’) trade secrets and other proprietary
information relating to the develepmentdesign, construction, development, marketing ane/or operation of
an—ExerciseCoach®business:a Studio including, but not limited to;: architectural plans, drawings and
specifications for a prototype Studio; site selection criteria; methods; and techniques;; standards and
specifications;; policies and procedures—pelicies—client-data;—vendor; supplier information and pricings;
marketing strategies; merchandising strategies; and information comprising the System and-or included in
the Manual.

“Law” means and includes all laws, judgments, decrees, orders, rules, regulations, ordinances, advisory
opinions or official legal interpretations of any Governmental Authority.

“Local Marketing Commitment” means the minimum amount of money you must spend each month to
advertise and market your Studio after your Grand Opening Period expires, as further described in §10.3(c).

“Losses and Expenses” means aHand includes any of the following: compensatory, exemplary; and punitive
damages; fines and penalties; attorneys’ fees; experts’ fees; court costs; Travel Expenses and other costs
associated with investigating and defending against—Claimsa Claim; settlement amounts; judgments;
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compensation-for-damagesdamage to eur-reputation andor goodwill; and all other costs, damages, liabilities
and expenses associated with any of the foregoing losses and expenses or otherwise incurred by an

Indemnified-Party-as-a resultof-a-Claim .

“Management Training” means our management training program pertaining to the development,
management and operation of a Studio in compliance with our System and the Manual.

“Managing Owner” means the Owner that-you designate and we approve who-is-primarih-responsiblewith
primary responsibility for the daty-en-premisesoverall management and supervision of the-your Studio in
accordance with §8.1.

“Manual’” means our Business_Operations Guide and Brand Standards Manual for operation of a Studio.

“Marketing Plans” collectively refers to the grand opening marketing plan and each annual growth plan
and marketing budget you must prepare and submit to us for approval in accordance with §10.3(a).

“Marks” means the-legotypes;-and includes all service marks, and-trademarks-new-er-hereafter-involved-in

-personal-training-studie, trade names and logos that we designate from

the-operation-of-an-Exercise-Coach®
time to time and authorlze Studlos to use, including “THE EXERCISE COACH®Land—Felated—lege,—anel
H ®

y dlstlnctlve trade dress used to identify
eda Studio or the

leusmese@ and assouated quos The termiMarks also mcludes an
an—%eererse—@eaeh® A WREW

aetwe—ewners“Onenlnq Date” means the date your Studlo opens to the public after we authorlze your

Studio to open.

“Operational Data” means and includes all data and information pertaining to the operation of your
Business including employee data, expense data, financial accounting data and Gross Sales data.

“Owner” means a Person who either: (a) directly signs this Agreement as the franchisee, either alone or in
conjunction with one or more other Persons; or (b) directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries
owns an Equity Interest in the Business or Franchisee Entity.

“Participation Agreement” means Gymbot’s designated form of Participation Agreement that must be
signed by you and Gymbot, LLC, which governs your purchase and use of EXERBOTICS® Equipment and
license to use certain proprietary software and technology used to operate the equipment.

“Package” means a package of prepaid sessions or other services that a client redeems on multiple visits.

“PCI-DSS” means the payment card industry data security standard, which is a set of security requirements
established by the following major credit card brands from time to time: American Express, Discover
Financial Services, JCB International, MasterCard Worldwide, and Visa Inc., which standards are set forth
at https://www.pcisecuritystandards.org as of the Effective Date.

(a) between eX|st|nd Owners

(b) by the Owners to a new Franchlsee Entity for which thesuch Owners coIIectlver own and control 100%

of the ewnership-interestsand-voting-pewerEquity Interests; or (c) of less than 20% of the Equity Interests

in the Business or Franchisee Entity; provided, however, that a Permitted Transfer does not include a
Transfer that results in the Managing Owner owning less than 20% of the Equity Interests in the Business
or Franchisee Entity.

“Person” means an individual, Entity, unincorporated organization, joint venture, Governmental Authority,
estate (or executor thereof) or trust (or trustee thereof).

“Post-Term Restricted Period” means, with respect to you, athe two-year period-ef-two-{2)-years after the
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termination, expiration or Transfer of this Agreement; provided, however, that if a court of competent
jurisdiction determines that-the two-year Pest-TFerm-Restricted-Peried-period is too long to be enforceable;
then the—“Post-Term Restricted Period” means;-with—respect-to-you—aperiod-of- the one—{1)--year period

after the termination, expiration or Transfer of this Agreement.

“Post-Term Restricted Period” means, with respect to an Owner, a-period-ofthe two-{2)yrears-year period
after the earlier to occur of: (ia) the termination, expiration or Transfer of this Agreement; or (ib) the

Owner’s—Transfer-of-his—or-her-entire—ownership—interestdate on which the Owner no longer owns any

Equity Interest in the franchiseBusiness or theFranchisee Entity—that—is—thefranchisee—as—applicable;
provided, however, that if a court of competent jurisdiction determines that-the two-year Pest-TFerm

Restricted-Period-period is too long to be enforceable; then the“Post-Term Restricted Period” means;-with

respect-to-an-Owner-a-period-of-: the one{)--year period after the earlier to occur of: (ia) the termination,
expiration or Transfer of this Agreement; or (iib) the Owner’s—TFransfer—of-his—er-her—entire—ownership

interestdate on which the Owner no longer owns any Equity Interest in the franchiseBusiness or

theFranchisee Entltythaterstheiranemsee—aerappl%alele

-“Prepaid Liabilities” means, as of a given point in time, the total amount of outstanding prepaid liabilities
carried by your Studio as a liability for unredeemed gift cards, Packages, memberships or other prepaid
items purchased by clients (provided we allow you to retain the proceeds from these sales).

“Program Participation Rules” means the policies, procedures, fees and other requirements pertaining to
any gift card, loyalty, membership or other system-wide program we implement pursuant to §11.11.

“Prohibited Activities” means and includes any of the following: (a) owning, operating or having any other
interest (e.g., as a director, officer, employee, manager, consultant, creditor, representative, agent or in any
similar _capacity) in a Competing Business, other than owning less than 5% of the Equity Interests in a
Competing Business that is a publicly-traded company; (b) offering or providing consulting services that
refer to or use any of our Know-How or Confidential Information; (c) disparaging or otherwise making
negative comments about us, our affiliate, the System or any Studio (this provision does not prohibit
disclosure of truthful information to Governmental Authorities); (d) diverting or attempting to divert any
potential business or Strategic Relationship opportunity from us or our affiliate; and/or (e) inducing any
Person to transfer their business from a Studio to a competitor.

“Reportable Event” means any event or occurrence described in §15.6 that you must report to us.

“Restricted Territory” means the geographic area within—}-a—10-mieradiusfrom-yourExercise Coach®

facility-{and-including-yourfacility-itselt—and (i) a 10--mile radius from: (a) your Studio (including the
Studro)! and (b) aII other Beererse—@eaeh®—faeﬂ+tres$tud|os that are operatlng or under construction as-ef
when the Post-
Term Restrlcted Perlod begln prowded however that |f a court of competent Jurlsdlctlon determines that
the foregoing Restricted Territory is too broad to be enforceable; then the“Restricted Territory> means the
geographic area within a 10--mile radius from your Exercise-Coach®faciity-{and-Studio (including your

faemt%rtse#the Studro)

“System-means-ourunigue 'SBB Certification Training” means the Coach-Assisted Stretch, Balance and
Brain certification training program we developed in order to educate and train Coaches how to provide
flexibility, stability, balance and brain training services and programs to clients using our proprietary
equipment, protocols and methods.

“Site Approval Notice” means the Site Approval Notice attached as ATTACHMENT "B" that we may issue
to you pursuant to 83 and 80 to identify the approved site for your Studio and your Territory.

Page 6



“Site Selection Area” means the geographic area described in Part C of ATTACHMENT "A" and within
which vou must find a site we approve for your Studio; provided, however, that the Site Selection Area
excludes, and shall not be deemed to include, the geographic area within any territory assigned to another
Studio that: (a) is open and operating, under construction, or for which a site has been approved, in each
case as of the Effective Date; and (b) is located (or will be located) in the geographic area described in Part
C of ATTACHMENT "A".

“Site Selection Protection Period” means the period of time that beqins on the Effective Date and ends on
the earlier of: (a) the date we approve the site for your Studio; or (b) the end of the 120" day after the
Effective Date.

“Strategic Relationships” means strategic business relationships that we may, from time to time, establish
with vendors, insurance companies, third-party payers or other Persons in order to enhance our System or
expand the potential client base for Studios, as further described in §6.8.

“Studio” means any studio we authorize to operate under the Marks and use our System.

“Successor Agreement” means our then-current form of Franchise Agreement you must sign pursuant to
84.2_in connection with a renewal of your franchise rights.

“System” means the system we developed for the operation of an-Exercise-Coach®businessa Studio, the
distinctive characteristics of which include-the—Marks—training,—marketing—and- distinctive interior and
exterior design, décor, signage, color scheme and other trade dress elements; utilization of proprietary
EXERBOTICS® Equipment, strength scoring methodologies and other technology and data-driven
protocols; Management Training, Certification Training and other comprehensive training programs;
develooment and |molementat|on of Strategic Relationships; advertising and marketing strategies;
. _merchandising strategies; and

operatlng system

“TEC Apps” means Gymbot’s proprietary THE EXERCISE COACH Health Platform™, which provides a
real-time data stream of strength and other measures from EXERBOTICS® Equipment and other tech-
enabled equipment to Studio clients via web-based and/or mobile applications. It may also refer to any
modified or successor program or system we implement in the future for a purpose the same as, or similar
to, that of TEC Apps, which may include enhancements in functionality such as asynchronous
communication, health tracking and social interaction with clients.

“Technology Systems” means and includes all information and communication technology systems we
specify from time to time, including, without limitation, computer systems, point-of-sale systems, online
scheduling systems, data management systems, webcam systems, telecommunications systems, security
systems, music systems and similar systems, together with the associated hardware, software (including
cloud-based software) and related equipment, software applications, apps, and third-party services relating
to the establishment, use, maintenance, monitoring, security or improvement of these systems, including
the software and technology associated with EXERBOTICS® Equipment and TEC Apps.

“Term” means the period of time beginning on the Effective Date and expiring on the earlier to occur of:
(a) the 10" anniversary of the Effective Date; or (b) the date this Agreement is effectively terminated.

“Territory” means the exclusive territory for your Studio, as further described in §3.

“Third-Party Technology” means any Technology Systems (or components thereof) that are owned by
Persons who are not affiliated with us.

“Transfer” means any direct or indirect, voluntary or involuntary-{including-byjudicial-award,—order—or

decree);, assignment, sale, conveyance, subdivision, sublicense or other transfer or disposition of-the
franchise-
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(a)

this Agreement (or any interest therein),-the-Business-);

(b)

the franchise or intellectual property rights granted by this Agreement (or any pertion-thereof)-oran

(c)

ownership-interest in-antherein);

the Business you conduct pursuant to this Agreement (or any interest therein);

(d)

your Business assets, excluding the sale of furniture, fixtures or equipment in the ordinary course; or

(e)

an Equity Interest in the Business or Franchisee Entity-that-is-the-franchisee-;

including by: merger or consolidation;—by; judicial award, order or decree; issuance of additional seeurities
representing-an-ewnershipEquity Interests (including public and private offerings); foreclosure of a security
interest in-the-Entity-that-is-the-franchisee;by a lender; or by-operation of {Law, will or a trust upon thean

Owner’s death efan-Owner(including via the tLaws of intestate succession).

“Travel Expenses” means and includes all travel, meals,

lodging, local transportation and other living expenses incurred: (a) by us and our trainers, field support

personnel, auditors or other representatives to visit your Studio; or (b) by you and your personnel to attend

training programs or conferences.

GRANT OF
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6.2. F© FRANCHISE-AGREEMENT. We hereby grant you the right, license and obligation to own and
operate one (1) Studio using our Intellectual Property from the site we approve. As a franchisee, you will
establish _and operate a business that provides a comprehensive system of personal training using
proprietary equipment, protocols and methods. We reserve all rights not expressly granted to you.

3. TERRITORIAL RIGHTS AND LIMITATIONS.

3.1. Designation of Territory. We grant you an exclusive territory (your “Territory™) that will include at

least 5,000 gualified households as of the date we designate your Territory. A “qualified household”
refers to any household with annual household income of at least $120,000. We may designate the
boundaries of your Territory in any manner we deem appropriate. We may use data from any source
we deem appropriate to determine the number of qualified households within an area. We do not
modi our Territory based on changes to the number of qualified households during the Term. If
we approve the site for your Studio before you sign this Agreement, we will describe your Territory
in Part E of ATTACHMENT "A". Otherwise, we will describe your Territory in the Site Approval
Notice we send to you after approving your site. Upon renewal, we reserve the right to modify your

Territory in accordance with our then-current territory guidelines and criteria.

3.2. Territorial Protections and Limitations. During the Term we will not develop or operate, or
license a third party to develop or operate, a Studio that is located in the Territory. We and our
affiliates reserve the right to: (a) sell, and license third parties to sell, competitive or identical goods

and services (including under the Marks) within the Territory through Alternative Channels of

Distribution; and (b) sell EXERBOTICS® Equipment (and any other exercise, fitness or other

equipment developed in the future) and license proprietary software and technology to third parties
within the Territory except to the extent prohibited by the terms of the Participation Agreement.

3.3. Limited Site Selection Area Protections. If we do not approve the site for your Studio before you
sign this Agreement, then your designated Site Selection Area will receive the same territorial rights
and protections (and be subject to the same limitations) that apply to your Territory, as set forth in
§3.2_above, but only during the Site Selection Protection Period. There are no territorial rights or
protections applicable to the Site Selection Area after the Site Selection Protection Period expires.

4. TERM AND RENEWAL.

4.1. Generally. This Agreement grants you the right to operate your Studio during the Term. You may
renew your franchise rights by signing a Successor Agreement for an additional five (5) year renewal

term. There is no limit on the maximum number of Successor Agreements you may sign. In order to
sign a Successor Agreement you must satisfy all renewal conditions specified in this Agreement or

the Successor Agreement you wish to renew, as applicable. The Successor Agreement will be the
current form of franchise agreement we use to grant franchises as of the expiration of the Term or
renewal term, as applicable, the terms of which may vary materially and substantially from the terms
of this Agreement. If this Agreement is a Successor Agreement, the Term of this Agreement and
your remaining renewal rights, if any, shall be governed by your original franchise agreement.

4.2. Renewal Requirements. In order to renew, you and the Owners (as applicable) must:

a) send us a notice of your intent to enter into a Successor Agreement not less than 240 days nor
more than one (1) year before the expiration of the Term or renewal term, as applicable;

(b) not be in default under any Definitive Agreement at the time you send the renewal notice or
sign the Successor Agreement;

(c) sign the Successor Agreement and all ancillary documents we require franchisees to sign:;
(d) sign a General Release;
(e) pay us a renewal fee equal to 20% of our then-current, non-discounted, initial franchise fee;



(f) __remodel the Studio and upgrade all furniture, fixtures and equipment to conform to our then-
current standards and specifications; and

(g) _extend the term of your lease for the duration of the renewal term.

We may prohibit renewal if: (a) you fail to satisfy any renewal condition listed above; (b) on two (2

or more occasions during any 12-month period during the prior term, you fail to pay amounts owed
to us or our affiliates when due; or (c) we discontinue offering and selling franchises in your market.
If we elect not to renew or offer you the right to renew, we will send you a notice of non-renewal at
least 180 days prior to the expiration date, which shall set forth the basis for our decision. If you have
any objection to our notice of non-renewal, including a dispute as to the basis for our decision, you
must send us a notice of objection that sets forth the basis for your objection. Your notice of
objection must be sent to us no later than 30 days after you receive our notice of non-renewal. Your
failure to send us a notice of objection during such 30-day period constitutes your consent to the non-
renewal of your franchise. Our failure to send you a notice of non-renewal at least 180 days prior to

the expiration date constitutes our offer to renew your franchise in accordance with, and subject to,
the renewal terms and conditions set forth above.

4.3. Interim Term. If you do not sign a Successor Agreement but continue to operate your Studio after
the Term expires, we may either treat this Agreement as: (a) expired as of the Term expiration date
with you operating in violation of our rights; or (b) continued on a month-to-month basis (the
“Interim Term™) until either party provides the other party with 30 days’ prior notice of termination
of the Interim Term. All your obligations remain in full force and effect during the Interim Term, if
applicable, as if this Agreement had not expired, and all obligations imposed on you upon expiration
of the Term will take effect upon termination of the Interim Term.

. TRAINING AND CONFERENCES

5.1. Initial Training. Your Managing Owner and other personnel we designate must successfully
complete our initial training program at least seven (7) days prior to your Opening Date. Our initial

trainin rogram includes: (a) Management Training for your Managing Owner and Studio
manager(s); and (b) Certification Training for your Coaches. You must procure all insurance

required by §15.1 before attending initial training.

Certification Training. No Person (including your Managing Owner and Studio managers) ma

serve as a Coach at your Studio prior to successful completion of GSC Certification Training and
SBB Certification Training. We may implement Certification Training, in whole or in part, using an
online Learning Management System (LMS). As a condition to certification, we may require that the
trainee pass a series of written tests and practical exams and satisfy other criteria we establish. We
provide Certification Training to your initial Coaches as part of our pre-opening initial training
program. Your existing certified Coaches must provide Certification Training to new Coaches you
hire after the Opening Date using the online tools and resources we make available through LMS (or
in any other manner we designate).

5.3. Post-Opening Training. Any new Managing Owner, manager or Coach appointed or hired after
your Opening Date must successfully complete our then-current Management Training or
Certification Training program, as applicable, before he or she may serve as a Managing Owner,
manager or Coach at your Studio. We may offer periodic refresher or supplemental training courses
for your Managing Owner, managers and/or Coaches. We may designate each course as mandatory
or optional. If we determine your Studio is not operating in full compliance with this Agreement or
the Manual, we may require that your Managing Owner, manager and/or Coaches attend remedial
training relevant to your operational deficiencies. We may, but need not, provide additional
assistance or training requested by you at a mutually convenient time.

5.4. Training Location and Liability Waivers. Our training programs may take place at any location
we designate. We reserve the right to conduct training programs virtually. Prior to attending any
training program involving exercise or any other form of physical training, the trainee must sign our




prescribed form of waiver and release of liability relating to any injuries, harm, damages or losses
the trainee may incur or sustain while training.

5.5. Training Fees & Expenses. We provide our pre-opening initial training program in exchange for the
5,000 initial training fee due upon execution of this Agreement. The initial training fee includes

Management Training for up to four (4) trainees and Certification Training for your initial coaches.
We may charge an additional training fee of $625 for each Person you send to Management Training
in excess of four (4). We may charge a training fee of up to $500 per Person per day for any Person

who attends: (a) Management Training after the Opening Date; (b) retraining (after failing a prior

attempt); (c) remedial training; (d) additional training you request; or (e) refresher or supplemental
training. We may charge a certification training fee (including for recertification training) of up to:

a) $250 per certification for each Person who registers for GSC Certification Training; and (b) $550

per certification for each Person who registers for SBB Certification Training; provided, however,
that we do not charge additional fees for any Certification Training we provide in connection with
the pre-opening initial training program except as otherwise provided in §5.6. If we provide onsite
training or assistance, you must also reimburse all Travel Expenses we incur. You are responsible for
all wages and Travel Expenses you and your personnel incur to attend training programs.

5.6. Training for Area Developers. If this Agreement is executed pursuant to an Area Development
Agreement then we may, in accordance with the Area Development Agreement, require you to: (a)
complete additional training programs specific to area developers and multi-unit operators; and (b)
pay additional training fees that we impose in connection with such training programs. If your
Managing Owner, and each Person who will serve as an initial manager at the Studio you develop
pursuant to this Agreement, successfully completed Management Training prior to execution of this
Agreement then we may, at our option, waive the pre-opening Management Training program
described in 85.1 and the associated $5,000 initial training fee, in which case you must pay us
Certification Training fees for each Person who registers for Certification Training.

5.7. Conferences. We may hold periodic conferences to discuss business and operational matters
relevant to Studios. Attendance is mandatory unless: (a) we designate attendance as optional; or (b)
we waive your obligation to attend based on showing of good cause. We may charge you a
conference registration fee of $500 per Person per day. You are still responsible for the conference
registration fee if you fail to attend a required conference without a waiver. You are also responsible
for all wages and Travel Expenses you and your personnel incur to attend conferences.

. THER FRANCHISOR ASSISTANCE.
6.1.  ManualDEALTFERMS
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. We provide you with access to our Manual during the Term. The Manual will help you develop and operate
your Studio. The information in the Manual is confidential and proprietary and may not be disclosed
to third parties without our prior approval.

6.2. Equipment Package. As part of our centralized procurement program, you must purchase our
designated Equipment Package from Gymbot. The equipment included in our current Equipment
Package, and the estimated cost, is set forth in the table in Part F of ATTACHMENT "A". We may
change the equipment included in the Equipment Package, and the associated pricing, at any time.
You must purchase your Equipment Package at the time we designate based on your construction
schedule and projected Opening Date. Gymbot will arrange for: (a) the Equipment Package to be
shipped to and installed at your Studio; and (b) the configuration and setup of your EXERBOTICS®
Equipment. You must provide the installation crew with sufficient access to your Studio to complete
the installation and setup process. The purchase price for the Equipment Package, plus estimated
shipping, installation and setup costs, is due in full at the time the order is placed. If the actual
installation and setup costs exceed the estimated amount, you will be invoiced for the difference. If
the actual installation and setup costs are less than the estimated amount, we may, at our option,
choose between: (a) having Gymbot refund the difference to you; or (b) issuing you a credit against

royalty fees or other amounts you owe. After the Opening Date, you must purchase your entire
supply of new (or replacement) equipment exclusively from Gymbot unless we designate or approve
another supplier. We reserve the right to require that you purchase some or all equipment included in
the Equipment Package directly from third-party suppliers that we designate.

6.3. Proprietary Software and Technology. Our affiliate, Gymbot, will license you the right to use the
proprietary TEC Apps and software associated with the EXERBOTICS® Equipment. At the time you
sign this Agreement, you and Gymbot must sign Gymbot’s current form of Participation Agreement,
which governs you right to use Gymbot’s proprietary software and technology. In accordance with
the Participation Agreement, you must pay Gymbot a monthly technology fee for certain technical
services associated with: (a) EXERBOTICS® Equipment, including database management, data
backup services, asset management and equipment maintenance; and (b) TEC Apps. For purposes of
clarity, the EXERBOTICS® Equipment is not operational except when used in conjunction with the
proprietary software that: (a) must be licensed from Gymbot; and (b) is not transferable except with
our (and Gymbot’s) prior written consent, which consent may be withheld in our and/or Gymbot’s
sole_discretion. After this Agreement terminates or_expires: (a) the EXERBOTICS® Equipment
cannot be used; and (b) you may not sell the EXERBOTICS® Equipment to any other Person,
including another THE EXERCISE COACH® franchisee. Gymbot reserves the right to discontinue
licensing the proprietary TEC Apps and software associated with the EXERBOTICS® Equipment.

6.4. General Guidance. We will periodically review and evaluate your Studio and reports you submit to



us and provide our guidance and recommendations on ways to improve the operation of your Studio.
We will be available to render advice, discuss problems and offer general guidance to you during
normal business hours by phone, email or other means of communication.

6.5. Field Visits. We have the right, but not the obligation, to conduct periodic field visits for purposes of
providing onsite consultation, assistance and guidance pertaining to the operation and management

of your Studio. We will provide a report detailing any problems or concerns observed during the
field visit together with our instructions to address or resolve them. You must implement all
mandatory corrective measures in the time and manner we specify.

6.6. Website. We currently maintain a corporate website for our brand. We will also create and host a
webpage for your Studio that will: (a) be linked to our corporate website; and (b) list information

about your Studio we deem appropriate, such as address, hours of operation and contact information.
We control all content on your Studio’s webpage but will consider your suggestions in good faith.
We will own your Studio’s webpage and domain name. We may change or discontinue our website
and/or your Studio’s webpage at any time.

6.7. Client Referrals. If a prospective client contacts us through our website or calls our corporate
headquarters, we will use reasonable efforts to refer the prospective client to the most conveniently
located Studio in accordance with our then-current policies. However, we have no obligation to
generate clients for your Studio.

6.8. Strategic Relationships. From FOR TFHE STATE OFVIRGINIA
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time to time, we may, but need not, establish Strategic Relationships in order to enhance the System or expand

6.9.

the potential client base for Studios. You must participate in all Strategic Relationships in accordance
with the terms and conditions we negotiate with the Strategic Relationship partner. We may
designate any program involving a Strategic Relationship as a system-wide program subject to the
terms of 811.11, including any Program Participation Rule we establish relating to the program.
Strategic Relationships, and the associated programs, may change from time to time. We have no
obligation to maintain existing Strategic Relationships or develop new ones. We have the exclusive
right to establish Strategic Relationships and enter into agreements with Strategic Relationship
partners. You are prohibited from doing so. You must refer all potential Strategic Relationship
opportunities to us.

Purchase Agreements. We may, but need not, negotiate purchase agreements with suppliers to

6.10.

obtain discounted prices for franchisees. We will arrange for you to be able to purchase the goods or
services directly from the supplier at the discounted prices we negotiate (subject to any rebates the
supplier pays to us). We or our affiliate may also purchase goods from suppliers in bulk and resell
them to you at our cost plus shipping fees and a reasonable markup.

New Developments. We may, but need not, develop or create new: (a) retail products, merchandise

or other goods or services for sale at your Studio; or (b) exercise equipment you may use at your

Studio. You must comply with any minimum inventory stocking requirements in the Manual.




7. ESTABLISHING YOUR BUSINESS
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4.2.7.1.  Site Selection. Within 60 days after the Effective Date, you must submit to us, for our approval,
at least one (1) proposed site for your Studio. Each site you propose must be located in the Site

Selection Area and conform to our minimum site selection criteria. You must send us a complete site
report that includes all documents, information, photos and video we reguire. We may accept or
reject sites you propose in our commercially reasonable judgment. We will notify you of our
decision within 30 days after we receive all requisite materials. Your site is deemed disapproved if
we do not issue our approval within the 30-day period. You must secure our approval of the site for
your Studio within 90 days after the Effective Date; provided, however, that we may (but need not)
grant you one (1) or more 30-day extension periods if you demonstrate to our satisfaction that: (a)
you used diligent, good faith efforts to find an approved site throughout the 90-day site selection
period; and (b) you were unable to secure our approval of your site in a timely manner due to reasons
outside your control. If we approve the site for your Studio before signing this Agreement, we list the
address of your approved site in Part D of ATTACHMENT "A". Otherwise, we list the address of
your approved site in the Site Approval Notice we send to you within 30 business days after
approving your site. Our approval of the site and designation of your Territory is immediately
effective and binding on you at the time we issue the Site Approval Notice. Our approval of a site is
not a representation or warranty of any kind, express or implied, of the suitability of the site for a
Studio. It only means we believe the site meets our minimum criteria.

. If you lease the premises for your Studio, we must approve your lease before you sign it. You must use best

efforts to ensure your landlord signs the prescribed form of Lease Addendum attached hereto as
ATTACHMENT "C". If your landlord refuses to do so we may either: (a) waive the Lease
Addendum requirement (or the provisions disapproved by the landlord); or (b) require you to find a
new site for your Studio. You must hire a real estate attorney to review and negotiate the terms of
your lease (we may waive this obligation if you are a licensed real estate attorney or broker). You
may hire our recommended real estate attorney or you may hire a real estate attorney of your own
choosing. If you do not hire an attorney (and we do not waive the requirement for you to do so) then:

Page 2



(a) a real estate attorney we designate must review the lease to ensure the terms are consistent with
our brand standards and negotiate the Lease Addendum if the landlord does not agree to sign our
standard form; and (b) you must reimburse us for all legal fees we pay to our designated real estate
attorney to provide these services. You and the landlord must sign the lease and Lease Addendum

within 120 days after the Effective Date. You must promptly send us an executed copy of your lease
and L ease Addendum for our records.

7.3. _Construction. The Manual includes generic prototype plans and our standards and specifications for
the design, layout, equipping and trade dress for a Studio. You must hire a licensed and bonded
architect to prepare initial design plans for the construction of your Studio and leasehold

improvements. We must approve the initial design plans to ensure they are consistent with our
system standards. Once approved, your architect must prepare detailed construction plans that: (a

are consistent with the approved design plans; (b) satisfy all required standards and specifications in
the Manual; and (c) comply with all Laws (including the Americans with Disabilities Act), buildin
codes, permits and lease requirements and restrictions applicable to the premises. You must submit
the final construction plans to us for approval. The limited purpose of our review is to verify the
construction plans are consistent with our system standards. Once approved, you must, at your sole
expense, construct and equip the premises according to the approved construction plans and the
specifications in the Manual. You must also purchase (or lease) and install all furniture, fixtures,
signs and other items we require. You must purchase the Equipment Package from Gymbot, who
will arrange for the delivery, installation and setup of the equipment at your Studio, in accordance
with 86.2. At all times during the construction process, you must maintain the minimum general
liability and property damage insurance required by the Manual.

7.4.  Opening. You must open your Studio to the public within 120 days after: (a) the date you sign the
lease or purchase contract for the Studio’s premises (if you do not own the premises as of the
Effective Date); or (b) the Effective Date (if you own the premises as of the Effective Date);

rovided, however, that we may (but need not) grant you one (1) or more 30-day extension periods if

ou demonstrate to our satisfaction that: (i) you used diligent, good faith efforts to open the Studio
before the deadline; and (ii) your inability to open the Studio before the deadline was due to reasons
outside your control. You must provide us with at least 30 days’ prior notice of your proposed
Opening Date. We may conduct a pre-opening inspection (either in-person or virtual) of your Studio.
If we conduct a virtual inspection, you must facilitate the virtual inspection in accordance with our
instructions. You must make all changes and modifications we require before the Opening Date. You
may not open your Studio prior to receipt of our written authorization to open. We will not issue our
authorization to open before:

a our Managing Owner and manager(s) successfully complete Management Training;

b our Coaches successfully complete Certification Training;

C ou secure all required licenses, permits and approvals from Governmental Authorities;

(d) you purchase all required insurance policies and provide us with evidence of coverage;

e) we review and approve the construction, build-out and layout of your Studio;
ou have at least three (3) certified Coaches and 120 hours of weekly coaching availability; and

ou fulfill all of your other pre-opening obligations under this Agreement and the Manual.

7.5. Relocation. You may relocate your Studio with our prior approval, which we will not unreasonably

withhold. If we allow you to relocate you must: (a) locate your new Studio within the Site Selection
Area (but outside any territory assigned to another Studio); (b) comply with 80 through §7.4 with

respect to your new Studio (excluding the opening deadline); (¢) deidenti our former Studio in

accordance with §21.1(k); (d) pay us a $2,500 relocation fee at the time we approve your request to
relocate; and (e) open your Studio at the new site and resume operations within 30 days after closing
your Studio at the former site; provided, however, that if you relocate because your Studio is
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destroyed, condemned or otherwise rendered unusable due to the physical condition of the premises,
then you have: (a) 90 days after the closure to obtain our approval of the new site; and (b) 120 days
after we approve the new site to develop and reopen the Studio at the new site (subject to any 30-day
extension(s) we may grant under the circumstances described in 80 or §7.4). We may require you to
conduct another grand opening marketing campaign in accordance with 810.3(a)_and §10.3(b)_to
promote the opening of your Studio at the new site.

MANAGEMENT AND STAFFING.

8.1. Owner Participation. You must designate an Owner with primary responsibility for the
management and operation of your Studio (the “Managing Owner”). The Managing Owner must: (a)
be approved by us; (b) have binding decision-making authority on matters involving your Studio; (c)
successfully complete all training programs we require; (d) provide consistent (at least weekly) and
reasonable levels of oversight and supervision of all managers and Coaches to ensure the Studio is
operated in accordance with this Agreement and the Manual; and (e) at all times own at least 20% of
the Equity Interests in the Business or Franchisee Entity unless we waive the requirement.

8.2. Managers. You may hire a Studio manager to assist the Managing Owner with onsite management
of the Studio. Any Person you hire as a manager must: (a) successfully complete all training

programs we require; and (b) sign a Confidentiality Agreement. Either the Managing Owner or a
Studio manager must be onsite at your Studio during normal business hours. The Managing Owner
remains responsible for the manager’s work and must retain leadership responsibility.

8.3. Coaches. You must ensure your Studio has a sufficient number of certified Coaches in order to
operate at full capacity and in compliance with this Agreement and the Manual. You may not allow

any Person to provide personal training (or similar services) to clients at your Studio other than a
Coach. Any Person who serves as a Coach must: (a) successfully complete GSC Certification
Training and SBB Certification Training before he or she begins working with clients at your Studio;
(b) sign a Confidentiality Agreement; and (c) satisfy any other minimum criteria we reasonably
establish from time to time for Coaches. We recommend, but do not require, that your Managing
Owner and Studio manager(s) serve as Coaches.
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8.4. Employees. You must determine appropriate staffing levels for the Studio to ensure full compliance
with this Agreement and our system standards. You may hire, train and supervise employees to assist
you with the proper operation of the Studio. You must conduct background checks to ensure they do
not pose a risk to clients. You must pay all associated wages, commissions, benefits, worker’s
compensation premiums _and payroll taxes (and other withholdings required by Law). These
employees will be employees of yours and not of ours. We do not control the day-to-day activities of
your employees or the manner in which they perform their assigned tasks. You must inform your
employees that you exclusively supervise their activities and dictate the manner in which they
perform their assigned tasks. In this regard, you must use your legal business Entity name (not our
Marks or a fictitious name) on employee applications, paystubs, pay checks, employment agreements
and similar documents. We do not control the hiring or firing of your employees. You have sole
authority and responsibility for all employment-related decisions, including hiring, promaotion, hours
worked, rates of pay, benefits, work assignments, training and working conditions. We do not
provide guidance or advice on these matters. You must ensure each employee signs the
acknowledgment form we prescribe that explains the nature of the franchise relationship and notifies
the employee that you are his or her sole employer. You must also post a conspicuous notice for
employees in the back-of-house area explaining your franchise relationship with us and that you (and

not we) are the employee’s sole employer. We may prescribe the form and content of this notice.

8.5. Interim Manager. We may, but need not, designate a Person (an “Interim Manager”) to manage
our Studio if either: (a) you fail to appoint an approved replacement Managing Owner, who has
successfully completed Management Training, within 30 days after your Managing Owner ceases to
erform the responsibilities of a Managing Owner for any reason; or (b) you fail to cure a material
breach before the expiration of the cure period. The Interim Manager will cease to manage your
Studio at such time that you appoint an approved replacement Managing Owner who has completed
training or you cure the material breach, as applicable. If we appoint an Interim Manager, you agree
to: (a) pay us a management fee of $275 per day during the period of time the Interim Manager
manages your Studio; and (b) reimburse all Travel Expenses incurred by the Interim Manager. The
Interim Manager has no liability to you except for gross negligence or willful misconduct. We have
no liability to you for an Interim Manager’s actions unless we are grossly negligent in appointing the
Interim Manager.

9. FRANCHISEE ENTITY. You represent that Part A of ATTACHMENT "A" includes a complete and
accurate list of your Owners. Upon request, you must send us a resolution of the Franchisee Entity
authorizing the execution of this Agreement, a copy of the Franchisee Entity’s organizational documents
and a current Certificate of Good Standing. Each Owner of the Franchisee Entity, and the spouse of each
Owner who is a natural Person, must sign a Franchise Owner Agreement.

10. ADVERTISING & MARKETING.

10.1. Brand Fund. We may, but need not, administer a brand and system development fund to promote
public awareness of our brand and improve our System. On each royalty fee due date, you must pay
us a brand fund fee equal to 1% of Gross Sales generated during the immediately preceding reporting
period. We may use the fund to pay for any of the following:

(a) developing, administering or distributing advertising and marketing materials and programs;
b) conducting and administering promotions, contests or giveaways;

(c) public and consumer relations and publicity;

(d) brand development;

(e) sponsorships and charitable and non-profit donations and events;

(f) _research and development of technology, products and services;

(g) website development and search engine optimization;
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(h) development, maintenance and promotion of an ecommerce platform;

(i) development and implementation of guality control programs and satisfaction surveys;
(1)___conducting market research;

(k) changes and improvements to the System;

() __reimbursing us for costs we incur to host franchisee conferences;

(m) fees and expenses charged by advertising agencies we engage to provide marketing services;
(n) collecting and accounting for brand fund fees and preparing financial accountings of the fund,;

0) any other programs or activities we deem appropriate to promote or improve the System; and

(p) direct or indirect labor, administrative, overhead and other expenses incurred by us and/or our
affiliates relating to any of these activities, including salary, benefits and other compensation of
any of our (and any of our affiliate’s) officers, employees or independent contractors based on
time spent working on any brand fund matters described above.

+——WE HAVE SOLE DISCRETION IN DETERMINING THE CONTENT, CONCEPTS,

MATERIALS, MEDIA, ENDORSEMENTS, FREQUENCY, PLACEMENT, L OCATION AND ALL OTHER
MATTERS PERTAINING TO MARKETING OR ADVERTISING ACTIVITIES. ANY SURPLUS IN THE

FUND MAY BE INVESTED AND WE MAY LEND MONEY TO THE FUND IF THERE IS A DEFICIT. THE
FUND IS NOT A TRUST AND WE HAVE NO FIDUCIARY OBLIGATIONS TO YOU WITH RESPECT T
OUR ADMINISTRATION OF THE FUND. FRANSFERS

ByWe will prepare, and make available to you upon request, an annual statement of fund operations,
including deposits and disbursements. In terms of marketing activities paid for by the fund, we do
not ensure that: (a) expenditures in (or affecting) a given geographic area are proportionate or
equivalent to the brand fund fees paid by franchisees in that geographic area; or (b) franchisees
benefit directly or in proportion to their brand fund fees. We may suspend or discontinue the fund at
any time upon 30 days’ prior notice.

7.1.10.2. Marketing Assistance From Us. We will provide reasonable marketing consulting, guidance

and support throughout the Term on an as-needed basis. We review and evaluate all Marketing Plans
ou must prepare and submit for approval pursuant to §10.3(a). We may create and make available

to vou advertising and other marketing materials for your purchase. We may: (a) use the brand fund

to pay for the creation and distribution of these materials, in which case there will be no additional
charge; (b) provide online access to these materials, in which case you must print the materials at

your expense; and/or (c) contract with third-party suppliers to create and sell these materials to you.
10.3. Your Marketing Activities.

a) Marketing Plans. At least 60 days prior to your projected Opening Date, you must prepare a

grand opening marketing plan to advertise, market and promote the opening of your Studio
during the Grand Opening Period. Your grand opening marketing plan must include any
mandatory marketing, advertising and promotional activities we require. At least 30 days before
each anniversary of the Opening Date, you must prepare an annual growth plan and marketing
budget for the ensuing 12-month period. Your grand opening marketing plan and annual growth

plan and marketing budget are referred to as your “Marketing Plans”. All Marketing Plans must
be: (i) consistent with and, when applicable, incorporate all mandatory provisions in the Manual

overning Marketing Plans; and (ii) submitted to and approved by us prior to implementation.

Once approved, you must faithfully implement each Marketing Plan in accordance with its
terms. You may not materially modify any Marketing Plan without our approval.

b) Grand Opening Marketing. You must implement the grand opening marketing plan we approve
pursuant to §10.3(a). We may require you to contract with a company we designate to prepare
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and/or implement your grand opening marketing plan. During the Grand Opening Period, you
must spend the minimum amount we reguire on approved local advertising, marketing and
promotional activities in accordance with the grand opening marketing plan. This minimum
expenditure is referred to as your “Grand Opening Marketing Commitment”. Brand fund fees
and marketing management or administrative fees or expenses you incur are not credited
towards the Grand Opening Marketing Commitment. The amount of your Grand Opening
Marketing Commitment applicable during the pre-opening phase of the Grand Opening Period
varies based on the number of qualified households in your Territory as follows:

9,000 or fewer $14,195 to $17,000
9,001 to 12,000 $15,800 to $19,250
12,001 to 15,000 $16,400 to $20,000
15,001 or more $17,000 to $20,775

The amount of your Grand Opening Marketing Commitment applicable during the 90-day post-
openin hase of the Grand Opening Period is $15,000. Any advertising and marketin

expenditures you incur during the pre-opening period that exceed the minimum required amount
will be credited towards the $15,000 you must spend during the 90-day post-opening period.

(c) Marketing After Grand Opening Period. You must participate at your expense in all advertising,
promotional and marketing programs we require, including any advertising cooperative we
establish pursuant to §10.4. Commencing upon the expiration of the Grand Opening Period (i.e.,
the 91% day after the Opening Date), you must spend at least $4,000 each month on approved
local advertising, marketing and promotional activities. This minimum monthly expenditure that
applies after the Grand Opening Period expires is referred to as your “Local Marketing
Commitment”. We measure compliance on a rolling six-month basis meaning as long as your
average monthly expenditure over the six-month period equals or exceeds the Local Marketing
Commitment, you are in compliance even if your expenditure in a given month is less than the

Local Marketing Commitment. None of the following fees or expenditures are credited towards
our L ocal Marketing Commitment: (i) brand fund fees; (ii) marketing management or

administrative fees; or (iii) advertising or marketing expenditures you incur during the Grand
Opening Period, including expenditures exceeding the Grand Opening Marketing Commitment.

d) Digital Marketing Fee. We may require you to pay a digital marketing fee to a supplier we

designate or approve for digital marketing services. Digital marketing fees are credited against
your post-opening Grand Opening Marketing Commitment and Local Marketing Commitment.
As of the Effective Date you pay a $790 digital marketing fee each month to our affiliate, which
provides marketing campaign management, lead generation optimization and analytics services
using proprietary technology platforms, advertising strategies and reporting tools. We may
change the digital marketing fee upon 30 days’ prior notice (not to exceed $1,000 per month).

(e) Advertising Standards. All advertisements and promotions you create or use must be completely
factual, conform to the highest standards of ethical advertising and comply with all Laws. You
must ensure your advertisements and promotional materials do not infringe upon the intellectual

property rights of others. You must comply with any minimum advertised pricing policy we
establish from time to time.

Extraterritorial Advertising. You may advertise and market outside your Territory as long as
ou: (i) obtain our prior approval; (ii) comply with all policies and procedures in the Manual

governing extra-territorial marketing, including transitioning clients who reside outside your
territory to a Studio that subsequently opens and is assigned a territory that includes the client’s
residence; and (iii) do not engage in targeted marketing directed into another Studio’s territory
(unless conducted as part of an advertising cooperative that includes the affected territory).
Marketing that is distributed, circulated or received both in your Territory and another Studio’s
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territory is not “targeted marketing” if: (i) you use reasonable efforts to limit circulation or
distribution of the advertising to areas in your Territory; and most recipients of the

advertising are located in your Territory and there is only incidental C|rculat|on or distribution in
another Studio’s territory. The meaning of “targeted marketing” that is “directed into a
territory” may be further defined in the Manual. Examples include direct mail sent to addresses
in a given territory, digital advertising sent to devices with IP addresses registered in a given
territory and conducting promotional events in a given territory.

Advertising Approval. Prior to use, we must approve all advertising and marketing programs

and materials you intend to use, including all materials we did not prepare or previously
approve, or that we prepare or approve and you modify. We must also approve the media you
use. You may not use any advertising materials, programs or media that we have not approved
or that we approve and later disapprove. We have 15 days to review and approve or disapprove
advertising and marketing materials and programs you submit. They are deemed approved if we

do not issue a notice of disapproval during the 15-day period. Any advertising you propose and
we approve is an “Improvement” for purposes of §17.5.

h) Social Media. Under current policy, we are the exclusive owner of all social media accounts

associated with Studios and we exclusively control all social media posts. We may, but need
not, establish, own and admlnlster one or more SOCIa| media accounts that, among other thlngs!

must immediately remove any content we disapprove (or we may unliterally remove the content
on our own initiative). If we change our policy in the future and allow franchisees to administer

their own social media accounts, we will grant you the right to do so, subject to your
compliance with all terms and conditions we impose as a condition to granting you such right.

Internet and Websites. Without our prior approval, you may not: (i) develop, host, or otherwise
malntaln aweb5|te or other d| |taI resence that references our Marks ii conduct d| |taI o

engage in ecommerce.

10.4. Advertising Cooperative. We may, but need not, establish regional advertising cooperatives for
purposes of creating and/or purchasing advertising programs for the benefit of all Studios located in
the region. We may: (a) determine the boundaries of the cooperative; (b) specify the manner in
which the cooperative is organized and governed; (c) require the cooperative to be administered in
accordance with written bylaws, organizational documents or other governing documents that we
approve; and (d) require you to participate in the cooperative according to its rules and procedures
and abide by its decisions. You must pay a cooperative advertising fee on each royalty fee due date
or such other date specified by the cooperative. We may set the minimum cooperative advertising fee

or we may allow the cooperative to set the fee based on majority vote of its members. In either case,
the fee will not exceed $2,000 per month. We may either: (a) collect cooperative advertising fees and

remit them to the cooperative; or (b) require you to pay these fees directly to the cooperative. All

cooperative advertising fees you pay are credited towards your Local Marketing Commitment. We
may form, change, merge or dissolve advertising cooperatives in our discretion.

11. OPERATING STANDARDS.

11.1. Generally. You must operate your Studio in full compliance with this Agreement, the Manual and
our standards in order to maintain the goodwill associated with the Marks.

11.2. Brand Standards Manual. You must develop and operate your Studio in strict compliance with the
Manual. The Manual may contain, among other things:

a) architectural plans and specifications for the design, dimensions, layout, equipping and trade
dress for a prototype Studio;
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b) a list of (i) goods and services (or specifications for goods and services) you must purchase to
develop and operate your Studio and (ii) designated and approved suppliers;

c) adescription of the authorized goods and services you may sell;

d) forms and waiver agreements for use with clients (which must be reviewed by your attorney for

compliance with local Laws);

e) specifications, techniques, methods, operatin rocedures, exercise protocols and qualit
standards; and

(f) policies and procedures pertaining to: (i) reporting and data entry; (ii) accounting and

bookkeeping; isi v) qift card

iv) marketing and advertisin
membership programs; (vi) data ownership, use, transfer and protection; and (vii) any other

matters we deem appropriate.

The Manual is designed to establish and protect our brand standards and the uniformity and guality
of the goods and services offered by Studios. We can modify the Manual at any time. Modifications

are binding 30 days after we noti ou of the change, subject to any extended “grace period” we
rovide to implement certain changes. All mandatory provisions in the Manual (whether included

now or in the future) are binding on you. The Manual may consist of written text as well as videos,
tutorials, training modules, recordings and/or other means of communication, including information
made available through Sharefile or via other official corporate correspondence.

11.3. Authorized Goods and Services. You must offer all goods and services we require from time to
time in our commercially reasonable discretion. You may not offer any other goods or services
without our prior approval. You may only offer the specific classes, exercises and fitness and
training programs that we designate or approve. You may not purchase or utilize any exercise
equipment, training equipment, or exercise supplies that we have not approved. You must offer only
the memberships (and associated options) that we designate. Your memberships must include all of
the features and benefits, and only the features and benefits, that we prescribe. We may change
authorized goods and services at any time and you must comply with our instructions regarding
same. Any such change shall not constitute a termination of this Agreement.

11.4. Restrictions on Sales Activities and Representations. Unless you receive our prior approval, you
may not: (a) offer, sell or provide goods or services from any location other than your Studio’s

remises; (b) produce, sell or provide goods or services through any other channel of distribution

including selling goods or services through an ecommerce site or delivering virtual, online or on-
demand exercise training or instruction through web-based video services such as Zoom or
FaceTime; (c) sell goods or services to any Person for purposes of resale; (d) use your Studio, or

permit your Studio to be used, for any purpose other than offering the goods and services we
authorize; or (e) provide current or prospective clients with any oral or written warranties, guarantees
or claims regarding the quality or results they may achieve as a result of any product, service or
program offered at your Studio, other than any warranty, guarantee or claim that we expressly
authorize you to make in writing.

11.5. Pricing. We will provide you with our suggested retail pricing. You may deviate from our suggested
retail pricing at your discretion; provided, however, that: (a) you must obtain our approval of an

deviation more than 5% higher or lower than our suggested retail pricing unless such pricing is part
of a temporary advertising campaign we approved; and (b) we may set maximum or minimum prices

on the goods and services you sell to the extent permitted by applicable Law.

11.6. Client Payments. You must, at your expense, lease or purchase the necessary equipment and/or
software and have arrangements in place with Visa, MasterCard, American Express and all other
credit card issuers we designate, in order for you to be able to accept such methods of payment from

clients. You must accept debit cards, credit cards, stored value cards, and other non-cash systems
including, for example, Apple Pay and/or Google Wallet) that we specify. You must acquire and
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install all necessary hardware and/or software used in connection with these non-cash systems.

11.7. Suppliers and Purchasing.

a) Generally. You must purchase, lease or license, as applicable, all goods, services and other
items required by the Manual. You must only purchase goods and services that satisfy all

standards and specifications we designate. You must comply with all sourcing and supplier
restrictions we impose from time to time.

b) System Suppliers. In accordance with the Manual, you must purchase certain goods and

services exclusively from suppliers we designate or approve. The Manual may designate us or
our affiliate as a designated or approved supplier. We and our affiliates may generate a profit
from these purchases. Our affiliate Gymbot is currently the exclusive designated supplier of: (i
all exercise and other health or fitness-related equipment used at your Studio, and all proprietary
software and technology used to operate, or used in_conjunction with, the EXERBOTICS®
Equipment; and (ii) TEC Apps. Our right to specify the suppliers you use is necessary so we can
control the uniformity and quality of goods and services used, sold or distributed in connection
with the development and operation of Studios, protect our trade secrets, negotiate bulk
purchase discounts and protect the reputation and goodwill associated with our System and
Marks. You must immediately discontinue purchasing from any supplier we disapprove.

c) Approval Process. If you wish to purchase goods or services from an alternative supplier or you
wish to purchase an alternative product, you must send us a request for approval that: (i
identifies the proposed supplier and the product to be purchased; (ii) includes all information we
require about the product and supplier (including the supplier’s qualifications, reputation
financial strength and production capabilities); and (iii) includes samples of the proposed

product for examination and testing purposes. We may condition our approval on the supplier’s
agreement to comply with our minimum insurance, indemnification and confidentiality
requirements for system suppliers. We will approve or disapprove your request within 30 days
after we receive your reguest and all information and samples we require. Your reguest is
deemed disapproved if we fail to issue our approval within the 30-day period. You must
reimburse all costs and expenses we incur, and pay our hourly fee ($50 per hour) for the time
we spend, evaluating products and suppliers you propose. We need not consider alternative
suppliers for proprietary products or products branded with our Marks.

(d) Payment Disputes. You understand that: (i) your failure to timely pay a system supplier may
jeopardize the supplier’s relationship with us and other franchisees; and (ii) the supplier’s
termination of its relationship with us or refusal to supply goods or services to our franchisees
may cause significant harm to us and our franchisees. Accordingly, you agree to promptly pay
all amounts owed to system suppliers except as otherwise permitted by this Section. If you have
a bona-fide dispute with a supplier that you believe justifies hon-payment or partial payment,

ou must promptly notify the supplier of the particulars of your Claim and diligently pursue
resolution of the Claim or prosecution of appropriate legal action. Any trade debt that remains

unpaid more than 30 days after its due date constitutes a material breach of this Agreement
unless, before the end of the 30-day period, you: (i) come to an agreement with the supplier for

alternative payment terms; or (ii) initiate appropriate legal action to contest the trade debt.

Supplier Payments. We may receive rebates, benefits and other consideration from suppliers

based on your purchases, leases or licenses. We may retain these payments as compensation and
reimbursement for time and expenses we incur to negotiate and manage supplier relationships.
We have no obligation to pass them through to you or use them for any particular purpose
except as otherwise agreed to by us and a supplier), although our current intention is to use

them for the benefit of the System.

Disclaimer of Liability. Provided that we designate or approve system suppliers in good faith

we shall have no liability to you for their acts, errors or omissions including, without limitation,
defective or tainted goods, delayed delivery or inability to meet demand. With respect to goods
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purchased from us or our affiliate, you acknowledge that we or our affiliate purchase the goods
from third-party manufacturers or suppliers and resell them to you as a convenience. If you have
any type of Claim relating to the purchase of goods or services from a system supplier, your
sole recourse shall be against the supplier. If we or our affiliate are the supplier, your sole
recourse shall be against the manufacturer or supplier from whom we or our affiliate acquired
the goods unless both: (i) the Claim arises from our (or our affiliate’s) failure to supply the
goods in breach of our obligations under this Agreement; and (ii) our (or our affiliate’s) failure
to supply the goods is not caused by a Force Majeure event. We and our affiliates make no
warranti I representations, an he full xtent permi Law expressly disclaim
all warranties and representations, including the implied warranties of merchantability or
fitness for a particular purpose, regarding goods or services you purchase from system
suppliers.

Participation Agreement. If any terms, conditions or disclaimers contained in the Participation

Agreement executed by you and Gymbot conflict with any terms, conditions or disclaimers
contained in this Agreement, then the terms, conditions or disclaimers contained in the
Participation Agreement shall control, but only with respect to goods or services you purchase
or license from Gymbot pursuant to the Participation Agreement.

11.8. Equipment Maintenance and Changes. You must maintain your equipment in good condition and
promptly replace or repair equipment that is damaged, worn-out or obsolete. We may require that
you change your equipment. Our right to require these changes is critical to our ability to administer
and change the System and you must comply with these changes within the time period we
reasonably specify.

11.9. Technology Systems.

a) Generally. You must acquire and utilize all Technology Systems we require from time to time.

Technology Systems may relate to matters such as: purchasing; pricing; accounting; order entry;
inventory control; security; data storage, retrieval and transmission; client information; client
loyalty; marketing; communications; copying, printing and scanning; or any other business
purpose we deem appropriate. We may require you to acquire new or substitute Technology

Systems and replace, upgrade or update existing Technology Systems, at your expense, upon
reasonable prior notice. You are solely responsible for: (i) the acquisition, operation

maintenance, updating and upgrading of your Technology Systems; (ii) the manner in which

your Technology Systems integrate and interface with our computer system and those of third
arties; and (iii) any consequences resulting from improper use or operation, or failure to

properly maintain, update or upgrade, Technology Systems.

b) Use and Access. You must use Technology Systems in accordance with the Manual and compl

with all associated data entry policies. You may not load or permit any unauthorized programs
or games on your Technology Systems. You must ensure your employees are adequately trained
in the use of the Technology Systems. You agree to take all steps necessary to provide us with
independent and unlimited access to data collected by or through your Technology Systems,
including Gross Sales data for purposes of calculating fees owed. Upon request, including upon
termination or expiration of this Agreement, you must provide us with the user IDs and
passwords for your Technology Systems. All data entered into your Technology Systems is
owned by us and constitutes Business Data for purposes of this Agreement.

c) Disruptions and Errors. You are solely responsible for protecting against computer viruses
bugs, power disruptions, communication line disruptions, internet access failures, internet
content failures, date-related problems and attacks by unauthorized Persons. Upon request, you
must obtain and maintain cyber insurance and business interruption insurance for technology
disruptions.

d) Third-Party Technology. You understand and agree that we and our affiliates: (i) do not own or
maintain certain software, technology, web-based forms and other tools and Technology
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Systems you must utilize to operate the Studio (“Third-Party Technology™); and (ii) have no
liability to you for any losses, damages or expenses you incur as result of Third-Party
Technology not properly functioning. You hereby: (i) waive any and all Claims against us or
our affiliates relating to Third-Party Technology; and (ii) acknowledge your sole recourse for

any liabilities, losses, damages or expenses you incur due to improperly functioning Third-Party
Technology shall be against the owner or licensor of such Third-Party Technology.

e) Email Accounts. We may, but need not, provide you with one or more THE EXERCISE

COACH® email addresses. We may charge you our then-current fee for each email address we
provide (this fee is added to the technology fee described in §11.9(f)_below). You must
exclusively use these email addresses for all communications with us, clients, suppliers and
other Persons relating to your Studio. You may not use them for any purpose unrelated to your
Studio. We own the email addresses and accounts but allow you to use them during the Term.

(f) Fees and Costs. You are responsible for all fees, costs and expenses associated with acquiring,
licensing, utilizing, updating and upgrading Technology Systems. Certain Technology Systems
must be purchased or licensed from third-party suppliers. We and/or our affiliate may develop
proprietary Technology Systems (or components thereof) that become part of our System. If this

occurs, you agree to: (i) pay us (or our affiliate) commercially reasonable licensing, support and
maintenance fees; and (ii) upon request, sign our prescribed form of license agreement
overning use of proprietary Technology Systems (or components thereof). We may enter into

master agreements with licensors of Third-Party Technology and charge you for amounts we
pay them based on your use of their Third-Party Technology. The technology fee includes all
amounts you pay us and our affiliates relating to Technology Systems, including amounts paid
for proprietary items and amounts we collect from you and remit to suppliers of Third-Party
Technology. The technology fee may change based on changes to Technology Systems or
prices charged by third parties with whom we enter into master agreements. The technology fee
may include a reasonable administrative fee for the time, money and resources we invest to
administer the technology platform and associated components, negotiate and manage contracts
with third-party licensors, and collect and remit technology fees owed to third-party licensors on
behalf of franchisees under master license arrangements. The technology fee does not include
amounts you pay directly to third-party suppliers. If your state charges sales tax on technology
or software fees, you must pay pay both the technology fee and the applicable sales tax.
Technology fees are due 10 days after invoicing or as we otherwise specify. We list the current
technology fee in the Manual, but the maximum technology fee during the Term will not exceed
$1,425 per month.

11.10.Remodeling and Maintenance. We may periodically require you to remodel and renovate your
Studio to conform to our then-current standards and specifications. There is no limitation on the cost
or frequency of these obligations. You may not remodel or renovate your Studio without our prior
approval. We will not approve any remodeling or renovations that conflict with our then-current
standards and specifications. You must maintain your Studio in good order and condition, reasonable
wear and tear excepted, and make all necessary repairs, including replacements, renewals and
alterations, at your sole expense, to conform to our standards and specifications. Without limiting the
enerality of the foregoing, you agree to take the following actions at your expense: (a) thorough
cleaning, repainting, redecorating of the interior and exterior of the Studio’s premises at the intervals
we prescribe (or at such earlier times that such actions are required or advisable); and (b) interior and
exterior repair of the Studio’s premises as needed. You must comply with any maintenance, cleaning
or facility upkeep schedule we prescribe.

11.11. System Programs.

a) Generally. We may periodically develop and implement membership, loyalt ift card

Strategic Relationship and other system-wide programs. You must fully participate in all
rograms we designate as mandatory. In order to participate you must: (i) comply with all

olicies and procedures we establish for program participation; (ii) purchase or license and
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utilize all equipment, software, mobile applications, technology and others items we designate
as being necessary for program participation and pay all associated fees and costs; and (iii) pa

us, our affiliate, or a third party we designate, all program fees, contributions or other amounts
we require for program participation (collectively, “Program Participation Rules”). Program
Participation Rules may be set forth in the Manual. We may change Program Participation

Rules at any time and you must comply with the change. We may develop and implement new
or successor programs and/or modify or terminate existing programs at any time.

b) Membership Program. We may require that all Studios operate under a membership model, in

which case your Studio must honor memberships and the associated benefits and privileges
even if the member purchased their membership from another Studio. We have the right to: (i)

determine how membership fees are divided or otherwise accounted for; (ii) require that all

membership fees be paid to us or deposited into a trust account we control for subsequent
disbursement to the Studios(s) visited by the member; (iii) adopt policies regarding cooperation

between franchisees relating to members who utilize the services of, or enjoy membership

rivileges at, multiple Studios; and (iv) designate the use of new Technology Systems to
monitor sales and allocate payments to the Studio(s) visited by the member, either in whole or
on a percentage basis. We may require you to utilize the form of membership agreement we
specify. You must hire an attorney, licensed in your state, to review the membership agreement
and advise you of any changes necessary to comply with local Laws. You must obtain our
approval of any such changes prior to implementation.

c) lovalty Program. You must fully participate and implement all required customer loyalt

rewards and other affinity programs designed to increase customer loyalty, generate new clients
or improve overall demand for, and utilization of the services offered by, Studios.

d) Gift Card Program. You must participate in any gift card program we establish and honor all
gift cards, even if purchased from us or another Studio. You may not sell gift cards we have not
approved. We have the right to: (i) determine how qift card proceeds are divided or otherwise
accounted for; (ii) require that gift card proceeds be paid to us or deposited into a trust account
we control for subsequent disbursement to the Studio(s) where the gift card is redeemed; and

(iii) retain proceeds from unredeemed gift cards.

11.12.Package Sales. If we require or allow your Studio to sell Packages (i.e., a package of trainin

sessions, exercise classes, etc. that may be redeemed on multiple visits), we may adopt policies
governing cooperation between franchisees when a client purchases a Package at one Studio and
redeems services at a different Studio. Alternatively, we may prohibit clients from purchasing a
Package at one Studio and redeeming services at a different Studio. We have the right to: (a)

determine how proceeds from the sale of Packages are divided or otherwise accounted for; (b

require that sales proceeds be paid to us or deposited into a trust account we control for subsequent
disbursement to the Studio(s) where services are redeemed; and (c) retain proceeds from unredeemed

services (“breakage”). Under current policy, however, we allow you to retain all sales proceeds from
any Package purchased from your Studio (including breakage) provided that you satisfy each of the

following requirements:
(a) you remain in good standing under all Definitive Agreements;

b ou separately record, track and carry all Prepaid Liabilities as a liability (we may also track

and provide you with reports of your Prepaid Liabilities);

C ou comply with all financial reporting requirements set forth in the Manual, including timel
submission of all data we require through designated Technology Systems; and

(d) upon our request you purchase, and maintain throughout the Term, a surety bond or other form
of financial assurance that we designate or approve in accordance with §13.8.

11.13. Hours of Operation. Your Studio must be open for business during the minimum days and hours of
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operation set forth in the Manual, subject to any conflicting requirements in your lease or imposed by
Law. You must establish specific days and hours of operation and submit them to us for approval.

11.14. Standards of Service and Professionalism. You must treat your employees and clients, and our
staff, with honesty and respect. You and your staff must provide prompt, courteous, friendly and
efficient service to all clients and ensure all interactions with clients are conducted in a professional
and ethical manner. We have the right to contact your clients and assess their satisfaction with your
Studio via completion of interviews, surveys or guestionnaires, or using any other method we deem

appropriate. If you receive a client complaint, you must follow the complaint resolution process we
specify to protect the goodwill associated with the Marks.

11.15.Quality Assurance Programs. For quality control purposes we may periodically: (a) inspect your
Studio in accordance with §6.5 and §16.1; and/or (b) hire mystery shoppers or guality assurance
firms to inspect your Studio. Inspections may address a variety of issues, including client service,
sanitation, inventory rotation, etc. You must fully cooperate with all inspections. We may require
that you directly pay any mystery shopper or firm we hire for the cost of the inspection.
Alternatively, we may pay for the cost of the inspection, in which case you must reimburse us. We
may implement a scoring system pursuant to which each Studio receives a “grade” or “score” based
on _inspection results. Failure to achieve a passing grade or score constitutes a default under this

Agreement. You must implement all corrective measures we require within the time period we
specify to rectify any noncompliance issues revealed by an inspection.

11.16. Failure to Comply with Standards. You acknowledge the importance of every one of our standards
and operating procedures to the reputation and integrity of the System and goodwill associated with
the Marks. If we noti ou of a breach of our standards or operating procedures (including failure to

submit required reports in a timely manner) and you fail to cure within the time period we prescribe,
we may (in addition to our other remedies under this Agreement) impose a noncompliance fee of
$500 per occurrence. We may impose a separate $500 fee every 48 hours the same noncompliance
issue remains uncured after we impose the initial fee. We deposit noncompliance fees into the Brand
Fund (unless we do not administer a Brand Fund at the time we impose the fee). Noncompliance fees

are paid in consideration of us refraining from exercising our contractual right to terminate this
Aareement. If you fail to cure a breach before the expiration of the cure period (if any) and we take

steps to cure the breach (for example, obtaining required insurance coverage on your behalf or
aying amounts you owe to system suppliers), then you must reimburse all costs and expenses we

directly or indirectly incur in connection with our efforts to cure the default. Your payment of

noncompliance fees and default expense reimbursements does not preclude us from terminating this
Agreement in accordance with §20.2_if the default continues after we collect these amounts.

12. FRANCHISE ADVISORY COUNCIL. We may, but need not, create a franchise advisory council (FAC)

to provide us with suggestions to improve the System, including matters such as marketing, operations and
new product or service suggestions. We consider all suggestions in good faith but are not bound by them.
The FAC would be established and operated according to rules and regulations we periodically prescribe or
approve, including procedures governing the selection of FAC representatives to communicate with us on
matters raised by the FAC. You are eligible to be appointed as an FAC member as long as you comply with
this Agreement and do not act in a disruptive or abusive manner. As a member, you would be entitled to all

voting rights and privileges granted to other FAC members. Each member would have one vote on all
matters on which members are authorized to vote.

. FEES

13

13.1. Initial Franchise Fee. You agree to pay us an initial franchise fee in one lump sum at the time you
sign this Agreement. The amount of your initial franchise fee is listed in Part B of ATTACHMENT

'A". The initial franchise fee is fully earned by us and nonrefundable once this Agreement is signed.
13.2. Rovalty Fee. On the day we designate from time to time (the “royalty fee due date™), you must pa

us a royalty fee equal to the greater of: (a) 6% of Gross Sales generated by the Studio during the

immediately preceding reporting period; or (b) $1,000 (or the equivalent to $1,000 per month if we
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change from a monthly to non-monthly reporting period); provided, however, that the royalty fee is

waived for the period of time beginning with the Opening Date and ending the last day of the month
in which the Opening Date occurs. The current reporting period runs from the opening of business on
the first (1) day of each month through the close of business on the last day of such month, and the
current royalty fee due date is the seventh (7"") day after the end of the reporting period. We may
periodically change the reporting period and royalty fee due date through updates to the Manual.

13.3. Other Fees and Payments. You must pay all other fees, expense reimbursements and other amounts
specified in this Agreement in a timely manner as if fully set forth in §13. You also agree to
promptly pay us an amount equal to all taxes levied or assessed against us based on goods or services
you sell or goods or services we furnish to you, excluding income taxes imposed on us based on fees
you pay us under this Agreement.

13.4. Due Date & Late Fee. Payments are due 10 days after invoicing unless otherwise specified. If any

sum due under this Agreement is not received by us when due or there are insufficient funds in your
Account to cover the sum when due, then in addition to this sum you must pay us $100 plus default

interest on the amount past due at a rate equal to the lesser of 18% per annum (pro-rated on a dail
basis) or the highest rate permitted by applicable Law. We will not impose a late fee for any amount

paid pursuant to 813.5 if, but only to the extent that, sufficient funds were available in your Account
to be applied towards the payment when due; provided, however, that if we are unable to determine
the amount because you fail to record sales or submit Gross Sales reports in a timely manner, we
may assess a late fee on the entire amount that was due. This 813.4_shall not constitute our
agreement to accept late payments or extend credit to you.

13.5. Method of Payment. No later than 15 days after the Effective Date, you must complete and send us
a signed ACH Agreement authorizing us to electronically debit your designated Account for all
amounts owed to us and our affiliates on the applicable due date, excluding amounts due less than 15
days after the Effective Date. You must sign all other documents required by us or your bank to
enable us to debit your Account for amounts owed. You must deposit all Gross Sales into the
Account and ensure sufficient funds are available for withdrawal before each payment due date. If
there are insufficient funds in your Account, any excess amounts you owe will be payable upon
demand together with any late fee imposed pursuant to §13.4. We may also impose a $50 NSF fee

for each instance where either: (a) there are insufficient funds in your Account to cover amounts

owed when due; or (b) a check you issue to us is returned due to insufficient funds.

13.6. CPIl Adjustments. We may periodically adjust all fees (including minimum fees) expressed as a
fixed dollar amount based on changes to the U.S. Consumer Price Index (CPI). We may periodicall
review and increase these fees based on CPI changes, but only if the then-current CPl (“Current
CPI™ is more than 5% higher than the corresponding CPI in effect on: (a) the Effective Date of this
Agreement (for the initial fee adjustment); or (b) the date we implemented the last fee adjustment
for subsequent fee adjustments) (“Baseline CP1”). The adjusted fee is calculated by multiplying the
current fee by the sum of one (1) plus a fraction: (a) the numerator of which is Current CPI minus
Baseline CPI; and (b) the denominator of which is Baseline CPI. We may utilize any CPI index
series published by the U.S. Department of Labor or any comparable Governmental Authority that
we deem appropriate. We currently use the following index: All Urban Wage Earners and Clerical
Workers (CPI-W), U.S. City Average (1982-84 = 100), “All Items”. We will noti ou of any CPI
adjustment at least 60 days before it becomes effective. We may implement no more than one (1) fee
adjustment during any five (5) year period. If we decline to exercise our right to increase fees in a

iven five (5) year period despite a 5% or greater CPI increase, that potential fee increase will

accumulate and may be carried forward and applied in connection with a subsequent fee adjustment.

13.7. Security Interest. In order to secure payment of all amounts owed under the Definitive Agreements,

you hereby grant us a first priority, unsubordinated security interest in all of your furniture, fixtures,
equipment, signage, inventory, accounts receivable and realty (including your interest under all real

roperty and personal property leases) associated with your Studio, together with all similar propert
now owned or hereafter acquired, additions, substitutions, replacements, proceeds, and products
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thereof, wherever located, used in connection with your Studio (collectively, the “Collateral”). You

agree to execute all documents necessary to document, perfect and record our security interest in the
Collateral, including Uniform Commercial Code (UCC) financing statements used in the jurisdiction
in which your Studio is located. If you default under this Agreement we may, in addition to our other
rights and remedies under this Agreement, exercise all rights of a secured creditor granted by Law.
This Agreement constitutes a Security Agreement. You hereby irrevocably authorize us at any time
and from time to time to file in any filing office in any UCC jurisdiction any initial financing
statements and amendments thereto that: (a) indicate the Collateral (i) as all your assets or words of
similar effect, regardless of whether any particular asset comprising part of the Collateral falls within
the scope of the UCC of such jurisdiction, or (ii) as being of an equal or lesser scope or with greater
detail; and (b) provide any other information required by the UCC applicable in your jurisdiction, for

the sufficiency or filing office acceptance of any financing statement or amendment, including (i)
whether you are an organization, the type of organization and any organizational identification
number issued to you, and (ii) in the case of a financing statement filed as a fixture filing, a sufficient
description of real property to which the Collateral relates. If a third-party lender requests that we
subordinate our security interest in any assets of your Studio as a condition to lending you funds or
working capital for the development or operation of your Studio, we will agree to do so in
accordance with our then-current subordination policies.

13.8. Prepaid Liabilities. From time to time, we may establish policies and procedures in the Manual
overning: (a) the sale of qgift cards, Packages, memberships and other prepaid items from our
website or from a Studio; and (b) the method of accounting, financial reporting, characterization and

treatment of proceeds from the sale of gift cards, Packages, memberships and other prepaid items
that are attributable to treatments (or other goods or services) that may be redeemed on subsequent

visits (“Prepaid Liabilities™). If we allow you to retain the proceeds from the sale of gift cards

Packages, memberships or other prepaid items, we may require that you purchase a surety bond, or
other form of financial assurance that we designate or approve, in an amount equal to or greater than
the total amount of Prepaid Liabilities carried by your Studio. Upon the expiration or termination of
this Agreement, we may require you to pay us an amount equal to the total outstanding amount of
your Studio’s Prepaid Liabilities. We may also require, as a condition to Transfer, that you pay the

transferee an amount equal to the total outstanding amount of your Studio’s Prepaid Liabilities as of
the date of Transfer.

14. BRAND PROTECTION COVENANTS.

14.1. Reason for Covenants. The Intellectual Property, training and assistance we provide would not be
acquired except through implementation of this Agreement. You agree that competition by you, the
Owners or Persons associated with you or the Owners (including family members) could seriousl
jeopardize our franchise system because you and the Owners received an advantage through
knowledge of our day-to-day operations and Know-how. You and the Owners agree to comply with
the covenants in §14 to protect the Intellectual Property and our franchise system.

14.2. Intellectual Property and Confidential Information. You and the Owners agree to: (a) refrain

from using any Intellectual Property or Confidential Information in any business or for any purpose
other than the operation of your Studio pursuant to this Agreement; (b) maintain the confidentiality

of our Confidential Information at all times; (c) refrain from making unauthorized copies of
documents containing Confidential Information; (d) take all steps we reasonably require to prevent
unauthorized use or disclosure of Confidential Information; and (e) stop using the Intellectual

Property and Confidential Information immediately upon the expiration, termination or Transfer of
this Agreement (any Owner who ceases to be an Owner before the expiration, termination or
Transfer of this Agreement must stop using the Intellectual Property and Confidential Information
immediately at the time he or she ceases to be an Owner).

14.3. Unfair Competition. You and the Owners may not engage in any Prohibited Activities during the
Term or Post-Term Restricted Period. Notwithstanding the foregoing, you and the Owners may have
an_interest in a Competing Business during the Post-Term Restricted Period as long as the
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Competing Business is not located (and does not provide competitive goods or services to clients
located) within the Restricted Territory. If you or an Owner engages in a Prohibited Activity durin
the Post-Term Restricted Period (other than having an interest in a Competing Business permitted by
this Section), then the Post-Term Restricted Period applicable to you or the non-compliant Owner, as
applicable, shall be extended by the period of time during which you or the non-compliant Owner, as
applicable, engaged in the Prohibited Activity. For purposes of clarity, you and the Owners remain
bound by any non-competition covenants in other Definitive Agreements that remain in effect for a
period of time that extends beyond the expiration of the Post-Term Restricted Period under this
Agreement, and the expiration of the Post-Term Restricted Period under this Agreement does not in
any way diminish your or the Owners’ obligation to comply with such covenants.

14.4. Family Members. Because (a) an Owner could circumvent the intent of §14 by disclosing
Confidential Information to an immediate family member (i.e., spouse, parent, sibling, child, or
randchild) and (b) it would be difficult for us to prove whether the Owner disclosed Confidential

Information to the family member, each Owner agrees that he or she will be presumed to have
violated the terms of 8§14 if any member of his or her immediate family engages in any Prohibited
Activities during the Term or Post-Term Restricted Period or uses or discloses Confidential
Information. However, the Owner may rebut this presumption with evidence conclusively showing
he or she did not disclose Confidential Information to the family member.

14.5. Employees. All employees, officers, directors, independent contractors and other Persons associated
with you or your Studio must sign and send us a Confidentiality Agreement before accessing our
Confidential Information. You must: (a) use best efforts to ensure these individuals comply with the
Confidentiality Agreements; (b) immediately notify us of any breach that comes to your attention;
and (c) reimburse us for all expenses we incur to enforce a Confidentiality Agreement, including
attorneys’ fees and court costs.

14.6. Covenants Reasonable. You and the Owners agree that: (a) the covenants in 814 are reasonable
both in duration and geographic scope; (b) our use and enforcement of similar covenants with other
franchisees benefits you and the Owners by preventing them from unfairly competing with your
Studio; and (c) you and the Owners have sufficient resources, business experience and opportunities

to earn an adequate living while complying with the covenants in §14.

14.7. Breach of Covenants. You and the Owners agree that: (a) any breach of §14 is likely to cause
substantial and irreparable damage to us and/or other franchisees for which there is no adequate
remedy at Law; and (b) we are entitled to injunctive relief if you or an Owner breach §14, together
with any other relief available at equity or Law. We will notify you if we intend to seek injunctive
relief but we need not post a bond. If a court requires us to post a bond despite our agreement to the
contrary, the bond amount may not exceed $1,000. No remedy available to us under this Agreement
is exclusive of any other, but may be combined with others under this Agreement, or at Law or in
equity, including injunctive relief, specific performance and recovery of monetary damages.

15. YOUR OTHER RESPONSIBILITIES

15.1. Insurance. For your protection and ours, you agree to maintain the following insurance policies:

a) “all risk” property insurance coverage on all assets, including inventory, furniture, fixtures

equipment and other property used to operate the Studio, which must include coverage for fire,
vandalism and malicious mischief and have coverage limits of at least full replacement cost;

b) comprehensive general liability insurance against claims for bodily and personal injury, death
and property damage caused by or occurring in conjunction with the operation of your Studio,
containing minimum liability protection of $2,000,000 combined single limit per occurrence
and $4,000,000 in the aggregate (reduced to $1,000,000 combined single limit per occurrence
and $2,000,000 in the aggregate if you purchase optional commercial umbrella insurance with

minimum liability protection of $1,000,000 combined single limit per occurrence);
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minimum liability protection required for your commercial general liability policy;

d) automobile liability and property damage insurance covering all loss, liability, claim or expense

of any Kind whatsoever resulting from the use, operation, or maintenance of any automobiles or
motor vehicles, owned, leased or used by you or your officers, directors, employees, partners or
agents in the operation of your Studio, containing minimum liability protection of $1,000,000

combined single limit per occurrence;

e) business interruption insurance providing coverage for 100% of all expenses and financial
obligations for a minimum period of 12 months, including fees owed to us, which shall be
deemed to include average monthly royalty fees and brand fund fees imposed during (i) the 12-
month period preceding the event triggering coverage under the insurance policy or (ii) the

entire period of operations, if less than 12 months;
(f) worker’s compensation insurance and employer’s liability insurance as required by Law;

any insurance required under your lease or by Law; and

h) any other insurance we specify in the Manual from time to time.

These policies reflect our minimum reguirements and may not be adequate to fully protect your
interests. You may wish to procure additional coverage. You must provide us with proof of
coverage: (a) prior to the Opening Date; (b) within 10 days after a policy renewal; and (c) any other
time on demand. You must obtain these policies from licensed insurance carriers rated A or better by
AM Best or, if we so require, from an insurance carrier that we designate or approve. All polices
must be occurrence-based and primary/non-contributory. Each policy must satisfy all requirements

in the Manual and be endorsed to: (a) name us and our owners, officers and directors as additional
insureds; (b) waive all subrogation rights against us; and (c) provide us with at least 30 days’ prior
written notice of the termination, expiration, cancellation or modification of the policy. We may
disapprove any policy that fails to meet these criteria, and you must immediately secure a new policy
meeting our criteria. Upon 10 days’ notice, we may increase the minimum liability coverage amount
of any policy and/or require different or additional types of insurance, including excess liability
(umbrella) insurance, due to inflation, special risks, changes in Law or standards of liability, higher
damage awards or other relevant changes in circumstances. If you fail to maintain a required policy,
we may, at our option, obtain the policy on your behalf. If we do so, you must promptly sign any

application or other form required to obtain the policy and reimburse all premiums and other costs
We incur.

15.2. Books and Records. You must prepare complete and accurate books, records, accounts and tax
returns pertaining to your Business and keep copies for at least five (5) years after their preparation.
We may require you to prepare your books and records in compliance with our bookkeeping and
accounting standards and policies in the Manual. You must maintain, and send to us upon request, a
list of your clients. You must send us copies of your books and records within seven (7) days of our
reguest. You must obtain and use QuickBooks Online subscription. We may require you to provide
us with independent access to your QuickBooks Online account with permission to read all reports.

15.3. Reports.

a) Generally. You must prepare all reports we require including, without limitation, the reports
described below. Reports must be prepared in the form and manner we specify. You must send
us a copy of any required report upon request. We may independently access your Technology
Systems to retrieve and compile Business Data and generate any reports we deem appropriate,
including Gross Sales reports.

(b) Report of Initial Investment Costs. To assist us in updating our Franchise Disclosure Document,
you must complete and send us a report, in the form we designate, listing all expenses you incur

Page 18



in_connection with the development and opening of your Studio. You must send us the
completed report within 60 days after your Opening Date.

c) Gross Sales Reports. No later than each royalty fee due date, you must prepare a statement of

Gross Sales generated by your Studio during the prior reporting period. If you miscalculate
Gross Sales, you must notify us of the error no later than the end of the next reporting period.
Otherwise, you will not be entitled to a refund or credit of fees paid to us based on previously
reported Gross Sales.

(d) Advertising Expenditure Reports. We reserve the right to require you to prepare and submit
periodic reports of your advertising expenditures required by 8§10.3(b)_and §10.3(c)._All
advertising expenditure reports must include copies of receipts for the reported expenditures.

15.4. Financial Statements. Within 90 days after the end of each calendar year, you must prepare and
send us a balance sheet (as of the end of the calendar year) and profit and loss statement for the prior

calendar year. Financial statements must be: (a) verified and signed by you certifying to us that the
information is true, complete, and accurate; (b) prepared on an accrual basis in compliance with
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles; and (c) submitted in any format we reasonably require.

We may require that your financial statements be reviewed or audited by a certified public
accountant if you submit materially inaccurate financial statements on a prior occasion. You must
send us a copy of any financial statement required by this Section upon request. You hereby
authorize us to disclose Operational Data to prospective franchisees, Governmental Authorities and
other Persons for any reasonable business purpose, provided the disclosure is not prohibited by
applicable Law.

15.5. Legal Compliance. You must secure and maintain all required licenses, permits and regulatory
approvals and operate your Studio in compliance with all applicable Laws.

15.6. Reportable Events. You must notify us within two (2) business days after you become aware of any
of the following (each, a “Reportable Event”):

(a) the occurrence of an incident at your Studio involving significant personal injury;

(b) the issuance of a citation or notice of violation by a Governmental Authority (or the

commencement of an inguiry you believe is reasonably likely to lead to a citation or notice of
violation) relating to a health or safety matter involving your Studio;

(c) the commencement (or written threat) of an action, suit or proceeding against you, your Owners
and/or your Studio that is reasonably likely to materially and adversely affect you, your Studio
or the goodwill associated with the Marks; or

d) the conviction or indictment of any Owner for a felony or other crime reasonably likely to
materially and adversely affect you, your Studio or the goodwill associated with the Marks.

15.7. Data Ownership and Protection. We are the exclusive owner of all Business Data, whether
collected by you, us or any other Person. We hereby grant you a license to use the Business Data
solely for purposes of operating your Studio in compliance with this Agreement. You must protect
all Client Data with a level of control proportionate to the sensitivity of data. You must adhere to
applicable privacy Laws with respect to data which, if compromised, could have a negative impact
on our image or consumer confidence. You must comply with all applicable data protection Laws
and our data processing and data privacy policies in the Manual (if any). Upon request, you must
sign any data processing or data privacy agreement required by us or by Law. You further agree to:
(a) obtain, maintain and adhere to all applicable compliance standards established by PCI-DSS; (b)

establish appropriate administrative, technical and physical controls consistent with Law and PCI-
DSS to preserve the security and confidentiality of credit card information (in any form) that you

store, process, transmit or come in contact with; (¢) promptly notify us if you suspect, or there has
been, a security breach or potential compromise of credit card information; (d) provide us with

updates regarding the status of PCI-DSS via completed PClI AOC (Attestation of Compliance), PCI-
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DSS SAQ (Self-Assessment Questionnaire) or other mutually-agreed method; and (e) promptl

notify us of any PCI-DSS noncompliance to discuss your remediation efforts and timeline.
16. INSPECTION AND AUDIT

16.1. Inspections. For quality control purposes and to ensure compliance with this Agreement, we (or our

representative) may enter your Studio, evaluate your operations and inspect your books, records,
accounts and tax returns. We will determine the scope of the inspection, which may include, among
other things:

(a) evaluating the condition of your Studio for cleanliness, sanitation and state of repair;

b) examining and copying vour books, records, accounts and tax returns;

c) inspecting and testing your equipment;

(d) watching or participating in exercise or personal training sessions conducted at your Studio;

e) removing samples of inventory items for testing purposes;

(f) __monitoring and speaking with your staff and clients; and

contacting your landlord.

We may conduct inspections at any time without prior notice. We (or our representative) will use
reasonable efforts to minimize any interference with the operation of your Studio. You and your
employees must cooperate and not interfere with the inspection. You consent to us accessing your

Technology Systems to retrieve Business Data. You must reimburse all Travel Expenses and other
costs we incur to conduct an inspection to verify whether you remedied: (a) a health or safety issue

identified by a Governmental Authority; or (b) a breach of system standards we bring to your
attention. We bear the cost of all other inspections.

16.2. Audit. We may audit your books and records at any time. You must fully cooperate with us and any
Person we hire to conduct the audit. If an audit reveals an understatement of Gross Sales, you must
immediately pay us all additional fees you owe together with any late fee imposed pursuant to §13.4.

You must reimburse us for the cost of any audit (including reasonable accounting and attorneys’ fees

and Travel Expenses incurred by us or the auditor) that: (a) is required due to your failure to provide
information we request, preserve records or file reports as required by this Agreement; or (b) reveals
an_understatement of Gross Sales by at least 3%. We bear the cost of all other audits. Your
reimbursement of our audit costs does not preclude us from terminating this Agreement.

17. INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

17.1. Ownership and Use. You acknowledge that: (a) we are (or our affiliate is) the exclusive owner of
the Intellectual Property and the associated goodwill; and (b) your right to use the Intellectual

Property is derived solely from this Agreement and is limited to a license to operate your Studio
during the Term pursuant to, and only in compliance with, this Agreement and the Manual. You may
not use the Intellectual Property in connection with the sale of any unauthorized product or service or
in_any other manner not expressly authorized by us. Any unauthorized use of the Intellectual
Property constitutes an infringement of our rights. You must comply with all provisions in the
Manual governing use of the Intellectual Property. You will not acquire any goodwill, title or interest
in or to the Intellectual Property.

17.2. Intellectual Property Changes. We may change the Intellectual Property at any time in our sole
discretion, including the Copyrighted Materials, Know-how, Marks and/or System. You must
implement all Intellectual Property changes we require in accordance with our instructions. If we
require you to discontinue use of our primary Mark, THE EXERCISE COACH®, we will reimburse
you for out-of-pocket expenses you reasonably incur to change your primary signage. Other than the
foregoing limited reimbursement obligation, we have no liability to you for any expenses, losses or
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damages you incur (including loss of goodwill associated with a Mark) due to a change to the
Intellectual Property.

17.3. Use of Marks. You agree to: (a) use the Marks as the sole identification of your Studio; provided
however, that you must identi ourself as the independent owner of your Studio in the manner we
rescribe; (b) prominently display the Marks in the manner we prescribe on or in connection with

any advertising, promotional materials, displays, receipts, stationery and forms we designate to give
notice of trademark and service mark registrations and copyrights; and (c) obtain any fictitious or

assumed name registrations required by applicable Law. You may not: (a) use the Marks in an

modified form or as part of a corporate or trade name or with any prefix, suffix, or other modifying

words, desiagns or symbols (other than logos we license to you); (b) use the Marks when signing a
contract, lease, check or other agreement or in any other manner that may cause confusion or imply
we are liable for your obligations; (c) register or attempt to register a Mark, or a trademark
confusingly similar to a Mark, with a Governmental Authority; or (d) challenge or contest the

validity or ownership of our Marks.

17.4. Use of Know-how. We disclose our proprietary Know-how to you during training programs, in the
Manual and through other guidance furnished during the Term. You do not acquire any interest in
the Know-how other than the right to utilize it, during the Term, solely for purposes of developing
and operating your Studio in compliance with this Agreement and the Manual.

17.5. Improvements. If you (or your Owner or employee) conceive of or develop an Improvement, you
must send us a notice describing the Improvement. You must obtain our approval prior to using the
Improvement. Any Improvement we approve may be used by us and any Person we authorize to
operate a Studio, without any obligation to pay royalties or other fees to you or any other Person.
You or your Owner or employee, as applicable, must assign ownership of the Improvement to us or
our designee, without charge, together with all associated intellectual property rights, including the
right to grant sublicenses. If applicable Law precludes you from assigning ownership to us, then you
must grant us a perpetual royalty-free license to use, commercialize and sublicense the Improvement
in any manner we deem appropriate.

17.6. 1P Disputes. You must immediately notify us of any IP Dispute. You may not communicate with

any Person other than us and our counsel in connection with the IP Dispute. We have sole discretion
in deciding what action, if any, to take in response to an IP Dispute. We exclusively control all
litigation and other proceedings relating to IP Disputes. You must execute all documents, render all
assistance, and perform all acts that our counsel deems necessary or advisable to protect or maintain
our interest in the proceeding and/or protect the Intellectual Property.

17.7. Photo Release. You and vour Owners hereby grant us permission to: (a) take pictures, audios and/or
videos of your Studio, your Studio operations and your Owners and employees (“Recordings”); and
b) use, display and/or publish these Recordings in any manner we deem appropriate in our sole

discretion. You must obtain all required written consents from your Owners and employees to
accomplish the foregoing. Furthermore, you and your Owners and employees shall grant us a

perpetual, royalty-free, worldwide license to any pictures, audios, videos and/or marketing materials
that: (a) include or otherwise reference your Studio or our Marks; and (b) you or any of your Owners

or_employees produce, purchase, commission or pay for as works made for hire. We have no
obligation to pay any consideration to you, or to any of your Owners or employees, for any of the
rights or licenses to Recordings or for any rights otherwise granted to us by this Section.

18. INDEMNITY. You agree to indemnify the Indemnified Parties and hold them harmless for, from and
against any and all Losses and Expenses they incur as a result of or in connection with:

(a) the marketing, use or operation of your Studio;

b) the breach of a Definitive Agreement committed by you or your Owners or affiliates;

(c) the breach of an agreement with a third party committed by you or your Owners or affiliates;
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19.

(d) any representations made by you or your Owners to a transferee in connection with a Transfer;

(e) any Claim relating to taxes or penalties a Governmental Authority assesses against us as a direct result
of your failure to pay or perform functions required of you under this Agreement;

(f) libel, slander or disparaging comments made by you or your Owners, officers, employees or
independent contractors regarding the System, a Studio or an Indemnified Party (this provision does
not apply to disclosure of truthful information to Governmental Authorities);

(g) any labor, employment or similar type of Claim pertaining to your employees (including Claims
alleging we are a joint employer of your employees) or our relationship with you or your Owners
(including Claims alleging we are an employer of you and/or any of your Owners); or

(h) any actions, investigations, rulings or proceedings conducted by any Governmental Authority
(including the United States Department of | abor, Equal Employment Opportunity Commission or
National Labor Relations Board) relating to your employees.

You and your Owners must immediately notify us of any Claim or proceeding described above. The
Indemnified Parties have the right, in their sole discretion, to: (a) retain counsel of their choosing to
represent them with respect to the Claim; and (b) control the response thereto and the defense thereof,
including the right to settle the Claim. You may participate in the defense at your expense. You must fully
cooperate and assist the Indemnified Parties with the defense of the Claim and reimburse all costs and
expenses they incur in defending the Claim including, without limitation, mediation, arbitration or court
expenses, expert fees and Travel Expenses incurred by attorneys or expert witnesses to attend proceedings
or hearings relating to the matter. Your indemnification obligations survive and continue in full force and
effect after the Transfer, termination or expiration of this Agreement.

TRANSFERS

19.1. By Us-. This Agreement is fully assignable by us (without prior notice to you) and shall inure to the
benefit of any assignee(s) or other legal successor(s) to our interest in this Agreement, provided that
we shall, subsequent to any such assignment, remain liable for the-perfermanece-ef-ourany obligations
under-this-Agreement-upincurred by us prior to the effective date of the assignment. \We may also
delegate our obligations under this Agreement to one or more Persons without assigning the

Agreement.

7.2.19.2. By You-—Yeu-understand-that-the. The rights and duties created by this Agreement are personal
to you and yeurthe Owners-and-that-we-have-granted-the-area-development-. \We are granting you
franchise rights in reliance upon the individual-or—colective—character, skill, aptitude—attitude,
business ability and financial eapaeityresources of you and your Owners. FherefereBecause this
Agreement is a personal services contract, neither you nor any Owner may engage in anya Transfer
(other than a Permitted Transfer) without our prior written—approval. Any Transfer (other than a
Permitted Transfer) without our approval shat-beis void and constitutes a breach of this Agreement.
No Transfer may occur prior to the Opening Date. We will not unreasonably withhold our approval
of any-propeseda Transfer—provided-that if all of the following conditions are aH-satisfied:

(@) we believe the proposed transferee is—in-our-opinion—an-individual-of-good-meral-character;
who-has sufficient business experience, aptltude and financial resources to develep;—own and
operate aH-of-the—remaining-Exercise-Coach®businesses-that-are-to-be—developed-under—this
Agreementand—etherwise-a Studio and meets al-ef-our then—applicable—standardsminimum
criteria for area-developerfranchisees;

(b) you and vyour affiliates and yeur—Owners are in full compliance with the—terms—of-this
Agreement—al-Franchise-all Definitive Agreements—and—at-otheragreements-with-us—oer-our
il

S

(c) aH-ofthe Owners—ofthetransferee—have-the transferee’s owners successfully completed, or
madke arrangements to attend, the initial training program and the transferee pays us any
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applicable training fee;

(d) your landlord consents to the assignment of your lease to the transferee, or the transferee is
diligently pursuing an approved substitute location within the Site Selection Area;

(e) the transferee and its owners obtain all licenses and permits required by applicable Law to own
and operate the Studio;

(f) the transferee: (i) agrees to discharge and guarantee your obligations under this Agreement and
other contracts relating to the Business (including client contracts and supplier contracts); and
(i) signs any agreement we require to confirm the foregoing;

{)(g) the transferee and its owners sign our then—-current form of area—development-franchise
agreement (unless we—n—our—sele—diseretion; instruct you to assign this Agreement to the
transferee);) except that: (ai) the Term and renewal term(s) shall be the Term and renewal

term(s) remaining under this Agreement—(b} unless we specify otherwise; and (ii) the transferee

need not pay a separate '

franchise fee;

(h) the transferee agrees to remodel the Studio and upgrade all furniture, fixtures and equipment to
conform to our then-current standards and specifications (these changes must be completed
within 12 months after the Transfer or such shorter period of time we specify);

eaiyou or the transferee pay us a $2515, 000 transfer fee—whreh—eevers—the—transfer—fee for-this

net—pay—a—separate( |f the transferee is an exrstlnq franchrsee in our Svstem the transfer fee Hneler
each-Franehise-Agreementy—is reduced to $7,500 and covers all Studios you Transfer to such
transferee at the same time) to defray expenses we incur related to the Transfer (in addition to
the transfer fee, you must reimburse us for any commission we pay our broker if our broker
finds the transferee);

(i) you pay the transferee an amount equal to the total amount of outstanding Prepaid Liabilities
carried by your Studio as of the date of Transfer or you provide another form of financial
assurance we approve (such as transferring a surety bond to the transferee covering the Prepaid

Liabilities);
(k) you complete, sign and deliver to us, if we so request, an estoppel certificate in the form we
prescribed relating to the proposed Transfer;

H(1)you and your Owners sign a General Release-for-all-claims-arising-before-or-contemporaneoushy
e pen

[REN

(m) we-doyou agree to subordinate the transferee’s financial obligations owed to you to the
transferee’s financial obligations owed to us pursuant to the franchise agreement (we may
require you to enter into a written subordination agreement);

{gy(n)  we choose not eleet-to exercise our right of first refusal described in Seetion#5819.5; and

{h)(0)  you or the transferring Owner, as applicable, and the transferee have-satisfied-anysatisfy all

other conditions we reasonably require as a condition to eurapproval of the Transfer.




Jreeatlen)—Our consent to a Transfer shaII not constltute a waiver of any eCIalms we may—have
against the transferor-ner-shal-it-be-deemed-a-waiveref or our right to demand exact-comphianeethe
transferee comply with any-eftheall terms ercenditions-of the franchise by-the-transfereeagreement.

7.3.19.3. Permitted Transfers. You may engage in a Permitted Transfer without our prior approval, but

you must: (a) give us at least ten{10} days’ prior written-neticenotice; (b) upon our request, cause the
former Franchisee Entity to sign a corporate guarantee in the format we require to secure
performance of the new Franchisee Entity’s financial obligations under all Definitive Agreements (if
the Permitted Transfer results in a new Franchisee Entity); and (c) any new Owner (and their spouse)
must sign a Franchise Owner Agreement. You and the Owners (and transferee) must —¥ed-ane-the

Owmners-(and-the-transferee)-agree-to-sign all documents that-we reasonably request to effectuate and

document the Permitted Transfer.
7.4.19.4,  Owner Death or Disability-ef ar-Owner—Upen-the-. Within 180 days after an Owner’s death

or permanent dlsablllty—ef—an—aner the Owner S ewnershtp—mterestEgung Interes tin yeu—er—the

ef—thrséeetlen—anthe Busmess or Franchrsee Entltv must be Transferred to another Person in
compliance with §19.2 or §19.3. An Owner is deemed to have a “permanent disability” only if the
persenhe/she has a medical or mental problem that-prevents—the—persenpreventing him/her from
substantially complying with his-er/her obligations under this Agreement or operating the Business
in the manner required by this Agreement and the Manual for a continuous period of at least three (3)
months.

7.5.19.5.  Our Right of First Refusal. If you or an Owner desireswish to engage in a Transfer, you or the
Owner, as applicable, must obtain and send us a bona--fide;-signed-written- offer fremexecuted by
the—futy—diselosed purchaser and-—submit—an—exact—copyafter completion of the—offerto—us.due
diligence. We will-have 30 days after receipt-ofreceiving the offer to decide whether we—witio
purchase Wa#mmanmg—ama—devﬁepnmknghﬁ—mﬂ%ny—%@reme—@eae@—bu&m%—be
assighed—or-the-ownership-interest-in-yyou—as-appheable-the interest for the same price and upon the

same terms contained in the offer-thewever;, except we may substitute cash for any non-cash form of
payment proposed in the offer}-. If we notify you within the 30-day period that we intend to purchase
the interest-within-the-30-day-peried, you or the Owner, as applicable, must sell the interest to us. We
will have at-least-an additional 3060 days to prepare for closing. We-will-be-entitled-to-receive-from
youYou or the Owner, as applicable, must provide us with all customary representations and
warranties given-by-yeuasregarding the seHertitle to and condition of the assets or the-Owner-as-the

seHer—of the—ownership—interestEquity Interest that we purchase, or; at our elecoption, the

representations and warranties contained in the offer. If we do not exercise our right of first refusal,
you or the Owner, as applicable, may complete the Transfer to the purchaser pursuant to and-en-the
terms of the offer, subject to the requirements of Seetien—72-(819.2, including our approval of the
transferee)}—Hewever—if. If the sale te-thepurchaser-is not completed within 120 days after delivery
efwe receive the offer-te-us, or there is a material change into the terms of-the sale, we will again
have the right of first refusal specified in this Section. Our right of first refusal ia-this-Seetion-shall
not apply to anya Permitted Transfer.




9.20. _ TERMINATION-OFBEVELOPMENT-RIGHTS

20.1. —HvyeuBy You. You may terminate this Agreement if we fail to cure a material breach within 90

days after you send us a default notice specifying the nature of the breach. If you terminate pursuant

to §20.1, you must still comply with amy-your post-term ef-this-Agreement-weobligations described
in 821 (other than payment of liguidated damages) and all other obligations that survive the
termination of this Agreement.

20.2. By Us. We may terminate this Agreement, effective upon delivery of a notice of termination, for any
of the following reasons, all of which constitute material events of default and “good cause” for
termination, and without opportunity to cure except for any cure period expressly set forth below:

(a) if you are insolvent due to your inability to pay your debts as they become due;

b) if you file a voluntary petition in bankruptcy or any pleading seeking any reorganization

liguidation, dissolution or composition or other settlement with creditors under any Law, or you
are the subject of an involuntary bankruptcy (which may or may not be enforceable under the
Bankruptcy Act of 1978);

(c) if your Studio, or substantially all of its assets, are seized by a Government Official or taken
over or foreclosed upon by a creditor, lienholder or lessor;

(d) if a final judgment against you remains unsatisfied for 30 days aftergivingyou-written-notice-of
the-defautt-unless you-have-a supersedes or other appeal bond has been filed:;

e) if a levy of execution has been made upon the license granted by this Agreement or an

property used in your Business and is not discharged within five (5) days of the levy;
(f) if the Managing Owner fails to satisfactorily complete initial training as required by §5.1;

if you fail to identify an approved site, secure a fully executed lease and Lease Addendum or

open your Studio before the associated deadlines set forth in 80, 80 or §7.4, respectively;

(h) if you abandon or fail to operate your Studio for three (3) consecutive business days unless due
to Force Majeure (in which case §24.6 governs) or another reason we approve;

i) if a Governmental Authority suspends or revokes a license or permit required to lawfull
operate the Studio unless the suspension/revocation is overturned within 20 days thereafter;

(i) _if you operate the Studio in a manner that presents a health or safety hazard to your clients,
employees or the public and fail to cure within 24 hours after notice from us;

(k) if you underreport Gross Sales by at least 3% on two (2) or more occasions;

) if you fail to pay any amount owed to us, our affiliate or an approved or designated supplier
within 10 days after demand for payment (subject to your right to dispute, in good faith

amounts owed to third-party suppliers in accordance with §11.7(d));
(m)_if you fail to promptly notify us of a Reportable Event in accordance with §15.6;
(n) if you refuse to allow us (or our representative) to inspect your Studio;

no contest to, or are convicted of, a felony or other material crime;
(p) if you (or an Owner) fail to comply with a material Law applicable to your Studio;

if yvou (or an Owner) commit an act that can reasonably be expected to materially and adversel
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affect the reputation of the System or goodwill associated with the Marks;
(r) _if you (or an Owner) make a material misrepresentation to us at any time;
(s) __if you (or an Owner) make an unauthorized Transfer;
t) if you (or an Owner) use the Intellectual Property in an unauthorized manner;
(u) if you (or an Owner) breach a brand protection covenant in §14 or representation in §23.3;
(v) if an Owner (or their spouse) breaches a Franchise Owner Agreement;
(w) if the lease for your premises is terminated due to your default;
(x) _if we send you three (3) or more default notices within a 12-month period (even if cured-the

(y) _if we (or our affiliate) terminate any Definitive Agreement, other than an area development

agreement, due to a default committed by you (or vour affiliate or an Owner); or

(z) if you (or an Owner) breach any other provision of this Agreement, including any mandatory
provision in the Manual, and fail to cure within 30 days after receipt of a default notice.

If we send you a default notice we may cease to perform our obligations under this Agreement until
you cure the breach, unless our failure to perform would materially impair your ability to cure.

20.3. By Mutual Agreement. If you and we mutually agree in writing to terminate this Agreement, any
notice or cure period that might otherwise apply shall be deemed waived.

21. POST-TERM OBLIGATIONS.

21.1. Obligations of You and the Owners. After the termination, expiration or Transfer of this
Agreement, you and the Owners agree to:

a) immediately cease use of the Intellectual Property (including any proprietary software);

(b) comply with all post-term covenants described in §14 or a Franchise Owner Agreement;
(c) cancel all fictitious or assumed name registrations relating to your use of the Marks;

(d) pay us (or the transferee if you are completing a Transfer) an amount equal to your Studio’s

total outstanding Prepaid Liabilities, measured as of the effective date of the termination,
expiration or Transfer of this Agreement for unredeemed (or partially redeemed) gift cards, gift

certificates, Packages, memberships and other prepaid items purchased by clients from your
Studio (this clause does not apply to the extent we collect proceeds from these sales transactions

at the time of sale);
(e) pay us us all other amounts you owe including, if applicable, liquidated damages under §21.3;
(f) _provide us with a list of your current, former and prospective clients;
(g) comply with our data retention policies pertaining to Business Data;
(h) if we so request, assign all client contracts and client accounts to us or our designee;

(i) _if we so request, sell all EXERBOTICS® Equipment that we designate to Gymbot, us or our
designee for a purchase price determined as the depreciated value of the equipment calculated
on the straight-line method over a 10-year useful life (we may deduct the purchase price from
any liguidated damages you owe us);

i) comply with our instructions to return, destroy or transfer all copies of the Manual and
Copyrighted Materials and all signs, brochures, advertising and promotional materials, forms
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and other materials bearing the Marks or containing Confidential Information;

k) alter the interior and exterior of the premises to the extent necessary, or to the extent we require

to prevent any further resemblance to or connection with a Studio or our System, including

repainting the exterior and interior with new colors and removing trade dress, fixtures, signage,
window decals and décor items associated with a Studio;

) notify all telephone, listing and domain name registration companies of the termination or
expiration of your right to use: (i) any telephone numbers and/or domain names associated with
our Studio; and (ii) any reqular, classified or other telephone directory listings associated with
the Marks (you hereby authorize the foregoing companies to transfer such telephone numbers

domain names and listings to us and you authorize us, and appoint us and any officer we

designate as your attorney-in-fact to direct these companies to transfer the telephone numbers,
domain names and listings to us if you fail or refuse to do so); and

(m) provide us with satisfactory evidence of your compliance with the above obligations within 30
days after the effective date of the termination, expiration or Transfer of this Agreement.

Subsections (h), (j), (k)_and (I)_above shall not apply if you Transfer your Studio to an approved
transferee or we exercise our right to purchase your Studio. If an Owner transfers his or her entire
Equity Interest in the Business or Franchisee Entity but you continue to operate the Studio pursuant
to this Agreement, then this Section shall not apply to you (or to any remaining Owner) and the

former Owner shall be subject only to the obligations set forth in subsections (a) and (b) above.
21.2. Purchase Option.
(a) Generally. Upon termination or expiration of this Agreement we have the option to purchase

our Studio and/or its assets. If we exercise our purchase option, we will notify you of the assets

we wish to purchase (the “Acquired Assets™) within 20 days after the termination or expiration
date. If we exercise our purchase option we may require that: (i) you assign your lease to us at
no additional charge (if you lease the premises); or (ii) you or your affiliate enter into a lease
with us upon standard and commercially reasonable leasing terms, including rent at fair rental
value, for a term of 10 years or such shorter term that we specify (if you or your affiliate own
the real estate). You authorize us to contact any Person that financed your purchase of exercise
equipment to discuss the potential assumption or transfer of the financing arrangement (and the
financed equipment) to us or our designee. The purchase price for the Acquired Assets will be:
i) the purchase price established by the parties (if mutually agreed upon); or (ii) the Appraised
Value established in accordance with §21.2(b)_below; provided, however, that the purchase
price for EXERBOTICS® Equipment shall be determined in accordance with §21.1(i). We
may, at our option, assign our purchase option to a designee of our choosing.

(b) Appraisal Process. If the parties cannot agree on the purchase price, the purchase price shall be
the Appraised Value established in accordance with this Section. “Appraised Value” means the
fair market value of the Acquired Assets as of the date this Agreement terminates or expires, as
applicable; provided, however, that fair market value shall not include any value for goodwill
and/or the franchise rights granted by this Agreement. The parties shall attempt to mutually

agree upon a single independent appraiser. If they fail to do so, either party may demand the
appointment of three (3) appraisers in accordance with the following: (i) no later than 15 days

after the demand, each party shall appoint one (1) appraiser and notify the other party of the
appointed appraiser’s name and contact information; and (ii) no later than 30 days after the
demand, the two (2) appraisers appointed by the parties will jointly appoint a third (3"

appraiser. If either party fails to appoint an appraiser within the 15-day period, then the
appraiser appointed by the other party shall be deemed the single appraiser approved by the
parties. You must promptly provide any documents or information requested by the appraisers.

If a single appraiser is appointed, the purchase price shall be the Appraised Value established by
the appraiser. If three (3) appraisers are appointed, the purchase price shall be: (i) the Appraised

Value agreed upon by at least two (2) of the appraisers; or (ii) the average of the two (2
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Appraised Values that are closest to each other if none of the appraisers agree upon the
Appraised Value. Each party shall promptly pay 50% of the cost of the appraisal.

(c) Closing. without-limitation—yeurThe parties shall memorialize the acquisition by signing the

form of Asset Purchase Agreement (APA) we prescribe, which will include customary
representations and warranties regarding title to and the condition of the Acquired Assets. At
closing you must transfer good and clean title to the Acquired Assets, subject to any exceptions
set forth in the APA, and we must pay you the purchase price. We may deduct from the
purchase price: (i) any amounts you owe us or our affiliates under any Definitive Agreements
including, if applicable, liquidated damages and other damages owed (other than lost profits) as
a result of our termination of this Agreement due to your breach; and (ii) the amount of any
liabilities we assume on your behalf, including future rent and Prepaid Liabilities. We will have
at least 60 days after the purchase price of the Acquired Assets has been established to close the
transaction.

21.3. Ligquidated Damages. You must pay us liquidated damages if either: (a) we terminate this
Agreement due to your default; or (b) you terminate this Agreement in any manner other than as
permitted by 820.1_or §20.3. If the termination occurs with more than five (5) years left under the
Term, then the amount of liguidated damages is $50,000. If the termination occurs with less than five
(5) vears left under the Term, then liquidated damages are calculated as the product of Average
Monthly Fees multiplied by the lesser of (a) 24 or (b) the total number of full months remaining
under the Term as of the termination effective date. “Average Monthly Fees” means the combined
average _monthly royalty fee and brand fund fee (without regard to any fee waivers or other
reductions, and regardless of collection) imposed by this Agreement during the 12-month period
preceding the termination date (or during the period of time you operated the Business if less than 12
months). Liquidated damages are due 30 days after we send you an invoice detailing our calculation
of same. If we or Gymbot elect to repurchase your EXERBOTICS® Equipment in accordance with
§21.1(i), we may deduct the purchase price from the amount of liquidated damages owed. Liguidated
damages are in addition to and not in lieu of: (a) any fees or other amounts incurred by you prior to
the termination of this Agreement, all of which must be paid by you in accordance with the terms of
this Agreement; or (b) any damages we or our affiliate incur as a result of your breach of this
Agreement; provided, however, that we may not pursue a Claim against you for recovery of lost
future profits if you pay us all liquidated damages owed when due. The parties agree the amount of
liguidated damages set forth in this Section is in proportion to, and is necessary to protect, our
legitimate interests-in-the-Develepment, including: (a) encouraging our franchisees to commit to the
10-year franchise relationship in which both parties have already invested time and expense to
develop; (b) the time and expense we will incur to ensure your timely and orderly departure from our
franchise network and recruit a nevg/ franchisee to acquire franchise rights to the Territory-ane-right
protecting the reputation and goodwill associated with our Marks; and (d) partially compensating us
for financial damages we expect to incur as a result of your breach or wrongful termination. If this
liguidated damages clause is unenforceable under applicable Law, then we are only entitled to any

refund—of thedevelopment-fee—recover actual damages we incur as a result of your default or

improper termination.

22.1. Negotiation and Mediation. Except as otherwise provided below with respect to Excluded Claims,

the parties shall attempt in good faith to resolve any Dispute through informal discussions and
negotiations. If these efforts are unsuccessful, either party may submit the Dispute to mediation
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before a mutually-agreeable mediator prior to litigation. All negotiations and mediation proceedings
(including all discovery conducted therein and statements and settlement offers made by either party

or the mediator in connection with the mediation): (a) shall be strictly confidential; (b) shall
constitute “settlement negotiations” for purposes of federal and state rules of evidence; and (c) shall
not be admissible or otherwise used for any purpose in any court or arbitration proceeding (except

evidence that would otherwise be discoverable or admissible shall not be excluded from discovery or
made inadmissible simply because of its use in mediation). The mediator may not be called as a

witness for any purpose in any court proceeding. Any Dispute involving Claims alleging a breach of
8§14, 817 and/or 821 (referred to as “Excluded Claims™) is not subject to mandatory negotiation or

mediation unless both parties agree otherwise.

party makes a demand for mediation or (b) involves an Excluded Claim, then either party may file a
lawsuit in any state or federal court of general jurisdiction in accordance with the choice of venue
provision below. The parties hereby express their clear and unequivocal intent that a court, rather
than a mediator, has exclusive jurisdiction to decide the threshold issue of whether a Dispute
involves an Excluded Claim (i.e., whether any Claim alleges a breach of §14, 8§17 or §21).

22.3. Venue. All mediation and litigation shall take place in Montgomery County, Texas. The parties
irrevocably waive any objection to such venue and consent to the jurisdiction of such courts.

22.4. Attorneys’ Fees and Costs. If a Dispute is resolved through a judicial proceeding, the substantially
prevailing party is entitled to reimbursement of its costs and expenses, including reasonable
accounting and legal fees and court costs. In addition, if you or an Owner breach any term of a
Definitive Agreement, you must reimburse us for all reasonable legal fees and other expenses we
incur as a result of the breach, regardless of whether the breach is cured prior to commencement of
formal dispute resolution proceedings.

22.5. Waivers and Limitations. UNLESS PROHIBITED BY APPLICABLE LAW, ANY CLAIM
(OTHER THAN FOR PAYMENT OF MONIES OWED OR AN EXCLUDED CLAIM) MUST BE
BROUGHT BY FILING A WRITTEN DEMAND FOR MEDIATION WITHIN ONE (1) YEAR
FOLLOWING THE CONDUCT, ACT OR OTHER EVENT OR OCCURRENCE GIVING RISE
TO THE CLAIM, OR THE RIGHT TO ANY REMEDY WILL BE DEEMED FOREVER
WAIVED AND BARRED. WE AND YOU IRREVOCABLY WAIVE: (a) TRIAL BY JURY; AND
(b) THE RIGHT TO LITIGATE A DISPUTE ON A CLASS ACTION BASIS. IN ANY BREACH
OF CONTRACT CLAIM YOU BRING AGAINST US, YOUR MONETARY DAMAGES SHALL
IN NO EVENT EXCEED THE SUM OF THE INITIAL FRANCHISE FEE PLUS ALL ROYALTY
FEES PAID BY YOU UNDER THIS AGREEMENT.

23. REPRESENTATIONS.

23.1. Corporate Representations. You and the Owners jointly and severally represent and warrant to us
that the execution and delivery of this Agreement, and the performance of your obligations
hereunder, does not: (a) conflict with, breach or constitute a default under any agreement to which
you are (or any affiliate of yours is) a party or by which your (or your affiliate’s) assets are bound:;
(b) violate any order, injunction, decree, judgment or ruling of a Governmental Authority; or (c)
violate any applicable Law. If the franchisee is an Entity, you and the Owners also jointly and
severally represent and warrant to us that: (a) the Franchisee Entity is duly organized, validl
existing and in good standing under the Laws of the state of its formation and has the requisite power
and authority to enter into this Agreement and perform its obligations hereunder; and (b) the
execution and delivery of this Agreement have been duly authorized by all requisite corporate action
and this Agreement constitutes the legal, valid and binding obligation of, and is enforceable against,
the Franchisee Entity in accordance with its terms.

23.2. General Representations. You and the Owners jointly and severally represent and warrant to us that
ou and the Owners are aware that: (a) other franchisees may operate under different forms of

agreement and our obligations and rights with respect to franchisees differs materially in certain
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circumstances; and (b) we may negotiate terms or offer concessions to other franchisees and we have
no obligation to offer you the same or similar negotiated terms or concessions.

23.3. Anti-Terrorism Compliance. You and the Owners jointly and severally represent and warrant to us
that, to the best of your and their knowledge: (a) no property or interest owned by you or any Owner

is subject to being “blocked” under any Anti-Terrorism Law; (b) neither you nor any Owner, nor any
of their respective funding sources (including any legal or beneficial owner of an Equity Interest in
the Business or Franchisee Entity) or related parties is, or has ever been: (i) a terrorist or suspected
terrorist within the meaning of the Anti-Terrorism Law; or (ii) identified by name, alias, pseudonym,
nickname or address on any Terrorist List, including the list of “Specially Designated Nationals” or
“Blocked Persons” maintained by the U.S. Treasury Department’s Office of Foreign Assets Control
(texts currently available at www.home.treasury.gov); and (c) you and the Owners are in compliance
with, and shall continue to comply with, the Anti-Terrorism Law and all other U.S. Laws currently in
effect, or enacted in the future, that prohibit corrupt business practices, money laundering or the aid
or support of Persons who conspire to commit acts of terror against any Person or government. The
foregoing representations and warranties are ‘continuing’ representations and warranties for the
duration of the franchise relationship. Accordingly, you must immediately notify us of the
occurrence of any event or development of any circumstance that might render any of the foregoing
representations and warranties false, inaccurate or misleading.

24. GENERAL PROVISIONS

24.1. Governing Law. ¥YOUR -Except as governed by the United States Trademark Act of 1946

(Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. 8§ 1051, et seq) thls Aqreement and the franchise relatlonshm are

e#the%tate@f—'liexas%mu%he%reference to |ts pr|n0|ples of confllcts of Iaw} but any laweﬁhe%tate
ef-Texas_Law that regulates the offer and sale of franchises or business opportunities or governs the

relationship of a franchisor and its franchisee will not apply unless its jurisdictional requirements are
met independently without reference to this Section.
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24.2. Relationship of the Parties. Nothing in this Agreement creates a fiduciary relationship between the
parties or is intended to make either party a general or special agent, legal representative, joint
venture, partner, employee or servant of the other for any purpose. Throughout the Term you must,
in all dealings with third parties, conspicuously identify yourself as a franchisee and the independent
owner of your Studio. We may require that you display a written notice of independent ownership, in
the form we prescribe, at any location within your Studio that we specify. You must also include a
written indication of independent ownership on all agreements, forms, letterhead, advertising
materials, business cards and other materials that we specify. Neither party may: (a) make any
express or implied agreement, warranty or representation, or incur any debt, in the name of or on
behalf of the other; or (b) represent that our relationship is other than franchisor and franchisee.
Neither party is obligated by any agreement or representation made by the other party unless
expressly authorized by this Agreement.

11.2.24.3. Severability—

. Each section of this Agreement (and portion thereof) is severable. If applicable Law imposes mandatory
terms that conflict with this Agreement, the terms required by such Law shall govern to the extent of
the inconsistency. If a court concludes any promise or covenant in this Agreement is unreasonable or
unenforceable, we or the court may modify such promise or covenant to the minimum extent
necessary to make it enforceable.

11.3.24.4. Waivers. Each party may waive any obligation imposed on the other party in writing. Neither
party is deemed to have waived or impaired any of its rights under this Agreement, including the

right to require strict compliance with all terms of this Agreement or terminate this Agreement if the
other party fails to comply with such terms, by virtue of: (a) any custom or practice of the parties at
variance with the terms of this Agreement; (b) any failure, refusal or neglect by a party to exercise
any right under this Agreement or require the other party to strictly comply with any term of this
Agreement; (c) our waiver, failure or refusal to exercise any of our rights with respect to other
franchisees; or (d) our acceptance of payment from you after your breach.

24.5. Approvals. —W

11.4.—Foree-Majedre—Neither-we-ner-you-\Whenever this Agreement requires our approval, you must

make a timely written request for approval. Our approval must be in writing in order to bind us.
Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, if we fail to approve any request for
approval within the required period of time, we shall be deemed to have disapproved your request.

24.6. Force Majeure. Neither party shall be liable for loss or damage or deemed te-be-in breach of this

Agreement if eur-er-yeursuch party’s failure to perform eur-eryeurits obligations results from any
event of ferce-majeure—Any-delayresulting-fromForce Majeure; provided, however, that an event of
force-majeure-will-extend-Force Majeure shall not excuse or permit any failure to perform for more
than 180 days. If the period of non-performance acecordingly-or-excuse-performance—n-whoele-erin
part-as-exceeds 180 days from receipt of notice of the Force Majeure event, the party whose ability
to perform has not been affected may be-reasenable-underthe-circumstances—immediately terminate
this Agreement by giving notice of termination to the other party.

11.5.24.7. Binding Effect. This Agreement is binding upon the parties to-this-Agreementhereto and their
respective executors, administrators, heirs, assigns and successors in interest. Nothing in this
Agreement is intended, nor shall be deemed, to confer any rights or remedies upon any Person not a
party to this Agreement; provided, however, that the additional insureds listed in §15.1 and the
Indemnified Parties are intended third-party beneficiaries under this Agreement with respect to §15.1
and 818, respectively.

~ personor legal entity not a party to this Agreement.
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11.6. 2 —tategration—THIS AGREEMENT CONSTITUTES THE ENTIRE AGREEMENT
BETWEEN THE PARTIES AND MAY NOT, EXCEPT AS PERMITTED BY §11.2 AND §24.3,
BE CHANGED EXCEPT BY A WRITTEN DOCUMENT SIGNED BY BOTH PARTIES. Any
e-mat-correspendence-or-otherform-ofin addition, our issuance of a Site Approval Notice shall be
deemed to amend this Agreement to identify the approved site and Territory for your Studio,
regardless of whether you countersign and/or return the Site Approval Notice. Any email or
informal electronic communication shall not be deemed to modify this Agreement unless sueh
communicationit is signed by both parties and speetficatyexpressly states that-it is intended to
modify this Agreement. The attachment(s)attachments are part of this Agreement, which; together
with any Amendments or Addenda executed on or after the Effective Date, constitutes the entire
understanding and agreement of the parties,—and—there. There are no other oral or written
understandings or agreements between us—and—yeuthe parties about the subject matter of this
Agreement._As referenced above, all mandatory provisions of the Manual are part of this
Agreement. Any representations not specifically contained in this Agreement made before

entering |nto this Aqreement do not surV|ve after the signing of thls Aqreement —

aﬂeet—the%eenemtetetmsef—tmerbatgam—Nothmg in th|s Agreement is |ntended to dlsclalm any

of the representations we made in the Franchise Disclosure Document. No statement,
questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with the
commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i2) waiving any claims under
any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement; or (#b) disclaiming reliance
on any statement made by any franchlsor franchlse seller or other person actlng on behalf of the
franchisor. : ! e m-of any ! :

franchise:

This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise.

11.7.24.9. CevenantoefGood Faith Covenant. If applicable tLaw implies into this Agreement a covenant

of good faith and fair dealing-in-this-Agreementthe-partiesagree-that, the covenant shalimay not
|mpIy any rights or ebhgatlensrthat_ape bllgatlo |ncon3|stent W|th aiaw—eenstmeheneﬁthete#m&et

Agreement—(the express terms hereof ThIS Aqreement and the relatlonshlp of the partles that-is
inherent in this Agreement}, grants us the-discretion to make decisions, take actions and/or refrain
from taking actions not inconsistent with our explicit rights and obligations under this Agreement
that may affect-favorably or adversely affect your interests;—(i)-we. \We will use our judgment in
exereising-theto exercise this discretion based on our assessment of our own interests and balancing
theseour interests against the interests of our franchisees—generaty—{including—ourselves—and—our
affiliates-ifapphicable)and-specifically, but without considering yeurthe individual interests of you

or the4nernﬂdeal—mterestse#any otheHeameelar franchlsee—ﬁuﬂwu—ha\;ene—hmMy%eyeeﬁer

11.8.24.10.Rights of Parties are Cumulative. —The rights of the parties under this Agreement are
cumulative and no exercise or enforcement by eithera party of any right or remedy under this

Agreement will-precludeprecludes any other right or remedy available to such party under this
Agreement or by tLaw.
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11.9.24.11.Survival.- All provisions that expressly or by their nature survive the termination, expiration or
Transfer of this Agreement-{, or the Transfer of an ewnership-interestEquity Interest in the Business
or_Franchisee Entity, shall continue in full force and effect subsequent to and notwithstanding its
termination, expiration or Transfer and until they are satisfied in full or by their nature expire,
including, without limitation, §13, §14, §16, §18, 8§21, 822 and §24.

24.12. Construction. The headings in this Agreement are for convenience only and do not define, limit or
construe the contents of the sections or subsections. All references to Sections refer to the Sections
contained in this Agreement unless otherwise specified. All references to days in this Agreement
refer to calendar days unless otherwise specified. The term “you” as used in this Agreement is
applicable to one or more Persons, and the singular usage includes the plural and the masculine and
neuter usages include the other and the feminine and the possessive.

24.13. Time of Essence. Time is of the essence in this Agreement and every term thereof.

24.14. Notices. All notices and notifications given under this Agreement must be in writing and must be
delivered by: (a) hand delivery; (b) reqistered or certified air mail, postage prepaid, return receipt

requested; (c) special delivery service (e.q., Federal Express, DHL, UPS, etc.); or (d) email, in each
case to the following addresses (which may be changed upon 10 business days’ prior notice):

YOU: As set forth in Part A of ATTACHMENT "A"

UsS: Exercise Coach USA, LI C
531 Telser Rd., Lake Zurich, Illinois 60084
Attention: Zulma Bianca
Email: zulma@exercisecoach.com
(with copies to: b.bundy@exercisecoach.com & m.essex@exercisecoach.com)

Notice is deemed given on the earliest to occur of: (i) the date delivered by hand: (ii) the third (3"
business day after placed in the mail or provided to special delivery services in accordance with
clause (b) or (c) above; or (iii) the first (1% calendar day after sent by email.

24.15.Counterparts. This Agreement may be signed in multiple counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original and all of which together shall constitute but one and the same document.

* * %

The parties below have executed this Agreement effective as of the Effective Date first above written.

FRANCHISOR:
Exercise Coach USA, LLC, an Illinois limited
liability company
By:
Name:
Title:
YOU (If you are an Entity): YOU (If you are not an Entity):
a(n) Name:
By:
Name: Name:
Title:
Name:
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ATTACHMENT "A"

TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

DEAL TERMS
A. Franchisee Details
Name of Franchisee: [ ]
Is the franchisee one or more natural Persons signing in their individual capacity? Yes: No:
Type of Entity and State of Formation™* (if applicable): [ ]

* _If the franchisee is a business Entity, each Person holding a direct or indirect Equity Interest in the
Franchisee Entity, and spouse of each such Person who is a natural Person, must sign the Franchise
Owner Agreement concurrently with the execution of this Agreement.

The following table includes the full name of each Person holding a direct or indirect Equity Interest in the
Business or Franchisee Entity, as applicable, along with a description of their Equity Interest.

Notice Address:

Attention:
Email:

B. Initial Franchise Fee

Your initial franchise fee is as follows (we will check the approximate box):

— $49,500 (standard)
$44,550 (veteran’s discount)
$40,000 (2™ Studio developed under an ADA)
$25,000 (3" or 4™ Studio developed under an ADA)

$20,000 gsth or subsequent Studio developed under an ADA)
C. Site Selection Area

The Site Selection Area referenced in the Franchise Agreement consists of the following geographic area:
[ 1; provided, however, that the Site

Selection Area excludes, and shall not be deemed to include, any territory assigned to another Studio that: (a)
is open and operating, under construction, or for which a site has been approved, in each case as of the
Effective Date; and (b) is located (or will be located) in the geographic area described in this Part C.

* The Site Selection Area is not your Territory. Except to the extent provided in §3.3_during the Site
Selection Protection Period, there are no territorial protections associated with the Site Selection Area.




D. Approved Site

We hereby approve the site listed below for your Studio.
Approved Address: [ ]

* _If the site for your Studio has not been approved by us at the time this Agreement is signed, we will send
you a Site Approval Notice in accordance with 80 listing the address of your approved site.

E. Territory

The Territory referenced in the Franchise Agreement consists of, and shall be limited to, the following
geographic area (as may be further depicted on a map attached below or the following page):

[ ]

The number of qualified households in the Territory is: [ ]

If the boundaries that define the Territory change during the Term, the boundaries of your Territory will
remain unaffected and will continue to be defined by the boundaries that were in effect as of the Effective
Date (as may be depicted on a map attached below or on the following page).

* _If the site for your Studio has not been approved by us before this Agreement is signed, we will send you a
Site Approval Notice in accordance with 83.1 to identify the geographic area that comprises your
Territory.

Insert Map Below (if applicable



E. Equipment Package

ITEMS PURCHASED QUANTITY ESTIMATED T

EXERBOTICS® Leg Press Machine 1 $16,000
EXERBOTICS® Combination Chest/Row Machine 1 $14,495
EXERBOTICS® Combination Shoulder Press/Pull-Down Machine 1 $14,495
EXERBOTICS® Nucleus Core/Back Extension Machine 1 14,495
EXERBOTICS® 360 Trainer 1 $3,495
EXERBOTICS® Balance Tracker 1 $1,600*
EXERBOTICS® Cross Fire (optional) OQoril $0 to $14,495
EXERBOTICS® Squat/Deadlift Machine (optional) OQorl $0 to $17,500
EXERBOTICS® Leg Extension/Leg Curl Machine (optional) OQorl $0 to $14,000
Nautilus (or equivalent) Abduction/Adduction Machine 1 $4,495
Tuff Stuff (or equivalent) Multi-Trainer Machine 1 $4,295
InBody 270 Body Composition Scale 1 $5,995
SciFit Pro 2 Recumbent Bikes w/ Arm Ergometry (or equivalent) 2 11,980
EarthL ite Professional Hi-lo Stretch Tables 2 $3,200
Stretch Area Accessories** various $3,350

Estimated Shipping, Installation and Setup Costs

$9,750 to $11,800

Total Cost

$107,645 to $155,690




TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

FORM OF SITE APPROVAL NOTICE

[See Attached]



SITE APPROVAL NOTICE

Exercise Coach USA, LLC (“we” or “us”) is issuing this Site Approval Notice (this “Notice”) to
(“you™), effective , 202, in connection with the The

Exercise Coach Franchise Agreement (the “Franchise Agreement”) that we executed with you on
., 202 . The purpose of this Notice is to confirm our approval of the site you proposed for

your Studio and our designation of the boundaries of your “Territory”.
Approved Address:
Pursuant to 80 of the Franchise Agreement, we hereby approve the site listed below for your Studio:

Territory:

Pursuant to 83.1 of the Franchise Agreement, we hereby designate the following geographic area as your
Territory under the Franchise Agreement (as may be further depicted on the map attached on the followin

page):
[ ]

The number of qualified households in the Territory is: [ ]

If the boundaries that define the Territory change during the Term, the boundaries of your Territory will remain
unaffected and will continue to be defined by the boundaries that were in effect as of the date hereof (as may be

depicted on a map attached below or on the following page).

* * *

By sianing below, you and we agree that: (a) the address identified in this Notice shall be deemed the approved
site for your Studio established and operated pursuant to the Franchise Agreement; and (b) the geographic area
described in this Notice under “Territory” shall be deemed your Territory under the Franchise Agreement. You
acknowledge and agree that our acceptance of the site you proposed is in no way a representation by us that your
site will be successful. Rather, our acceptance merely indicates the site meets our minimum standards and
reguirements.

We request that you sign below and send us an executed copy of this Notice to acknowledge your receipt.
However, your failure or refusal to sign below will not invalidate or otherwise affect our designation of your
approved site or Territory. Our designation of your approved site and Territory, as set forth in this Notice, shall
be binding on you effective as of the effective date listed in the first paragraph in this Notice.

Franchisor Franchisee

Exercise Coach USA, LLC

By: By:
Name: Name:
Title: Title:

Date: Date:




[Insert Territory Map Below]



ATTACHMENT "'C"

1O FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
L EASE ADDENDUM

[See Attached]



LEASE ADDENDUM

This Lease Addendum (this “Agreement”) is executed as of 202 by and among Exercise Coach
USA, LLC, an lllinois limited liability company (“Franchisor™), [ ], a(n) [ 1, with
principal offices located at [ 1 (“Landlord™), and [ ],a(n) [ ], with
principal offices located at [ 1 (“Tenant™).

Background

A. On 202 Franchisor and Tenant executed a The Exercise Coach Franchise Agreement
the “Franchise Agreement”), pursuant to which Franchisor granted Tenant the right and obligation to

develop, open and operate a THE EXERCISE COACH® studio at the premises described in Exhibit “A”
(the “Premises™).

B. Concurrently with the execution of this Agreement, Landlord and Tenant are executing a lease agreement
(the “Lease™), pursuant to which Landlord will lease the Premises to Tenant.

C. To protect Franchisor’s rights and interests under the Franchise Agreement, Landlord agrees to grant certain
rights to Franchisor as set forth below.

Agreement

1. Default Notices. Landlord agrees to provide Franchisor with copies of all written default notices sent to
Tenant at the same time such notices are sent to Tenant. Landlord agrees to send such copies to Franchisor
by email and registered mail as set forth below (Franchisor may change the notice email and address from
time to time by sending written notice to Landlord):

Exercise Coach USA, LLC

531 Telser Rd., Lake Zurich, lllinois 60084
Attention:

Email:

2. Right to Cure. If Tenant defaults under the | ease, Franchisor has the right (but not the duty) to cure such

default within 15 days following the expiration of any applicable cure period. In such event, Franchisor may
immediately commence occupancy of the Premises as the tenant under the Lease without obtaining
Landlord’s or Tenant’s consent. Franchisor may thereafter assign the Lease to another THE EXERCISE
COACH® franchisee or to an entity owned and/or controlled by Franchisor. If it does, Franchisor must first
obtain Landlord’s written approval of the assignee. Landlord, however, must neither unreasonably withhold
nor delay its approval thereof. Landlord will acknowledge any such assignment in writing. No assignment
permitted under this Section is subject to any assignment or similar fee or will cause any rental acceleration.

3. Right to Assign. At any time, including, without limitation, upon the expiration or termination of the
Franchise Agreement, and without Landlord’s prior consent, Tenant may assign the Lease to Franchisor. In
such event, Franchisor may thereafter assign the Lease to another THE EXERCISE COACH® franchisee or
to an entity owned and/or controlled by Franchisor. If it does, Franchisor must first obtain Landlord’s
written approval of the assignee. Landlord, however, must neither unreasonably withhold nor delay its
approval thereof. Landlord will acknowledge any such assignment in writing. No assignment permitted
under this Section is subject to any assignment or similar fee or will cause any rental acceleration.

4. Right of First Refusal. Landlord hereby grants Franchisor the first right of refusal to lease the Premises as
the new tenant upon the expiration or termination of the Lease. Franchisor shall have a period of 30 days
after the expiration or termination of the Lease to decide whether to exercise its right of first refusal.

5. Cross Default. Landlord agrees the expiration or termination of the Franchise Agreement shall constitute a
default under the Lease, giving Franchisor the right, but not the obligation, to cure such default by
succeeding to Tenant’s interests under the Lease in accordance with §2 above.

6. Acknowledgment of Rights. Landlord acknowledges Franchisor’s rights under the Franchise Agreement to



enter the Premises, without bein uilty of trespass or any other tort or crime, to: (a) make an

modifications or alterations to the Premises that Franchisor deems necessary to protect its franchise system
or trademarks; and (b) remove any trade fixtures, interior or exterior signs and other items bearin
Franchisor’s trademarks or service marks upon the expiration or termination of the Franchise Agreement.
Landlord also acknowledges Franchisor’s option to acquire all fixtures, equipment and leasehold
improvements at the Premises for fair market value.

7. Computerized Exercise Equipment. Landlord agrees that (a) upon Tenant’s default and (b) upon the
expiration or termination of the Franchise Agreement, Franchisor shall have the option to purchase
Franchisee’s computerized exercise equipment and related equipment, including, without limitation, all
EXERBOTICS® equipment and any related server (collectively, the “Computerized Exercise Equipment”).
The Computerized Exercise Equipment requires an active software license to function that is not
commercially available. As a result, the Computerized Exercise Equipment has no market value to anyone
other than a franchisee. Without Franchisor’s prior written consent, which consent may be withheld in
Franchisor’s sole and absolute discretion, Landlord shall not acquire any ownership rights in, and may not
impose or assert any lien or other encumbrance with respect to, any Computerized Exercise Equipment
located at the Premises. Landlord acknowledges Franchisor’s right to enter the Premises and take possession
of the Computerized Exercise Equipment upon the expiration or termination of the Franchise Agreement
without being guilty of trespass or any other tort or crime.

8. Modification of Lease. Landlord and Tenant will not amend, modify, supplement, terminate, renew or
extend the Lease without Franchisor’s written consent.

9. Miscellaneous.

(a) In the event of any inconsistency between the terms of this Agreement and the terms of the Lease, the
terms of this Agreement control.

(b) All of the terms of this Agreement, whether so expressed or not, are binding upon, inure to the benefit
of, and are enforceable by the parties and their respective personal and legal representatives, heirs,
successors and permitted assigns.

¢) This Agreement may be amended, supplemented, waived or changed only by a written document signed
by all the parties to this Agreement and making specific reference to this Agreement.

(d) This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which is an original, but all of
which together constitute one and the same instrument.

In witness whereof, this Agreement has been executed the date and year first above written.

FRANCHISOR:

Exercise Coach USA, LLC, an lllinais limited liability company

By:
Name:
Title:

LANDLORD:

,(a)n

By:
Name:
Title:




TENANT:

,(a)n

By:
Name:
Title:




EXHIBIT “A” TO L EASE ADDENDUM

DESCRIPTION OF PREMISES




TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

FRANCHISE OWNER AGREEMENT

[See Attached]



FRANCHISE OWNER AGREEMENT

This Franchise Owner Agreement (this “Agreement”) is entered into by: (a) each of the undersigned Owners of

Franchisee (defined below); and (b) the spouse of each such Owner who is a natural Person, in favor of Exercise

Coach USA, LLC, an Illinois limited liability company, and its successors and assigns (“us’™). Each signatory to
this Agreement is referred to as “you”.

1. DEFINITIONS. Capitalized terms not defined above have the meanings given to them below, or if not

2.

3

defined below, the meanings given to them in the Franchise Agreement:

“Development Agreement” means, if applicable, the Area Development Agreement pursuant to which the
Franchise Agreement was executed.

“Franchise Agreement” means the The Exercise Coach Franchise Agreement executed by Franchisee with
an effective date of , 202

“Franchisee” means . For purposes of this Agreement, the term “Franchisee”
includes both: (a) [ ], as Franchisee under the Franchise Agreement; and (b)
the Person who signed the Development Agreement (if applicable), as Developer, if such Person is
different than Franchisee.

“Restricted Period” means the two-year period after the earliest to occur of: (a) the termination or
expiration of the Franchise Agreement; (b) the date Franchisee assigns the Franchise Agreement to another
Person with respect to whom neither you nor your spouse own an Equity Interest; or (c) the date neither
yOu nor your spouse own an Equity Interest in the Business or Franchisee Entity; provided however, that if
a_court of competent jurisdiction determines the two-year period is too long to be enforceable then
Restricted Period means the one-year period after the earliest to occur of: (a) the termination or expiration
of the Franchise Agreement; (b) the date Franchisee assigns the Franchise Agreement to another Person
with respect to whom neither you nor your spouse own an Equity Interest; or (c) the date neither you nor
your spouse own an Equity Interest in the Business or Franchisee Entity.

BACKGROUND. In your capacity as an Owner (or the spouse of an Owner) of Franchisee, you may gain

knowledge of our System and Know-how. You understand that protecting the Intellectual Property is vital to
our success and that of our franchisees and you could seriously jeopardize our franchise system if you were
to unfairly compete with us or misuse our Intellectual Property. In addition, you understand that certain
terms of the Franchise Agreement apply to “Owners” and not just Franchisee. You agree to comply with this
Agreement to: (a) avoid damaging our System by engaging in unfair competition; and (b) bind yourself to
the terms of the Franchise Agreement applicable to Owners.

. BRAND PROTECTION COVENANTS.

Intellectual Property and Confidential Information. You agree to: (i) refrain from using the Intellectual

Property or Confidential Information in any capacity or for any purpose other than the operation of
ranchlsee S Studio in comgllance with the Franchlse Agreement and Manual; g i) malntaln the

copies of documents containing Confidential Information; (iv) take all steps we reasonably require to

prevent unauthorized use or disclosure of Confidential Information; and (v) immediately stop using the

Intellectual Property and Confidential Information at such time that you are (or your spouse is) no

longer an Owner. You agree to assign to us or our designee, without charge, all rights to any
Improvement developed by you, including the right to grant sublicenses. If applicable Law precludes
you from assigning ownership to us, then you agree to perpetually license the Improvement to us, free
of charge, with full rights to use, commercialize and sublicense the same.

your spouse is) an Owner! or (ii) during the Restricted Period. Notwithstanding the foregoing, you may
have an interest in a Competing Business during the Restricted Period as long as the Competing
Business is not located (and does not provide competitive goods or services to clients located) within the

Restricted Territory. If you engage in any Prohibited Activity during the Restricted Period (other than



having an interest in a Competing Business permitted by this Section) your Restricted Period will be

extended by the period of time during which you engaged in the Prohibited Activity. Any such
extension of time will not constitute a waiver of your breach or impair any of our rights or remedies
relating to your breach. For purposes of clarity, you remain bound by any non-competition covenants in
other Definitive Agreements that remain in effect for a period of time that extends beyond the expiration
of the Restricted Period under this Agreement, and the expiration of the Restricted Period under this
Agreement does not in any way diminish your obligation to comply with such other covenants.

(c) Famrl¥ Members You could circumvent the gurgose of 83 by drsclosrng Confrdentral Informatron to

uses or drscloses Confidential Information. However, you may rebut this presumption with evidence
conclusively showing you did not disclose Confidential Information to the family member.

d) Covenants Reasonable. You aaree that: (i) the covenants in 83 are reasonable in duration and

geographic scope; and (ii) you have sufficient resources, business experience and opportunities to earn

an adequate living while complying with these covenants. Although you and we believe the covenants
in 83 are reasonable we may, upon written notice to you, unilaterally modify the brand protection

covenants in 83 of this Agreement by limiting the scope of the Prohibited Activities, narrowing the

definition of a Competing Business, shortening the duration of the Restricted Period, reducing the

geographic scope of the Restricted Territory and/or reducing the scope of any other covenant imposed
upon you under 83 of this Agreement to ensure the covenants are enforceable under applicable Law.

e) Breach. You agree that: (i) any failure to comply with 83 is likely to cause substantial and irreparable
damage to us and/or other franchisees for which there is no adequate remedy at law; and (ii) we are

entitled to injunctive relief if you breach §3 together with any other relief available at equity or law. We
will notify you if we intend to seek injunctive relief but we need not post a bond. If a court requires that
we post a bond despite our mutual agreement to the contrary, the bond amount may not exceed $1,000.
No remedy available to us under this Agreement is exclusive of any other, but may be combined with
others under this Agreement, or at law or in equity, including injunctive relief, specific performance and
recovery of monetary damages.

4. TRANSFER RESTRICTIONS. We must approve all Persons who own an Equity Interest in the Business
or Franchisee Entity. If you are an Owner, you agree that you will not Transfer any Equity Interest in the
Business or Franchisee Entity except in accordance with §19 of the Franchise Agreement.

5. FINANCIAL SECURITY. In order to secure Franchisee’s financial obligations under the Franchise
Agreement and all other Definitive Agreements (collectively, the “Secured Agreements”) you hereb

ersonally and unconditionally: (a) guarantee to us and our successors and assigns, that Franchisee shall
punctually fulfil all of its payment and other financial obligations under the Secured Agreements; and
b) agree to be personally bound by, and personally liable for, each and every monetary provision in the
Secured Agreements. You waive: (i) acceptance and notice of acceptance b _us of the foregoin
undertakings; (ii) notice of demand for payment of any indebtedness guaranteed:; rotest and notice of
default to any party with respect to the indebtedness guaranteed; (iv) any right you may have to require that
an action be brought against Franchisee or any other Person as a condition of liability; and (v) the defense of

the statute of I|m|tat|0ns in_any actron hereunder 0r for the collectron of any mdebtedness hereby
with Franchrsee and all other signatories to this Agreement; (b) you will render any payment required under

the Secured Agreements upon demand if Franchisee fails to promptly do so; (c) your liability is not
contingent or conditioned upon our pursuit of any remedies against Franchisee or any other Person; and
(d) your liability will not be diminished, relieved or otherwise affected by any extension of time, credit or
other indulgence we grant to Franchisee or any other Person, including the acceptance of any partial
payment or performance, or the compromise or release of any Claims, none of which shall in any way
modify or amend this guarantee, which remains continuing and irrevocable during the term of each Secured

Agreement and following the termination, expiration or transfer of each Secured Agreement to the extent




any financial obligations under a Secured Agreement survive such termination, expiration or transfer. This
guaranty will continue unchanged by the occurrence of any bankruptcy of Franchisee or any assignee or
successor of Franchisee or by any abandonment of one or more of the Secured Agreements by a trustee of
Franchisee. Neither your obligation to make payment in accordance with the terms of this undertaking nor
any remedy for enforcement will be impaired, modified, released or limited in any manner whatsoever by
any impairment, modification, release or limitation of the liability of Franchisee or its estate in bankruptcy
or of any remedy for enforcement, resulting from the operation of any present or future provision of the U.S.
Bankruptcy Act or other statute, or from the decision of any court or agency.

6. REPRESENTATION. You represent to us that you received a copy of the executed Franchise Agreement.

7. DISPUTE RESOLUTION. Any dispute between the parties relating to this Agreement shall be brought in
accordance with the dispute resolution provisions set forth in the Franchise Agreement, which are
incorporated into this Agreement by reference as if fully set forth herein. You acknowledge and agree that
your breach of this Agreement constitutes a material event of default under the Franchise Agreement,
permitting us to terminate the Franchise Agreement in accordance with its terms.

8. MISCELLANEOUS.

(a) If either party hires an attorney or files suit against the other party for breach of this Agreement, the
losing party must reimburse the prevailing party for its reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs.

(b) This Agreement is governed by the Laws of Texas.

(c) Any Claim or defense you may have against us or against Franchisee, regardless of cause or origin,
cannot be used as a defense against our enforcement of this Agreement.

(d) Each section of this Agreement (and portion thereof) is severable. If any section (or portion thereof) is
unenforceable, it shall not affect the enforceability of any other section (or portion thereof). A court may
revise any provision of this Agreement to the extent necessary to make the provision enforceable.

(e) We may deliver to you any notice contemplated by this Agreement in the same manner and to the same
address listed in the notice provision of the Franchise Agreement and any such delivery shall be deemed
effective for purposes of this Agreement. You may change the address to which notices must be sent by
sending us a written notice requesting such change, which notice shall be delivered in the manner and to
the address listed in the Franchise Agreement.

Each of the undersigned has executed this Agreement as of the date or dates set forth below.
OWNER / SPOUSE

By:

Name:

Date:

WNER / SP E
By:
Name:
Date:




1O FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
ACH AUTHORIZATION FORM
[See Attached]



Franchisee Name Business No.
Franchisee Mailing Address (street) Franchisee Phone No.

Franchisee Mailing Address (city, state, zip)

Contact Name, Address and Phone number (if different from above)

Franchisee Fax No. Franchisee Email Address

Bank Account Information:

Bank Name

Bank Mailing Address (street, city, state, zip)
[] Checking [] Savings

Bank Account No. (check one) Bank Routing No. (9 digits)
Bank Mailing Address (city, state, zip) Bank Phone No.

Franchisee hereby authorizes Exercise Coach USA, LLC (“Franchisor”) to initiate debit entries to Franchisee’s account with the

Bank listed above and Franchisee authorizes the Bank to accept and to debit the amount of such entries to Franchisee’s account. Each

debit shall be made from time to time in an amount sufficient to cover any fees payable to Franchisor pursuant to any agreement
between Franchisor and Franchisee as well as to cover any purchases of goods or services from Franchisor or any affiliate of

Franchisor. Franchisee agrees to be bound by the National Automated Clearing House Association (NACHA) rules in the
administration of these debit entries. Debit entries will be initiated only as authorized above. This authorization is to remain in full
force and effect until Franchisor has received written notification from Franchisee of its termination in such time and in such manner
as to afford Franchisor and the Bank a reasonable opportunity to act on it. Franchisee shall notify Franchisor of any changes to any of

the information contained in this authorization form at least 30 days before such change becomes effective.

Signature: Date:

Name:

Title:

Federal Tax ID Number:

NOTE: FRANCHISEE MUST ATTACH A VOIDED CHECK RELATING TO THE BANK ACCOUNT.




ATTACHMENT "F"

TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

CONFIDENTIALITY AGREEMENT

[See Attached]




CONFIDENTIALITY AGREEMENT

This Agreement (this “Agreement™) is entered into by the undersigned (“you™) in favor of Exercise Coach USA

LLC, an Illinois limited liability company, and its successors and assigns (“‘us”™).

1. DEFINITIONS. Capitalized terms that are not defined above have the meanings given to them below:

“Business Data” means all data pertaining to Franchisee’s Studio, clients and business operations, whether
collected by you, Franchisee, us or any other person.

“Confidential Information” means and includes: (a) Know-How; (b) Business Data, including the names,
contact information and other data pertaining to current, former, or prospective Studio clients; (c
information in the Manual or comprising the System; (d) terms of the Franchise Agreement (and related
agreements) signed by Franchisee in connection with the Studio; and (e) all other concepts, ideas, trade
secrets, financial information, marketing strategies, expansion strategies, studies, supplier information,
client information, franchisee information, investor information, flow charts, inventions, mask works
improvements, discoveries, standards, specifications, formulae, recipes, designs, sketches, drawings,

policies, processes, procedures, methodologies and techniques, together with analyses, compilations, studies
or other documents that are: (i) designated as confidential; (ii) known by you to be considered confidential

by us; and/or (iii) reasonably to be considered confidential due to their nature. Confidential Information
does not include information that: (a) is now, or subsequently becomes, generally available to the public
(except as a result of a breach of confidentiality obligations by you, Franchisee or Franchisee’s owners,
employees or other constituents); (b) you can demonstrate was rightfully in your possession, without
obligation of nondisclosure, before we (or any person associated with us) or Franchisee (or any person
associated with Franchisee) disclosed the information to you; (c) is independently developed by you without
any use of, or reference to, any Confidential Information; or (d) is rightfully obtained from a third party who

has the right to transfer or disclose the information to you without breaching a confidentiality covenant
imposed on such third party.

“Copyrighted Materials” means all copyrightable materials for which we or our affiliate claim or secure
common law or registered copyright protection and that we allow franchisees to use, sell or display in
connection with the marketing and/or operation of a Studio.

“Franchisee” means the THE EXERCISE COACH® franchisee for whom you are an employee or
independent contractor.

“Improvement” means any idea, addition, modification or improvement to the (a) goods or services offered
or sold at a Studio, (b) method of operation of a Studio, (c) processes, systems, protocols or procedures

utilized by a Studio, (d) marketing, advertising or promotional materials, programs or strategies utilized by a

Studio or (e) trademarks, service marks, logos or other intellectual property utilized by a Studio, whether
developed by you, Franchisee, us or any other person.

“Intellectual Property” means, collectively or individually, the Business Data, Copyrighted Materials,
Improvements, Know-how, Marks and System.

“Know-how” means and includes our (and our affiliates’) trade secrets and other proprietary information
relating to the design, construction, development, marketing or operation of a Studio including, but not
limited to: architectural plans, drawings and specifications for a prototype Studio; site selection criteria;
methods, techniques, standards, specifications, policies and procedures; supplier information and pricing;
marketing and merchandising strategies; and information comprising the System or included in the Manual.

‘Manual” means our confidential brand standards manual for the operation of a Studio.

“Marks” means and includes all service marks, trademarks, trade names and logos that we designate from
time to time and authorize Studios to use, including THE EXERCISE COACH?® and associated logos. The
Marks also include any distinctive trade dress used to identify a Studio or the products or services it sells.

“Studio” means any studio we authorize to operate under the Marks and use our System.

‘System” means the system we developed for the operation of a Studio, the distinctive characteristics of
which include: distinctive interior and exterior design, décor, signage, color scheme and other trade dress




elements; utilization of proprietary EXERBOTICS® equipment, strength scoring methodologies and other
technology and data-driven protocols; training programs; development and implementation of strategic
relationships; advertising and marketing strategies; merchandising strategies; and operating system.

2. BACKGROUND. You are an employee or independent contractor of Franchisee. As a result of this
association, you may gain knowledge of our System and Know-how. You understand that protecting the
Intellectual Property is vital to our success and that of our franchisees and that you could seriously
jeopardize our franchise system if you were to misuse our Intellectual Property or engage in unfair
competition. To avoid such damage, you agree to comply with the terms of this Agreement.

3. YOUR COVENANTS AND OBLIGATIONS.

a) Protection of Confidential Information and IP. You agree to: (i) refrain from using the Intellectual

Property or Confidential Information in any business or for an;g purpose other than the operation of

Franchisee’s Studio for the exclusive benefit of Franchisee; refrain from using the Intellectual
Property or Confidential Information for any purpose or in any manner unrelated to the performance of
your resgonsmllltles to Franchlsee in accordance with the terms of your emglo;gment or engagement

from making unauthorized copies of documents containing Confidential Information; (v) take all steps

we reasonably require to prevent unauthorized use or disclosure of Confidential Information; and (vi

immediately stop using the Intellectual Property and Confidential Information at such time that you are
no longer an employee or independent contractor of Franchisee.

b) Improvements. You agree to assign to us or our designee, without charge, all rights to any Improvement

developed by you, including the right to grant sublicenses. If applicable law precludes you from
assigning ownership of any Improvement to us, then such Improvement shall be perpetually licensed by
you to us free of charge, with full rights to use, commercialize and sublicense the same.

c) Client Information. All data and information pertaining to Studio clients (including names, contact
information and other data) are exclusively owned by us and/or Franchisee and constitute Confidential

Information and Know-How for purposes of this Agreement. You are strictly prohibited from using any
such data or information for any purpose other to perform your duties on behalf (and for the exclusive
benefit) of the Studio. You may not maintain a list of Studio clients or remove any such information
from the Studio’s premises. You acknowledge the client list is a unique and valuable asset that
constitutes a trade secret, and that we and Franchisee would be irreparably harmed if you were
permitted to use the client list for any purpose other than for the benefit of the Studio in accordance with
the terms of your employment or engagement with Franchisee.

(d) Nonsolicitation of Clients. Studio clients are acquired through our, and Franchisee’s, marketing efforts

and expenditures, the goodwill associated with our name and the training provided to you. Any
solicitation of Studio clients or use of their information in an unauthorized manner constitutes a

deceptive and unfair trade practice and a violation of our (and Franchisee’s) rights and ownershi

interest in the client relationship and associated data, regardless of whether you provided personal
training or other services to the client while working at the Studio. At such time that you no longer work
at a Studio, you are permitted to compete with the Studio (and other Studios) in a fair and ethical
manner. You may not, however, solicit Studio clients for any purpose at any time while you work, or
after you cease to work, at a Studio. If you serve as a coach at the Studio, any client to whom you
provide personal training services while you work at a Studio may decide, in their sole discretion,
whether to continue to work with you as their personal trainer after you cease to work at a Studio.
However! you are stnctl;g grohlblted from soliciting the cllent or |n|t|at|ng any communlcatlons with the

nformatlon! or !III! your future business activities or services.

4. FAMILY MEMBERS. You could circumvent the intent of this Agreement by disclosing Confidential
Information to immediate family members (i.e., parent, sibling, child, or grandchild) and it would be
difficult for us to prove your breach. For that reason you are presumed to have breached this Agreement if
an_immediate family member uses or discloses Confidential Information or engages in any actions or



activities prohibited by §3. However, you may rebut this presumption with evidence conclusively showin
you did not disclose Confidential Information to the family member.

5. BREACH. You agree that: (a) your breach of this Agreement is likely to cause substantial and irreparable

damage to us and Franchisee for which there is no adequate remedy at law; and (b) we are entitled to
injunctive relief if you breach this Agreement together with any other relief available at equity or law. We
will notify you if we intend to seek injunctive relief but we need not post a bond. If a court requires us to
post a bond despite our mutual agreement to the contrary, the bond amount may not exceed $1,000. No
remedy available to us under this Agreement is exclusive of any other, but may be combined with others
under this Agreement, or at law or in equity, including injunctive relief, specific performance and recovery
of monetary damages.

6. THIRD-PARTY BENEFICIARY. Franchisee is an express and intended third-party beneficiary of this
Agreement with the right to directly enforce the terms of this Agreement against you.

7. MISCELLANE .
a) If we hire an attorney or file suit against you for breach of this Agreement and we prevail, you must
reimburse us for our reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs.

b) This Agreement is governed by the laws of Texas. Any legal proceedings arising out of this Agreement
must be brought exclusively in a court of competent jurisdiction in Montgomery County, Texas.

(c) Each section of this Agreement (and portion thereof) is severable. If any section (or portion thereof) is
unenforceable, it shall not affect the enforceability of any other section (or portion thereof). A court may
revise any provision of this Agreement to the extent necessary to make the provision enforceable.

This Agreement is executed as of the date set forth below.

By:
Name:
Date:
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AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

This Area Development Agreement (this “Agreement™) is entered into as of , 202 (the
“Effective Date™) between Exercise Coach USA, LLC, an Illinois limited liability company (“we” or “us”) and
,a(n) (“you™).

25. DEFINITIONS. Capitalized terms not defined above have the meanings given to them below, or if not
defined below, the meanings given to them in the Initial Franchise Agreement.

“Developer Entity” means an Entity that: (a) signs this Agreement as the area developer (if this Agreement

is signed by an Entity); or (b) assumes this Agreement subsequent to its execution by the original Owners.

“Development Business” means the business you conduct pursuant to this Agreement consisting of
developing and opening Studios within the Development Territory.

“Development Schedule” means the schedule described in 84.1 and Part C of ATTACHMENT "A" for the
development of the Studios within the Development Territory.

‘Development Territory” means the geographic area described in Part D of ATTACHMENT "A";

provided, however, that the Development Territory excludes, and shall not be deemed to include, the
eographic area within any territory assigned to another Studio that: (a) is open and operating, under

construction, or for which a site has been approved, in each case as of the Effective Date; and (b) is located
(or will be located) in the geographic area described in Part D of ATTACHMENT "A".

“Discounted Initial Franchise Fee” means the discounted initial franchise fee set forth in Part B of
ATTACHMENT "A" applicable to each Studio other than your first Studio.

“Dispute” means any Claim, dispute or disagreement between the parties, including any matter pertaining
to: (a) the interpretation or enforcement of this Agreement; (b) the offer or sale of the area development

rights; or (c) the relationship between the parties.

“Franchise Agreement” means a The Exercise Coach Franchise Agreement executed by us and you (or
your affiliate) for the development and operation of a Studio pursuant to this Agreement.

“General Release” means our then-current form of Waiver and Release of Claims that you and your
Owners must sign pursuant to §7.2_in connection with a Transfer.

‘Initial Franchise Agreement” means the Franchise Agreement you execute for the first Studio to be
developed pursuant to this Agreement.

“MUO Training” means our then-current Multi-Unit Operator Training Program that we provide to area
developers and that includes instruction on multi-unit Studio operations.

“Owner” means a Person who meets any of the following criteria: (a) the Person directly signs this
Agreement as the area developer, either alone or in conjunction with one or more other Persons; (b) the
Person directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries owns an Equity Interest in the
Development Business or Developer Entity; (c) the Person directly signs a Franchise Agreement as the
franchisee, either alone or in conjunction with one or more other Persons; and/or (d) the Person directly or
indirectly through one or more intermediaries owns an Equity Interest in any affiliate of yours that executes
a Franchise Agreement as authorized by §6.

“Permitted Transfer” means a Transfer: (a) between existing Owners; (b) by the Owners to a new
Developer Entity for which such Owners collectively own and control 100% of the Equity Interests; or (c
of less than 20% of the Equity Interests in the Development Business or Developer Entity; provided,
however, that a Permitted Transfer does not include a Transfer that results in the Managing Owner owning
less than 20% of the Equity Interests in the Development Business or Developer Entity.

“Term” means the period of time beginning on the Effective Date of this Agreement and expiring on the
earlier to occur of: (a) the opening date listed in the Development Schedule for the last Studio you are

required to open; or (b) the date this Agreement is effectively terminated.

“Transfer” means any direct or indirect, voluntary or involuntary, assignment, sale, conveyance,
subdivision, sublicense or other transfer or disposition of:
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(a) this Agreement (or any interest therein);
(b) the area development rights granted by this Agreement (or any interest therein);

¢) the Development Business you conduct pursuant to this Agreement (or any interest therein); or

(d)an Equity Interest in the Development Business or Developer Entity;

including by: merger or consolidation; judicial award, order or decree; issuance of additional Equity
Interests (including public and private offerings); foreclosure of a security interest by a lender; or operation

of Law, will or a trust upon an Owner’s death (including via the Laws of intestate succession).

26. GRANT OF DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS. Subject to the terms of this Agreement, we hereby grant you
the right and obligation to develop, open and operate each of the Studios listed in the Development
Schedule. This Agreement does not grant you any right or license to use our Intellectual Property.

27. TERRITORIAL PROTECTIONS AND LIMITATIONS. During the Term we will not develop or
operate, or license a third party to develop or operate, a Studio that is located in the Development Territory.
We and our affiliates reserve the right to: (a) sell, and license third parties to sell, competitive or identical

oods and services (including under the Marks) within the Development Territory through Alternative

Channels of Distribution; and (b) sell EXERBOTICS® Equipment (and any other exercise, fitness or other

equipment developed in the future) and license proprietary software and technology to third parties within
the Development Territory except to the extent prohibited by the terms of the Participation Agreement.

28. DEVELOPMENT OBLIGATION

28.1. Development Schedule. You must develop, open and operate all Studios listed in the Development
Schedule. You must develop and open the Studios in strict compliance with the opening dates set
forth in the Development Schedule. We may, in our sole discretion, extend one or more opening
dates listed in the Development Schedule if you demonstrate to our satisfaction that you used best
efforts to comply with the opening date and the need for the extension is due to unforeseeable delays
rather than your lack of diligence or funding. The opening date listed in the Development Schedule
for a given Studio may be earlier than the opening date required under the terms of the associated
Franchise Agreement. In order to comply with the Development Schedule you must open each
Studio by the opening date listed in the Development Schedule even if such date is earlier than the
opening date required by the associated Franchise Agreement.

28.2. Reasonableness of Development Schedule. You represent that you: (a) have conducted your own

independent investigation and analysis of the prospects for development of the Studios in the
Development Territory; (b) approve the Development Schedule as being reasonable and viable; and

(c) recognize that any breach of the Development Schedule is a material breach of this Agreement.

28.3. Site Selection. All Studios you develop pursuant to this Agreement must be located in the
Development Territory. You must select the specific site for each Studio in compliance with our
then-current site selection criteria. We must approve the site for each Studio in accordance with the
applicable Franchise Agreement.

28.4. Franchise Agreements. You must sign a separate Franchise Agreement for each Studio. You must
sign the Initial Franchise Agreement for your first (1) Studio at the time you sign this Agreement.
We will not review proposed sites for a Studio until you sign the associated Franchise Agreement.
Each Franchise Agreement shall be our then-current form of Franchise Agreement (modified to

reflect the Discounted Initial Franchise Fee), the terms of which may vary materially and
substantially from the terms of the Initial Franchise Agreement; provided, however, that: (a) the
royalty fee and brand fund fee will not exceed the royalty fee and brand fund fee imposed by the
Initial Franchise Agreement; and (b) the initial franchise fee shall be deemed satisfied by the
development fee imposed under 85. You have no right to construct or operate a Studio until the
parties have signed a Franchise Agreement and all ancillary agreements for that Studio. You must
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develop, open and operate each Studio in compliance with the Franchise Agreement and the Manual.

28.5. Multi-Unit Operator Training Program. At the time you sign each Franchise Agreement under
this Agreement (excluding the Initial Franchise Agreement), you must pay us a $2,500 training fee to
cover MUO Training for your Managing Owner and up to two (2) additional Persons. Our current
MUO Training program is conducted remotely over a 6-month period following execution of the
Franchise Agreement. In connection with each Franchise Agreement executed pursuant to this
Agreement (excluding the Initial Franchise Agreement) you must pay us both: (a) a $2,500 training
fee for MUO Training (unless waived by us as set forth below); and (b) a $5,000 initial training fee
for the standard initial training program we provide for your management personnel and Coaches in
accordance with the Franchise Agreement. We reserve the right to waive MUQ Training (and the

associated $2,500 training fee) if: (a) your Managing Owner and all other staff members we
designate successfully completed MUO Training on a prior occasion; and (b) we determine, in our

sole discretion, that requiring such Persons to complete our then-current MUQO Training program is
not necessary.

28.6. Additional Studios. You may not develop any Studio other than the Studios listed in the
Development Schedule unless we, in our sole discretion, permit you to enter into a new area
development agreement, which would be upon such terms that we specify, after you develop all

Studios listed in the Development Schedule in accordance with this Agreement.

29. DEVELOPMENT FEE. At the time you sign this Agreement you must pay us: (a) the full initial franchise

fee for your first Studio in the amount set forth in Part B of ATTACHMENT "A"; and (b) the development
fee set forth in Part B of ATTACHMENT "A", which: (i) is calculated as the aggregate Discounted Initial

Franchise Fees imposed for all Studios you commit to develop under this Agreement (excluding the first

1%Y Studio; and (ii) is deemed to include, and satisfy in full, the initial franchise fee imposed under each

Franchise Agreement you sign pursuant to this Agreement (excluding the Initial Franchise Agreement).
The development fee is fully earned and nonrefundable upon execution of this Agreement.

30. DEVELOPER ENTITY. You represent that Part A of ATTACHMENT "A" includes a complete and
accurate list of your Owners. Upon request, you must send us a resolution of the Developer Entity
authorizing the execution of this Agreement, a copy of its organizational documents and a current

Certificate of Good Standing. You may form a separate Entity to enter into each Franchise Agreement
rovided that: (a) the Person(s) owning the Equity Interests (and the percentage of the Equity Interests

owned) in each such Entity must be the same Person(s) owning the Equity Interests (with the same
ercentage of the Equity Interests owned) in the Developer Entity; and (b) each such Entity guarantees the

performance of all other Entities formed under the authority of this 86. Each Owner, and the spouse of each
Owner who is a natural Person, must sign a Franchise Owner Agreement.

31. TRANSFERS

31.1. By Us. This Agreement is fully assignable by us, without prior notice to you, and shall inure to the
benefit of any assignee(s) or other legal successor(s) to our interest in this Agreement, provided that
we shall, subsequent to any such assignment, remain liable for the performance of our obligations
under this Agreement up to the effective date of the assignment.

31.2. By You. The rights and duties created by this Agreement are personal to you and the Owners. We
are granting you area development rights in reliance upon the character, skill, attitude, business

ability and financial resources of you and your Owners. Because this Agreement is a personal
services contract, neither you nor any Owner may engage in a Transfer (other than a Permitted

Transfer) without our prior approval. No Transfer may occur prior to such time that you open the
first (1%) Studio pursuant to this Agreement. Any Transfer (other than a Permitted Transfer) without
our approval is void and constitutes a breach of this Agreement. We will not unreasonably withhold
our approval of a proposed Transfer if all of the following conditions are satisfied:
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a) we believe the proposed transferee has sufficient business experience, aptitude and financial

resources to develop, own and operate all of the remaining Studios to be developed under this
Agreement and meets our minimum criteria for area developers;

(b) you and your Owners and affiliates are in full compliance with all Definitive Agreements;

c) the transferee’s owners successfully complete, or make arrangements to attend, the initial
training program and the transferee pays us any applicable training fee;

(d) the transferee and its owners sign our then-current form of area development agreement (unless
we, in our sole discretion, instruct you to assign this Agreement to the transferee) except that: (i)

the Term shall be the Term remaining under this Agreement; (ii) the transferee need not pay a
separate development fee; and (iii) the Development Schedule and Development Territory shall

be the same Development Schedule and Development Territory specified in this Agreement
(modified to reflect the development obligations satisfied prior to the Transfer);

e ou or the transferee pay us a $25.000 transfer fee (in addition to the transfer fee, you must

reimburse us for any commission we pay our broker if our broker finds the transferee);

(f) _you assign all Franchise Agreements to the transferee in accordance with the transfer provisions
under each such Franchise Agreement (but you are not required to pay the separate transfer fee
imposed under each such Franchise Agreement since the transfer fee imposed under this
Agreement covers the Transfer of all such Franchise Agreements);

(g)_you and your Owners sign a General Release;
(h)_we choose not to exercise our right of first refusal described in §7.5; and

i ou or the transferring Owner, as applicable, and the transferee satisfy all other conditions we
reasonably require as a condition to our approval of the Transfer.

You may not: (a) transfer less than all development rights remaining under this Agreement (i.e., you

may not retain the right to develop any Studio); or (b) transfer your development rights to multiple
transferees. Our consent to a Transfer shall not constitute a waiver of any Claims we may have
against the transferor or our right to demand the transferee comply with all terms of the area
development agreement.

31.3. Permitted Transfers. You may engage in a Permitted Transfer without our prior approval, but you
must: (a) give us at least 10 days’ prior notice; (b) upon our request, cause the former Developer
Entity to sign a corporate guarantee in the format we require to secure performance of the new
Developer Entity’s financial obligations under all Definitive Agreements (if the Permitted Transfer
results in a new Developer Entity); and (c) any new Owner (and their spouse) must sign a Franchise
Owner Agreement. You and the Owners (and the transferee) agree to sign all documents we
reasonably request to effectuate and document the Permitted Transfer.

31.4. Owner Death or Disability. Within 180 days after an Owner’s death or permanent disability, the
Owner’s Equity Interest in the Development Business or Developer Entity must be Transferred to
another Person in compliance with 87.2 or 87.3. An Owner is deemed to have a “permanent
disability” if he/she has a medical or mental problem that prevents him/her from substantially
complying with his/her obligations under this Agreement for a period of at least three (3) months.

31.5. Our Right of First Refusal. If you or an Owner wish to engage in a Transfer, you or the Owner, as
applicable, must obtain and send us a bona-fide offer executed by the purchaser after completion of
due diligence. We have 30 days after receipt of the offer to decide whether to purchase the interest

for the same price and upon the same terms contained in the offer, except we may substitute cash for
any non-cash form of payment proposed in the offer. If we noti ou within the 30-day period that
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we intend to purchase the interest, you or the Owner, as applicable, must sell the interest to us. We
will have an additional 60 days to prepare for closing. You or the Owner, as applicable, must provide
us with all customary representations and warranties regarding the title to and condition of the assets
or Equity Interest that we purchase, or at our option, the representations and warranties contained in
the offer. If we do not exercise our right of first refusal, you or the Owner, as applicable, may
complete the Transfer to the purchaser pursuant to the terms of the offer, subject to the requirements
of §7.2, including our approval of the transferee. If the sale is not completed within 120 days after
we receive the offer, or there is a material change to the terms of sale, we will again have the right of
first refusal specified in this Section. Our right of first refusal shall not apply to a Permitted Transfer.

32. TERMINATION

32.1. By Us. We may terminate this Agreement, effective upon delivery of a notice of termination, for
either of the following reasons, each of which constitute material events of default and “good cause”
for termination, and without opportunity to cure except for any cure period expressly set forth below:

(a) if we terminate any Definitive Agreement due to a default committed by you or one of your

Owners or affiliates; or

b) if vou (or an Owner) breach any provision of this Agreement and fail to cure within 30 days
after receipt of a default notice.

32.2. By Mutual Agreement. If you and we mutually agree in writing to terminate this Agreement, any
notice or cure period that might otherwise apply shall be deemed waived.

33. EFFECT OF TERMINATION. Termination of this Agreement ends all your rights and development
obligations under this Agreement, including your interests in the Development Territory and right to sign
new Franchise Agreements or open new Studios. We will not refund any portion of the development fee.

34. DISPUTE RESOLUTION. Any Dispute between the parties relating to this Agreement shall be resolved
pursuant to the dispute resolution provisions in the Initial Franchise Agreement. All such dispute resolution
provisions are incorporated herein by reference as if fully set forth in this Agreement.

35. REPRESENTATIONS.

35.1. Corporate Representations. You and your Owners jointly and severally represent and warrant to us
that the execution and delivery of this Agreement, and the performance of your obligations
hereunder, does not: (a) conflict with, breach or constitute a default under any agreement to which
you are (or any affiliate of yours is) a party or by which your (or your affiliate’s) assets are bound;
(b) violate any order, injunction, decree, judgment or ruling of a Governmental Authority; or (c)
violate any applicable Law. If the developer is an Entity, then you and your Owners also jointly and
severally represent and warrant to us that: (a) the Developer Entity is duly organized, validly existin
and in good standing under the Laws of the state of its formation and has the requisite power and
authority to enter into this Agreement and to perform its obligations hereunder; and (b) the execution
and delivery of this Agreement have been duly authorized by all requisite corporate action and this
Agreement constitutes the legal, valid and binding obligation of, and is enforceable against, the
Developer Entity in accordance with its terms.

35.2. General Representations. You and your Owners jointly and severally represent and warrant to us
that: (a) other area developers may operate under different forms of agreement and our obligations

and rights with respect to area developers differs materially in certain circumstances; and (b) we may
negotiate terms or offer concessions to other area developers and we have no obligation to offer you
the same or similar negotiated terms or concessions.

35.3. Anti-Terrorism Compliance. You and your Owners jointly and severally represent and warrant to
us that, to the best of your knowledge: (a) no property or interest owned by you or any Owner is
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subject to being “blocked” under any Anti-Terrorism Law; (b) neither you nor any Owner, nor any of
their respective funding sources (including any legal or beneficial owner of an Equity Interest in the
Development Business or Developer Entity) or related parties is, or has ever been: (i) a terrorist or
suspected terrorist within the meaning of the Anti-Terrorism Law; or (ii) identified by name, alias

pseudonym, nickname or address on any Terrorist List, including the list of “Specially Designated
Nationals” or “Blocked Persons” maintained by the U.S. Treasury Department’s Office of Foreign
Assets Control (texts currently available at www.home.treasury.gov); and (c) you and the Owners
are in_compliance, and will continue to comply, with the Anti-Terrorism Law and all other U.S.
Laws currently in effect, or enacted in the future, that prohibit corrupt business practices, money
laundering or the aid or support of Persons who conspire to commit acts of terror against any Person
or government. The foregoing representations and warranties are ‘continuing’ representations and
warranties for the duration of the franchise relationship. Accordingly, you must immediately noti
us of the occurrence of any event or development of any circumstance that might render any of the
foregoing representations and warranties false, inaccurate or misleading.

36. GENERAL PROVISIONS

36.1. Governing Law. This Agreement and the franchise relationship are governed by the Laws of Texas
without reference to its principles of conflicts of law, but any Texas Law that regulates the offer and
sale of franchises or business opportunities or governs the relationship of a franchisor and its

franchisee will not apply unless its jurisdictional requirements are met independently without
reference to this Section.

36.2. Severability. Each section of this Agreement (and portion thereof) is severable.

36.3. Waivers. Each party may waive any obligation imposed on the other party in writing. Neither party
shall be deemed to have waived or impaired any of its contractual rights under this Agreement,
including the right to require strict compliance with all terms of this Agreement or terminate this
Agreement due to the other party’s failure to comply with such terms, by virtue of: (a) any custom or
practice of the parties at variance with the terms of this Agreement; (b) any failure, refusal or neglect
by a party to exercise any right under this Agreement or require the other party to strictly comply
with its obligations under this Agreement; (c) our waiver, failure or refusal to exercise any of our
rights with respect to other developers; or (d) our acceptance of payment from you after your breach.

36.4. Approvals. Whenever this Agreement requires our approval, you must make a timely written request
for approval. Our approval must be in writing in order to bind us. Except as otherwise expressly
provided in this Agreement, if we fail to approve any request for approval within the required period
of time, we shall be deemed to have disapproved your request.

36.5. Force Majeure. Neither party shall be liable for loss or damage or deemed in breach of this
Agreement if such party’s failure to perform its obligations results from an event of Force Majeure;
provided, however, that an event of Force Majeure shall not excuse or permit any failure to perform
for more than 180 days. If the period of non-performance exceeds 180 days from receipt of notice of
the Force Majeure event, the party whose ability to perform has not been affected may immediately
terminate this Agreement by giving notice of termination to the other party.

36.6. Binding Effect. This Agreement is binding on the parties hereto and their respective executors,
administrators, heirs, assigns and successors in interest. Nothing in this Agreement is intended, nor
shall be deemed, to confer any rights or remedies upon any Person not a party to this Agreement.

36.7. Integration. THIS AGREEMENT CONSTITUTES THE ENTIRE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE
PARTIES AND MAY NOT BE CHANGED EXCEPT BY A WRITTEN DOCUMENT SIGNED

BY BOTH PARTIES. Any email or informal electronic communication shall not be deemed to
modify this Agreement unless it is signed by both parties and specifically states it is intended to

modify this Agreement. The attachment(s) are part of this Agreement, which together with any
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Amendments or Addenda executed on or after the Effective Date constitutes the entire understanding
and agreement of the parties. There are no other oral or written understandings or agreements
between the parties about the subject matter of this Agreement. Any representations not specifically
contained in this Agreement made before entering into this Agreement do not survive after the
signing of this Agreement. Nothing in this Agreement is intended to disclaim any of the
representations we made in the Franchise Disclosure Document. No statement, questionnaire, or
acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with the commencement of the
franchise relationship shall have the effect of (a) waiving any claims under any applicable state
franchise law, including fraud in the inducement or (b) disclaiming reliance on any statement made
by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This provision
supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise.

36.8. Good Faith Covenant. If applicable Law implies into this Agreement a covenant of good faith and
fair dealing, the covenant shall not imply any rights or obligations inconsistent with the express
terms hereof. This Agreement, and the relationship of the parties inherent in this Agreement, grants
us discretion to make decisions, take actions and/or refrain from taking actions not inconsistent with
our explicit rights and obligations under this Agreement that may favorably or adversely affect your
interests. We will use our judgment in exercising the discretion based on our assessment of our own
interests and balancing those interests against the interests of our franchisees, but without
considering the individual interests of you or any other franchisee.

36.9. Rights of Parties are Cumulative. The rights of the parties under this Agreement are cumulative
and no exercise or enforcement by either party of any right or remedy under this Agreement will
preclude any other right or remedy available under this Agreement or by Law.

36.10.Survival. YAIl provisions that expressly or by their nature survive the termination, expiration or
Transfer of this Agreement, or the Transfer of an Equity Interest in the Development Business or
Developer Entity, shall continue in full force and effect subsequent to and notwithstanding its
termination, expiration or Transfer and until they are satisfied in full or by their nature expire.

11.10.36.11.  Construction. The headings in this Agreement are for convenience only and do not define,
limit or construe the contents of the sections or subsections. All references to Sections refer to the
Sections contained in this Agreement unless otherwise specified. All references to days in this
Agreement refer to calendar days unless otherwise specified. The term *“you” as used in this
Agreement is applicable to one or more persens—oran—EntityPersons, and the singular usage
includes the plural and the masculine and neuter usages include the other and the feminine and the
possessive.

11.11.36.12.  Time of Essence. Time is of the essence in this Agreement and every term thereof.

36.13. Notices. All notices and notifications given under this Agreement must be in writing and must be
provided in accordance with the Notice Provision of the Initial Franchise Agreement.

11.12.36.14. Counterparts. This Agreement may be signed in multiple counterparts, each of which shall

be deemed an original and all of which together shall constitute but one and the same document.
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The parties to-this-Agreementbelow have executed this Agreement effective as of the Effective Date first above
written.

FRANCHISOR:

Exercise Coach USA, LLC, an Hlinois limited
liability company

By:

Name:

HsTitle:

YOU (If you are an eEntity): YOU (If you are not an eEntity):

a(n) Name:

By——:

Name: Name:

HsTitle:
blomes
Name
Name
Name
Name:
Name:
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ATTACHMENT "A"
TO AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

DEAL TERMS

A. Area Developer Details-

Name of area developer: [ ]

Is the franehiseearea developer one or more natural pPersons signing in their individual capacity? Yes:
No:

Type of Entity and State of Formation* (if applicable): [ ]

* If the franchisee-area developer is a business eEntity, each natural-persenPerson holding a direct or

indirect ewnership-aterestEquity Interest in the business-entityDeveloper Entity, and spouse of each such
persenPerson who is a natural Person, must sign a Franchise Owner Agreement concurrently with the

execution of this Agreement.

The following table includes the full name of each naturalpersenPerson holding a direct or indirect

ewnership-interestEquity Interest in the area—developerfranehise{Development Business or the—franchisee
business-entity-HDeveloper Entity, as applicable}, along with a description of their ewnership-interestEquity

Interest.

Direct or Indirect

Owner’s Name % OwnershipEquity Interest (if indirect, include-description
efdescribe nature of interest)

Notice Address:

[ ]
L |

Attention:
Email:

B.— Fees-

e The initial franchise fee for the first Exercise-Coach® business—to-be(1™) Studio developed pursuant
teunder this agreementshat-beAgreement is $49,500.

e The Discounted Initial Franchise Fee varies as follows: (a) $40,000 for the 2™ Studio developed under




this Agreement: (b) $25,000 per Studio for the third (3) and fourth (4™ Studios developed under this
Agreement; and (c) $20,000 per Studio for each additional Studio developed under this Agreement.

e The development fee shal-be-$f Jis $




P— Development Schedule-

You agree-temust comply with the following minimum development obligations as specified in Seetion-454
of the Agreement:

NUMBER OF FRANEGHISESSTUDIOS CUMULATIVE NUMBER OF
DEVELOPMENT PERIOD ENDING* OPENED DURING DEVELOPMENT FRANESHISESSTUDIOS OPENED
PERIOD AND IN OPERATION

1 year after Effective Date

2 years after Effective Date

3 years after Effective Date

4 years after Effective Date

5 years after Effective Date

6 years after Effective Date

7 years after Effective Date

8 years after Effective Date

9 years after Effective Date

10 years after Effective Date

Total Number of FranehisesStudios to be Developed: | |

* The required opening date for a given Studio is the last day of the Development Period in which the
Studio must open.

D. Development Territory

The Development Territory consists of, and shall be limited to, the following geographic area, as may be
further depicted on a map attached below or on the following page:
[ 1; provided, however, that the Development Territory excludes,
and shall not be deemed to include, the geographic area within any territory assigned to another Studio that:
(a) is open and operating, under construction, or for which a site has been approved, in each case as of the
Effective Date; and (b) is located (or will be located) in the geographic area described in this Part D.

If the boundaries that define the Development Territory change during the Term, the boundaries of your
Development Territory will remain unaffected and will continue to be defined by the boundaries that were in
effect as of the Effective Date (as may be depicted on a map attached below or on the following page).

[Insert Map (if applicable)]
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STATE ADDENDA
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STATE ADDENDA AND AMENDMENTS TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT, SUPPL EMENTAL
AGREEMENTS AND FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT FOR CERTAIN STATES

BACKGROUND AND PURPOSE

The following modifications are made to the The Exercise Coach Franchise Disclosure Document (“FDD”

or “Disclosure Document™) issued by Exercise Coach USA, LLC (“we” or “us” or “franchisor”) to
franchisee (“you” or “franchisee”) and may supersede certain portions of the Franchise Agreement between
you and us dated , 202 (the “Franchise Agreement”). When the term
“Supplemental Agreements” is used, it means any area development agreement, area representative
agreement, master franchise agreement, or similar agreement entered into between us and you, if applicable.

Certain states have laws governing the franchise relationship and franchise documents. Certain states require
modifications to the FDD, Franchise Agreement, Supplemental Agreements and other documents related to
the sale of a franchise. This State-Specific Addendum (“State Addendum™) will modify these agreements to
comply with the applicable state’s laws. The terms of this State Addendum will only apply if you meet the
requirements of the applicable state independently of your signing of this State Addendum. The terms of this
State Addendum (but only the State Addendum for the applicable State) will override any inconsistent
provision of the FDD, Franchise Agreement or any Supplemental Documents. This State Addendum only
applies to the following states: California, Hawaii, lllingis, Indiana, Maryland, Michigan, Minnesota, New
York, North Dakota, Rhode Island, South Dakota, Virginia, Washington, and Wisconsin.

If your state requires these modifications, you will sign this State Addendum along with the Franchise
Agreement and any Supplemental Agreements. If you sign this State Addendum, only the terms applicable to
the state or states whose franchise laws apply to your transaction will govern. If you sign this State
Addendum, but none of the state franchise laws listed above applies because their jurisdictional requirements
have not been met, then this State Addendum will be void and inapplicable to you.
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State Address Owner Name(s)
Alabama Huntsville I*‘WI"H ; 256-870-2800 Torm-Palmisano
Colorade 24201 E-Orehard Rd-Unit VR-15D o géslg Cel-303-017-0909 |  Nathan Cleveringa
Florida | Jacksonville 6100 Greeniand Re-Sue 1302 e 004-650-2425 W
Florida TO-BE DETERMINED Cell: 054-410-3088 |  Hione London and
\daho TO BE DETERMINED Cell-303-817-7493 WI
Indiana Zionsville 1455 West Oak Street Suite B e 317-343-0002 W|
Kentucky Louisville 4341-Shelbyville Road ”,';; 502-890-9696 Kendrick Porter
Massachusetts TO-BE DETERMINED 603-502-4558 | Bob-&Janine-Gauvin
Michigan | Hochester Rochosr e M 248-481-5554 HenryChristian
NewJersey | Medford g Stokes Road Sue ©  New etz 03065 Cell: 856-562-0332 m%
Ohio MW Ohis 4401 440-578-0805 Rout & Ay
Tennessee | Nashville 0o Hillsboro Pike Sule w204 g i 615-696-7670 Lauren-Gonzales
Exhibit G-9
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Exercise Coach USA, LLC

Balance Sheet
As of March 31, 2024

TOTAL

Net Income 237,282.71
Total Equity $1,013,855.53
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $1,619,564.16
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EXERCISE COACH USA, LLC

Audited Financial Statements

For the Years Ended December 31, 2023 and 2022
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CYGANHAYES.

Certified Mublic Accountants and Consultants

Glenn A. Cygan, CPA 20635 Abbey Woods Ct. North, Suite 104
Jeffrey 5. Hayes, CI’A Frankfort, 11. 60423
Pawn C. Riggio, CPA, MBA el 815.534.5713
www.cyganhayes.com IFax.815.534.5523

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT

To Members of Excreise Coach USALLLC
Cpinion

We have audited the accompany ing financial statements of Exercise Coach USA, L1.C, which comprise the balance sheets as
of December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the related statements of income, changes in members” equity, and cash flows for the
vears then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Tixercise Coach USA, LLC as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the
years then ended in accordance with accounting principles gencrally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States ol America. Our

eSO DT H T TR UTOSE SIS are T rHTer GeneT et T UTe 7 Lo 5 Respoms ites Tor e 7 o T ot e et
Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of Iixercise Coach USA, LLC and to meet our other
cthical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant cthical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Firancial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and lair presentation ol the [inancial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to [taud er error

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Excrcise Coach USA, LLC’s ability to continuc as a going
concern within one vear after the date that the financial statements are available to be 1ssued.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

QOur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance aboul whether the linancial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our epinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and thercfore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with generally accepled auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when 1t exists. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements,
ineluding omissions, are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate. they
would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:

e Tixercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

Page| 1
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Capital Distributions (251,980) (79,252) (38,720) (51,200) (87.811) (508,963)

Net Income/(Loss) 642,792 191,322 98,773 130,609 211,985 1,275,481

Balance at

December 31, 2022 $ 702,096 $ 632,652 § 260424 § 335435 $ 232,961 § 2.163.568

Prior Period Adjustment

for Adoption of New

Standard (Note 9) (6,490) (1,931 (997) (1,318) (2,140 (12,876)

Capital Distributions (650,108) (225,791) (99,898) (86,016) (247,688)  (1,309,501)

Net Income/Loss) 539,670 188,417 82,027 54,078 205,765 1,070,857

Transfer of capital - 151,100 - (302,201) 151,101 -

Balance at

December 31, 2023 $ 585168 § 744436 § 242456 § - $ 339988 § 1912048
Page | 5
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Contract liabilities from contracts with customers for initial franchise fees that relate to deferred revenue consist of the
following at December 31, 2023 and 2022:

2023 2022
Beginning of Year $ 965,700  $ 707,450
End of Year $ 366,255 $ 965,700

The Company often incurs incremental contract costs in the form of broker commissions to third parties when a new
franchisee is acquired. These incremental contract costs are recognized over the same period as the initial franchise fee
revenues. A deferred contract cost asset is recorded when commissions are paid, and as the revenues are recognized each
month as performance obligations are completed, a proportional amount of the asset is reversed and the expense 1s
recognized. Contract cost assets for these commissions consist of the following at December 31, 2023 and 2022:
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EXERCISE COACH USA, LLC.

Audited Financial Statements

For the Years Ended December 31, 2022 and 2021
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In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Exercise Coach USA, LLC as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the
years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Staternents section of our report. We are required to be independent of Exercise Coach USA, LLC and to meet our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Exercise Coach USA, LLC’s ability to continue as a going
concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to be issued.

Aunditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Finwicid Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstaterments,
including omissions, are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they
would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:
e  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
e Tdentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,

and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test
basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

Page | 1

Franchise Disclosure Document (2024 Multi-State)



Page |2

Franchise Disclosure Document (2024 Multi-State)



AL NN T LNV L ML L

Long term lease liability for operating leases (Note 5)

Total Long-Term Liabilities

MEMBERS EQUITY

Total Liabilities and Members' Equity

169,737 -
169,737 -
2,163,568 1,397,050

$  3.549,231 $ 2,258,029

Page | 3
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Capital Distributions
Net Income/(Loss)

Balance at
December 31, 2021

Capital Distributions

Net Income/(Loss)

Balance at
December 31, 2022

vy % wwmwicw v samaia ek iasue v asess v e
563,737 167,792 86,625 114,546 185,913 1,118,613
311284 $ 520,582 8 200371 § 256,026 $ 108,787 §$ 1397,050
(251,980) (79,252) (38,720) £51,200) (87,811) (508,963)
642,792 191,322 98,773 130,609 211,985 1,275,481
70209 $ 632,652 § 260424 § 335435 $ 232961 § 2,163,568
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Application the new standard to all leases through a cumulative-effect adjustment. As a result, comparative financial
information has not been restated and continues to be reported under the accounting standards in effect
for those periods. The Company elected a package of practical expedients permitted under the transition
guidance, which among other things, allows the following: relief from determination of lease contracts
included in existing or expiring leases at the point of adoption, relief from having to reevaluate the
classification of leases in effect at the point of adoption, and relief from reevaluation of existing leases
that have initial direct costs associated with the execution of the lease contract. The Company also
elected to adopt the practical expedient to use hindsight to determine the lease term and assess the
impairment of the right of use assets.

Impact Application of this standard did not affect the reporting of the financial position and results of operations.

NOTE 8: SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management has evaluated the events that have occurred through March 27, 2023, the date the financial statements were
available to be issued.
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EXERCISE COACH USA, LLC.

Audited Financial Statements

For the Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020
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In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Exercise Coach USA, LLC as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the
years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Staternents section of our report. We are required to be independent of Exercise Coach USA, LLC and to meet our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Respounsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Exercise Coach USA, LLC’s ability to continue as a going
concern within one year after the date that the financial staternents are available to be issued.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk
of not detecting a material misstaternent resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control Misstatements,
including omissions, are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they
would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:
e  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,

and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test
basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

Page | 1

Franchise Disclosure Document (2024 Multi-State)



Franchise Disclosure Document (2024 Multi-State)



MEMBERS' EQUITY 1,397,050 278,437

Total Liabilities and Members' Equity 3 2,258,029 $ 1,438,850

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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intangible assets of the Company and pay;Lble over 30 years at an interest rate of 3.75% per annum. The Company decided
to pay off the full balance of the loan during the current fiscal year. There is no remaining balance due for the EIDL loan
as of December 31, 2021,

Paycheck Protection Program Loan

In response to the coronavirus (COVID-19) outbreak in 2020, the U.S. Federal Government enacted the Coronavirus Aid,
Relief, and Economic Security Act that, among other economic stimulus measures established the Paycheck Protection
Program (PPP) to provide small business loans. On May 6, 2020, the Company obtained a PPP loan for $110,100, which
was included in the Company’s long-term debt at December 31, 2020. The Company used all of the proceeds from the
note for qualifying expenses and received approval of its application for the loan to be forgiven during the current fiscal
year.

The Company also obtained a second draw PPP loan in the current year on January 30, 2021 for $110,102. The proceeds
from this note were also used fully for qualifying expenses, and the Company’s application for loan forgiveness was
approved during the current fiscal year.
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FORTHE STATE OFHAWAII

A. The states in which this filing is effective include the following: None

B. The states in which this filing is or will be shortly on file include the following: California, Hawaii, Illinois,
Indiana, Maryland, Minnesota, New York, North Dakota, Rhode Island, South Dakota, Virginia, Washington
and Wisconsin

C. The states, if any, which have refused, by order or otherwise, to register these franchises include the
following: None

D. The states, if any, which have revoked or suspended the right to offer these franchises include the following:
None

E. The states, if any, in which the filing of these franchises has been withdrawn include the following: None

THESE FRANCHISES WILL BE/HAVE BEEN FILED UNDER THE FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW OF THE
STATE OF HAWAII. FILING DOES NOT CONSTITUTE APPROVAL, RECOMMENDATION OR ENDORSEMENT
BY THE DIRECTOR OF COMMERCE AND CONSUMER AFFAIRS OR A FINDING BY THE DIRECTOR OF
COMMERCE AND CONSUMER AFFAIRS THAT THE INFORMATION PROVIDED HEREIN IS TRUE, COMPLETE
AND NOT MISLEADING.

THE FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW MAKES IT UNLAWFUL TO OFFER OR SELL ANY FRANCHISE IN THIS
STATE WITHOUT FIRST PROVIDING TO THE PROSPECTIVE FRANCHISEE, OR SUBFRANCHISOR, AT LEAST
SEVEN DAYS PRIOR TO THE EXECUTION BY THE PROSPECTIVE FRANCHISEE OF ANY BINDING
FRANCHISE OR OTHER AGREEMENT, OR AT LEAST SEVEN DAYS PRIOR TO THE PAYMENT OF ANY
CONSIDERATION BY THE FRANCHISEE, OR SUBFRANCHISOR, WHICHEVER OCCURS FIRST, A COPY OF
THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT, TOGETHER WITH A COPY OF ALL PROPOSED AGREEMENTS RELATING
TO THE SALE OF THE FRANCHISE.

THIS DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT CONTAINS A SUMMARY ONLY OF CERTAIN MATERIAL PROVISIONS OF
THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT. THE CONTRACT OR AGREEMENT SHOULD BE REFERRED TO FOR A
STATEMENT OF ALL RIGHTS, CONDITIONS, RESTRICTIONS AND OBLIGATIONS OF BOTH THE
FRANCHISOR AND THE FRANCHISEE.

NO STATEMENT, QUESTIONNAIRE, OR ACKNOWLEDGEMENT SIGNED OR AGREED TO BY A FRANCHISEE
IN CONNECTION WITH THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE FRANCHISE RELATIONSHIP SHALL HAVE THE
EFFECT OF (I) WAIVING ANY CLAIMS UNDER ANY APPLICABLE STATE FRANCHISE LAW, INCLUDING,
FRAUD IN THE INDUCEMENT, OR (Il) DISCLAIMING RELIANCE ON ANY STATEMENT MADE BY ANY
FRANCHISOR, FRANCHISE SELLER, OR OTHER PERSON ACTING ON BEHALF OF THE FRANCHISOR. THIS
PROVISION SUPERSEDES ANY OTHER TERM OF ANY DOCUMENT EXECUTED WITH THE FRANCHISE.




ILLINOIS

In recognition of the requirements of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act, 815 ILCS 705, the Franchise
Agreement for Exercise Coach USA, LLC is amended as follows:

FORTHESTATE OF H-LINOIS

B. You must sign a general release in order to renew or transfer your franchise. Any such release must

comply with the provisions of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act (the “Act”).

C. In accordance with Section 4 of the Act, and Section 200.608 of the regulations promulgated under the
Act, the governing law, jurisdiction and venue shall be the State of Texas. However, any arbitration proceeding
may be brought in Montgomery County, Texas in accordance with Section 24 of the Franchise Agreement.

D. In conformance with Section 41 of the lllinois Franchise Disclosure Act, any condition, stipulation, or
provision purporting to bind any person acquiring any franchise to waive compliance with the Illinois Franchise
Disclosure Act or any other law of Illinois is void.

E. Your rights upon Termination and Non-Renewal are set forth in sections 19 and 20 of the lllinois
Franchise Disclosure Act.

See the last page of this ATTACHMENT "A"E-1" for your signature.




INDIANA

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in the Disclosure Document, the following provisions
shall supersede and apply to all franchises offered and sold in the State of Indiana:

1 - The laws of the State of Indiana supersede any provisions of the Franchise Agreement, the other
agreements or Texas law if such provisions are in conflict with Indiana law.

2. The prohibition by Indiana Code § 23-2-2.7-1(7) against unilateral termination of the franchise without
good cause or in bad faith, good cause being defined therein as material breach of the Franchise Agreement,
shall supersede the provisions of the Franchise Agreement in the State of Indiana to the extent they may be
inconsistent with such prohibition.

3. Liquidated damages and termination penalties are prohibited by law in the State of Indiana and,
therefore, the Disclosure Document and the Franchise Agreement are amended by the deletion of all references
to liquidated damages and termination penalties and the addition of the following language to the original
language that appears therein:

“Notwithstanding any such termination, and in addition to the obligations of the Franchisee as otherwise
provided, or in the event of termination or cancellation of the Franchise Agreement under any of the other
provisions therein, the Franchisee nevertheless shall be, continue and remain liable to Franchisor for any and all
damages which Franchisor has sustained or may sustain by reason of such default or defaults and the breach of
the Franchise Agreement on the part of the Franchisee for the unexpired Term of the Franchise Agreement.

At the time of such termination of the Franchise Agreement, the Franchisee covenants to pay to Franchisor
within 10 days after demand as compensation all damages, losses, costs and expenses (including reasonable
attorney’s fees) incurred by Franchisor, and/or amounts which would otherwise be payable thereunder but for
such termination for and during the remainder of the unexpired Term of the Franchise Agreement. This
Agreement does not constitute a waiver of the Franchisee’s right to a trial on any of the above matters.”

4. No release language set forth in the Disclosure Document or Franchise Agreement shall relieve
Franchisor or any other person, directly or indirectly, from liability imposed by the laws concerning franchising
of the State of Indiana.

5. The Franchise Agreement is amended to provide that such agreement will be construed in accordance
with the laws of the State of Indiana.

6. Any provision in the Franchise Agreement which designates jurisdiction or venue, or requires the
Franchisee to agree to jurisdiction or venue, in a forum outside of Indiana, is deleted from any Franchise
Agreement issued in the State of Indiana.

FOR THE STATE OF

7. No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with
the_ commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (a) waiving any claims under any
applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (b) disclaiming reliance on any statement
made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This provision
supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise.




MARYLAND ADDENDUM TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

In recognition of the requirements of the Maryland Franchise Law, the Franchise Agreement is amended to add
the following:

1. Any claims arising under the Maryland Franchise Law must be brought within three (3) years after the grant

of the franchise.

2. Pursuant to COMAR 02.02.08.16L, the general release required as a condition of renewal, sale, and/or
assignment/transfer shall not apply to any liability under the Maryland Franchise Law.

3. You may bring a lawsuit in Maryland for claims arising under the Maryland Franchise Law.

4. This franchise agreement provides that disputes are resolved through arbitration. A Maryland franchise
regulation states that it is an unfair or deceptive practice to require a franchisee to waive its right to file a
lawsuit in Maryland claiming a violation of the Maryland Franchise Law. In light of the Federal Arbitration
Act, there is some dispute as to whether this forum selection requirement is legally enforceable.

5. Any acknowledgements or representations by you that disclaim the occurrence and/or acknowledge the non-
occurrence of acts that would constitute a violation of the Maryland Law are not intended to nor shall they
act as a release, estoppel or waiver of any liability incurred under the Maryland Law.

FRANCHISOR: FRANCHISEE:

Exercise Coach USA, LLC

By: By:
Title: Title:
Date: Date:




MARY| AND ADDENDUM TO AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

In_recognition of the requirements of the Maryland Franchise Law, the Area Development Agreement is
amended to add the following:

1. Any claims arising under the Maryland Franchise Law must be brought within three (3) years after the grant
of the franchise.

2. Pursuant to COMAR 02.02.08.16L, the general release required as a condition of renewal, sale, and/or
assignment/transfer shall not apply to any liability under the Maryland Franchise Law.

3. You may bring a lawsuit in Maryland for claims arising under the Maryland Franchise Law.

4. 1 —FEMThIs franchise agreement provides that disputes are resolved through arbitration. A Maryland
franchise regulation states that it is an unfair or deceptive practice to require a franchisee to waive its right
to file a lawsuit in Maryland claiming a violation of the Maryland Franchise Law. In light of the Federal
Avrbitration Act, there is some dispute as to whether this forum selection requirement is legally enforceable.

5. Any acknowledgements or representations by you that disclaim the occurrence and/or acknowledge the non-
occurrence of acts that would constitute a violation of the Maryland Law are not intended to nor shall they
act as a release, estoppel or waiver of any liability incurred under the Maryland Law.

FRANCHISOR: FRANCHISEE:

Exercise Coach USA, LLC

By: By:
Title: Title:
Date: Date:




MARYL AND ADDENDUM TO FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

In recognition of the requirements of the Maryland Franchise Reqistration and Disclosure Law (the “Maryland

Franchise Law™), the Disclosure Document is amended as follows:

2:1. Item 17 of the Disclosure Document is amended to add the following:

a.

The general release required as a condition of renewal, sale and/or assignment/transfer shall not apply
any liability under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.

A franchisee may bring a lawsuit in Maryland for claims arising under the Maryland Franchise
Registration and Disclosure Law.

Any claims arising under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law must be brought
within 3 years after the grant of the franchise.

In the event of a conflict of laws to the extent required by the Maryland Franchise Registration and
Disclosure Law, Maryland law shall prevail.

The Franchise Agreement and Area Development Agreement provides for termination upon bankruptcy.
This provision may not be enforceable under federal bankruptcy law (11 U.S.C. Section 101, et seq.).

This franchise agreement provides that disputes are resolved through arbitration. A Maryland franchise

requlation states that it is an unfair or deceptive practice to require a franchisee to waive its right to file
a_lawsuit in Maryland claiming a violation of the Maryland Franchise Law. In light of the Federal
Arbitration Act, there is some dispute as to whether this forum selection requirement is legally
enforceable.

2. No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with the

commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (a) waiving any claims under any

applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (b) disclaiming reliance on any

statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This

provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise.




MICHIGAN

THE STATE OF MICHIGAN PROHIBITS CERTAIN UNFAIR PROVISIONS THAT ARE
SOMETIMES IN FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS. IF ANY OF THE FOLLOWING PROVISIONS ARE
IN THESE FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS, THE PROVISIONS ARE VOID AND CANNOT BE
ENFORCED AGAINST YOU.

Each of the following provisions is void and unenforceable if contained in any document relating to a franchise:
() A prohibition on the right of a franchisee to join an association of franchisees.

(b) A requirement that a franchisee assent to a release, assignment, novation, waiver, or estoppel which deprives
a franchisee of rights and protections provided in this act. This shall not preclude a franchisee, after entering into
a franchise agreement, from settling any and all claims.

(c) A provision that permits a franchisor to terminate a franchise prior to the expiration of its term except for
good cause. Good cause shall include the failure of the franchisee to comply with any lawful provision of the
franchise agreement and to cure such failure after being given written notice thereof and a reasonable
opportunity, which in no event need be more than 30 days, to cure such failure.

(d) A provision that permits a franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise without fairly compensating the

franchisee’s inventory, supplies, equipment, fixtures, and furnishings. Personalized materials which have no
value to the franchisor and inventory, supplies, equipment, fixtures, and furnishings not reasonably required in
the conduct of the franchise business are not subject to compensation. This subsection applies only if: (i) The
term of the franchise is less than 5 years and (ii) the franchisee is prohibited by the franchise or other agreement
from continuing to conduct substantially the same business under another trademark, service mark, trade name,
logotype, advertising, or other commercial symbol in the same area subsequent to the expiration of the franchise
or the franchisee does not receive at least 6 months advance notice of franchisor’s intent not to renew the
franchise.

(e) A provision that permits the franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise on terms generally available to other
franchisees of the same class or type under similar circumstances. This section does not require a renewal
provision.

) ise.Discl "




(F) A provision requiring that arbitration or litigation be conducted outside this state. This shall not preclude the
franchisee from entering into an agreement, at the time of arbitration, to conduct arbitration at a location outside
this state.

(9) A provision which permits a franchisor to refuse to permit a transfer of ownership of a franchise, except for
good cause. This subdivision does not prevent a franchisor from exercising a right of first refusal to purchase the
franchise. Good cause shall include, but is not limited to:

(i) The failure of the proposed transferee to meet the franchisor’s then current reasonable qualifications
or standards.

(ii) The fact that the proposed transferee is a competitor of the franchisor or subfranchisor.

(iii) The unwillingness of the proposed transferee to agree in writing to comply with all lawful
obligations.

(iv) The failure of the franchisee or proposed transferee to pay any sums owing to the franchisor or to
cure any default in the franchise agreement existing at the time of the proposed transfer.

(h) A provision that requires the franchisee to resell to the franchisor items that are not uniquely identified with
the franchisor. This subdivision does not prohibit a provision that grants to a franchisor a right of first refusal to
purchase the assets of a franchise on the same terms and conditions as a bona fide third party willing and able to
purchase those assets, nor does this subdivision prohibit a provision that grants the franchisor the right to acquire
the assets of a franchise for the market or appraised value of such assets if the franchisee has breached the lawful
provisions of the franchise agreement and has failed to cure the breach in the manner provided in subdivision

(o).

(i) A provision which permits the franchisor to directly or indirectly convey, assign, or otherwise transfer its
obligations to fulfill contractual obligations to the franchisee unless provision has been made for providing the
required contractual services.

If the franchisor’s most recent financial statements are unaudited and show a net worth of less than $100,000.00,
the franchisee may request the franchisor to arrange for the escrow of initial investment and other funds paid by
the franchisee until the obligations, if any, of the franchisor to provide real estate, improvements, equipment,
inventory, training or other items included in the franchise offering are fulfilled. At the option of the franchisor,
a surety bond may be provided in place of escrow.

THE FACT THAT THERE IS ANOTICE OF THIS OFFERING ON FILE WITH THE ATTORNEY
GENERAL DOES NOT CONSTITUTE APPROVAL, RECOMMENDATION, OR ENDORSEMENT
BY THE ATTORNEY GENERAL.

Any questions regarding this notice should be directed to:

State of Michigan
Department of Attorney General
CONSUMER PROTECTION DIVISION
Attention: Franchise Section
G. Mennen Williams Building, 1% Floor
525 West Ottawa Street
Lansing, Michigan 48913
Telephone Number: (517) 373-7117
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MINNESOTA

A. Minnesota Rules 2860.4400(D) prohibits a franchisor from requiring a franchisee to assent to a general
release.

B. With respect to franchises governed by Minnesota law, the franchiser will comply with Minnesota Statute
80C.14 Subd. 3-5, which require (except in certain specified cases)

o that a franchisee be given 90 days’ notice of termination (with 60 days to cure) and 180
days’ notice for non-renewal of the franchise agreement and

0 that consent to the transfer of the franchise will not be unreasonably withheld.

C. Minnesota Statute 80C.21 and Minnesota Rule 2860.4400(J) prohibit the franchiser from requiring
litigation to be conducted outside Minnesota, requiring waiver of a jury trial, or requiring the franchisee to consent
to liquidated damages, termination penalties or judgment notes. In addition, nothing in the Franchise Disclosure
Document or agreement(s) can abrogate or reduce (1) any of the franchisee’s rights as provided for in Minnesota
Statute 80Cor (2) franchisee’s rights to any procedure, forum, or remedies provided for by the laws of the
jurisdiction.

D. Minnesota considers it unfair to not protect the franchisee’s right to use the trademarks. Refer to Minnesota
Statute 80C.12 Subd. 1(G). The franchiser will protect the franchisee’s rights to use the trademarks, service marks,
trade names, logotypes, or other commercial symbols or indemnify the franchisee from any loss, costs, or expenses
arising out of any claim, suit, or demand regarding the use of the name.

E. The franchisee cannot consent to the franchisor obtaining injunctive relief. The franchisor may
seek injunctive relief. See Minnesota Rule 2860.4400(J) also, a court will determine if a bond is required.

F. The Limitations of Claims section must comply with Minnesota Statute 80C.17 Subd. 5.
G. NSF checks are governed by Minnesota Statute 604.113, which puts a cap of $30 on service charges.

H. No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgement signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection
with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under any
applicable state franchise law, including, fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any statement
made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This provision
supersedes any other term of any document executed with the franchise.

EORTEESTATE O
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NEW YORK

1. The following information is added to the cover page of the Franchise Disclosure Document:

INFORMATION COMPARING FRANCHISORS IS AVAILABLE. CALL THE STATE
ADMINISTRATORS LISTED IN EXHIBIT A OR YOUR PUBLIC LIBRARY FOR
SERVICES OR INFORMATION. REGISTRATION OF THIS FRANCHISE BY NEW
YORK STATE DOES NOT MEAN THAT NEW YORK STATE RECOMMENDS IT OR
HAS VERIFIED THE INFORMATION IN THIS FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT.
IF YOU LEARN ANYTHING IN THIS FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT IS
UNTRUE, CONTACT THE FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION AND THE APPROPRIATE
STATE OR PROVINCIAL AUTHORITY. THE FRANCHISOR MAY, IF IT CHOOSES,
NEGOTIATE WITH YOU ABOUT ITEMS COVERED IN THE FRANCHISE
DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT. HOWEVER, THE FRANCHISOR CAN NOT USE THE
NEGOTIATING PROCESS TO PREVAIL UPON A PROSPECTIVE FRANCHISEE TO
ACCEPT TERMS THAT ARE LESS FAVORABLE THAN THOSE SET FORTH IN THIS
FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT.

2. The following is to be added at the end of Item 3:

With the exception of what is stated above, the following applies to the franchisor, its predecessor, a
person identified in Item 2, or an affiliate offering franchises under the franchisor’s principal trademark:

A. No such party has an administrative, criminal, or civil action pending against that person
alleging: a felony, a violation of a franchise, antitrust, or securities law, fraud,
embezzlement, fraudulent conversion, misappropriation of property, unfair or deceptive
practices, or comparable civil or misdemeanor allegations.

B. No such party has pending actions, other than routine litigation incidental to the
business, which are significant in the context of the number of franchisees and the size,
nature, or financial condition of the franchise system or its business operations.

C. No such party has been convicted of a felony or pleaded nolo contendere to a felony
charge or, within the 10-year period immediately preceding the application for registration,
has been convicted of or pleaded nolo contendere to a misdemeanor charge or has been the
subject of a civil action alleging: violation of a franchise, antifraud, or securities law; fraud;
embezzlement; fraudulent conversion or misappropriation of property; or unfair or
deceptive practices or comparable allegations.

D. No such party is subject to a currently effective injunctive or restrictive order or decree
relating to the franchise, or under a Federal, State, or Canadian franchise, securities, antitrust,
trade regulation, or trade practice law, resulting from a concluded or pending action or
proceeding brought by a public agency; or is subject to any currently effective order of any
national securities association or national securities exchange, as defined in the Securities
and Exchange Act of 1934, suspending or expelling such person from membership in such
association or exchange; or is subject to a currently effective injunctive or restrictive order
relating to any other business activity as a result of an action brought by a public agency or
department, including, without limitation, actions affecting a license as a real estate broker or

) . iscl ki
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sales agent.

3. The following is added to the end of the “Summary” sections of Item 17(c), titled “Requirements for a
franchisee to renew or extend,” and Item 17(m), entitled “Conditions for franchisor approval of transfer”:

However, to the extent required by applicable law, all rights you enjoy and any causes of action
arising in your favor from the provisions of Article 33 of the General Business Law of the State of
New York and the regulations issued thereunder shall remain in force; it being the intent of this
proviso that the non-waiver provisions of General Business Law Sections 687(4) and 687(5) be
satisfied.

The following language replaces the “Summary” section of Item 17(d), titled “Termination by
franchisee”: You may terminate the agreement on any grounds available by law.

4. The following is added to the end of the “Summary” sections of Item 17(v), titled “Choice of forum,” and
Item 17(w), titled “Choice of law”:

The foregoing choice of law should not be considered a waiver of any right conferred upon the
franchisor or the franchisee by Article 33 of the General Business Law of the State of New York

5. Franchise Questionnaires and Acknowledgements--No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment
signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have
the effect of (i) waiving any claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or
(ii) disclaiming reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf
of the franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the
franchise.

6. Receipts--Any sale made must be in compliance with § 683(8) of the Franchise Sale Act (N.Y. Gen. Bus.
L. § 680 et seq.), which describes the time period a Franchise Disclosure Document (offering prospectus) must be
provided to a prospective franchisee before a sale may be made. New York law requires a franchisor to provide the
Franchise Disclosure Document at the earlier of the first personal meeting, ten (10) business days before the
execution of the franchise or other agreement, or the payment of any consideration that relates to the franchise
relationship.

o == A =00
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NORTH DAKOTA

1. Covenants not to compete are generally considered unenforceable in the State of North Dakota, pursuant
to Section 51-19-09 of the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law.

2. Provisions requiring arbitration or mediation to be held at a location that is remote from the site of the
franchisee’s business are generally considered unenforceable in the State of North Dakota, pursuant to

Section 51-19-09 of the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law. Accordingly, the parties must agree
on the site where arbitration or mediation will be held.

3. Provisions requiring jurisdiction in a state other than North Dakota are generally considered

unenforceable in the State of North Dakota, pursuant to Section 51-19-09 of the North Dakota Franchise
Investment Law.

4, Provisions requiring that agreements be governed by the laws of a state other than North Dakota are

generally considered unenforceable in the State of North Dakota, pursuant to Section 51-19-09 of the
North Dakota Franchise Investment Law.

5. Provisions requiring your consent to liquidated or termination damages are generally considered

unenforceable in the State of North Dakota, pursuant to Section 51-19-09 of the North Dakota Franchise
Investment Law.

6. Provisions requiring you to sign a general release upon renewal of the franchise agreement have been

determined to be unfair, unjust and inequitable within the intent of Section 51-19-09 of the North
Dakota Franchise Investment Law.

1. Provisions requiring you to pay all costs and expenses incurred by us in enforcing the franchise
agreement have been determined to be unfair, unjust and inequitable within the intent of Section 51-19-
09 of the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law. Accordingly, any such provision is modified to read
that the prevailing party in any enforcement action is entitled to recover all costs and expenses including
attorney’s fees.

8. Provisions requiring you to consent to a waiver of trial by jury have been determined to be unfair, unjust
and inequitable within the intent of Section 51-19-09 of the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law.

9. Provisions requiring you to consent to a limitation of claims within one year have been determined to be
unfair, unjust and inequitable within the intent of Section 51-19-09 of the North Dakota Franchise
Investment Law. Accordingly, any such provision is modified to read that the statute of limitations
under North Dakota Law will apply.

10. Provisions requiring you to consent to a waiver of exemplary and punitive damages have been

determined to be unfair, unjust and inequitable within the intent of Section 51-19-09 of the North
Dakota Franchise Invest L aw.




FORTHESTFATE OF-11. No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a

franchisee in connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of
(a) waiving any claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or
(b) disclaiming reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person

acting on behalf of the franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed
in connection with the franchise.
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RHODE ISLAND

a) We will not require that you prospectively assent to a waiver, condition, stipulation, or provision

that purports to relieve any person from liability imposed by the Rhode Island Franchise Law. This provision

does not apply to the settlement of disputes, claims, or civil lawsuits brought under the Rhode Island Franchise
Law.

(b) If a claim is enforceable under the Rhode Island Franchise Law, we will not restrict jurisdiction or
venue to a forum outside the State of Rhode Island or require the application of the laws of another state.

¢) We will not prohibit you from joining a trade association or association of franchisees. We will not
retaliate against you for engaging in these activities.

(d) Any provision in the Franchise Agreement that limits the time period in which you may assert a
legal claim against us under the Rhode Island Franchise L aw is amended to provide for a four (4) vear statute of
limitations for purposes of bringing a claim arising under the Rhode Island Franchise Law. Notwithstanding the

foregoing, if a rescission offer has been approved by the Rhode Island director of business registration, then the
statute of limitations is ninety (90) days after your receipt of the rescission offer.

statement, guestionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with the
commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (a) waiving any claims under any applicable
state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (b) disclaiming reliance on any statement made by any
franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This provision supersedes any
other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise.
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SOUTH DAKOTA

No franchise agreement restricting—jurisdiction—or—venue—to—aforum—outside—this—state—orrequiring—the
apphecation-of the laws-ef anotherstate-isweidmay include any term or condition in a franchise that:

(1) Requires the franchisee to waive trial by jury involving the franchisor;

(2)  Specifies the jurisdictions, venues or tribunals in which disputes arising with respect to a-elaimthe
franchise, lease or agreement shall or may not be submitted for resolution or otherwise enforceable
under—this—Aetprevents a franchisee from bringing an action in a particular forum otherwise
available under the law;

FORTHESTATEOF(3) Requires that disputes between the franchisor and franchisee be submitted to
arbitration or to any other binding alternate dispute resolution procedure. However, any franchise,
lease or agreement may authorize the submission of a dispute to arbitration or to binding alternate
dispute resolution if the franchisor and franchisee voluntarily agree to submit the dispute to
arbitration or binding alternate dispute resolution at the time the dispute arises;

(4) Requires a franchisee to pay the attorney fees of a franchisor;

(5) Prohibits the holder of an existing franchise from being dualed with another franchisor’s line that
does not substantially affect the current franchisor or community;

(6) Prohibits the holder of an existing franchise from moving to another facility within the franchisee’s
community that is equal to or superior to the franchisee’s former facility;

(7) Prohibits the holder of an existing franchise from making improvements to the franchisee’s current
facility within the franchisee’s community; or

(8) Permits a franchisor or the franchisor’s assignee to exercise a right of first refusal to acquire a
franchisee’s franchise or a franchisee’s assets in connection with the sale by a franchisee of that
franchisee’s franchise or assets.

17




VIRGINIA
ITEM 17 of the Disclosure Document is amended to add the following:

Pursuant to Section 13.1-564 of the Virginia Retail Franchising Act, it is unlawful for a franchisor to
cancel a franchise without reasonable cause. If any grounds for default or termination stated in the Franchise
Agreement does not constitute “reasonable cause,” as that term may be defined in the Virginia Retail
Franchising Act or the laws of Virginia, that provision may not be enforceable.

Pursuant to Section 13.1-564 of the Virginia Retail Franchising Act, it is unlawful for a
franchisor to use undue influence to induce a franchisee/area developer to surrender any right given to
him under the applicable agreement.

If any provision of the Franchise Agreement or Area Development Agreement involves the use
of undue influence by the franchisor to induce a franchisee/area developer to surrender any rights given
to him under the applicable agreement, that provision may not be enforceable.
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APPLICABLE ADDENDA

If any one of the preceding Addenda for specific states (“Addenda’™) is checked as an “Applicable Addenda”

below, then that Applicable Addenda shall be incorporated into the Franchise Disclosure Document, Franchise
Aareement, Supplemental Agreements (if applicable) and any other specified agreement(s) entered into by us

and the undersigned franchisee. To the extent any terms of an applicable Addenda conflict with the terms of the
Franchise Disclosure Document, Franchise Agreement, Supplemental Agreement (if applicable) and other
specified agreement(s), the terms of the Applicable Addenda shall supersede the terms of the Franchise

Agreement. We are responsible for checking the appropriate box or boxes.

Hawaii North Dakota
Indiana Rhode Island
Maryland Virginia
Michigan Wisconsin
Minnesota
New York
Dated: , 202 FRANCHISOR:

Exercise Coach USA, LLC

By:
Name:
Title:

FRANCHISEE:

[ ]

By:
Name:
Title:
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GENERAL RELEASE

[See Attached]
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WAIVER AND RELEASE OF CL AIMS

This Waiver and Release of Claims (this “Agreement”) is made as of , 202 (the
“Effective Date”) by ., a(n) (*you™) and each
individual holding a direct or indirect ownership interest in you (collectively “Owner”) in favor of
Exercise Coach USA, LLC, an Illinois limited liability company (“us,” and together with you and Owner
the “Parties”).

Background

A. We signed a Franchise Agreement with you, dated , 202 (the “Franchise Agreement”)
pursuant to which we granted you the right to own and operate a THE EXERCISE COACH® studio.

B. You have notified us of your desire to transfer the Franchise Agreement and all rights related thereto,
or an ownership interest in the franchisee entity, to a transferee, [enter into a successor franchise
agreement] and we have consented to such transfer [agreed to enter into a successor franchise
agreement].

C. As a condition to our consent to the transfer [your ability to enter into a successor franchise
agreement], you and Owner have agreed to execute this Agreement upon the terms and conditions
stated below.

D. In consideration of our consent to the transfer [our entering into a successor franchise agreement

and for other good and valuable consideration, the sufficiency and receipt of which are hereby
acknowledged, and intending to be legally bound, you and Owner hereby agree as set forth below.

Agreement

1. Release. Owner, you, and each of your officers, directors, shareholders, members, owners,
employees, agents, representatives, affiliates, parents, divisions, successors and assigns, and all
persons or firms claiming by, through, under, or on behalf of any or all of them (the “Franchisee
Parties”), hereby release, acquit and forever discharge us, any and all of our past and present
affiliates, parents, subsidiaries and related companies, divisions and partnerships, consultants,
advisors _and franchise sellers and its and their respective past and present officers, directors,
shareholders, members, owners, employees, agents, representatives, affiliates, parents, divisions,
successors and assigns, and the spouses of such individuals (collectively, the “Franchisor Parties”
from any and all claims, liabilities, damages, expenses, actions or causes of action which any of the
Franchisee Parties may now have or has ever had, whether known or unknown, past or present,

absolute or contingent, suspected or unsuspected, of any nature whatsoever, directly or indirectly
arising out of or relating to the execution and performance (or lack thereof) of the Franchise

Aareement or the offer, sale or acceptance of the franchise related thereto (including, but not limited

to any disclosures and representations made in connection therewith). The foregoing release shall not
be construed to apply with respect to any obligations contained within this Agreement.

2. California Law. You and Owner hereby express your intention to release all existing claims, whether
known or unknown, against the Franchisor Parties. Accordingly, you and Owner hereby waive 81542

of the California Civil Code, which provides the following:

‘A general release does not extend to claims which the creditor does not know or suspect to exist
in his or her favor at the time of executing the release, which if known by him or her must have
materially affected his or her settlement with the debtor.”

3. Washington Franchise Law. The General Release does not apply with respect to claims arising under
the Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act, RCW 19.100, or the rules adopted thereunder.

Franchise Disclosure Document (2024 Multi-State)



4. Nondisparagement. Each of the Franchisee Parties expressly covenant and agree not to make any
false representation of facts, or to defame, disparage, discredit or deprecate any of the Franchisor
Parties or otherwise communicate with any person or entity in a manner intending to damage any of
the Franchisor Parties, the business conducted by any of the Franchisor Parties or the reputation of
any of the Franchisor Parties. For purposes of clarity, the obligations in this Section apply to all
methods of communications, including the making of statements or representations through direct
verbal or written communication as well as the making of statements or representations on the
Internet, through social media sites or through any other verbal, digital or electronic method of
communication. The obligations in this Section also prohibit the Franchisee Parties from indirectly
violating this Section by influencing or encouraging third parties to engage in activities that would
constitute a violation of this Section if conducted directly by a Franchisee Party.

5. Representations and Warranties. You and Owner each represent and warrant that: (a) -
_ is duly authorized to execute this Agreement and perform its obligations
hereunder; (b) neither you nor Owner has assigned, transferred or conveyed, either voluntarily or b
operation of law, any of their rights or claims against any of the Franchisor Parties or any of the
rights, claims or obligations being terminated or released hereunder; (c) you and Owner have not and
shall not (i) institute or cause to be instituted against any of the Franchisor Parties any legal

proceeding of any Kind, including the filing of any claim or complaint with any state or federal court
or regulatory agency, alleging any violation of common law, statute, regulation or public policy

premised upon any legal theory or claim whatsoever relating to the matters released in this Agreement
or (ii) make any verbal, written or other communication that could reasonably be expected to damage

or adversely impact any Franchisor Party’s reputation or goodwill; and (d) the individuals identified

as Owners on the signature pages hereto together hold 100% of the legal and beneficial ownershi
interests in ﬁ

6. Communications with Governmental Authorities. Nothing in this Agreement shall restrict or be
deemed to preclude you from disclosing truthful information to governmental authorities in response
to any request for information you receive from them.

7. Miscellaneous.

(a) The Parties agree that each has read and fully understands this Agreement and that the opportunity
has been afforded to each Party to discuss the terms and contents of said Agreement with legal
counsel and/or that such a discussion with legal counsel has occurred.

(b) This Agreement shall be construed and governed by the laws of the State of Texas.

(c) In the event that it shall be necessary for any Party to institute legal action to enforce, or for the
breach of, any of the terms and conditions or provisions of this Agreement, the prevailing Party in
such action shall be entitled to recover all of its reasonable costs and attorneys’ fees.

(d) All of the provisions of this Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Parties
and their respective current and future directors, officers, partners, attorneys, agents, employees,
shareholders and the spouses of such individuals, successors, affiliates, and assigns.

(e) This Agreement contains the entire agreement and understanding between the Parties with respect to
the subject matter hereof and supersedes and is in lieu of all prior and contemporaneous agreements,
understandings, inducements and conditions, expressed or implied, oral or written, of any nature
whatsoever with respect to the subject matter hereof. This Agreement may not be modified except
in a writing signed by each of the Parties.

If one or more of the provisions of this Agreement shall for any reason be held invalid, illegal or
unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, illegality or unenforceability shall not affect or impair
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any other provision of this Agreement, but this Agreement shall be construed as if such invalid,
illegal or unenforceable provision had not been contained herein.

(g) _The Parties agree to do such further acts and things and to execute and deliver such additional
agreements and instruments as any Party may reasonably require to consummate, evidence, or
confirm the transactions contemplated hereby.

h) This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all
of which together shall constitute but one document.

Franchise Disclosure Document (2024 Multi-State)



IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the Parties have executed this Agreement as of the date first written above.

FRANCHISEE:

[ ]

By:
Name:
Title:

ERANCHISE OWNERS:

Name:

Name:
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EXHIBIT “E”-3

FRANCHISEE PARTICIPATION AND SOFTWARE LICENSE AGREEMENT

[See Attached]}See-Attached]
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FRANCHISEE PARTICIPATION AND SOFTWARE LICENSE AGREEMENT

This FRANCHISEE PARTICIPATION AND SOFTWARE LICENSE AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is
entered into as of the date set forth on the signature page to this Agreement (“Effective Date”) by and
between GYMBOT, LLC {(“GYMBOT”), the parent company that manufactures
ExerboticsEXERBOTICS® equipment, and the undersigned business or individual {*(“Franchisee” or

“you” or “your” as grammatically appropriate). GYMBOT and you are sometimes referred to in this
Agreement individually as a “Party” and collectively as the “Parties”.

PLEASE CAREFULLY READ THIS AGREEMENT. YOUR USE OF THE GYMBOT
SERVICES (AS DEFINED BELOW) IS CONDITIONED UPON YOUR ACCEPTANCE OF THIS
AGREEMENT WITHOUT MODIFICATION. IF YOU DO NOT AGREE TO THE TERMS SET
FORTH IN THIS AGREEMENT, YOU MAY NOT ACCESS OR USE THE GYMBOT
SERVICES AND YOUR EXERBOTICS® EQUIPMENT WILL NOT FUNCTION.

GYMBOT EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMS ANY RESPONSIBILITY TO PROVIDE OR MAINTAIN
SERVICES FOR EXERBOTICS® EQUIPMENT IN LOCATIONS THAT ARE NOT COVERED
BY THIS AGREEMENT OR FOR OWNERS, OPERATORS, OR LIENHOLDERS THAT ARE
NOT PARTY TO THIS AGREEMENT.

BACKGROUND
A-BACKGROUND

A. The GYMBOT Services include a software suite and computer hardware that enable the operation of
ExerbeticsEXERBOTICS" strength training equipment.

B. B-—The Exercise Coach USA, LLC (“Franchisor”) has identified you as one of its franchisees or
affiliates that is authorized to receive products and/or services from GYMBOT (together with the elP
System, the “GYMBOT Services”) pursuant to a separate agreement between Franchisor and
GYMBOT (the “Master Agreement”). —For purposes of this Agreement, if you are an approved
subscriber to the optional GYMBOT Tablet (as defined below) program, its system and attendant
services shall be deemed a part of “GYMBOT Services” for the duration of such subscription.

C. &—Your eligibility to access and use the GYMBOT Services is expressly conditioned on your
acceptance and ongoing compliance with the terms and conditions of: (i) this Agreement and (ii) any
and all other agreements entered into by and between you and the Franchisor or any affiliate of the
Franchisor.

AGREEMENT
AGREEMENT

NOW THEREFORE for good and valuable consideration the sufficiency of which is hereby
acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows:

ARTICLE |. Definitions DEFINITIONS

For the purposes of this Agreement, the following capitalized terms shall have the meanings set forth for
each of them below:

1. “Aggregated Data” means anonymized, aggregated data derived by or through the operation of the
GYMBOT Services that is created by or on behalf of GYMBOT and that does not reveal any personally
identifying information.

1y

2. ““Confidential Information™” means (a) any software utilized by GYMBOT in the provision of the

GYMBOT Services and its respective source code and (b) each Party’s business or technical information,
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including but not limited to the Documentation (as defined below), information relating to software plans,
designs, costs, prices and names, business opportunities, personnel, research, development or know-how
that is designated by the disclosing Party as “confidential” or “proprietary” or the receiving Party knows
or should reasonably know is confidential or proprietary.

3.-_“Documentation~” means GYMBOT’s online user guides, documentation, software specifications,
and help and training materials, as may be updated by GYMBOT from time to time, and any other
materials provided by GYMBOT as part of the GYMBOT Services.

4.-_“End User” means an individual or business that schedules services or purchases products and/or
services from you using your GYMBOT Services account or otherwise interacts with you utilizing your
GYMBOT Services account.

5.-_“End User Data” means data about an End User that is provided to GYMBOT through use of your
GYMBOT Services account, whether through data importation or direct entry. End User Data includes
cardholder data and such portions of Service Data that relate to a specific End User.

6.-_“Effective Date” means the date on which this Agreement becomes effective, as specified in Section
1 of Article IX below.

7.-_“HIPAA” means the United States Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act.

8.-_“GYMBOT Data” means any data or information collected by GYMBOT independently and without
access to, reference to or use of any of Service Data, including, without limitation, any data or
information GYMBOT obtains about End Users through the future development of a mobile app (whether
the same as Service Data or otherwise).

9.-_“Privacy Policy” means the GYMBOT Privacy Policy, as may be updated by GYMBOT from time
to time.

10-=. “Service Data” means all data entered or stored by you on GYMBOT-"’s host computer system
using the GYMBOT Services. Service Data also includes End User data, such as demographic
information and statistics derived from the use of the ExerbeticsEXERBOTICS® strength training

equipment.

11.-“Support Services” means remote tech support for your elP System and ExerbeticsEXERBOTICS”
strength equipment.

12-=. “Third Party Offerings” means any third-party products, applications, websites, implementations

or services, including loyalty programs, that the GYMBOT Services link to, or that interoperate with or
are used in conjunction with the GYMBOT Services.



ARTICLE I1. Service-Data SERVICE DATA

1. Service Data.

a. Ownership. GYMBOT owns all Service Data. You acknowledge that your right to access, use, copy,
modify and/or delete the Service Data is expressly conditioned upon your acceptance and ongoing
compliance with the terms and conditions of: (i) this Agreement, and (ii) any and all other agreements
entered into between you and the Franchisor or any affiliate of Franchisor. You acknowledge that the
revocation of the Service Data will cause your ExerbeticsEXERBOTICS” equipment to be non-
operational. You further acknowledge and agree that Franchisor may access, use, copy, modify and/or
delete the Service Data, at its sole discretion and without notice to you. You must obtain permission from
Franchisor in writing prior to granting any third-party access to the Service Data or providing any copies
of the Service Data to any third party. You are solely responsible for resolving any dispute regarding
ownership of Service Data between you and any third party, including Franchisor, and agree that
GYMBOT shall have no obligation to be involved in any such dispute.

b. Unauthorized Disclosure. If either Party believes that there has been a disclosure of Service Data in a
manner not authorized under this Agreement, such Party shall promptly notify the other Party.
Additionally, each Party will reasonably assist the other Party in investigating, remediating, or mitigating
any potential damage, including any notification which should be sent to individuals impacted or
potentially impacted by such unauthorized disclosure.

2. GYMBOT Services.

a.-__Overview. Gymbot, LLC will provide, and when necessary, service or replace the necessary server
hardware and software, (collectively, the “elP System”) required to operate the
ExerboticsEXERBOTICS" strength equipment. This does not include the internet service or
hardware that is required to provide internet connectivity to your facility, which you shall solely be
responsible for maintaining yourself. GYMBOT will at all times maintain ownership and title of the
entire elP System at your location and reserves the right to access, update, and copy data at any time,
and you expressly grant us the right to enter upon your Franchisee location during normal business
hours for such purpose. The elP System shall not be relocated by you and is not transferable without
the prior express written consent of GYMBOT, which may be withheld in its sole and absolute
discretion. The elP System shall be immediately surrendered by you and returned to GYMBOT’s
possession upon any termination or earlier cancellation of this Agreement or the Master Agreement
for any reason. The elP System will back up the End User"’s database on a regular basis and will
update the software under the current platform. Our obligations under this Agreement are limited to
the GYMBOT Services and elP System and do not cover the parts or electronics of the

ExerbeticsEXERBOTICS" strength equipment itself.

b. _ Support Services. During the term of this Agreement GYMBOT will provide tiered remote support
for all ExerbeticsEXERBOTICS® strength equipment. Tier 0 Support consists of help materials
that we have established to help you find solutions on your own without contacting one of our
technical support representatives. Tier 1 Support consists of you working remotely with a Tier 1
specialist to resolve basic issues. Tier 2 Support consists of you working remotely with a Tier 2
specialist to diagnose and correct more complex technical challenges. Tier 3 Support consists of you
working remotely with a Tier 3 specialist on issues that have yet to be encountered and may require
you having to ship certain parts to us for replacement. All Support Services may require you to open
the electronic component cover(s) and perform various forms of testing at the direction of the remote
technician, which may include some guided mechanical work on your part. GYMBOT does not offer
any form of on-site tech support services that do not require your participation.

You are responsible for providing support to your customers and prospective customers with their use
of our software, website, and mobile apps. If questions or issues arise that you, your employees, or



staff cannot solve with our help materials, you may submit a Support Ticket via the instructions found
within our help materials.

c.__Your Obligations. You are solely responsible for your use of the GYMBOT Services and
compliance with this Agreement. Without limiting the foregoing, you shall: (i) have sole
responsibility for the accuracy, quality, and legality of the Service Data and your collection and use
of the Service Data; (ii) keep the Service Data confidential and not use it for any purpose other than
to provide individualized advice and services to end-users of ExerboticsEXERBOTICS® strength
training equipment (iii) prevent unauthorized access to, or use of, the GYMBOT Services, and
notify GYMBOT promptly of any such unauthorized access or use; (iv) comply with all applicable
laws when using the GYMBOT Services, including those related to data privacy and transmission of
personal data, (v) have sole responsibility for obtaining, maintaining and paying for any hardware,
telecommunications, Internet and other services needed to use the GYMBOT Services, (vi) comply
with the Restrictions on Use set forth in subsection “d” below; (vii) ensure that every individual who
uses the ExerboticsEXERBOTICS" strength equipment has first executed (a) a Release Agreement
in a form previously approved by the Franchisor and (b) an End-User License Agreement (EULA)
and Terms of Service (ToS) acknowledgement, which may be amended from time to time at the sole
discretion of GYMBOT; (viii) ensure your ExerbeticsEXERBOTICS" strength equipment remains
in good working order by performing all necessary routine maintenance, procuring and installing any
supplemental or ancillary hardware, and working with our technical support to troubleshoot and
resolve any and all problems with functionality as described in subsection “b” above; and (ix
maintain for the mutual benefit of Franchisee, Franchisor, and GYMBOT, comprehensive liability
insurance against claims for personal injury, bodily injury, death and property damage occurring
upon, in or about each of Franchisee’s locations for the duration of this Agreement and in the amount
prescribed by the Franchisor. A current certificate (in the form prescribed by Franchisor) of such
insurance shall be furnished to GYMBOT and/or Franchisor at any time upon either party’s request.

d. _ Data Restrictions. In addition to the License Restrictions contained in Article 1V of this Agreement,
you will not and will not allow any of your employees or staff to: (i) submit any infringing, obscene,
defamatory, threatening, or otherwise unlawful or tortious material to the GYMBOT Services,
including material that violates privacy rights; (ii) interfere with or disrupt the integrity or
performance of the GYMBOT Services or the data contained therein; (iii) attempt to gain access to
the GYMBOT Services or related systems or networks in a manner not permitted by this
Agreement; (iv) post, transmit or otherwise make available through or in connection with the
GYMBOT Services any virus, worm, Trojan horse, Easter egg, time bomb, spyware or other
harmful computer code, files, scripts agents or programs; (v) restrict or inhibit any other person or
entity from using the GYMBOT Services, except as expressly allowed elsewhere in this Agreement;
(vi) remove any copyright, trademark or other proprietary rights notice from the GYMBOT
Services; (vii) frame or mirror any portion of the GYMBOT Services, or otherwise incorporate any
portion of the GYMBOT Services into any product or service; (viii) systematically download and
store GYMBOT Services content; (ix) use any robot, spider, site search/retrieval application or other
manual or automatic device to retrieve, index, “scrape,” “data mine” or otherwise gather GYMBOT
Services content, or reproduce or circumvent the navigational structure or presentation of the
GYMBOT Services.

e. __Use Restrictions. In addition to the Data Restrictions above you will not and will not allow any of
your employees or staff to: (i) use GYMBOT Services to deliver or allow exercise routines that
deviate from Franchisor’s brand standards; (ii) deliver or allow exercise routines in a manner that
does not conform to Franchisor’s standards; (iii) deliver or allow exercise routines to anyone other
than with Exercise Coach clients, prospective clients, guests and employees (collectively, the “End
Users”); (iv) coach End Users who have not met the requirements of the Franchisor, including but
not limited to intake requirements, any required medical clearance forms, age requirements, etc.; (v)
coach using the GYMBOT Services unless they are certified by the Franchisor (or in the process of
becoming certified and working alongside a fully certified coach); (vi) allow End Users to use the



ExerbotiesEXERBOTICS® equipment unsupervised by a certified coach or unauthorized, meaning
prior to having completed and signed the aforementioned waivers and EULA; (vii) charge End
Users any fees associated with their use of Gymbot Services (including any functionality within
mobile applications) other than those charges expressly allowed by Franchisor. You acknowledge
that violations of Use Restrictions may result in temporary suspension of the GYMBOT Services and
more than three (3) violations in any 12-month period shall be cause for termination of this
Agreement without a cure period.

f. __ HIPAA. HIPAA imposes rules to protect certain personal health information or “PHI” as that term is
defined under HIPAA. If you are subject to HIPAA, or if you become aware that you are subject to
HIPPA during the term of this Agreement, you must notify GYMBOT and enter into a Business
Associate Agreement (“BAA”) in the form provided by GYMBOT, prior to accessing or using the
Services. You are solely responsible for determining whether you are subject to HIPAA.

g. __Modifications to the GYMBOT Services. GYMBOT may modify, add, or remove features,
applications or functions to or from the GYMBOT Services, or to provide programming fixes,
enhancements, updates and upgrades, to the software supporting delivery of the GYMBOT Services,
with or without notice to you.

h. __Personal Information. The Privacy Policy governs how GYMBOT collects and uses personal

information that is submitted through the GYMBOT Services. By accessing or using the GYMBOT
Services, you agree to that you have read and accept the current Privacy Policy.

i. __Third Party Offerings. Although the GYMBOT Services may allow you to access or use Third
Party Offerings, they are not “GYMBOT Services” under this Agreement and are not subject to any
of the warranties, service commitments or other obligations with respect to GYMBOT Services
hereunder. The availability of any Third Party Offerings through the GYMBOT Services does not
imply GYMBOT’s endorsement of or affiliation with the provider. GYMBOT does not control
Third Party Offerings and will have no liability to you in connection with any Third Party Offerings.
GYMBOT has no obligation to monitor or maintain Third Party Offerings, and may disable or
restrict access to any Third Party Offerings at any time at its sole discretion. By using or enabling
any Third Party Offering, you are expressly permitting GYMBOT to disclose Service Data or other
information to the extent necessary to utilize the Third Party Offering. YOUR USE OF THIRD
PARTY OFFERINGS IS AT YOUR OWN RISK AND IS SUBJECT TO ANY ADDITIONAL
TERMS, CONDITIONS AND POLICIES APPLICABLE TO SUCH THIRD  PARTY
OFFERINGS (SUCH AS TERMS OF SERVICE OR PRIVACY POLICIES OF THE PROVIDERS
OF SUCH THIRD PARTY OFFERINGS).

j. _GYMBOT Tablet; Additional Obligations and Restrictions. In addition to the Franchisee
obligations and restrictions regarding GYMBOT Services contained in subsections 2(c) and 2(d)
above, if you are a Franchisee who has subscribed and been approved for the GYMBOT Tablet
program enabling your location’s qualified coaches to remotely operate your
ExerbeticsEXERBOTICS" equipment (together with the GYMBOT-approved tablet device, related
software and any firmware, the “GYMBOT Tablet”), you hereby agree to (i) restrict access to and
use of the GYMBOT Tablet to staff members who have been certified and approved to use the
GYMBOT Tablet by Franchisor, (ii) ensure that any of your coaches operating a GYMBOT Tablet
to access GYMBOT Services do so only when such device is physically connected to a stand or
other fixed connection point supplied or previously approved by Franchisor, and (iii) use your best
efforts to ensure that any coaches accessing or operating the GYMBOT Tablet do so only (x) while
physically in the same room as the client(s) being coached, (y) while in direct, line-of-sight with the
client(s) being coached and free of visual obstruction, and (z) while actively and exclusively engaged
in the coaching session with the client(s) being coached and free of distractions (e.g., cell phone
calls, texting, etc.).

As part of your subscription and participation in the GYMBOT Tablet program, you further agree



that you will not and will not allow any of your employees or staff to: (1) at any time allow any
GYMBOT Tablet to be used or operated detached from its Franchisor-supplied or pre-approved
stand or fixed connection point; (2) at any time allow any GYMBOT Tablet to copy, replicate,
recreate, remove, port or transfer any part of the GYMBOT Tablet, GYMBOT Services, their
software programs, or any portion of their source code from a GYMBOT Tablet to any other device
or storage medium without the prior written consent of GYMBOT; or (3) without the prior written
consent of GYMBOT, download, transfer, or install any third-party mobile applications, software
programs, source code, content, or material onto a GYMBOT Tablet.

THE ADDITIONAL OBLIGATIONS AND RESTRICTIONS CONTAINED IN THIS
SUBSECTION | ARE IMPERATIVE TO THE SAFETY AND EFFICACY OF THE GYMBOT
TABLET PROGRAM AND THEREFORE ANY VIOLATION IS SUBJECT TO IMMEDIATE
REVOCATION OF YOUR LICENSE TO USE THE GYMBOT TABLET TECHNOLOGY AND
PARTICIPATE IN THE GYMBOT TABLET PROGRAM.

GYMBOT RESERVES THE RIGHT TO TERMINATE THE TABLET PROGRAM AT ANY
TIME. IN SUCH AN EVENT, ALL OTHER PROVISIONS WITHIN THIS AGREEMENT
SHALL SURVIVE.

_ GYMBOT Tablet Opt-Out. If you are a Franchisee participating in the GYMBOT Tablet program,
you may voluntarily terminate your participation by providing Franchisor and GYMBOT with at
least ninety (90) days written request by e-mail addressed to:

support@exercisecoach-comsupport@exercisecoach.com.

Acceptance of your opt-out request by GYMBOT is not guaranteed and is conditioned upon
Franchisor’s prior approval.




Article ARTICLE 1. Feesand-Payment FEES AND PAYMENT
1. Gymbot Services Fees. Fees for the subscribed GYMBOT Services (the “GYMBOT Services

2.

Fees”) shall be $518.00 per month per Franchisee location, and shall commence upon the date
you receive the GYMBOT Services at your franchised location. In the event that GYMBOT and
the Franchisor negotiate a different rate in the future, you will be notified no less than 90 days
before the new amount takes effect. Franchisees subscribing to and approved for the GYMBOT
Tablet program will not incur any additional GYMBOT Services Fees for use of the GYMBOT
Tablet through calendar year 2023. However, as a subscribing Franchisee, you acknowledge and
agree that an additional fee of not greater than $49.00 per month may be added to and thereafter
included as part of the monthly GYMBOT Services Fees beginning on January 1, 2024 through
the duration of your GYMBOT Tablet program subscription. Should GYMBOT choose to
discontinue the Tablet Program, Service Fees will be adjusted accordingly.

Payment Terms. All payment obligations under this Agreement are non-cancelable and all fees
paid are non-refundable. You will provide GYMBOT with a valid and updated ACH Form or
another form of payment acceptable to GYMBOT. If you provide banking information, you
represent that you are authorized to use the account and you authorize GYMBOT to charge the
account for all payments hereunder. By submitting payment information, you authorize
GYMBOT to provide that information to third parties for purposes of facilitating payment. You
agree to verify any information requested by GYMBOT for purposes of acknowledging or
completing any payment.

Overdue Charges. Any amounts not received by the applicable due date may accrue late interest
at 1.5% of the outstanding balance per month, or the maximum interest permitted by applicable
law, whichever is less, plus costs of collection. Any amount not received by GYMBOT within
thirty (30) days after the applicable due date will be deemed a material default under this
Agreement, and GYMBOT will be entitled to either suspend the GYMBOT Services or
terminate the Agreement.

Payment Errors. If you believe a payment has been processed in error, you must provide written
notice to GYMBOT within thirty (30) days after the date of payment specifying the nature of the
error and the amount in dispute. If notice is not received by GYMBOT within such thirty (30) day
period, the payment will be deemed final.

Taxes. Fees do not include any taxes, levies, duties or similar governmental assessments of any
nature, including, for example, value-added, sales, use or withholding taxes, assessable by any
jurisdiction (collectively, “Taxes”). You are responsible for paying all Taxes associated with
purchases and transactions under this Agreement, whether or not we collect them at the time of
payment. If we are required to collect taxes for any applicable jurisdiction, you are required to
pay us directly and we will remit to the appropriate taxing authority.

ARTICLE IV. Proprietary-Rights PROPRIETARY RIGHTS
1. GYMBOT Intellectual Property. GYMBOT owns all right, title and interest in and to the

GYMBOT Services, GYMBOT Data and Aggregated Data. Subject to the limited rights
expressly granted hereunder, GYMBOT reserves all rights, title and interest in and to the
GYMBOT Services and Documentation, including all related intellectual property rights.

2. Limited License Grant. Provided that you are not in breach of any of the terms of this

Agreement or Master Agreement, GYMBOT hereby grants you a limited, revocable, non-
exclusive, non-transferable, non-sublicenseable, right to use the GYMBOT Services and
Documentation, within the Protected Territory (as defined below) only, and solely for your



internal business purposes during the term of this Agreement, and subject to your continued
performance under its terms (the “Software License”).

3. License Restrictions. You will not, directly or indirectly: (a) modify, copy or create any
derivative works based on the GYMBOT Services; (b) license, sublicense, sell, resell, rent, lease,
transfer, assign, distribute, time share, offer in a service bureau, or otherwise make the
GYMBOT Services available to any third party, other than End Users as permitted herein; (c)
reverse engineer or decompile any portion of the GYMBOT Services, including but not limited
to, any software or source code utilized by GYMBOT in the provision of the GYMBOT
Services; (d) access or use (or allow a third party to access or use) the GYMBOT Services for
competitive analysis or to build any competing products or services; (e) copy any features,
functions, integrations, interfaces or graphics of the GYMBOT Services; or (f) otherwise use or
exploit the GYMBOT Services in any manner not expressly permitted by this Agreement.

ARTICLE V. Confidential-nformation CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

A Party will not disclose or use any Confidential Information of the other Party except: (a) as reasonably
necessary to perform its obligations or exercise any rights granted pursuant to this Agreement; (b) with
the other Party*’s prior written permission; or (c) to the extent required by law or order of a court or other
governmental authority or regulation. Each Party agrees to protect the other Party’s Confidential
Information in the same manner that it protects its own Confidential Information of like kind, but in no
event using less than a commercially reasonable standard of care. Confidential Information will not
include any information that: (a) is or becomes generally known to the public without breach of any
obligation owed to the disclosing Party; (b) was known to a Party prior to its disclosure by the other
Party without breach of any obligation owed to the other Party; (c) was independently developed by a
Party without breach of any obligation owed to the other Party; or (d) was or is received from a third
party without breach of any obligation owed to the other Party. For clarity, nothing in this Section will
restrict GYMBOT with respect to GYMBOT Data or Aggregated Data.

ARTICLE VI. Bisclaimerof\AWarranties DISCLAIMER OF WARRANTIES

TO THE MAXIMUM EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW, GYMBOT MAKES NO
REPRESENTATIONS OR WARRANTIES OF ANY KIND, WHETHER EXPRESS, IMPLIED,
STATUTORY OR OTHERWISE, AND SPECIFICALLY DISCLAIMS ALL IMPLIED
WARRANTIES, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION ANY WARRANTIES OF TITLE, NON-
INFRINGEMENT, MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE WITH
RESPECT TO THE GYMBOT SERVICES AND/OR RELATED DOCUMENTATION. GYMBOT
DOES NOT WARRANT THAT YOUR USE OF THE GYMBOT SERVICES WILL BE SECURE,
TIMELY, ERROR-FREE OR UNINTERRUPTED, OR THAT THE GYMBOT SERVICES ARE OR
WILL REMAIN UPDATED, COMPLETE OR CORRECT, OR THAT THE GYMBOT SERVICES
WILL MEET YOUR REQUIREMENTS OR THAT THE SYSTEMS THAT MAKE THE GYMBOT
SERVICES AVAILABLE (INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION THE INTERNET, OTHER
TRANSMISSION NETWORKS, AND YOUR LOCAL NETWORK AND EQUIPMENT) WILL BE
UNINTERRUPTED OR FREE FROM VIRUSES OR OTHER HARMFUL COMPONENTS. THE
GYMBOT SERVICES AND ANY OTHER PRODUCTS AND THIRD PARTY MATERIALS ARE
PROVIDED ON AN “AS IS” AND “AS AVAILABLE” BASIS AND SOLELY FOR YOUR USE IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THIS AGREEMENT. ALL DISCLAIMERS OF ANY KIND (INCLUDING IN
THIS SECTION AND ELSEWHERE IN THIS AGREEMENT) ARE MADE ON BEHALF OF BOTH
GYMBOT AND ITS AFFILIATES AND THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS, DIRECTORS,
OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES, AFFILIATES, AGENTS, REPRESENTATIVES, CONTRACTORS,
LICENSORS, SUPPLIERS AND SERVICE PROVIDERS (COLLECTIVELY, THE “GYMBOT
PARTIES”).

ARTICLE VII. Limitation-of Liability LIMITATION OF LIABILITY
ice Disel " :




TO THE MAXIMUM EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, IN NO EVENT WILL THE GYMBOT
PARTIES’ AGGREGATE LIABILITY, COLLECTIVELY, FOR ALL CLAIMS ARISING OUT OF OR
RELATED TO THIS AGREEMENT, WHETHER IN CONTRACT, TORT OR OTHERWISE,
EXCEED THE SUBSCRIPTION FEES ACTUALLY PAID BY YOU APPLICABLE TO YOUR
GYMBOT SER}VICES ACCOUNT DURING THE TWELVE (12) MONTH PERIOD IMMEDIATELY
PRECEDING THE DATE OF THE INCIDENT. ALL LIMITATIONS OF LIABILITY OF ANY KIND
(INCLUDING IN THIS SECTION AND ELSEWHERE IN THIS AGREEMENT) APPLY WITH
RESPECT TO BOTH GYMBOT AND THE GYMBOT PARTIES.

IN NO EVENT WILL ANY GYMBOT PARTIES HAVE ANY LIABILITY FOR ANY INDIRECT,
SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL, CONSEQUENTIAL OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES, HOWEVER CAUSED,
OR FOR ANY LOST PROFITS, LOSS OF USE, DATA OR OPPORTUNITIES, COST OF DATA
RECONSTRUCTION, COST OR PROCUREMENT OF SUBSTITUTE GOODS OR SERVICES,
WHETHER IN CONTRACT, TORT OR OTHERWISE, ARISING OUT OF, OR IN ANY WAY
CONNECTED WITH THE SERVICES OR THIRD PARTY OFFERINGS, INCLUDING BUT NOT
LIMITED TO THE USE OR [INABILITY TO USE THE SERVICES, ANY INTERRUPTION,
INACCURACY, ERROR OR OMISSION, EVEN IF GYMBOT, THE GYMBOT PARTIES, THEIR
LICENSORS OR SUBCONTRACTORS HAVE BEEN PREVIOUSLY ADVISED OF THE
POSSIBILITY OF SUCH LOSS OR DAMAGES.

THE FOREGOING EXCLUSIONS OR LIMITATIONS MAY NOT APPLY TO THE EXTENT
PROHIBITED BY APPLICABLE LAW.

ARTICLE VIII. trdemnification- INDEMNIFICATION.

You agree to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Franchisor and the GYMBOT Parties from and
against any and all third party claims alleged or asserted against any of them, and all related charges,
injury, damages, losses, liabilities, and expenses (including, but not limited to, reasonable attorneys"’ fees
and costs) arising from or relating to: (a) any actual or alleged breach by you or any End User of any
provisions of this Agreement; (b) any actual or alleged violation by you or any End User of the
intellectual property, privacy or other rights of a third party; (c) any dispute between you and any other
party, including without limitation Franchisor, regarding ownership of or access to the Service Data, and
(d) any claims arising out a the use of ExerbeticsEXERBOTICS® strength equipment, including without
limitation claims of any kind for or relating to personal injury, wrongful death, or property damage or
loss.

ARTICLE IX. Fermand-Termination TERM AND TERMINATION

1. Effective Date. If you are a first-time user of the GYMBOT Services, the Effective Date shall be
the date on which you accept this Agreement (either digitally or by signing and delivering a copy
of this Agreement to GYMBOT). If you have been provided with access to and/or use of the
GYMBOT Services prior to the date on which this Agreement is presented to you for your review
and acceptance, then by accepting this Agreement, you are also agreeing that the Effective Date
shall be deemed to be the date on which you first accessed or used the GYMBOT Services.

2. Term. The term of this Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date, and continue until the
earlier of: (a) the expiration or termination of the franchise agreement between you and the
Franchisor; (b) the termination of any other agreement between you and the Franchisor or the
termination of any agreement between you and an affiliate of the Franchisor; (c) the expiration or
termination of the Master Agreement; or (d) the date that either Party terminates this Agreement
for cause in accordance with Section 3 of this Article.

3. Termination for Cause. In the event of a material breach of this Agreement by either Party, the

other Party shall have the right to terminate this Agreement, if the breaching Party fails to remedy
such breach within thirty (30) days of its receipt of written notice of such breach from the other



Party. Without limiting the foregoing, or any other remedies, GYMBOT may immediately limit,
suspend, or terminate your use of the GYMBOT Services immediately and without notice to you,
(a) upon Franchisor’s instruction, (b) if GYMBOT believes that you are breaching any provision
of this Agreement, including without limitation Franchisee’s obligations under Section 2(c
through e) , (c) if GYMBOT is required to do so by applicable law, or (d) if GYMBOT or
Franchisor, at their sole discretion, believes there to be a safety or security concern at your
location.

Survival The Parties’ rights and obligations pertaining to Service Data, Proprietary Rights,
Confidential Information, Disclaimer of Warranties, Limitation of Liability, Indemnification,
Term and Termination and all of Article XI shall survive any expiration or termination of this
Agreement, howsoever occurring.

ARTICLE X. Negative Covenants/Exclusivity NEGATIVE COVENANTS/EXCLUSIVITY.

a-L.

o3
[

Overview. During the Term of this Agreement, GYMBOT agrees that it shall not sell any
Exclusive Isokinetic Equipment to a Commercial Fitness Retailer within the Protected Territory
as each are defined below. The restrictions and covenants imposed on GMYMBOT under this
Avrticle X shall not apply with respect to the sale of any Exclusive Isokinetic Equipment:

(i) to a Commercial Fitness Retailer, regardless of the location of such Commercial Fitness
Retailer’s facility, that takes place prior to our determination of the boundaries of the
“Territory” under your Exercise Coach Franchise Agreement or the boundaries of the
“Development Territory” under your Exercise Coach Area Development Agreement, as
applicable; or

(i) to a Commercial Fitness Retailer for a facility that (a) is located outside of the original
Territory under your Exercise Coach Franchise Agreement and (b) is located within the
boundaries of any modified Territory that Franchisor grants to you under your Exercise
Coach Franchise Agreement as a result of an approved relocation of your Exercise Coach
personal training studio or personal training suite.

Exclusive Isokinetic Equipment. Exclusive Isokeninetic Equipment is strictly limited to the
ExerboticsEXERBOTICS”  equipment  line  and  commonly  known as: (i)
ExerboticsEXERBOTICS® Chestpress/Row, (i) ExerbeticsEXERBOTICS® Nucleus, (iii)
ExerboticsEXERBOTICS®  CrossFire,  (iv)  ExerbetiesEXERBOTICS®  Shoulder
Press/Pulldown, (V) ExerboticsEXERBOTICS”  Seated Leg Curl, and (vi)
ExerboticsEXERBOTICS” Leg Press.

Commercial Fitness Retailer. For the purposes of this Agreement, a “Commercial Fitness

Retailer” is defined as a fitness facility that derives over half of its annual gross revenue from (a)
offering to the general public, the use of a facility and its exercise equipment, and/or (b) personal
(exercise) training services, including one-on-one, small group, and large group training formats.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, under no circumstances shall “personal (exercise) training”
include exercise services that are required in any manner whatsoever to be overseen, supervised
or delivered by a licensed or otherwise credentialed healthcare professional who specializes in the
prevention, diagnosis or treatment of diseases, injuries, or other disorders and does not otherwise
meet the criteria of subsections “a” and “b” described herein. Further, for purposes of clarity,
facilities that are expressly excluded from the definition of Commercial Fitness Retailer include,
but are not limited to physical therapy clinics, medical facilities, senior living communities,
corporate wellness centers, and other similar types of establishments.

Protected Territory. For the purpose of this Agreement, “Protected Territory” shall mean, as
applicable: (a) the Territory granted to you pursuant to the Exercise Coach Franchise Agreement
between you and the Franchisor for the establishment of your Exercise Coach location; and/or (b)



the Development Territory granted to you pursuant to any Exercise Coach® Area Development
Agreement between you and the Franchisor for the development and operation of multiple
Exercise Coach® franchised locations.

ARTICLE XI. Miseellaneeus MISCELLANEOUS

1.

2.

3.

Mandatory Informal Dispute Resolution. If you have any dispute with GYMBOT arising out

of or relating to this Agreement, you agree to notify GYMBOT in writing with a brief, written
description of the dispute and your contact information, and GYMBOT will have thirty (30) days
from the date of receipt within which to attempt resolve the dispute to your reasonable
satisfaction. If the Parties are unable to resolve the dispute through good faith negotiations over
such thirty (30) day period under this informal process, either Party may pursue resolution of the
dispute in accordance with the arbitration agreement below.

Governing Law. This Agreement will be governed by and interpreted in accordance with the

internal laws of the State of Texas without regard to conflicts of laws principles. The U.N.
Convention on the International Sale of Goods will not apply.

Arbitration Agreement. ALL DISPUTES ARISING OUT OF OR RELATED TO THIS

AGREEMENT OR ANY ASPECT OF THE RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN YOU AND
GYMBOT, WHETHER BASED IN CONTRACT, TORT, STATUTE, FRAUD,
MISREPRESENTATION OR ANY OTHER LEGAL THEORY, THAT ARE NOT
RESOLVED PURSUANT TO SUBSECTION 1 ABOVE WILL BE RESOLVED THROUGH
FINAL AND BINDING ARBITRATION BEFORE A NEUTRAL ARBITRATOR INSTEAD
OF IN A COURT BY A JUDGE OR JURY, AND GYMBOT AND YOU EACH HEREBY
WAIVE THE RIGHT TO TRIAL BY A JURY. YOU AGREE THAT ANY ARBITRATION
UNDER THIS AGREEMENT WILL TAKE PLACE ON AN INDIVIDUAL BASIS; CLASS
ARBITRATIONS AND CLASS ACTIONS ARE NOT PERMITTED AND YOU ARE
AGREEING TO GIVE UP THE ABILITY TO PARTICIPATE IN A CLASS ACTION. The
arbitration will be administered by the American Arbitration Association under its Commercial
Arbltratlon Rules and Mediation Procedures (currently accessible at

- Owww.adr.org/
aaa/faces/ruIes/searchruIes/rulesdetalI°doc ADRSTG 004130) as amended by this Agreement.
Any arbitration hearing will be held in Montgomery County, TX. The applicable governing law
will be as set forth in Article XI, Section 2 above (provided that with respect to arbitrability
issues, federal arbitration law will govern). The arbitrator’s decision will follow the terms of this
Agreement and will be final and binding. The arbitrator will have authority to award temporary,
interim or permanent injunctive relief or relief providing for specific performance of this
Agreement, but only to the extent necessary to provide relief warranted by the individual claim
before the arbitrator. The award rendered by the arbitrator may be confirmed and enforced in any
court having jurisdiction thereof.

Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the Parties with
respect to its subject matter, and supersedes all prior and contemporaneous agreements, proposals
or representations, written or oral, concerning its subject matter. Without limiting the foregoing,
you acknowledge that you are not a party to or intended beneficiary of the Master Agreement and
have no rights under that agreement.

Waiver and Severability. No waiver of any provision of this Agreement by GYMBOT will be

effective unless in writing and signed by GYMBOT. No waiver by either Party of any breach or
default hereunder will be deemed to be a waiver of any preceding or subsequent breach or
default. If any provision of this Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to law, the provision will be modified by the court and interpreted so as best to



accomplish the objectives of the original provision to the fullest extent permitted by law, and the
remaining provisions of this Agreement will remain in effect.

6. Assignment. GYMBOT may assign, delegate, or transfer this Agreement, in whole or in part, in
its sole discretion, without your notice or consent. You may not assign, delegate or transfer this
Agreement in whole or in part, without GYMBOT’s prior written consent.

7. Relationship. The Parties are independent contractors. Nothing in this Agreement shall
constitute a joint venture, partnership, or agency relationship between GYMBOT and you, or
authorize either Party to make any representation on behalf of or in any way to bind the other
Party to any obligation of any kind, express or implied, to any third party, or to incur any liability
on behalf of the other Party.

8. Amendments. GYMBOT may, in its sole discretion, supplement or modify this Agreement upon
written notice to you. Any new or modified version of this Agreement will be effective upon the
earlier of your acceptance of those terms or your continued use of the GYMBOT Services
following delivery of notification of such change. If you do not agree to be bound by any such
changes to this Agreement, your sole and exclusive remedy is to immediately stop all use of the
GYMBOT Services. Any other modifications to this Agreement must be in writing and executed
by duly authorized representatives of each of the Parties. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
Franchisees currently participating in the GYMBOT Tablet program who do not accept or are
otherwise unable to fully comply with any amendment or modification to Article 11, Section 2(h)
of this Agreement, shall (a) within five (5) days of receiving notice of the new or modified
version of Article 11, Section 2(h) notify Franchisor in writing of their non-acceptance or inability
to comply with such version, and (b) immediately cease all access, use, or operation of any
GYMBOT Tablet and related equipment in the control and possession of Franchisee.
Notwithstanding, amendments and modifications to the EULA and ToS may be made at our sole
discretion without written notice.

Agreement (other than for delay in your obligation to make payment of money due and payable
under the terms of this Agreement) for causes beyond that Party’s reasonable control and
occurring without that Party’s fault or negligence, including, but not limited to, acts of God, acts
of government, flood, fire, civil unrest, acts of terror, strikes or other labor problems (other than
those involving GYMBOT or your employees,  respectively), computer attacks (by
government/nation entities or otherwise) or malicious acts, such as attacks on or through the
Internet, any Internet service provider, telecommunications or hosting facility. Dates by which
performance obligations are scheduled to be met will be extended for a period of time equal to the
time lost due to any delay so caused.

9. Force Majeure. Neither Party will be liable for any failure or delay in performance under this



WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement to be effective as of the Effective Date.

Franchisee GYMBOT, LLC
Signature Signature

Printed Name Printed Name
Title Title

Effective Date

Facility Address




WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement to be effective as of the Effective Date.

Franchisee GYMBOT, LLC
Signature Signature

Printed Name Printed Name
Title Title

Effective Date

Facility Address
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EXHIBIT “E”-4

FRANCHISE RESALE AGREEMENT

[See Attached]
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FRANCHISE RESALE AGREEMENT

This Electronic-Mail-Acknowledgement-and-ReleaseFranchise Resale Agreement (the “ReleaseAgreement”) is

made—entered into as of [ 1, 202[ 1 (the “Effectlve Date”) between the—end—user
2 e “vyoy” gr “ e mmati /-approp C COACHEXxercise Coach USA,
LLC, an III|n0|s I|m|ted I|ab|I|ty IEG—GMJEH,—WH#%Ji)comDanV (“we” or “us”) and
[ l.a(n) [ 1 (“you” and together with us, the “Parties”).
BACKGROUND
A. On [ ], 202[ 1. the Parties entered into a(n) The Exercise Coach Franchise

Agreement (the “Franchise Agreement” ursuant to which we granted you the right, license and

obligation to develop, open and operate _a(n) THE EXERCISE COACH® studio located at
[ 1 (your “Studio™).

B. You have notified us that you desire to sell the Studio and supplementsyou have requested our assistance in
effectuating the sale and transfer of the Studio.

C. We have agreed to assist you in your efforts to sell the Studio subject to the terms and conditions set forth
in this Agreement.

AGREEMENT

1. Background Recitals. The statements made in the Recitals above are true and accurate and are
incorporated herein.

2. _Defined Terms. Any capitalized term that is not defined herein shall be—ecensidered—a—part—efhave the
meaning ascribed to it in the Franchise Agreement-between-Franchisee-and-TEC.

3. Term. The term of this Aareement (the “Term”) begins on the Effective Date and expires on [the
expiration or earlier termination of the current term of the Franchise Agreement] [
202 1. If the Parties renew the term of the Franchise Agreement, then the Parties may (but need not)

renew the Term of this Agreement upon mutually agreeable terms and conditions.

4. Engagement. You hereby engage us to provide franchise brokerage services during the Term on a non-
exclusive basis. We hereby accept the engagement and agree to assist you in your efforts to: (a) locate one

or more qualified buyers for your Studio; and (b) sell your Studio to a qualified buyer that we approve as

meeting our minimum qualifications and eligibility requirements for a franchisee. You agree that we may
offer (and publicly list) your Studio for sale at any price equal to or greater than $[ ].

5. Sales Assistance. During the Term, we agree to provide reasonable assistance in connection with your

efforts to sell your Studio. We will utilize our current franchise recruiting system and our internal and
external franchise sales network (our “Franchise Recruitment Program™) in an effort to identi ualified

candidates to purchase your Studio. We shall pre-qualify all leads to ensure they meet our minimum

gualifications and eligibility requirements for franchisees. We do not represent or guaranty that our efforts
to identify a gqualified buyer willing to purchase your Studio will be successful. Under no circumstances
will we have any liability to you based on the services we render pursuant to this Agreement.

6. Your Obligations. We will expend valuable time and resources attempting to market and sell your Studio.
For this reason, you may not refuse any purchase offer that we present to you for a purchase price of at
least $[ ]. However, you will have an opportunity to negotiate a higher price after we
introduce the potential buyer to you. You agree to cooperate with us in good faith and provide all
reasonable assistance and information we request in order to effectuate the purposes of this Agreement and
facilitate the sale of your Studio. You agree to promptly provide all potential buyers with full access to your
books and records for due diligence purposes. Throughout the Term, you agree to remain in full
compliance with all terms of the Franchise Agreement. You understand that all terms in the Franchise
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Agreement governing transfer of your Studio (including payment of the transfer fee) shall apply to any sale
of your Studio notwithstanding the execution of this Agreement.

7. Purchase Agreement. We assume no responsibility for preparing or negotiating the asset or stock purchase
agreement between you and the buyer. You and the buyer are solely responsible for preparing and
negotiating the asset or stock purchase agreement pursuant to which you will transfer ownership of your
Studio to the buyer.

8. Fees and Costs. If you sell your Studio to a buyer solicited through our Franchise Recruitment Program,
then you agree to reimburse us for all referral fees, commissions and other compensation we must pay to

any of our employees or independent contractors and/or any third-party broker, referral agent, sales agent,
development agent or lead generation source in connection with the sale of your Studio (“Sales

Commissions™). You agree to pay us the Sales Commissions in one lump sum concurrently with the closin
of the sale of your Studio to the buyer. The Sales Commissions shall be in addition to any transfer fee
imposed under the Franchise Agreement.

9. Indemnification. Your indemnification obligation under the Franchise Agreement shall extend to and
apply with respect to any damages we incur as a result of or in connection with: (a) your breach of this
Agreement; or (b) your discussions, negotiations or relationship with potential buyers solicited through the
Franchise Recruitment Program, including your breach of any agreement between you and such buyer.

10. No Liability. You hereby agree to hold harmless, and not assert any claims against, us, our affiliates, any
of our (or our affiliates’) owners, officers, employees or other representatives, or any member of our
Franchise Recruitment Program, in connection with any dispute or disagreement between you and any
prospective or actual buyer of your Studio.

11. Default & Termination. If you breach any obligation under this Agreement and fail to cure the breach
within 10 days after notice from us, we may immediately terminate this Agreement upon notice to you and
pursue any and all remedies available to us under this Agreement, the Franchise Agreement, at law or in
equity. Your default under this Agreement constitutes a default under the Franchise Agreement. Similarly,
your default under the Franchise Agreement constitutes a default under this Agreement.

12. Effect of Expiration or Termination. Upon expiration of the Term, we have no further responsibility or
obligation to assist you with the sale of your Studio unless otherwise agreed to by both Parties in writing.
If, following the expiration or termination of this Agreement, you sell your Studio to any person who was
initially solicited through our Franchise Recruitment Program during the Term of this Agreement, then you
agree to pay us the Sales Commissions in 88 notwithstanding the prior termination or expiration of this
Agreement.

13. Miscellaneous.

(a) No Waiver. By executing this Agreement, we shall not be deemed to have: (a) waived or impaired any
right, power or option granted to us under the Franchise Agreement; or (b) waived or consented to any
default or breach by you under the Franchise Agreement.

(b) Effect on Franchise Agreement. All terms, conditions, covenants and representations set forth in the
Franchise Agreement shall remain in full force and effect during the Term of this Agreement.

(c) Binding Nature. This Agreement shall be binding upon the Parties hereto and their respective heirs,
personal representatives, successors and assigns.

(d) Time of Essence. Time is of the essence in this Agreement and every term thereof.

e) Headings. The headings in this Aagreement are for convenience only and are not to be construed as a part
of this Agreement or in any way defining, limiting or amplifying the provisions hereof.

(f) Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by, construed and enforced under the laws of the

State of Texas.
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(g) Dispute Resolution. Any dispute between the Parties relating to this Agreement shall be resolved in
accordance with the dispute resolution procedures set forth in the Franchise Agreement, all of which are
incorporated herein by this reference.

(h) Entire Agreement; Modification. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement and understanding
between the Parties regarding the subject matter hereof. This Agreement may not be modified except in
a writing signed by both Parties.

(i) Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed to be an original, and all of which together shall constitute one and the same document.

The Parties have executed this Agreement effective as of the Effective Date first above written.
“FRANCHISOR”
Exercise Coach USA, LLC

By:
Name:
Title:

“FRANCHISEE”
[ 1

By:
Name:
Title:
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EXHIBIT "F"
TO DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

TABLE OF CONTENTS OF BRAND STANDARDS MANUAL

1. Introduction to Site Selection, Real Estate and Pre-Opening Timeline 40 pp.
2. Fitness Training and Certification (87 min video) 134 pp.
3. Operational and Business Management Processes 94 pp.
4. Operational Forms and Requirements 42 pp.
5. Marketing and Promotions Training (18 min video) 39 pp
6. Nutritional Training + Video (56 min video) 107 pp
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Part A (Current Franchisees)

EXHIBIT "G"

TO DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

LIST OF FRANCHISEES

The following table lists franchisees that were open as of December 31, 2024.

lets That Wer n f December 31, 2024
State City Address Phone Owner Name(s)

Alabama Huntsville %% 256-870-2800 Tom Palmisano
Alabama Madison Zﬂla%?sg:\,&i:b\;\r/ﬁ:gggsg 256-464-2553 Tom Palmisano
Arizona Gilbert Hee s Ige”r?’erAtri%andé 5%66#104 480-550-8383 Dwight Lavender
Arizona Mesa ATLLE, Palcon Drive, SUte 122 480-716-6080 Cheryl Campbell
Arizona Phoenix 2040 Bast Shea Blvd, Sulte 150 480-500-4845 Bill Cherry *
Arizona Scottsdale % 480-473-5764 Danielle Munson *
Arizona Scottsdale %% 480-625-3662 Danielle Munson *
Arizona Tempe % 480-432-9700 Cheryl Campbell
Arkansas Bentonville gir?t;\l/\\//i ﬁ:inAtFiZ‘n?:;tszizlzz 479-319-3539 Felicia Sawyers
Arkansas Little Rock Ifi?l?a Iéggﬁg?ﬁéﬁ:;;%?;ﬁ% 501-500-6880 David Johnson, Jr.
California Carlshad 26&;33;:;”223 fsr?r?ila‘l S;SSBB 760-494-1146 %Z%II_‘:S
Califomia | Claremont C|are:§1?+myn 626-788-2360 Jennifer Smith *
California |  Encinitas Enc}fﬁjfg‘;'ﬂéﬁ S 760-274-8095 Dave Ll
California Folsom 101|§oiani1(,jV(\ézllli fitr'r’]isau;g%ggoo 916-292-7979 Prakash Eswaran
California Fremont 4342&%(2?:‘02;:],\8%ii%iﬁgsm 510-400-6838 Siddhartha Dayal
California Glendora laé?eﬁdfrlznga/lai\:‘/gr.ﬁ;ugfii)so 626-788-1015 Jennifer Smith *
California La Jolla 15618\?0';21\./& \Ilﬁcorsr#;tzgggg 619-713-9090 | David Fernandez Sanchez'®
California | Livermore i a0 Concennon B 925-800-3500 Michalle sechel
California | Los Angeles Los‘fﬁzeﬁ::’kg;m?n?;‘g%oz 323-968-0305 | ;%g%gﬁgy
Califomia Wﬁm Mounltgﬁzvl\?;\r/s.m (;)ar}tiio?r:/iz 94040 £50-203-2493 %ﬂ
Calfomia | g Newpor Beach, Califomia gb0 | 2499949001 | lzabela webber
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Qutlets That Were Open as of December 31, 2024

State City Address Phone Owner Name(s)
California Pleasanton Pfegaiir?t/::.e(\éaﬁ\i\flg.rhis;gdefs'%G 925-621-8511 Michelle Setchell *
California Rocklin 0002 Lonetee B, Sulte 1500 916-252-2896 ron Howston
California San Diego WW 858-217-5644 | David Fernandez Sanchez !
California San Diego 98Zga\:lvli:l)lic;WOCéeaelli(foRr?].i.aS;zitle;ltl03 858-673-1777 Tracy Ashcraft
California San Diego 503%;]ag:200dec|:| i?;erzt% %;'{%g 304 619-456-0888 David Fernandez
Gatric | s | USMMMACSEI) | ooy | oy
California C%o 53;1::-14\? ularFf ?:n;p?igtxineg? (Ii?aﬁllfoS rLrjwiiJ[ae ;#21@725 509-999-5900 %
Califonia | SMatino | &\ Calorinoson | 2094220 | fud iR
California San Ramon Slggncézvégnénggﬂ ler.r’li?g;[%gé% 925-378-5941 Jennifer Ringenberg
California Sausalito Saulszfl;izti(tje, g;ﬁﬁ‘b?ﬁigeg?g% 415-963-4560 Mark Caragio
Colorado Aurora 24291 jjrgrr;hgﬁoljgdgg&\l/?'lSD 720-613-0373 Nathan Cleveringa
Colorado | Broomfield 373?0\(’)\’5#‘;?; fue. Suite FDT00 720-902-5900 Jertsorgensen
Colorado Castle Rock ?aifl?;nobgl?,sgosl;rsgétesgfggz 303-285-9955 %1
Colorado Colo_rado 9475 Briar V_illage Point, Ste. 110 719-418-3142 m%
= Springs Colorado Springs, Colorado 80920 — Grant Walrod
Colorado % Heigﬁ?a:(ilnllzbammeci?gi dsoug((;lgo 303-536-6866 Daniel Gleason*
Colorado Littleton 690|1_%g;g:f%iﬁ?éhgggi;g o1 720-828-7353 Kyle Gardiner
Colorado Louisville 1035;?;:? Egllélgedrosi;gtoegloo 303-486-7489 Leo V. Rodriguez
Colorado Parker %W 720-399-0788 m%l

Connecticut Groton 4%;;2?: g;:nigtlciltﬂéeeﬁg 2 860-785-6450 David Roden
Delaware Lewes lSB&a@gg‘;&s;z%%ggg & 302-703-1022 Ronald Jay Milligan Jr.
722}5&%?: Washington 3333 S&gﬁggfgg%’gzgggg #105 202-792-2886 Kirsten Denny

Elorida Boca Raton o0 SE?;(EQ Ig;[((i)?l,HI:il%r;\i/(\;zyé384u3i»t2€ e 261-286-8788 Marsi,gnsnhgrhkaerkey !
Florida s%ﬁ;s ci?zﬁss;'ﬁr?qzi.vslréir%a[)%@l 541021075 AlexDuran:
o | owe | ORSMmennEe i | Gielods
Florida Dunedin 92 Curlew Road, Ul ot 727-228-0470 Kristina Kovarik
Florida Lau%jale Fort L;uldzeSr(ialz IS::Jc?rriidSae 33304 $4910-7236 Alex Duran®
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Qutlets That Were Open as of December 31, 2024

State City Address Phone Owner Name(s)

. . 6100 Greenland Rd., Suite #802 Charles Repak
Florida Jacksonville Jacksonville, Florida 32258 904-650-2425 Denise Repak

. : 615 N. Orange Ave., Suite #3 Bill Sharkey
Florida Jupiter Jupiter, Florida 33458 961-295-1616 Mary Ann Sharkey?

. 809 Rinehart Rd. e Bill Sharkey
Florida Lake Mary Lake Mary, Florida 32746 407-794-7338 Mary Ann Sharkey?

. Lakewood 9122 Town Center Pkwy, Suite #102 L
Florida Ranch Lakewood Ranch, Florida 34202 941-538-5600 Nicasio Jones
Florida Naples 9931 Tarmiam] Trail 11, Sujte 21 239-592-6224 Thomas Wooden !
Florida Naples 2662;?:;5 FBIIoVr(ij(.j,aS; ﬁeojloz 239-331-7211 Thomas Wooden *

. North Palm 1220 US Hwy 1, Unit D Bill Sharkey
Elorida Beach North Palm Beach, Florida 33408 261-272-6111 Mary Ann Sharkey!

. Pembroke 18450 Pines Blvd., Suite #101 1
Elorida Pines Pembroke Pines, Florida 33029 954-320-6034 Alex Duran -

. 2190 Airport Blvd., Suite #2650 Evan Forbes
Elorida Pensacola Pensacola, Florida 32504 850-270-1901 Tracey Forbes

. Ponte Vedra | 13000 Sawgrass Village Circle Bldg. 9 — 49 Beth Stovall
Florida Beach Ponte VVedra Beach, Florida 32082 904-478-9040 Terry Stovall
Florida Sarasota 4333;{;;?;“‘2{‘()‘;;;2;5;';6 E 941-259-4863 Chrystal Pruitt

th
Florida |~ Seminole Sermas, Floidh 3372 721:551:4442 | Stephanie Kesselrn

. St. 5409 16" Street North .
Elorida Petersburg St. Petersburg, Florida 33703 127-498-5400 Jak Plihal

. St. 5999 Central Avenue, Suite #203 Michael Busjahn
Elorida Petersburg St. Petersburg, Florida 33710 127-565-0521 Gail Busjahn

. 12950 Race Track Rd., Suite #105 Kevin Furbish
Florida Tampa Tampa, Florida 33626 813-961-0001 Thuy Furbish?

. 3802 Ehrlich Rd. Suite #101 Kevin Furbish
Elorida Tampa Tampa, Florida 33624 813-600-1666 Thuy Furbish?
Florida Weston L0818 saadle Clube Rond 954-678-5622 Alex Duran *

. 735 North Main St., Suite #800 .
Georgia Alpharetta Alpharetta, Georgia 30009 170-870-1750 Eric Roberts
. . 1513 Johnson Ferry Rd. T.J. Luz
Georgia Marietia Marietta, Georgia 30062 678-935-9550 Matt Essex
. . 3894 Due West Road, Suite #270 Jim Irvin
Georgia Marietia Marietta, Georgia 30064 470-227-0150 Jennifer Irvin !
. Peachtree 5005 Peachtree Parkway, Suite #840 .
Georgia Corners Peachtree Corners, Georgia 30092 470-563-1313 Eric Roherts
. Sandy 5252 Roswell Road, Suite #200 ) Jim Irvin
Georgia Springs Sandy Springs, Georgia 30342 678-3854477 Jennifer Irvin?!
. Sandy 2090 Dunwoody Club Dr., Suite #119 o Marshall Millikan
Georgia Springs Sandy Springs, Georgia 30350 L00-727-6797 Pam Millikan !
. 3463 Lawrenceville Suwanee Rd., Suite #105 Shane Sieracki
Georgia Suwanee Suwanee, Georgia 30024 678-904-2334 Tonya Sieracki
. 671 East Riverpark Lane, Suite 105 s Amy Besoushko
Idaho Boise Boise, Idaho 83706 208-314-78/8 Mark Besoushko
Kevin Coleman
L Arlington 281 N. Dunton Avenue Carol Coleman
lllinois Heights Arlington Heights, Illinois 60004 847-818-0822 Dan Coleman

Chris Coleman
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Qutlets That Were Open as of December 31, 2024

State City Address Phone Owner Name(s)
Ilinois Bannockburn Banrf(?(}Isz\r/r?H:(l?ﬁ%r]ingoow 847-948-8000 Michael Kaplan
minois | G0N Buffals Grove. linois 60060 B219.0089 | 'S
s | il | 0000 S Re L TS | sy | Dol
lllinois Gurnee SO S e 847-855-0305 Andrew Aswad
llinois | LakeZurich Lake5§8riséh??ﬂ?n§izag0047 B47-126-3785 Seott Decramua
s | Comite | 0o M | s | Ko Coen
Wlinois Naperville 12N22pler?\?if|2i,s|m'i 3523261380 630-470-9268 L uke Davidson !
s | e | PASWIOTCS R | g | e
IWlinois Northbrook S bndee [0, Sute 1 224-479-0830 Matt McDonnell
tinis | e e e
Kevin Coleman
s | pakmie | SNV SeC | o | ColCoon
Chris Coleman
Hlinois Schaumburg S%mgs%fg 4 847-301-3000 Kathy Fascenda
s | Virak | DO ROSSNRGSMCRE | oy | e Deien
Indiana | Crown Point Crovlvizlgoi}tj.ol:Sti;t;ejztsam 219-661-1661 LJ. Lux
indina | Dyer Dy, Indiana 46311 2923895 | payngiggs
| s Bt | neem | o
Indiana Indianapolis %&% 317-324-1042 Andrea Hiner
s | zmoite | USWSORSE | oo | Juoum
e | Wt | st SeIT | ooy | bwicw
s | e | T00Sme R0 el | o | Pl s
s | wewe | BOREIMSNGNT gy | ey salbams
Kentucky Louisville ngﬁi?nﬁestle;% \(/:i|llve Ai%idg 502-805-6481 Kendrick Porter
Kentuck Louisville 4141 Shelbyville Road 502-890-9696 Kendrick Porter

Louisville, Kentucky 40207

Mayria Porter
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Qutlets That Were Open as of December 31, 2024

State City Address Phone Owner Name(s)
Louisiana Metairie Zh;gtla ﬁg‘lilr_]gul?srii;ﬁé %ggf 504-313-1013 Theresa Hayes
Maine Portland 11?32’r'$?]i£a|'\/|\2’ii\é'054“1%61#5 207-544-6884 L ouis Kaucic
Massachusetts | Dedham lm%es 781-471-5016 J%m )
Massachusetts Pel:ln%rrtgke Pem%w 781-451-3721 Carla Vale
Massachusetts Wellesley Wellesle%ts 02482 617-564-4234 Jeffrey Cotter *
Michigan Cﬁ%ﬁrﬁl Commer:esclii;?grrql!\l/vlikﬁﬂi%?gdan ag3gy | 248-880-2599 %
Michigan F%%{gi 85?;3?2;;2 'l\A/l\:shE]inSAllg;GA 616-600-4572 Andrea Hiner
Michigan Northville No?&ﬁﬁeﬁﬁ%ﬂigasiasdlm 734-338-2626 W
Michigan %ﬁzter Rochezsfjrll—?iIll_si,vlt\a/:incof:?gsg.48307 248-481-5554 Henry Christian
Michigan | Royal Oak i ondnerd e 248-201-5365 Randy LaBelle
Michigan | L SElOY chelby %ﬁsﬁfp'\"l\'/'lfcmﬁ Jats 313-574-0377 Henry Christian *
Michigan Bloﬁeld West%l?og;icglz(iir.dl\l/l_iiﬁeingfiZBSZZ 248-847-3923 Aeff Goldman *
vimows | eon | SSCHMRG QR0 | )y, | S v
Minnesota | Eden Prairie 11%2:?;:2?&?2 rirs'c') ti”;éesios 612-360-2960 J%%l
Minnesota Minnetonka %m%;g—ggf 612-268-2788 J%%I
Minnesota Prior Lake 14162 Pcr ?SPTZLZ? 'I\A/l\i/rsgéjseoEES’SS?)u?i;e #400 763-489-1607 Stephanie Hegstrom
Minnesota Shoreview 45;?0?;1:;&“I{/lsi:r?ee;);ugg 11;%20 651-661-7257 Kevin Quattrin
Missouri Clayton 850%?:;?5%2!3&%2;%2,&301 314-720-1575 Ryan Hahn
Missouri Columbia 15120?3;%?; H'\i/lllislic()jl.J.rng\ir)t;Ozzoo 573-818-7983 Jeff Walker
Missouri Liberty WEStO"[ri‘ge?t‘;iv'?\jlri‘gsgh2“&2602202'603 816-792-5800 Sabrina Denny
Missouri St. Peters Sizgégé?ﬁgﬁﬂﬂ Egg% 636-443-7200 Sheryl Peterson
Missouri % Town &l %tSUGnt%/e,lyl\t/loistSﬁ 63131 314-548-2178 Ryan Hahn
Missouri | Wildwood [ aza Drive, Sulte £ 101 636-235-4848 Ryan Hahn
Vo | onas | SUSCHNES | g | S
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Qutlets That Were Open as of December 31, 2024

State City Address Phone Owner Name(s)
Nebraska Omaha 13212:;]? aﬁe?)trfselia%%iizg 402-875-6596 SROymar:?:;ihln
Nebraska Omaha g;lfhgoﬁggr‘;f: s 402-252-5944 %Jm
Nevads | Remo O o Novada gosg) | TIS446-4281 | e Heinemann

Newdersey | Briel Brile New sty 08750 132020944 | i oprpgo
New Jersey ) Cherry Hill G e 896-306-5612 Sl caede
Newjersey | EairHaven Fai boven, New Jersey 07704 | 192:401294 | Peter Dunphy!
New Jersey Florham Park Florhl:rg g;)rIIL(J,mI\lI);\?vT]léps]g ;k§7932 973-241-5556 Franklyn Greenwaldt
Newdlersey | Hillsdae g, New Srsey 07642 L2308 | i abalopoudos °
Newlersey | Medford iecfor, New ey ososs | 8969195010 | il S
Newdersey | Micland Park | i por News sesay 07z | 9V2234103 | g Ui «
Newlersey | Skilman Skillman, New JrseyOgsse. | SOPSTOO0 | i Siad
NewMexico | Albuauerave | ‘ppoieaie o wecogrios | 05950886 | oM
e | A | O SO0 BN WL SWE P SE7 | 5175 | ol

117 Edinburgh South Drive, Suite #105

Powell, Ohio 43065

North Carolina Cary Cary. North Carolina 27511 984-849-4141 James Butler
Mool | Ctaote | R0TaNEN RO SR R0 | rossup i | Cemercal
North Caroling | Charlotte Cr};r?é;eEII(InorLtﬁngarsoulii;ea#Z1852077 280-890-7779 C?Q;S;?erhé;gﬁriel”i
North Carolina Durham 7%8u0”:1 %.H&%Tmagaigﬁhiuzig%gs 919-300-7474 James Butler *
Norh Corl | uerile | SH00 S EUt Bt sule 200 | rcgsp0000 | e
North Carolina | Morrisville 13/?01”215\\//\/”?:%;?;"(\;\; \cl;l i?:;';ﬁégl 919-893-4545 Barbara Blair
vnGaoins | maion | SEMEMODE S | oigpoz | onomer
o Gaoins | W | 2 G o5 U IR0 | o gnso | et Gl
o | mm | POCHERiC | g | Awows
Ohio Cincinnati 9797%%?;?;??8%3"2?2 e 513-273-0383 Chris Sipes
Ohio Cincinnati %m% 513-993-3100 Chris Sipes
Ohio Perrysburg E’i?r:mgrfr—(i)\ﬁ% 567-336-6044 Steven Hopingardner *
Ohio Powell 218 West Olentangy Street 614-408-8600 Charlene Holmes

William Holmes
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Qutlets That Were Open as of December 31, 2024

State City Address Phone Owner Name(s)
Ohio Toledo 71%\:3'0 f:g”r]tirg' Qg’ig”e 419-731-5951 |  Steven Hopingardner !
Ohio A%i%]%) ) % 614-825-3025 %‘W 1
Aringion —PRELATINgIon, L0 23222 Matthew Bootwala
A P R
ot | vt | SNADSL SRy | AN
Oklahoma Edmond Eé?r)r?olr:l; éi(?j@;i;e%%(h 405-562-9800 Valero Aquino
Okstome | Tuke Sk sue i | sweene|  recamm
Oregon Beng o Send oreqon 9770 | S4LTSTTOIL | Sheryl Arapov
Pennsylvania %z\i/vn—rff::g Cranber%\??gwizmg.lse'r?nusi\tﬁvza?l?a 16066 | [24-638-8585 Lisa Qldach
pemsans | Lonatome_| £ Nt Larghose R Gl 207 | o505 | e
pemnsytvania | "Guuae” | newtown Sauare, pemaphvanin ogra | 4862242628 | Sootesatl
Pennsylvania Pittsburgh pi ttsbt?rzig, ;,/Z 2:}?;;3;;??15232 412-437-2313 David Work !
Pennsylvania Pittsburgh gﬁ%m tr.qlr_ftl;ir:]?]r;\/?\ll\;?{i’aslu;;%?l 412-437-2021 David Work !
Pemishania | SpringHowse | o TR i toary | 484-808:2868 Deven Lim

985 Old Eagle School Road, Suite 515

Laura Austin

Murfreesboro, Tennessee 37130

Bennsylvania Wayne Wayne Pennsylvania 19087 484-980-6557 Peter Austin
Pennsylvania | West Chester WesYtoghi;s,tC; ﬁvpigﬁg\tl‘l\?:ﬁz ?;380 484-881-3770 [%1
South Caroling | MFE | HeaéSIiIZ\Ed'\,Agi)TJtshtrgztrolina 2990 | B03-830-9599 %gl%
soun Gat | P | SNEDUEEG St 101 | psoroggs | Lol
South Carolina | Simpsonville S};Sgiﬁfﬁﬂg' e Road Sute £108 | 864-565-8636 e
South Carolina | Tega Cay LIo7 Stonecres: Blvd. Sulte 2102 803-832-1989 Kimberly Liles
Tennessee Chattanooga ?:tﬁt;_n?og;?k';'\:evr?x(‘esiléiet?;téllz 423-419-5183 Sfﬁ?\%agw:\ile?er
Tennessee Collierville Zgglﬁg?\lllillllgfl% I::é‘ssseue't;s%llgél 901-850-3313 Rick Frembgen'
Tennessee Franklin %m%w 615-538-7923 Roshan Patel *
Tennessee Germantown %W 901-614-2534 %
Tennessee Knoxville Kno)m%ﬁg 4 865-244-2899 Steven Barnard
Tennessee Lakeland 9752 Market Green Place Noith, Suite #103 901-616-6082 Rick Frembgen*
Lakeland, Tennessee 38002
Tennessee Murfreesboro 520 Highland Terrace, Suite G 615-550-1706 Roshan Patel
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Qutlets That Were Open as of December 31, 2024

State City Address Phone Owner Name(s)
tass | Nty | CSNBOOTISERE | ooy | ot conss
| | PN SIS | g | Adadoie
| | e o | i
o | oo | AN | | e
o | i | UL | g | ety
aw | o | THSHMSTE | | e
o | T | OTEOT TR | s | e
Texas Fort Worth Lol s e Sueet 817-841-8388 Ll
o [ paeott, | | R
o | e | PRI S S | 45y | ey
T T
o | sy | SOTBOMNOMITTE | 1y | AT
Texas McKinney | 8% N'QEOQ?nb;;?/??E;JsiSsBoOﬂ BIdg-3 | 469-626-7039 David Bass Jr.
Texas Pearland 9SSOP?e;??ang(\j/?YFeS;QSS?u?i%ABf-308 832-787-0201 Al-ﬁir:ai(,)SJZbir
| v | CROUSORET | s | faniel
Texas Southlake — t*;;;?(?'}g‘;;gggg 140 817-764-3431 Mike Sims !
Virginia Centreville ot ItleDr\')’lf f]‘:;t%fgf 703-637-6862 John Hagan
Virginia Oakton %%? 571-626-5710 John Hagan
Virginia Richmond R%ms 804-508-7714 %9;7”
Virginia Richmond Richlrr%gﬁg,B\‘/uisréifiT%ZS6 804-368-6497 %
Virginia Springfield W 703-650-5890 Jonathan Mead
Wisconsin Appleton 1301 E, Capitol Drive, 5te. A 920-731-2348 Kevin McKee !

Appleton, Wisconsin 54911
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Qutlets That Were Open as of December 31, 2024

State City Address Phone Owner Name(s)

. . . 18900 W. Bluemound Rd., Suite #214 - 1
Wisconsin Brookfield Brookfield. Wisconsin 53045 262-290-5947 Kristine Staral

. . 3565 N. Oakland Ave. . 1
Wisconsin Shorewood Shorewood Wisconsin 53211 414-930-4044 Kevin McKee

* These franchisees are also area developers that committed to open multiple franchised businesses under the terms

of an area development agreement.

The following table lists franchisees with signed franchise agreements that were not open as of December 31, 2024.

State City Address Phone Owner Name(s)
California TBD TO BE DETERMINED 714-488-9995 Ceila Rodriguez
Daniel Rodriguez
. . 41789 Nicole Ln. Suite B7 Brian Roberts
California Temecula Temecula, California 92591 51-419-4119 Ederlyn Roberts
Florida TBD TO BE DETERMINED 954-410-3988 Liliane London
— — - _— Pedro Faraco
Florida TBD TO BE DETERMINED 860-906-8917 Allison Lynn
— —_— — David Lynn
Florida TBD TO BE DETERMINED 904-319-5585 Roberta Sanfelice
D 7 e Ricardo Sanfelice
. . 1595 Peachtree Parkway Suite #124 .
Georgia Cumming Cumming. Georgia 30041 470-777-7184 Palash Doshi
Kansas TBD TO BE DETERMINED 913-449-3692 Patricia Myers
Missouri TBD TO BE DETERMINED 314-435-9346 Jai Thomas
- - - _— Tessy Thomas
: Winston- 514 S. Stratford Rd. Suite #201 lan Dunn
North Carolina Salem Winston-Salem, North Carolina 27103 336-815-5890 Kirsten Dunn
Emily Etrheim
South Dakota TBD TO BE DETERMINED 952-270-6220 Zachary Etrheim
= — =esee Wade Kranz
Amy Kranz
. 1455 FM 646 Rd. Suite #101 Don Delmonico
Texas League City League City, Texas 77579 830-252-7228 Rebecca Delmonico
318 W. FM 544 St. Suite D4 Mark Alexander
Texas Murphy Murphy, Texas 75094 4694216911 Danica Alexander
Evita Garces
Texas TBD TO BE DETERMINED 305-989-2842 Jorge Dorta
Roberto Garces
Beverly Mussi-Sanchez|
N . Krupali Patel
Virginia TBD TO BE DETERMINED 847-306-2518 Karun Chendrimada

* These franchisees are also area developers that have committed to open multiple franchised businesses under

the terms of an area development agreement.

Part B (Former Franchisees Who Left System During Prior Fiscal Year)

State City Current Business Phone or Last Known Home Phone Owner Name(s)
Alabama Mountain Brook 205-541-2535 Kendall Gadl.
- Charnele Gadi
California Los Angeles 213-712-8498 Peter Young
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State City Current Business Phone or Last Known Home Phone Owner Name(s)
. . . e Dacqrin Stewart
California San Diego 858-472-0207 Amelia Crenshaw
Connecticut Cos Cab 917-692-3200 Stephen Rigopoulos
Florida Lake Mary 386-624-4503 Kerry Brown
Scott Gerratt
ldaho Eagle 208-866-9999 -
agle - Sommers Gerratt
. y
Illinois Bannockburn 847-858-0157 Woady Bedell
I - e Joyce Bedell
Robert Gauvin
Massachusetts North Andover 603-502-4558 ) .
Janine Gauvin
Michigan Grand Rapids 616-717-1866 Tom Shrader
Missouri O’Fallon deceased Eric Anderson
. Justin Morri
North Carolina Waxhaw 317-796-9333 w
- - - Tracy Morris
. L . Vi
Ohio Cincinnati 513-207-2098 Halley Cowden
- - - Jason Cowden
Nikki Weirs
. Will Wei
South Carolina | M. Pleasant 708-670-3818 DATLIYEILS

Ken Yacobozzi
Kathi Yacobozzi

Texas Alamo Heights deceased Anne Kilpatrick
Texas Fort Worth 512-413-1731 Luis Rodriguez Jr.

If vou buy this franchise, vour contact information may be disclosed to other buyers when you leave the

franchise system.
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TO DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

[See Attached]
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EXERCISE COACH USA, LLC

Audited Financial Statements

For the Years Ended December 31. 2024 and 2023
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CYGANHAYES..

Certified Public Accountants and Consultants

Glenn A, Cygan, CPA 20635 Abbey Woods Ct. North, Suite 104
Jeffrey S. Hayes, CPA Frankfort, 1L 60423
Dawn C. Riggio, CP'A, MBA Tel.815.534 5713
www.cyganhayes.com Fax.815.534.5523

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT

To Members of Exercise Coach TUSA, LLC
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial starements of Exercise Coach USA, LLC, which comprise the balance sheets as
of December 31, 2024 and 2023, and the related statemnents of income. changes i members” equity, and cash fows for the
years then ended. and the related nofes to the financial statements.

In our opinion. the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects. the financial position of
Exercise Coach USA. LI1.C as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the
vears then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepred in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted eur andits in accordance with andiring standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Our
respousibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of Exercise Coach USA, LLC and to meet our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide & basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Finaneial Statements

Management is responsible for the prepamtmn and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. and for the design. implementation. and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due ro fraud or error

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considerad in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Exercise Coach USA, LLC's abality to continue as a going
concern within one vear after the date that the financial statements are available 1o be issued.

Andiror’s Responsibilities for the Audir of the Financial Statemenis

Our objectives are 1o obfain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from marerial
misstatement, whether due to frand or error. and to issue an anditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
15 a high level of assurance bur is not absolure assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducied in
Accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will alwavs detect a material misstatement when it exists. The nisk
of not detecting a marterial misstatement resulting from frand is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
invalve collusion. forgery. intentional omissions. misrepresentations. or the override of infernal control. Misstatements.
including omissions, are considerad material if there is a substantial likelihood thar, individually or in the aggregare, they
wonld influence the mdgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted anditing standards. we:

o Exercise professional judgment and mamiain professional skepticism throughont the andit,
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¢ Tdentify and assess the risks of marerial missiatement of the financial statements. whether due o fraud or error.
and design and perform andit procedures responsive fo those risks. Such procedures inchude examining. on a test
basis. evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements,

*«  Obrain an understanding of inrernal conirol relevanr to the audit in ovder to design audit procedures thar are
appropriate in e circumstances, but ot for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Exercise
Coach USA LLC’s internal confrol. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management. as well as evaluate the overall presenration of the financial statements.

¢ Conclude whether, in our judgment. there are condifions o1 events. considered m the aggregate. thar raise
substantial doubr abour Exercise Coach USA LLC"s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period
of time,

We are required fo conmmunicate with those charged with governance regarding. among other matters, the planned scope
and nming of the audit. significant audit findmegs. and certain mternal control related matters that we identified during the
augdir.

Supplemeniary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statemnents as a whole. The Schedule of
Operating Costs and Expenses 1s presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required pait of the financial
statements. Such mformation 15 the respousibility of management and was derived from and relates direcily to the underlymg
accomnting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected 1o the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, inchuding comparing and
reconciling such mformation directly to the inderlying acconnting and other records used to prepare the financial statements
or 1o the financial starements themselves. and other addifional procedures in accordance with audiring standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opmuon. the mfonmation is fauly stated in all material respects 1 relation to
the financial statemenis as a whole

Coeti Al

CYGAN HAYES. LTD.
Certified Public Accountants

Frankfort. [Tlinois
April 11, 2025
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Exercise Coach USA, LLC
Balance Sheeis
For the yvears ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

ASSETS
2024 2023
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1.910.611 $ 2155358
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for credir losses
of 5431 for 2024 and $3.484 for 2023 (Nore 2) 537.369 343671
Deferred confract costs 519,590 286,450
Prepaid expenses 183,428 112,153
[nventory 79,380 -
Short-term loan recervable 1.687 -
Total Cnrrent Assets 3.232. 065 2.897.632
FIXED ASSETS
Computers and equipment 151,883 80,069
Training equipment 143,248 135.360
Leasehold inprovements 112,586 14,572
Software 24,000 24,000
Less: Accunulated depreciation & amortizalion (162.251) (100.674)
Total Fixed Assets 269466 153.327
OTHER ASSETS
Right of use assets for operating leases (Note 6) 267,730 181,083
Loan receivable 60,000 47.0035
Other receivable 1.575 -
Construction m progress - 5482
Total Other Assers 329,305 233.570
Total Assets § 3830836 § 3284529
LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS' EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts pavable b 282,127 b 219.334
Deferred revenue 709.750 366,255
Shot termn lease liabality for operaiing leases (Note 6) 88480 61,458
Taxes payvable 5.218 4.752
Total Current Liabilities 1.085.575 651,799
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Loan payable to partner 600000 600,000
Long fern lease liability for operating leases (Note 6) 182,552 119,625
Deferred tax liability, net 1.162 1.057
Total Long-Term Liabilities 783,714 720.682
MEMBERS' EQUITY 1.961.347 1.912.048
Taotal Liabilities and Members' Equiry § 3.830.836 $ 3284529
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Exercise Coach USA, LLC
Statements of Income
For the yvears ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

2024 2023
REVENUES
Franchise fee revenus % 640,005 S 1.473.870
Royalty revenue 3.520.136 3,030,043
Ad fund revemme 578.454 475962
Franchise support services 832.052 702.196
Printing services 280.297 317.536
Marketing and contest revenue 1,337,149 684,685
Commissions 14.700 70,069
Referral income 28,875 10,807
Miscellaneous income 235.699 143,194
Total Revenue 7.467 367 6.508 362
OPERATING COSTS AND EXPENSES (Schedule 1) 6,530,746 5.818.263
Operating Income (Loss) 036.621 1.090.099
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE)
Interest income 29.617 21,551
Provision for credii losses (1947} 4002
Tartal Other Tncome (ExXpense) 27.670 25553
Net Income Before Taxes 964,201 1.115.652
TAX EXPENSE
International taxes 23,789 35,856
Replacement fax expense 5218 4,752
Deferred tax expense (benefit) 105 1.187
Total Tax Expense 29.112 44,795
Net Income (Loss) $ 35.179 5 1.070,857
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Exercise Coach USA, LLC
Statements of Changes in Members' Equity
Fer the yvears ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

Hudson Dunbar
Strength 9% & James 2011 1994
for Investments  Declaration Afita, Living
Life LLC LLC of Trust LLC Timst Toal
Balance at
Jamuary 1. 2023 § 702006 § 632657 § 260424 § 335435 8232961 §  2.163.568
Prior Penod
Adjustment for
Adoption of New
Standard (6.490) (1,931) (997) (1,318) (2,140) (12.876)
Capital Distributions (630,108) (225,791) (99,898) (B6.016)  (247,688) (1.309,501)
Transters of Capital - 151.089 = {(302.179) 151.090 >
Net Income/{Loss) 539,670 188.417 82,927 54,078 205,765 1.070.857
Balance at
December 31. 2023 § SBSIGE 5 744436 % 242456 $ - $339988 % 1.912.048
Capital Distributions (438.445) (182.539) (67.373) - (197.323) (R85.680)
Net Iucomne/{Loss) 471,293 188,158 72.420 - 203,308 935.179
Balance at
Decemnber 31. 2024 § 618016 & 750055 & 247503 5 - §$345973 % 1.961.547
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Exercise Coach USA, LLC

Statements of Cash Flows

December 31, 2024 and 2023

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Income (Loss)
Admstments to reconcile net income (loss) to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Provision (benefit) for deferred tancs
Depreciation and amormizaron
Provision for credir losses
{Increase) decrease in assets:
Accounts receivable
Deferred contract costs
Other recervable
Prepaid expenses
Inventory
ST Loan receivable
Right of use asseis
LT Loan receivable
Consfmiction in progress
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable
Deferred revenue
Lease liabiliry. short termn and long term
Taxes pavable
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditures
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from note payable - partner loan
Capiral distributions
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Financing Activities

Net Increase (Decrease) tn Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents — Beginnmng of Year
Cash and Cash Equivalents — End of Year

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash Pawd Duning the Year for;
Interest

Intermational taxes paid
Replacement raxes paid

Noncash Operating Transactions
Operating lease assets
Operating lease liabilities

2024 2023
$ 935179 $ 1070857
105 1.187
61.577 37.179
1.947 (4.002)
(195.645) 10,915
(233.140) 404,800
(1.575) 2716
(71.275) (63.257)
(79.320) y
(1.687) .
(86.647) 52,708
(12.995) {47.005)
5482 (5.482)
62.793 38297
343 495 (599 .445)
§9.949 (52.708)
166 (383)
818.649 846,377
(177.716) (67.897)
(177.716) (67.897)
2 600,000
(885.680) (1.309.501)
(885.680) (709.501)
(244.747) 68.979
2,155.358 2.086.379
§  1910.611 § 2155358
§ 39,000 $ i
$ 23.789 $ 38.856
3 4752 $ 2419
S 164497 $ 34.599
§ 164497 $ 34,599
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Exercise Coach USA, LLC
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2024 and 2023

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Nature of Business

The Company is engaged in the franchising of a proprietary system of personalized fituess training throughout the country
in stares for which legal compliances for franchising have been met,

Revenue Recognition

The Company's revenue is derived primarily from initial franchise fees and rovalties from existing franchisees, and
recognized according to ASC G06. Revenues from Contracts with Customers. Iniial franchise fees are paid by new
franchisees and cover services provided for initial development and support of each franchise location. These services
contain muliiple performance obligations. which are satisfied over time. Typically. these services are provided over a
periad of ren months after an agreemen is signed to the opening of a location and this forms the basis of rime for these
fees to be recognized. Untl such time that performance obligations are completed, and fees are fully recognized, the
Company recognizes a liabiliry for deferred revenue. As services are performed each month. the liability is reversed. and
revenue is recognized. The fees collected for these services are nonrefundable, See Note 3 for deferred revenue contract
balance details.

As franchise locations open for business, monthly royalties are collected from each franchisee. These fees are subject to a
mininmim amount stated in each franchise agreement. with a variable component based on monthly sales. Rovalties provide
for monthly access to the franchise hicense and use of the Company’s marks and intellectual property. These fees are
recognized sach month.

Income Taxes

As a limited lability company, the Company’s taxable income or loss is allocared to members i accordance with then
respective ownership percentage. Therefore. no provision or liability for current immcome taxes has been mcluded in the
financial statements. Tn cerfain instances, however, the Company may be required under applicable srate laws 1o remir
directly to state tax authorities amounts otherwise due to members. Such pavments on behalf of the members are deemned
distributions to them. The Company is required to pay the Staie of Tllinois replacement tax (cwrenily 1.5% of state income).
For the years ended December 31. 2024 and 2023 state replacement tax expense was $5.218 and 84,752 respectively.

Deferred taxes are recognized for differences between the basis of assets and liabilities for financial statement and mcome
ax purposes. The differences related primarily to depreciable assets (use of different depreciation methods and lives for
financial statement and income tax purposes) and other differences berween assets and liabilities as a vesult of different
accounfing methods nsed for the financial starements and raxes, The deferved rax assets and liabilities represent the fumre
tax refurn consequences of those differences, which will either be deducrible or taxable when the assets and liabilities are
recovered or seffled. Deferred taxes also are recognized for operating losses that are available w offser fumre raxable
income.

The Company has several international franchise locations. There are related international foreign taxes the Company is
required to repert. The foreign franchise locations reimburse the Company for the tax expense each vear, and the Company
reports these receipts as franchise and royalty revenue and reports the related expense. For the vears ended December 31.
2024 and 2023, the total miernational tax was 523,789 and 338,836, respectively.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purposes of the statenient of cash flows, the Company considers all demand deposits, money marker funds, and
securities with onginal maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents. The Company maintains its cash in bank
accounfs which. at tfimes. may exceed federally insurance limifs as gunaranteed by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Clorporation.
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Exercise Coach USA, LLC
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2024 and 2023
NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Accounts Receivable & Allowance for Credit Losses

Accounts receivable are reported at their outstanding balances less the allowance for credit losses.

The Company previously adopted ASU 2016-13 Financial Instrunients — Credit Losses (Topic 426) which requires the
Company to create a provision for an allowance for credir losses on acconnfs recervable. The allowance for credir losses
represents an estimate of the lifetune expected credit losses in accounts recervable as of the date of the financial stateinents.

The Company utilizes past lastorical data. evaluations of customers” financial condition, knowledge of current econonic
conditions. reasonable forecasrs for fumwe payments, and other economic trends and factors 1o develop credir loss
estimates. Recervables are grouped info different categories based upon age of the receivable and assessed 1isk and are
evalnated by caregory for collectability. The Company periodically assesses its methodelogies for estmating credit losses
in consideration of actual experience, trends. and changes in the overall economic enviromment.

Credit losses are directly charged off when the Company deemns the accounts receivable balance 1o be uncollectible. See
Naote 2 for detailed information on the calcularion of the cwrrent allowance for credir losses.

Property. Equipment. Depreciation and Amortization

Property and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation and amortization are computed nsing the straight-line method

over the estimared useful lives of the assets. For the vears ended December 31. 2024 and 2023, depreciarion and

amorfization expense relating to property and equipment was included in operafing costs in the amount of 861.577 and
37.179. respectively.

Inventory

Inveniory consisis of equipment related o a sireiching program offered to ffanchises owners as a service line of the
Company and i1s valued at the lower of cost or market. The cost is determuned using the fwst-m. first-ouf method. The
inventory is adjusted annually as a resuli of physical counr.

Advertising

The Company follows the policy of charging the costs of adverrising fo expense as incired.  Advertising expense was
$1.233.349 and $633.289 for the years ended Decewmber 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. Mounthly amounts are also
received from franclisees, equal to a portion of monthly sales to fund a brand development fimd (“ad fund™), The Company
uses the ad fiund for additional advertising. marketing and brand development to promote public awareness of the brand
and improve systems. These receipts are treated as revenue, recognized each monih. and expenses are recorded when
wcurred.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America requires management o make estimates and assumprions that affect the reported amounis of assets and
habilities, and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements. and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reporting pertod. Actal results could differ from those estumares.

Reclassification

Certain accounts in the prior year financial statements have been reclassified for comparative purposes o conform with
the presentation i the current year financial statements.
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Exercise Coach USA, LLC
Notes (o Financial Statements
December 31, 2024 and 2023

NOTE 2: ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND ALLOWANCE FOR CREDIT LOSSES

2024 2023

Accounts receivable consisis of?

Trade £ 342 800 $§ 347155

Less allowance for credit losses (5.431) (3.484)
Accoumts receivable net of credit losses § 537369 § 343671
Changes i the allowance for credit losses were as follows:
Beginning balance b 3.484 $ -
Tpact of adopting ASTT 2016-13 allowance for credit loss expense - 12,876
Change m allowance for credit losses for the current period 1,947 (4,002}
Direct credit losses charged against the allowance - (3.390)
Ending balance 5 5.431 s 3484

For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Company recognized credirt loss expense (income) of 51.947 and
(54,002}, respectively.

NOTE 3: CONTRACT LIABILITIES AND ASSETS

Contract liabilities from contracts with customers for initial franchise fees that relate to deferred revenue consist of the
following ar December 31, 2024 and 2023;

2024 2023
Beginning of Year b 366255 % 965,700
End of Year b 709750 & 366,255

The Company often incurs mncremental contract costs i the form of broker commissions to third parties when a new
franchisee is acquired. These incremental contract costs are recognized over the same period as the initial franchise fee
revenues. A deferred contract cost asset is recorded when conmmssions are paid. and as the revenues are recogmzed each
month as performance obligations are completed, a proportional amount of the asset is reversed and the expense is
recognized. Contract cost assets for these conumnissions consist of the following at December 31, 2024 and 2023:

2024 2023
Beginning of Year b 286,450 3% 691.250
End of Year $ 519590 % 286.450

The full amount of the prior year liabilities has been recognized as revenues and the prior year contract assets have been
recognized as expense m the current year due to the ime over which these revenues and expenses are recognized, see Note
1
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Exercise Coach USA, LLC

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31. 2024 and 2023
NOTE 4: MEMBERS® EQUITY

As of December 31. 2024 and 2023, ownership and mcome percentages are as follows:

2024 2023
Strength For Life, LLC 500% 50 %
Hudson Declaration Trust 8 % 8%
W. Kent Dunbar 1994 Living Trust 22% 22%
9% & Tames Investments, LLC 20% 20 %

There were no changes in ownership or income percentage curing the year ended December 31, 2024,

NOTE 5: INCOME TAXES

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the deferved fax liabilities recognized for faxable tempovary differences total $9,103
and $5.872. respectively. Deferred tax assets recogmized for deductible temporary differences and operating loss
carryforwards total $7.941 and $4.815. respectively. The ner deferred rax liability of 31,162 and $1.057 is reported on the
accompanviig balance sheets for the vears ended December 31. 2024 and 2023, respectively.

The Company has adopted the revised provisions of FASB ASC 740, relating to uncertain tax positions. These standards
require management to perform an evaluation of all income fax positions taken or expecied o be raken in the course of
preparing the Company’s income tax renuns to detenmine whether the income tax positens meet a "more likely than not"
standard of being sustained under examination by the applicable taxing awhorities. This evaluation is required o be
performed for all open tax years, as defined by the various statues of limitations, for federal and state purposes.

The Company is required to file federal and state income tax retums. The Company’s tax returns are subject to possible
examination by the raxing authorities. For federal and stare income rax purposes. the rax refuns essentially remain open
for possible examination for a period of three years after the respective filing deadlines of those retums. Management has
performed its evalmarion of all other income tax positions taken on all open income fax remumns and has derermined rthar
there were no positions taken that do not meet the "more likely than not" standard. Accordingly. there are no provisions
for income faxes, penalties or inferest receivable or payable relating fo uncertain income tax provisions in the
accompanying financial statements,

NOTE 6: RELATED PARTY LEASES & OTHER LEASING ARRANGEMENTS

The Company subleased facilities from Strength for Life. a related party through common members and additional facilities
owned by the Company’s CEO. One of these leases expired in the current yvear. While the other lease is paid monthly and
15 set to expire July 2028. Total rent expense for these arrangements for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 was
$8.238 and $5.700, respectively.

The Company also leased a facility o serve as a maining cenfer for new franchisee owners. The lease renm is effective
thirough November 30, 2025, with an expected 1o be exercised opiion for one additional year. The lease calls for monthly
payments of $2,050 but may be modified depending on use of space. For the years ended December 31. 2024 and 2023,
rent was only charged at 50% of the monthly amount per the agreement. In subsequent vears. unless otherwise agreed
upor. rent will continue to be charged at 50%5 of the monthly payment per the agreement. Total rent expense for the vears
ended Decemtber 31, 2024 and 2023 was $12.300 and $11.797, respectively.

The Company has a lease agreement for an additional iraming cenfer for new fianchisee owners, This lease term 1s effective
through December 31. 2026. The lease calls for monthly payments of $4.100. Total rent expense for this lease was $49.200
for the vears ended December 31, 2024 and 2023,
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Exercise Coach USA, LLC
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2024 and 2023

NOTE 6: RELATED PARTY LEASES & OTHER LEASING ARRANGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

The Compauy entered a new agreement during the current year for an additional office and training center. The lease is
effective June 1, 2024 through August 31, 2029. The lease calls for inirial menthly paymenis of $3.100, with an increase
to $3.550 wonthly. effective September 2024, These monthly payments may be modified depending on use of space. For
the year ended December 31, 2024, rent was only charged at 50% of the monthly amount per the agreement. In subsequent
years. unless otherwise agreed npon. rent will continue to be charged at the 50% of the monthly amount per the agreement.
Tortal rent expense for this lease for the year ended December 31. 2024 was 14.664.

The practical expedient election has been made to use the risk-free rate as the disconnt rate for all operating leases.

Supplemental balance sheet informanion related to leases were as follows:

2024 2023
Operating lease right-of-use assets $ 267730 S 181.083
Operating lease obligations - current 85.480 61.458
Operating lease obligations - non current 182,552 119.625
Taotal operating lease obligations 5. 271.082 § 1B1.083
Weighted Average Discount Rate 333 % 193 %
Weighted Average Term of Leases (Years) 3:31 2.95
Furure lease payments for all leases

2024 2023
Jannary 1, 2024 - December 31, 2024 3 - 5 64350
January 1. 2025 - December 31, 2023 96,150 61,500
Janmary 1. 2026 - December 31. 2026 98.348 60475
January 1. 2027 - December 31, 2027 39,766 -
January 1. 2028 - December 31, 2028 35.677
January 1. 2029 - December 31, 2029 18,985 -
Total undiscounted mininmm lease pavinents 288,926 186,325
Less: Present value discount (17.894) (5.242)
Operating lease liability $ 271032 § 181.083
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Exercise Coach USA, LLC
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2024 and 2023

NOTE 7: RELATED PARTY DEBT

On December 15, 2023, the Company executed an agreement with 9% & James Investments, LLC whereby the Company
1ssued a promissory note totaling $600.000. This agreement matures on January 15, 2031. Interesi-only payments are
required for the first 24 months from the effective date of the note. beginning January 15, 2024, The first installment of
principal and interest is dne on January 15. 2026. to be paid in 60 equal monthly installments. It is understood that an
unpaid primcipal balance will remain at the end of this term. at which point a balloon payment will become due for the
remaining principal balance. The pronussery note bears an mferest rate of 6. 5% per anoum. Interest was charged of $39.000
during the year ended December 31, 2024, As of December 31. 2024, the loan balance was $600,000.

NOTE 8: EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN

The Company has established an elective deferral SIMPLE IRA plan covering all eligible emplovees. The Company

martches the contributions made by employees. up to a maximum of 3% of the employee’s income. The Company’s
matching contributions for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, was $36.529 and $37.894, respectively.

NOTE 9: SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management has evaluated the events that have ocowrred throngh April 11, 2025, the date the financial statements were
available to be 1zsued.
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Exercise Coach USA, LLC
Schedule 1
Schedule of Operating Costs and Expenses
For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

2024 2023
OPERATING COSTS AND EXPENSES

Advertising and promotion 5 1,233,349 b 633.289
Salaties 2.035.791 1798755
Payroll taxes 104,146 99.358
Professional fees 202,508 183,027
Franchise development 711.961 1.274.368
Ad fund expenses 525,805 393.628
Training expense 73,864 40.403
Comimnission expeinse 12,500 -
Dues and subscriptions 6,644 5.873
Designer fees 13.630 15.960
[nsurance 113,767 83.998
Rent 84,402 66.697
Website and computers 743,929 649,200
Automobile B.244 13.422
Office supplies 23,650 10.697
Printing and postage 282.261 309,797
Repairs and mamienance 1.911 2.105
Travel 46,044 13.145
Telephone and urilities 10,724 8.711
License and fees 177 177
Education 141,205 116.533
Depreciation 53,577 29179
Amortization 8.000 §.000
Meals & enfertaimment 7.850 16.438
Retirement plan expense 36,529 37.894
Interest expense 39.000 -
Bank fees 9.176 7.352
Sales tax expense 102 257

Total Operating Costs and Expenses g 6.530.746 % 5.818.263
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EXERCISE COACH USA, LLC

Audited Financial Statements

For the Years Ended December 31. 2023 and 2022
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CYGANHAYES..

Certified Mublic Accountants and Consultants

Glenn A, Cygan, CPA 20635 Abbey Woods Ct. North, Suite 104
Jeffrev S, Hayes, CPA Framkfort, [L 60423
Dawn C. Riggio, CPA, MBA Tel.8#15.534.5713
www.cyganhayes.com Fax.815.534.5523

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT

To Members of Exereise Coach TISA, LLC
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying linaneial stalernents of Exereise Coach USA, LLC, which comprise the halance sheels as
af December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the related statéments of income, changes in members’ cooity, and cash flaws for the
years then ended, and the related notes to the finanecial stalements

In our opimion, (he fpancial stalements refemed o above present farly, in all matenal respects, the fnancial position of
Exercise Coach USA, LLC as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the resalts of s operations and its cash flows for the
vears then ended w accordance with aceounting praciples generally sccepted m the Usnted States of Amenca.

Basis for Opinion

We condueted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally aceepted in the United States of America, Cur
responzibilities under those standards are further desenibed in the Auditor™s Responsibilities Tor the Audit of the Finaneial
Statements section ef our report. We are required 1o be independent of Exercise Coach USA, LLC and 1o meet our ather
cthical responsibilities m accordance with the relevant eflneal requirements relating to our sudis. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obiamed 15 sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opruon.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Stafements

Munagement is responsible for the preparation and fair presentalion of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted i the United States of America. and lor the design. implementation, and
maintenanee of internal control relevant o the preparation and far presentation of fnancial statements that are free from
material misstalement, whether due w lraud or ermor,

In preparmg the financial statements, management 15 required 10 evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Excrese Coach USA, LLC s ability to continue as a going
concern within one vear after the date that the financial statements arc available o be 1ssued,

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our ohjectives are Lo oblain reasonable assurance ahout whether the financial statements os o whole are free from material
misstatement. whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our apinion. Reasonable assurance
is n high level of assurance but is not absolule assurance and thercfore is net a guarantes that an audit conducted in
accordance with generally accepled auditmg standards will always detect o matenal musstatement when il exists. The nisk
ol nol detecting 2 material musstatement resultmg from [raud 15 higher than for one resulling from error, as fraud may
wnvolve collusion, forgery, mientional onussions, misrepresentations, o the overmde of nternal control. Misstatements.
ineluding cimissions, are considered material of there 15 a substantial hkelbhood that, mdivadually or i the agprepate. they
would influence the jud ginent made by a reasonable vser based on the financal statements,

In perfonning an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:

e Excreise professional judgment and maintam professional skepticism throughout the audit.
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SUPPLEMENTAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION
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EXHIBIHF M EXHIBIT "I""
TO DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

STATE EFFECTIVE DATES

State Effective Dates

The following states have franchise laws that require that the Franchise Disclosure Document
be registered or filed with the state, or be exempt from registration: California, Hawaii, Illinois,
Indiana, Maryland, Michigan, Minnesota, New York, North Dakota, Rhode Island, South
Dakota, Virginia, Washington, and Wisconsin.

This document is effective and may be used in the following states, where the document is
filed, registered or exempt from registration, as of the Effective Date stated below:

State Effective Date
California
Hawaii September 5, 2024
Illinois
Indiana May-30.2024
Maryland
Michigan February 6, 2025 (amended April 21, 2025)
Minnesota Juby 12024
New York November 212024
North Dakota June 122024
Rhode Island May 20, 2024
South Dakota
Virginia June 122024
Washington
Wisconsin April 26202428, 2025

Other states may require registration, filing, or exemption of a franchise under other laws, such
as those that regulate the offer and sale of business opportunities or seller-assisted marketing
plans.
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EXHEHBIFNEEXHIBIT "J"
TO DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

RECEIPTS

[See Attached]
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RECEIPT
This Disclosure Document summarizes certain provisions of the franchise agreement and other information in plain language.
Read this Disclosure Document and all agreements carefully.

If Exercise Coach USA, LLC offers you a franchise, it must provide this Disclosure Document to you 14 days before you
sign a binding agreement or make a payment with the franchisor or an affiliate in connection with the proposed franchise
sale. New York-taw requires a—franchisorto-provide-the-Franehisethat we give you this Disclosure Document at the
earlier of the first personal meeting or ter—{10} business days before the execution of the franchise or other agreement or
the payment of any consideration that relates to the franchise relationship.

If Exercise Coach USA, LLC does not deliver this Disclosure Document on time, or if it contains a false or misleading
statement or a material omission, a violation of federal and state law may have occurred and should be reported to the
Federal Trade Commission, Washington, DC 20580, and the appropriate state agency listed in EXHHBH—A"EXHIBIT
"A" to this Disclosure Document.
The franchise seller(s) involved with the sale of this franchise is/are:

Brad Bundy; 531 Telser Rd., Lake Zurich, Illinois 60084; (847) 807-3256

Brian Cygan; 531 Telser Rd., Lake Zurich, lllinois 60084; (855) 202-6224

Matthew Essex; 531 Telser Rd., Lake Zurich, Illinois 60084; (855) 202-6224

John Suazo; 9475 Briar Village Point, #110, Colorado Springs, Colorado; (855) 202-6224

Kevin McKee; 531 Telser Rd., Lake Zurich, Illinois 60084; (847) 766-0267

Anthony Lux; 531 Telser Rd., Lake Zurich, lllinois 60084; (847) 202-6224

Paul Broeder; 11802 Owens Canyon Lane, Cypress, Texas 77433; (832) 388-0270

Jesse Hudson; 16934 Frances Street, #105, Omaha, Nebraska 68130; (531) 333-3278

Jennifer Cain; 16934 Frances Street, #105, Omaha, Nebraska 68130; (531) 333-3278
Alicia West; 16934 Frances Street, #105, Omaha, Nebraska 68130; (531) 333-3278

Manny Guzman; 14301 FNB Pkwy, Suite 312, Omaha, Nebraska 68154; (531) 333-3278

Jessica McLean; 14301 FNB Pkwy, Suite 312, Omaha, Nebraska 68154; (531) 333-3278

[Name] ;[Address] ; [Phone]
Issuance Date: April 21, 2025

Exercise Coach USA, LLC’s agent to receive service of process is listed in EXHIBIT "A" to this Disclosure Document (for
franchise registration states) or EXHIBIT "B" to this Disclosure Document (for all other states).

I received a Franchise Disclosure Document that included the following Exhibits:

EXHIBIT "A" List of State Administrators and Agents for Service of Process
EXHIBIT "B" Agent for Service of Process

EXHIBIT "C" Franchise Agreement

EXHIBIT "D" Area Development Agreement

EXHIBIT "E" Other Agreements

EXHIBIT "E"-1 State Addenda

EXHIBIT "E"-2 General Release

EXHIBIT "E"-3 Participation Agreement
EXHIBIT "E"-4 Franchise Resale Agreement

EXHIBIT "F" Table of Contents of the confidential Brand Standards Manual
EXHIBIT "G" List of Franchisees
EXHIBIT "H" Financial Statements of Exercise Coach USA, LLC
EXHIBIT "I" State Effective Dates
EXHIBIT "J" Receipts
Print Name
Date (Signature) Prospective Franchise Owner

(This Receipt should be executed in duplicate. One Receipt must be signed and remains in the Franchise Disclosure Document as the
prospective franchise owner’s copy. The other Receipt must be signed and returned to Exercise Coach USA, LLC)
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RECEIPT

This Disclosure Document summarizes certain provisions of the franchise agreement and other information in plain
language. Read this Disclosure Document and all agreements carefully.

If Exercise Coach USA, LLC offers you a franchise, it must provide this Disclosure Document to you 14 days before you
sign a binding agreement or make a payment with the franchisor or an affiliate in connection with the proposed franchise
sale. New York requires that we give you this Disclosure Document at the earlier of the first personal meeting or 10
business days before the execution of the franchise or other agreement or the payment of any consideration that relates to
the franchise relationship.

If Exercise Coach USA, LLC does not deliver this Disclosure Document on time, or if it contains a false or misleading
statement or a material omission, a violation of federal and state law may have occurred and should be reported to the
Federal Trade Commission, Washington, DC 20580, and the appropriate state agency listed in EXHIBIT "A" to this
Disclosure Document.

The franchise seller(s) involved with the sale of this franchise is/are:
Brad Bundy; 531 Telser Rd., Lake Zurich, Illinois 60084; (847) 807-3256
Brian Cygan; 531 Telser Rd., Lake Zurich, Illinois 60084; (855) 202-6224
Matthew Essex; 531 Telser Rd., Lake Zurich, Illinois 60084; (855) 202-6224
John Suazo; 9475 Briar Village Point, #110, Colorado Springs, Colorado; (855) 202-6224
Kevin McKee; 531 Telser Rd., Lake Zurich, Illinois 60084; (847) 766-0267
Anthony Lux; 531 Telser Rd., Lake Zurich, Illinois 60084; (847) 202-6224
Paul Broeder; 11802 Owens Canyon Lane, Cypress, Texas 77433; (832) 388-0270
Jesse Hudson; 16934 Frances Street, #105, Omaha, Nebraska 68130; (531) 333-3278
Jennifer Cain; 16934 Frances Street, #105, Omaha, Nebraska 68130; (531) 333-3278
Alicia West; 16934 Frances Street, #105, Omaha, Nebraska 68130; (531) 333-3278
Manny Guzman; 14301 FNB Pkwy, Suite 312, Omaha, Nebraska 68154; (531) 333-3278
Jessica McLean; -14301 FNB Pkwy, Suite 312, Omaha, Nebraska 68154; (531) 333-3278
[Name] ;[Address] ; [Phone]

Issuance Date: April 19202421, 2025

Exercise Coach USA, LLC’s agent to receive service of process is listed in EXEHBITF-B“EXHIBIT "A" to this Disclosure
Document- (for franchise registration states) or EXHIBIT "B" to this Disclosure Document (for all other states).

| received a Franchise Disclosure Document that included the following Exhibits:

EXHIBHA"EXHIBIT "B"_ Agent for Service of Process
EXHIBIHFC"EXHIBIT "C"_ Franchise Agreement
EXHIBHD“EXHIBIT "D"_  Area Development Agreement
EXHIBHE“EXHIBIT "E" Other Agreements

EXHIBIT "E"-1 State Addenda

EXHIBIT "E"-2 General Release

EXHIBIT "E"-3 Participation Agreement

EXHIBIT "E"-4 Franchise Resale Agreement

EXHIBIT "F" Table of Contents of the confidential Brand Standards Manual
EXHIBIF“EXHIBIT "G"  List of Franchisees

EXHIBIFG"EXHIBIT "H"  Financial Statements of Exercise Coach USA, LLC
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EXHIBHN-EXHIBIT "J"__ Receipts

Print
Name

Date (Signature) Prospective Franchise
Owner

(This Receipt should be executed in duplicate. One Receipt must be signed and remains in the Franchise Disclosure Document as the
prospective franchise owner’s copy. The other Receipt must be signed and returned to Exercise Coach USA, LLC)
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